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The State of Nebraska (State), Department of
Administrative Services (DAS), Materiel Division,
“tate Purc..asing Bureau (SPB), is issuing this
Request for Proposal (RFP) Number 5885 Z1 for
the purpose of selecting a qualified Bidder to
provide Hosted Voice Over Internet Protocol
Telephony (VOIP) Services.

ALLO Communications Response to RFP 5885 Z1:
Option B: Carrier-Hosted,

8/20/2018
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State Purchasing Bureau
1526 K Street, Suite 130
Lincoln, NE 68508

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the State of Nebraska Request for Proposal 5885 Z1 Hosted Voice
Cver Internet Protocol Telephony (VOIP) Services. ALLO Communications, LLC and our parent company, Nelnet
(NYSE: NNI), combine to provide the experience, expertise, scale, and financial resources to ensure a successful
initiative. With approximately 3,000 employees in Lincoln (400 ALLC, 2,600 Nelnet), our workforce is sufficient to
support the State of Nebraska's telecom needs today and in the future.

ALLOQ is a telecommunications company offering world-class fiber-to-the-premise networks for superior broadband,
internet, television, and telephone to government entities, businesses and residents. ALLO's fiber networks expand
business opportunities, create jobs, and improve quality of life for our customers. We take great pride in providing
unmatched communications and entertainment options to our communities. We operate as part of Neinet, a
diversified technology and educational sclutions company that has provided exceptional customer experiences since
1978. Nelnet is an investment grade company providing our customers comforl and reduced risk regarding our
financial security today and in the future.

ALLC’s growth and success over the past decade is evidence of our technical capabilities, experienced personnel,
superior products, and unmatched reputation for customer service. Qur modern network, expert team of engineers,
operators, and technical specialists combine with the immense capacity of ALLO's fiber network to provide
unparaileled service to our partner communities.

With more than a decade of telecom experience serving cities totaling approximately 375,000 people, ALLG has the
experience, expertise, and cument solutions to partner with State of Nebraska to deploy a successful Hosted Voice
Cver IP Service.

Thank you again for the opportunity. If you have any further questions, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Bradley A. Moline

President, ALLQO Communications

230 Santh 215! Streetl Lincoln, NE 68510
308.633.7802
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Executive Summary

ALLO Communications is a Nebraska Eligible Telecommunications Carrier certified by the Nebraska Public Service
Commission in 2003. We are a Nebraska-based and Nebraska-owned communications company offering fiber optic
local telephone, long distance, broadband, internet and television services and telephone equipment to governmental
entities, businesses and residents in Nebraska. We believe our technology advantage combined with superior
Nebraska-based customer seivice is our competitive advantage.

ALLO has more than 500 telecom professionals in Nebraska installing and operating our all-fiber networks. Our parent
company, Nelnet (NYSE-NNI), has an additional 2,500 Nebraska employees providing call center, information
technology, and executive support enhancing ALLO's current and future capabiliies. By the year end 2018, ALLO
expects fo have ubiquifous fiber that passes the governmental entities, businesses, and residents in Nebraska
communities totaling more than 400,000 population, or more than 40% of the Nebraska population outside of the
Omaha metro area. Through on-going investments from corporate cash flows and Neinet's investment-grade debt
rating, ALLO expects to continue our rapid local fiber expansion in Nebraska and neighboring states.

ALLO has reviewed and understands the requirements of RFP 5885 Z1. ALLO agrees to comply with the Terms and
Conditions as described in ALLO’s response to the request for proposal.

ALLO's solution will utilize our existing network connections to the State of Nebraska's network in Omabha, Linceln, and
Scotisbluff creating valuable redundancy and disaster-recovery capabilities. Additionally, ALLO will (at no incremental
non-recurring charge) expand our fiber facilities to connect significant locations for this RFP located in our current and
future markets providing unmatched fiber coverage for the State of Nebraska.
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR CONTRACTUAL SERVICES FORM
By signing this Request for Proposal for Contractual Services form, the bidder guarantees compliance

BIDDER MUST COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING

with the procedures stated in this Request for Proposal, and agrees to the terms and conditions unless
otherwise indicated in writing and certifies that bidder maintains a drug free work place.

Per Nebraska’s Transparency in Government Procurement Act, Neb. Rev Stat § 73-603 DAS is required to
collect statistical information regarding the number of contracts awarded to Nebraska Contractors. This
information is for statistical purposes only and will not be considered for contract award purposes.

X NEBRASKA CONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT: Bidder hereby attests that bidder is a Nebraska Contractor.
“Nebraska Contractor” shall mean any bidder who has maintained a bona fide place of business and at least
one employee within this state for at least the six (6) months immediately preceding the posting date of this
RFP.

| hereby certify that | am a Resident disabled veteran or business located in a designated enterprise
zone in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. § 73-107 and wish to have preference, if applicable, considered in
the award of this contract.

t hereby certify that | am a blind person licensed by the Commission for the Blind & Visually Impaired
in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §71-8611 and wish to have preference considered in the award of this
contract.

FORM MUST BE SIGNED USING AN INDELIBLE METHOD (NOT ELECTRONICALLY)

FIRM: ALLO Communications

COMPLETE ADDRESS: 330 South 21| Lincoln Ne 68510

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 308-633-7802

FAX NUMBER: 888-882-7850

DATE: Aunnnet 20 201K

SIGNATURE:

TYPED NAME & TIiTLE OF SIGNER: rresiueny, ALLU Lommunications
Page 45
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Form A
Bidder Contact Sheet

Request for Proposal Number 5885 Z1

Form A should be completed and submiited with each response to this RFP. This is intended to provide the State with
information on the bidder's name and address, and the specific person(s) who are responsible for preparation of the bidder's

response.

Preparation of Response Contact Information

Bidder Name:

ALLO Communications

Bidder Address:

330 South 21% St
Lincoln, Ne 68508

Contact Person & Title:

Kathy Carstenson, Business Sales Director

E-mail Address:

kearstenson@allophone.net

Telephone Number (Office):

402-261-0932

Telephone Number (Cellular):

402-430-5269

Fax Number:

888-882-7850

Each bidder should also designate a specific contact person who will be responsible for responding to the State if any
clarifications of the bidder's response should become necessary. This will also be the person who the State contacts to set
up a presentation/demonstration, if required.

Communication with the State Contact Information

Bidder Name:

ALLO Communications

Bidder Address:

330 South 21 St
Lincoln, Ne 68508

Contact Person & Title:

Kathy Carstenson, Business Sales Director

E-mail Address:

kcarstenson@allophone.net

Telephone Number (Office):

402-261-0932

Telephone Number (Cellular):

402-430-5269

Fax Number:

888-882-7850

Page 42
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«.ate of Nebraska State Purchasing

RETURN TO:

State Purchasing Bureau
1626 K Street, Suite 130
Lincaln, NE 68508
402-471-6500

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

SOLICITATION NUMBER

RELEASE DATE

RFP 5885 Z1

July 5, 2018

OPENING DATE AND TIME

PROCUREMENT CONTACT

August 20, 2018 2:00 p.m. Central Time

Nancy Storant/Annette Walton

PLEASE READ CAREFULLY!
SCOPE OF SERVICE

The State of Nebraska (State), Department of Administrative Services (DAS), Materiel Division, State Purchasing Bureau
(SPB), is issuing this Request for Proposal {RFP) Number 5885 Z1 for the purpose of selecting a qualified Bidder to provide
Hosted Voice Over Internet Protocal Telephony (VOIP) Service. A more detailed description can be found in Section V. The
resulting contract may not be an exclusive contract as the State reserves the right to contract for the same or similar services
from other sources now or in the future.

The term of the contract will be five (5} years commencing upon execution of the contract by the State. The Contract includes
the option to renew for five (5) additional two (2} year periods upon mutual agreement of the Parlies. The State reserves the
right to extend the period of this contract beyond the termination date when mutually agreeable to the Parties.

ALL INFORMATION PERTINENT TO THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL CAN BE FOUND ON THE INTERNET AT:
http:/idas.nebraska.govimateriel/purchasing.htmi.

A mandatory Pre-Proposal Conference will be held on Jfuly 17, 2018 at 10:00AM CT at 1526 K Street, Suite 130, Lincoln, NE
658520.

IMPORTANT NOTICE: Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-602.04, State contracts in effect as of January 1, 2014, and
contracts entered into thereafter, must be posted to a public website. The resulting contract, the RFP, and the
successful bidder's proposal or response will be posted to a public website managed by DAS, which can be found at

htip://statecontracts.nebraska.qov.

In addition and in furtherance of the State's public records Statute (Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-712 et seq.), all proposals or responses
received regarding this RFP will be posted to the State Purchasing Bureau public website.

These postings will include the entire proposal or response. Bidders must request that proprietary information be
excluded from the posting. The bidder must identify the proprietary information, mark the proprietary information
according to state law, and submit the proprietary information in a separate container or envelope marked
conspicuously in black ink with the words "PROPRIETARY INFORMATION". The bidder must submit a detailed
written document showing that the release of the proprietary information would give a business advantage to named
business competitor{s) and explain how the named business competitor{s}) will gain an actual business advantage
by disclosure of information. The mere assertion that information is proprietary or that a speculative business
advantage might be gained is not sufficient. (See Atterney General Opinion No. 82068, April 27, 1992) THE BIDDER
MAY NOT ASSERT THAT THE ENTIRE PROPOSAL IS PROPRIETARY. COST PROPOSALS WILL NOT BE
CONSIDERED PROPRIETARY AND ARE A PUBLIC RECORD IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA. The State will then
determine, in its discretion, if the interests served by nondisciosure outweighs any public purpose served by
disclosure. (See Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-712.05(3)) The Bidder will be notified of the agency's decision. Absent a State
determination that information is proprietary, the State will consider all information a public record subject to release
regardless of any assertion that the information is proprietary.

If the agency determines it is required to release proprietary information, the bidder will be informed. It will be the bidder's
responsibility to defend the bidder's asserted interest in non-disclosure.

To facilitate such public postings, with the exception of proprietary information, the State of Nebraska reserves a
royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to copy, reproduce, publish, post to a website, or otherwise use any
contract, proposal, or response to this RFP for any purpose, and to authorize others to use the documents. Any
individual or entity awarded a contract, or who submits a proposal or response to this RFP, specifically waives any
copyright or other protection the contract, proposal, or response to the RFP may have; and, acknowledges that they
have the ability and authority to enter into such waiver. This reservation and waiver is a prerequisite for submitting



a proposal or response to this RFP, and award of a contract. Failure to agree to the reservation and waiver will result
in the proposal or response to the RFP being found non-responsive and rejected.

Any entity awarded a contract or submitting a proposal or response to the RFP agrees not to sue, file a claim, or make
a demand of any kind, and will indemnify and hold harmless the State and its employees, volunteers, agents, and its
elected and appointed officials from and against any and all claims, liens, demands, damages, liability, actions,
causes of action, losses, judgments, costs, and expenses of every nature, including investigation costs and
expenses, settlement costs, and attorney feés and expenses, sustained or asserted against the State, arising out of,
resulting from, or attributable to the posting of the contract or the proposals and responses to the RFP, awards, and
other documents.

v ALLO has read and accepts.



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Acceptance Test Procedure: Benchmarks and other performance criteria, developed by the State of Nebraska or other
sources of testing standards, for measuring the effectiveness of products or services and the means used for testing such
performance.

Addendum: Something to be added or deleted to an existing document; a supplement.

After Receipt of Order {ARQ): Afler Receipt of Order

Agency: Any state agency, board, or commission cther than the University of Nebraska, the Nebraska State colleges, the
courts, the Legislature, or any other office or agency established by the Constitution of Nebraska.

Agent/Representative: A person authorized to act on behalf of another.

Amend: To alter or change by adding, subtracting, or substituting.

Amendment: A written correction or alteration to a document.

Appropriation: Legislative authorization fo expend public funds for a specific purpose. Money set apart for a specific use.
Award: All purchases, leases, or contracts which are based on competitive proposals will be awarded according to the
provisions in the RFP. The State reserves the right fo reject any or all propesals, whally or in part, or o award to multiple
bidders in whole or in parl. The State reserves the right to waive any deviations or errors that are not material, do net
invalidate the legitimacy of the proposal, and do not improve the bidder's competitive position. All awards will be made in a

manner deemed in the best interest of the State.

Best and Final Offer (BAFO}: In a competitive bid, the final offer submitted which contains the bidder's (vendor's) most
favorable terms for price.

Bid/Proposal: The offer submitted by a vendor in a response to a written salicitation.

Bid Bond: An insurance agreement, accompanied by a monetary commitment, by which a third party (the surety) accepts
liability and guarantees that the vendor will not withdraw the bid.

Bidder: A vendor who submits an offer bid in response to a written solicitation.

Business: Any corporation, partnership, individual, sole proprietorship, joint-stock company, joint venture, or any other
private legal entity.

Business Day: Any weekday, except State-recognized holidays.
Calendar Day: Every day shown on the calendar including Saturdays, Sundays, and State/Federal holidays.
Cancellation: To call off or revoke a purchase order without expectation of conducting or performing it at a later time.

Central Processing Unit {CPU): Any computer or computer system that is used by the State to store, process, or retrieve
data or perform other functions using Operating Systems and applications software.

Change Order: Document that provides amendments to an executed purchase order or contract.

Collusion: An agreement or cooperation between two or more persons or entities to accomplish a fraudulent, deceitful, or
unlawful purpose.

Commedities: Any equipment, material, supply or goods; anything movable or tangible that is provided or sold.
Commodities Description: Detailed descriptions of the items to be purchased; may include information necessary to obtain
the desired guality, type, color, size, shape, or special characteristics necessary to perform the work intended to produce the
desired results.

Competition: The efforl or action of two or more commercial interests to obtain the same business from third parties.

Confidential Information: Unless otherwise defined below, “Confidential Information” shall also mean proprietary trade
secrets, academic and scientific research work which is in progress and unpublished, and other information which if released



would give advantage to business competitars and serve no public purpase (see Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-712.05{3)). In
accordance with Nebraska Attorney General Opinions 92068 and 97033, proof that information is proprietary requires
identification of specific, named competitor(s} who would be advantaged by release of the information and the specific
advantage the competitor(s) would receive.

Contract: An agreement between two or more parties creating obligations that are enforceable or otherwise recognizable at
law, the writing that sets forth such an agreement.

Contract Administration: The management of the contract which includes and is not limited to; contract signing, contract
amendments and any necessary legal actions.

Contract Award: Occurs upon execution of the State document titled “Service Contract Award” by the proper authority.

Contract Management: The management of day to day activities at the agency which includes and is not limited to ensuring
deliverables are received, specifications are met, handling meetings and making payments to the Contractor.

Contract Period: The duration of the contracl.
Contractor: Any individual or entity having a contract to furnish commodities or services.

Cooperative Purchasing: The combining of requirements of two or more political entities to obtain advantages of volume
purchases, reduction in administrative expenses or other public benefits.

Copyright: A property right in an original work of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, giving the holder
the exclusive right to reproduce, adapt and distribute the work.

Critical Program Error: Any Pregram Error, whether or not known ta the State, which prohibits or significantly impairs use
of the Licensed Software as set forth in the documentation and intended in the contract.

Customer Service: The process of ensuring customer satisfaction by providing assistance and advice on those products or
services provided by the Contractor.

Default: The omission or failure to peiform a contractuai duty.
Demarc: Demarcation Point

Deviation: Any proposed change(s) or alteration(s) to either the terms and conditions or deliverables within the scope of the
written solicitation or contract.

Evaluation: The process of examining an offer afler opening to determine the vendor's responsibility, responsiveness to
requirements, and to ascertain other characteristics of the offer that relate 1o determination of the successful award.

Evaluation Committee: Committee{s) appointed by the requesting agency that advises and assists the procuring office in
the evaluation of bids/proposals (offers made in response to written solicitations).

Extension: Continuance of a contract for a specified duration upon the agreement of the parties beyond the original
Contract Period, Not to be confused with “Renewal Period”.

Free on Board (F.0Q.B.) Destination: The delivery charges are included in the quoted price and prepaid by the vendor.
Vendor is responsible for all claims associated with damages during delivery of product.

Free on Board (F.0.B.) Point of Origin: The delivery charges are not included in the quoted price and are the
responsibility of the agency. Agency is responsible for all claims associated with damages during delivery of product.

Foreign Corporation: A foreign corporation that was organized and chartered under the laws of another state, government,
or country.

Installation Date: The date when the procedures described in “Installation by Contraclor’, and “Installation by State”, as
found in the RFP, or contracl, are completed.

Interested Party: A person, acting in their personal capacity, or an entity entering into a contract or other agreement
creating a legal interest therein.

Late Bid/Proposal: An offer received afler the Opening Date and Time.
iv



Licensed Software Documentation: The user manuals and any other materials in any form or medium customarily
provided by the Contractor to the users of the Licensed Software which will provide the State with sufficient information to
operate, diagnose, and maintain the Licensed Soflware properly, safely, and efficiently.

Mandatory/Must: Required, compulsory, or obligatory.

May: Discretionary, permitied; used to express possibility.

Module {see System): A collection of routines and data structures that perform a specific function of software.
Must: See Mandatory/ Must and Shall/Will/Must.

National Institute for Governmental Purchasing {NIGP): National Institute of Governmental Purchasing — Source used for
assignment of universal commodity codes to goods and services.

Open Market Purchase: Authorization may be given to an agency to purchase items above direct purchase authority due to
the unigue nature, price, quantity, location of the using agency, or time limitations by the AS Materiel Division, State
Purchasing Bureau.

Opening Date and Time: Specified date and time for the public opening of received, labeled, and sealed formal proposals.

Operating System: The control program in a computer that provides the interface to the computer hardware and peripherat
devices, and the usage and allocation of memary resources, processor resources, input/output resources, and security
resources.

Qutsourcing: The contracting out of a business process which an organization may have previously performed internatly or
has a new need for, to an independent organization from which the process is purchased back.

Payroll & Financial Center (PFC): Electronic procurement system of record.

Performance Bond: An insurance agreement, accompanied by a monetary commitment, by which a third party (the surety)
accepts liability and guarantees that the Contractor fulfills any and all obligations under the contract.

Platform: A specific hardware and Operating System combination that is different from other hardware and Operating
System combinations to the extent that a different version of the Licensed Software product is required 1o execute properly in
the environment established by such hardware and QOperating System combination.

Point of Contact (POC): The person designated to receive communications and to communicate.

Pre-Bid/Pre-Proposal Conference: A meeting scheduled for the purpose of clarifying a written solficitation and related
expectations,

Product: Something that is distributed commercially for use or consumption and that is usually (1} tangible personal
property, (2) the result of fabrication or processing, and (3} an item that has passed through a chain of commercial
distribution before ultimate use or consumption.

Program Error: Code in Licensed Software which produces unintended results or actions, or which produces results or
actions other than those descrived in the specifications. A program error includes, without limitation, any Critical Program
Error.

Program Set: The group of programs and products, including the Licensed Seftware specified in the RFP, plus any
additional programs and products licensed by the State under the contract for use by the State.

Project: The total scheme, program, or method worked out for the accomplishment of an objective, including all
documentation, commodities, and services to be provided under the contract.

Proposal: See Bid/Proposal.

Proprietary Information: Proprietary information is defined as trade secrets, academic and scientific research work which
is in progress and unpublished, and other information which if released would give advantage to business competitors and
serves no public purpose (see Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-712.05(3)). In accordance with Attorney General Opinions 92068 and
67033, proof that information is proprietary requires identification of specific named competitor(s} advantaged by release of
the information and the demonstrated advantage the named competitor{s) would gain by the release of information.

v



Frotest/Grievance: A complaint about a governimentai aclion or decision related to a RFP or resultant contract, brought by
a vendor who has timely submitted a bid response in connection with the award in question, to AS Materiel Division or
another designated agency with the intention of achieving a remedial result.

Public Proposaf Opening: The process of opening correctly submitted offers at the time and place specified in the written
solicitation and in the presence of anyone who wished to attend.

Recommended Hardware Configuration: The data processing hardware (including all terminals, auxiliary storage,
communication, and other peripheral devices) to the extent utilized by the State as recommended by the Contractor.

Release Date: The date of public release of the written solicitation to seek offers.

Renewal Period: Optional contract periods subsequent to the original Contract Period for a specified duration with
previously agreed to terms and conditions. Not to be confused with Extension.

Request for Information {RFI): A general invitation to vendors requesting information for a potential future solicitation. The
RFl is typically used as a research and information gathering tool for preparation of a solicitation.

Request for Proposal (RFP): A written solicitation utilized for obtaining competitive offers.

Responsible Bidder: A bidder who has the capability in all respects to perform fully and lawfully all requirements with
integrity and reliability to assure good faith performance.

Responsive Bidder: A bidder who has submitted a bid which conforms to all requirements of the solicitation document.
Shall/wil/Must: An crderfcommand; mandatory.
Shouid: Expected; suggested, but not necessarily mandatory.

Software License: Legal instrument with or without printed material that governs the use or redistribution of licensed
software.

Sole Source — Commodity: When an item is available from only one source due to the unique nature of the requirement,
its supplier, or market conditions.

Sole Source ~ Services: A service of such a unique nature that the vendor selected is clearly and justifiably the only
practical source to provide the service. Determination that the vendor selected is justifiably the sole source is based on
either the uniqueness of the service or sole availability at the location required.

Specifications: The detailed statement, especially of the measurements, quality, materials, and functional characteristics,
or other items te be provided under a contract.

Statutory: These clauses are controlled by state law and are not subject to negotiation.

Subcontractor: Individual or entity with whom the contractor enters a contract to perform a portion of the work awarded to
the contractor.

System (see Module): Any collection or aggregation of two (2) or more Modules that is designed to function, or is
represented by the Contractor as functioning or being capable of functioning, as an entity.

TECHNOLOGY REFRESH: The periodic replacement of equipment and updating of systems (software and hardware) to
ensure continuing reliability of solution.

Termination: Occurs when either Party, pursuant to a power created by agreement or law, puts an end 1o the contract prior
to the stated expiration date. All obligations which are still executory on both sides are discharged but any right based on
prior breach or performance survives.

Third Party: Any person or entity, including but not limited to fiduciaries, shareholders, owners, officers, managers,
employees, legally disinterested persons, and sub-contractors or agents, and their employees, It shall not include any entity
or person who is an interested Party to the contract or agreement.

Trade Secret: Information, including, but not limited to, a drawing, formula, pattern, compilation, program, device, methad,
technique, code, or process that {a) derives independent economic value, actual or potential, from not being known to, and

Vi



not being ascertainable by proper means by, other persons who can obtain economic value from its disclosure or use; and
(b) is the subjecl of efforts that are reasonable under the circumstances to maintain its secrecy (see Neb. Rev. Stat. §87-

502(4})).

Trademark: A word, phrase, logo, or other graphic symbol used by a manufacturer or vendor to distinguish its product from
those of athers, registered with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Upgrade: Any change that improves or alters the basic function of a product or service.

Vendor: An individual or entity lawfully conducling business in the State of Nebraska, or licensed to do so, who seeks to
provide goods or services under the terms of a written solicitation.

Vendor Performance Report: A report issued to the Contraclor by State Purchasing Bureau when products or services
delivered or performed fail to meet the terms of the purchase order, contract, and/or specifications, as reported to State
Purchasing Bureau by the agency. The State Purchasing Bureau shall contact the Contractor regarding any such reporl. The
vendor performance report will become a part of the permanent record for the Contractor. The State may require vendor to
cure. Two such reports may be cause for immediate termination.

Will: See Shall/Will/Must.

Work Day: See Business Day.
v ALLO has read and understands.
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ACRONYM LIST

VOIP —Voice Over Internet Protocol Telephony
OCIO — Office of the Chief Information Officer

RFP — Request for proposal

PSTN — Public Switched Telephone Network

SIP- Session Initiation Protocol

PSC — Public Service Commission

POTS ~ Plain old telephone service

ASOC/USOC — Universal Service Ordering Code
SFTP —~ Secure File Transfer Protocol

NDM — Network Data Mover

PMP — Project Management Plan

PoE — Power over Ethemet

IEEE - The Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers
ACD - Automatic call distributor

UCD — Uniform call distributor

WAN — Wide area network

QOS - Quality of Service

IPv6 — Internet Protocol Versicn 6

DHCP — Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol
MTTR —Mean time to repair

ES11 — Enhanced 911

NEMA — Nebraska Emergency Management Agency
FEMA - Federal Emergency Management Agency
LEC - Local Exchange Carrier

CLEC - Competitive Local Exchange Carrier
CLASS - Centralized Local Area Selective Signaling

PSAP - Public Safety Answering Port

v" ALLO has read and understands.
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PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE

GENERAL INFORMATION
The RFP is designed to solicit proposals from qualified Bidders who will be responsible for providing Hosted Voice

Over Internet Protocol Telephony {(VOIP} Service at a competitive and reasonable cost.

Proposals shall conform to all instructiens, conditions, and requirements included in the RFP. Prospective bidders
are expected o carefully examine all documents, schedules, and requirements in this RFP, and respond to each
requirement in the format prescribed. Proposals may be found non-respensive if they do not conform io the RFP.

PROCURING OFFICE AND COMMUNICATION WITH STATE STAFF AND EVALUATORS
Procurement responsibilities related to this RFP reside with the State Purchasing Bureau. The point of contact (PCC)
for the procurement is as follows:

Name: Nancy Storant/Annetle Waiton
Agency: State Purchasing Bureau
Address: 1526 K Street, Suite 130
Lincoln, NE 68508
Telephone: 402-471-6500
E-Mail: as materielpurchasing@nebraska.gov

From the date the RFP is issued until the Intent to Award is issued, communication from the Bidder is limited to the
POC listed above. After the Intent to Award is issued, the Bidder may communicate with individuals the State has
designated as responsible for negotiating the contract on behalf of the State. No member of the State Government,
employee of the State, or member of the Evaluation Committee is empowered to make binding statements regarding
this RFP. The POC will issue any clarifications or opinions regarding this RFP in writing. Cnly the buyer can modify
the RFP, answer questions, render opinions, and only the SPB or awarding agency can award a contract. Bidders
shall not have any communication with, or attempt to communicate or influence any evaluator involved in this RFP.

The following exceptions to these restrictions are permitled:
1. Contact made pursuant to pre-existing contracts or obligations;

2. Contact required by the schedule of events or an event scheduled later by the RFP POC; and
3. Contact required for negotiation and execution of the final contract.

The Stafe reserves the right to reject a bidder's proposal, withdraw an Intent to Award, or terminate a contract if the State
determines there has been a viofation of these procurement procedures.
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SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

The State expects to adhere to the procurement schedule shown below, but all dates are approximate and subject to

change.
VITY DATE/TIME
1. |Release RFP July 8, 2018
2. |Lastdayto f.ubmlt Nofification of Intent to Attend Pre-Proposal July 13, 2018
Canference
3. |Lasi day to submit written questions July 17, 2018
8 |Mandatory Pre-Proposal Cenference
Location: State Purchasing Bureau
1528 K Street, Suite 130
Lincoin, NE 68508 July 17, 2018
* Ranictratinn Advicemant: 10:00 AM Central Time
July 27, 2018
“Amendment” to be posted to the Internet at: and/or August 8, 2018
hitp.//das nebraska.gov  aferiel/purchasing.html
B. Proposal opening
Location: State Purchasing Bureau Aug:%ngﬁO‘TB
1526 K Street, Suite 130 Ceﬁtral Time
Lincoln, NE 68508
7. |Review for conformance to RFP requirements August 20, 2018
8. |Evaluation period August 22, 2018
through
September 12, 2018
9. "Oral Interviews/Presentations and/or Demonstrations” {if required} TBC
10. |Post “Intent to Award” to Internet at: and/or
'* " las.nebrag'~ ~~ fptesintiesm~haging html September 28, 2018
11, [Contract finalization peiua October 1, 2018
Through
October 31, 2018
1M2. |Contract award November 1, 2018
13. |Contractor start date November 1, 2018
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1. Offering or giving, directly or indirectly, a bribe, fee, commission, compensation, gift, gratuity, or anything
of value to any person or entity in an attempt to influence the bidding process;

2. Utilize the services of lobbyists, attorneys, political activists, or consultants to influence or subverl the
bidding process;

3. Being considered for, presently being, or becoming debarred, suspended, ineligible, or excluded from
contracting with any state or federal entity:

4. Submitting a proposai on behalf of another Party or entity; and

5. Collude with any person or entity to influence the bidding process, submit sham proposals, preclude

bidding, fix pricing or costs, create an unfair advantage, subvert the bid, or prejudice the State.

The Bidder shall include this clause in any subcontract entered into for the exclusive purpose of performing this
contract.

Bidder shall have an affirmative duty to report any violations of this clause by the Bidder throughout the bidding
process, and throughout the term of this cantract for the successful Bidder and their subcontractors.

a nds.

DEVIATIONS FROM THE REQUEST FOR PROPCSAL

The requirements cantained in the RFP become a part of the terms and cenditions of the contract resuiting from this
RFP. Any deviations from the RFP in Sections I through VI must be clearly defined by the bidder in its proposal and,
if accepted by the State, will become part of the contract. Any specifically defined deviations must not be in conflict
with the basic nature of the RFP, requirements, or applicable state or federal laws or statutes. “Deviation”, for the
purposes of this RFP, means any proposed changes or alterations to either the contractual language or deliverables
within the scope of this RFP. The State discourages deviations and reserves the right to reject proposed deviations.

SUBMISSION CF PROPOSALS

Bidders should submit one proposal marked on the first page: “ORIGINAL". If multiple proposals are submitted, the
State will retain one copy marked "ORIGINAL" and destroy the other copies. The Bidder is solely responsible for any
variance between the copies submitted. Proposal responses should include the completed Form A, "Bidder Contact
Sheet”. Proposals must reference the RFP number and be sent to the specified address. Please note that the
address label should appear as specified in Section | B. on the face of each container or bidder's bid response packet.
If a recipient phone number is required for delivery purposes, 402-471-6500 should be used. The RFP number should
be included in all correspondence.

Emphasis should be concentrated on conformance to t RFP instructions, responsiveness to requirements,
completeness, and clarity of content. If the bidder's proposat 1s presented in such a fashion that makes evaluation
difficult or overly time consumning the Stale reserves the right to reject the proposal as nen-conforming.

By signing the “Request for Proposal for Contractual Services” form, the bidder guarantees compliance with the
provisions stated in this RFP.

The State shall not incur any liability for any costs incurred by bidders in replying to this RFP, in the demonstrations
and/or oral presentations, or in any other activity related to bidding on this RFP.

The Technical and Cost Proposals Template should be presented in separate sections (loose-leaf binders are
preferred) on standard 8 12" x 11" paper, except that charts, diagrams and the like may be on fold-outs which, when
folded, fit into the 8 %5 by 11" format. Pages may be consecutively numbered for the entire proposal, or may be
numbered consecutively within sections. Figures and tables should be numbered consecutively within sections.
Figures and tables should be numbered and referenced in the text by that number. They should be placed as close
as possible to the referencing text.

BID PREPARATION COSTS
The State shall not incur any liability for any costs incurred by Bidders in replying to this RFP, including any activity
related to bidding on this RFP.
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M.

FAILURE TC COMPLY WITH REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
Violation of the terms and conditions contained in this RFP or any resultant contract, at any time before or after the
award, shall be grounds for action by the State which may include, but is not limited to, the following:

Rejection of a bidder's propesal;

Withdrawal of the Intent to Award;

Withdrawal of the Award;

Termination of the resulting contract;

Legal action; and

Suspension of the bidder from further bidding with the State for the period of time relative to the seriousness
of the violation, such period to be within the scle discretion of the State.

S

BID CORRECTIONS

A bidder may correcl a mistake in a bid prior to the time of opening by giving written notice to the State of intent to
withdraw the bid for modification or to withdraw the bid completely. Changes in a bid after opening are acceptable
only if the change is made to correct a minor error that does not affect price, quantity, quality, delivery, or contractual
conditions. In case of a mathematical error in extension of price, unit price shall govern.

LATE PROPQSALS

Proposals received after the time and date of the proposal opening will be considered late proposals. Late proposals
will be retumed unopened, if requested by the bidder and at bidder's expense. The State is not responsible for
proposals that are late or lost regardless of cause or fault.

PROPOSAL OPENING

The opening of proposals will be public and the bidders will be announced. Proposals WILL NOT be available for
viewing by those present at the proposal opening. Vendors may contact the State to schedule an appointment for
viewing proposals after the Intent to Award has been posted to the website. Once proposals are opened, they become
the property of the State of Nebraska and will not be returned.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL/PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

The proposals will first be examined to determine if all requirements listed below have been addressed and whether
further evaluation is warranted. Proposals not meeting the requirements may be rejected as non-responsive. The
requirements are.

Original Request for Proposal for Contractual Services form signed using an indelible method;
Clarity and responsiveness of the proposal,

Completed Corporate Qverview,

Completed Sections Il through VI;

Completed Technical Approach; and

Completed State Cost Proposal Template.

GmpN =

EVALUATION COMMITTEE

Proposals are evaluated by members of an Evaluation Committee(s). The Evaluation Committee(s} will consist of
individuals selected at the discretion of the State. Names of the members of the Evaluation Committee(s) will not be
published prior to the intent to award.

Any contact, attempted contact, or attempt to influence an evaluator that is involved with this RFP may result in the
rejection of this preposal and further administrative actions.
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EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS

All proposals that are responsive to the RFP will be evaluated. Each evaluation category will have a maximum point
potential. The State will conduct a fair, impariial, and comprehensive evaluation of all proposals in accordance with
the criteria set forth below. Areas that will be addressed and scored during the evaluation include:

1. Corporate Overview should include but is not limited to:
a. the ability, capacity, and skill of the bidder to deliver and implement the system or project that meets
the requirements of the RFP;
the character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience, and efficiency of the bidder;
whether the bidder can perform the contract within the specified time frame;
the quality of bidder performance on prior contracts;
such other information that may be secured and that has a bearing on the decision to award the
contract;
2. Technical Approach; and,
3. Cost Proposal.

L

Neb. Rev. Stat, §73-107 allows for a preference for a resident disabled veteran or business located in a
designated enterprise zone. When a state contract is to be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, a resident
disabled veteran or a business located in a designated enterprise zone under the Enterprise Zone Act shall be allowed
a preference over any other resident or nonresident bidder, if all other factors are equal.

Resident disabled veterans means any person (a) who resides in the State of Nebraska, who served in the
United States Armed Forces, including any reserve component or the National Guard, who was discharged
or otherwise separated with a characterization of honorable or general {under honorable conditions), and
who possesses a disability rating letter issued by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs
establishing a service-connected disability or a disability determination from the United States Department
of Defense and {b)(i) who owns and controls a business or, in the case of a publicly owned business, more
than fifty percent of the stock is owned by one or more persons described in subdivision (a) of this
subsection and {ii) the management and daily business operations of the business are controlled by one or
more persons described in subdivision(a} of this subsection. Any contract entered into without compliance
with this section shall be null and void.

Therefore, if a resident disabled veteran or business located in a designated enterprise zone submits a proposal in
accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §73-107 and has so indicated on the RFP cover page under "Bidder must complete
the following” requesting prierity/preference to be considered in the award of this contract, the foliowing will need to
be submitted by the vender within ten (10} business days of request;

1. Documentation from the United States Armed Forces confirming service;

2. Documentation of discharge or otherwise separated characterization of honorable or general (under
honorable conditions);

3. Disability rating letter issued by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs establishing a service-
connected disability or a disability determination from the United States Department of Defense; and

4. Documentation which shows ownership and control of a business or, in the case of a publicly owned
business, more than fifty percent of the stock is owned by one or more persons described in subdivision
(a) of this subsection; and the management and daily business operations of the business are controlled
by one or more persons described in subdivision {a) of this subseclion.

Failure to submit the requested documentation within ten (10) business days of notice wili disqualify the bidder from
consideration of the preference.

Evaluation criteria weighting will be released with the RFP.
ALLO has read and understands.

ORAL INTERVIEWS/PRESENTATIONS AND/OR DEMONSTRATIONS

The State may determine after the completion of the Technical and Cost Proposal evaluation that oral
interviews/presentations andfor demonstrations are required. Every bidder may not be given an opportunity to
interview/present and/or give demonstrations; the State reserves the right, in its discretion, to select only the top
scoring bidders to present/give oral interviews. The scores from the oral interviews/presentations and/or
demonstrations will be added to the scores from the Technical and Cost Proposals. The presentation process will
allow the bidders to demonstrate their proposal offering, explaining and/or clarifying any unusual or significant
elements related to their proposals. Bidders' key personnel, identified in their proposal, may be requested to
participate in a structured interview to determine their understanding of the requirements of this proposal, their
authority and reporting relationships within their firm, and their management style and philosophy. Only
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representatives of the State and the presenting bidder will be permitted to attend the oral interviews/presentations
and/or demonstrations. A written copy or summary of the presentation, and demonstrative information {such as
briefing charts, et cetera) may be offered by the bidder, but the State reserves the right to refuse or not consider the
offered materials. Bidders shall not be allowed to alter or amend their proposals.

Once the oral interviews/presentations and/or demonstrations have been completed, the State reserves the right to
make an award without any further discussion with the bidders regarding the proposals received.

Any cost incidental to the oral interviews/presentations and/or demonstrations shail be borne entirely by the bidder
and will not be compensated by the State.

BEST AND FINAL OFFER

If best and final offers (BAFC) are requested by the State and submitted by the bidder, they will be evaluated (using
the stated BAFO criteria), scored, and ranked by the Evaluation Committee. The State reserves the right to conduct
more than one Best and Final Offer. The award will then be granted to the highest scoring bidder. However, a bidder
shoutd provide its best offer in its original proposal. Bidders should not expect that the State will request a best and
final offer.

REFERENCE AND CREDIT CHECKS

The State reserves the right to conduct and consider reference and credit checks. The State reserves the right to
use third parlies to conduct reference and credit checks. By submitting a proposal in response to this RFP, the bidder
grants to the State the right to contact or arrange a visit in person with any or all of the bidder's clients. Reference
and credit checks may be grounds to reject a proposal, withdraw an intent to award, or rescind the award of a contract.

AWARD

The State reserves the right to evaluate proposals and award contracts in a manner utilizing criteria selected at the
State's discretion and in the State’s best interest. After evaluation of the proposals, or at any point in the RFP process,
the State of Nebraska may take one or more of the following actions:

1. Amend the RFP;

Extend the time of or establish a new proposal opening time;

Waive deviations or errors in the State’s RFP process and in bidder proposals that are not material, do not
compromise the RFP process or a bidder's proposal, and do not improve a bidder's competitive position;
Accept or reject a porlion of or all of a proposal;

Accept or reject all proposals;

Withdraw the RFP;

Elect to rebid the RFP;

Award single lines or multiple lines to one or more bidders; or,

Award one or more all-inclusive contracts.

N

©ENoo A

The RFP does not commit the State to award a contract. Once intent to award decision has been determined, it will
be posted to the Internet at:
hitp:#/das.nebrask

Grievance and protest procedure is available on the Internet at:
T braska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html

Any protests must be filed by a bidder within ten (10) business days afler the intent to award decision is posted to the
Internet.
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If by the terms of any insurance a mandatory deductible is required, or if the Caontractor elects to increase the
mandatory deductible amount, the Contractar shall be responsible for payment of the amount of the deductible in the
event of a paid claim.

Notwithstanding any other clause in this Contract, the State may recover up to the liability limits of the insurance
policies required herein.

1.

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE

The Contractor shall take out and maintain during the life of this contract the statutory Workers’
Compensation and Employer's Liability insurance for all of the contactors’ employees to be engaged in work
on the project under this contract and, in case any such work is sublet, the Contractor shall require the
Subcontracior similarly to provide Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of the
Subcontractar's employees to be engaged in such work. This policy shall be written to meet the statutory
requirements for the state in which the work is to be performed, including Occupational Disease. The policy
shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the State. The COI shall contain the mandatory COI
subrogation waiver language found hereinafter. The amounts of such insurance shall not be less than
the limits stated hereinafter. For employees working in the State of Nebraska, the policy must be written by
an entity authorized by the State of Nebraska Deparlment of Insurance to write Workers’ Compensation and
Employer's Liability Insurance for Nebraska employees.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE AND COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Contractor shall take out and maintain during the life of this contract such Commercial General Liability
Insurance and Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance as shall protecl Contraclor and any Subcontractor
performing work covered by this contract from claims for damages for bodily injury, including death, as well
as from claims for property damage, which may arise from operations under this contract, whether such
operation be by the Contractor or by any Subcontractor or by anyone directly or indireclly employed by either
of them, and the amounts of such insurance shall not be less than limits stated hereinafter.

The Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis, and provide
Premises/Operations, Products/Completed Operations, Independent Contractors, Personal Injury, and
Contractual Liability coverage. The policy shall include the State, and others as required by the
contract documents, as Additional Insured{s). This policy shall he primary, and any insurance or
self-insurance carried by the State shall be considered secondary and non-contributery. The COI
shall contain the mandatory COl liability waiver language found hereinafter. The Commercial
Automobile Liability Insurance shall be written to cover all Owned, Non-owned, and Hired vehicles.
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V. PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND SCOPE OF WORK
The bidder should provide the following information in response to this RFP.

Proposals are being sought for the purpose of securing the most cost efficient Hosted Voice Over Internet Protocol Telepheny
(VOIP) Services. This solution will replace the State’s Centrex service in select locations throughout the State as defined in
Attachment C. The purpose of this RFP is to provide for phone service that includes the most up-to-date VOIP features and
functionality as a hosted service with equipment ownership, maintenance and service remaining with the Contractor.

A VOIP HOSTING
This RFP provides two {(2) options for hidding:
Option A, Qffice of the Chief Information Officer {OC10)-Hosted Selution, and;
Option B, Carrier-Hosted Solution.

Bidders may bid on either one or both options. In order for a bid to be considered for more than one option, a complete,
separate proposal (Corporate, Technical, and Cost) must be submitted for EACH option. Each proposal submitted
must clearly identify which option is being bid. The State will evaluate all proposals submitted within each separate
option, {Option A, OCIO-Hosted, and Option B, and, Carrier-Hosted.) the highest scoring bidder will be identified for
each option (A and B). The State will then make a determination as to which option will best meet the State's needs
and make an award to the highest scoring bidder for that option.

The following defines the intent of this RFP:

1. Option A: OClO-Hosted Solution:
The proposed solution’s application in hardware, software, licensing, and all associated equipment would
be maintained, supported, and managed by the Contractor and should be installed at the State’s data
Center. Network necessary to transport VOIP from the core platform cut to the desktop would be owned
and maintained by the State. PSTN connectivity resources will be provided by the State using SIP trunks.
See Attachment A for additional requirements.

2. Option B: Carrier-Hosted Solution:
This service will be provided by a PSC certified telecommunications carrier. The propased solution’s
application hardware, software, licensing, all associated equipment infrastructure will be owned and
maintained by the Contractor on the Contractor's premises. All connectivity necessary 1o deliver
proposed service to the OCIO aggregation points in the Linceln and Cmaha data centers will be provided
by the Contractor at their cost. Network necessary to transporl VOIP from the Contractor's aggregation
point in the State Data center out to the desktop would be owned and maintained by the State.
See Attachment B for additional requirements.

Office of the Chief Information Officer

The Nebraska OCIOQ is directly responsible for this project. The OCIO provides, for the State of Nebraska, leadership,
project management, planning, implementation, and support services for Information Technology for the State of
Nebraska. The OCIO will provide support for the project, including support for the technical planning, implementation,
{esting and maintenance of the new soluficn.

B. PROJECT OVERVIEW
The State currently utilizes traditional Centrex products to provide digital and analog telephony services in many
locations. The purpose of this RFP is to secure a replacement of these services.

C. PROJECT ENVIRONMENT
The current telephony environment Is a mix of Carrier provided Centrex, POTS lines, and State operated Cisco
solutions. Integration with the bidders proposed solution may be possible if that integration is feasible and
economical. Any proposed solution that integrates in a manner that reduces cost and increases current network
resiliency and redundancy would be preferred however, is not required. See Attachment C for a list of current Centrex
quantities by City. Bidder MUST be able to provide service to ALL communities listed on Attachment C and any other
community within the State of Nebraska as deemed necessary during the course of the contract.
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SCOPE OF WORK

The State is soliciting proposals for a qualified Contractor fo provide a managed VOIP solution that will replace the
current Centrex environment. Please see Attachment A — OCIQO Hosted Solution and Attachment B — Carrier Hosted
Solution for technical requirements.

v"  ALLO has read and understands.
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VI, PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS

This section documents the requirements that should be met by bidders in preparing the Technical and Cost Proposal. Bidders
should identify the subdivisions of “Project Description and Scope of Work” clearly in their proposals; failure to do so may result
in disqualification. Failure to respond te a specific requiremnent may be the basis for elimination from consideration during the
State’s comparative evaluation.

Proposals are due by the date and time shown in the Schedule of Events. Content requirements for the Technical and Cost
Proposal are presented separately in the following subdivisions; format and order:

A PROPOSAL SUBMISSION

1.

REQUEST FOR PRCPCSAL FORM

By signing the “RFP for Contractual Services” form, the bidder guarantees compliance with the provisions
stated in this RFP, agrees to the Terms and Conditions stated in this RFP unless otherwise agreed to, and
certifies hidder maintains a drug free work place environment.

The RFP for Contractual Services form must be signed using an indelible method (not electronically) and
returned per the schedule of events in order to be considered for an award.

Sealed proposals must be received in the State Purchasing Bureau by the date and time of the proposal
opening per the Schedule of Events. No late proposals will be accepted. No electronic, e-mail, fax, voice,
or telephone proposals will be accepted.

It is the responsibility of the bidder to check the website for all information relevant to this solicitation to
include addenda and/or amendments issued prior to the opening date. Website address is as follows:
http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html

Further, Seclions Il through VIl must be completed and returned with the proposal response.

CORPCRATE OVERVIEW
The Corporate Overview section of the Technical Proposal should consist of the following subdivisions:

a. BIDDER IDENTIFICATICN AND INFORMATION
The bidder should provide the full company or corporate name, address of the company's
headquarters, entity organization (corporation, partnership, proprietorship), state in which the
bidder is incarporated or otherwise organized to do business, year in which the bidder first
arganized to do business and whether the name and form of organization has changed since first
organized.

b. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The bidder should provide financial statements applicable to the firm. If publicly held, the bidder
should provide a copy of the corporation's most recent audited financial reporls and statements,
and the name, address, and telephone number of the fiscally responsible representative of the
bidder's financial or banking organization.

If the bidder is not a publicly held corporation, either the reports and statements required of a
publicly held corporation, or a description of the organization, including size, longevity, client base,
areas of specialization and expertise, and any other pertinent information, should be submitted in
such a manner that proposal evaluators may reasonably formulate a determination about the
stability and financial strength of the organization. Additionally, a non-publicly held firm should
provide a banking reference,

The bidder must disclose any and all judgments, pending or expected litigation, or other rea! or
potential financial reversals, which might materially aflect the viability or stability of the organization,
or state that no such condifion is known to exist.
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The State may elect te use a third party to conduct credit checks as parl of the corporate overview
evaluation.

www.nelnetinvestors.com

CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP

if any change in ownership or control of the company is anticipated during the twelve (12) months
following the proposal due date, the bidder should describe the circumstances of such change and
indicate when the change will likely occur. Any change of ownership to an awarded vendor(s) will
require notification to the State

OFFICE LGCATION
The bidder's office location responsible for performance pursuant to an award of a contract with
the State of Nebraska should be identified.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE STATE

The bidder should describe any dealings with the State over the previous two (2) years. If the
organization, its predecessor, or any Parly named in the bidder’s proposal response has contracted
with the State, the bidder should identify the contract number{s} and/or any other information
available to identify such contraci(s). If no such contracts exist, so declare.

BIDDER'S EMPLOYEE RELATIONS TO STATE

if any Party named in the bidder's proposal response is or was an employee of the State within the
past twenty four (24) months, identify the individual(s} by name, State agency with whom employed,
iob title or position held with the State, and separation date. If no such relationship exists or has
existed, so declare.

If any employee of any agency of the State of Nebraska is employed by the bidder or is a
Subcontractor to the bidder, as of the due date for proposal submission, identify all such persons
by name, position held with the bidder, and position held with the State (including job title and
agency). Describe the responsibilities of such persons within the proposing organization. If, after
review of this information by the State, it is determined that a conflict of interest exists or may exist,
the bidder may be disqualified from furlher consideration in this proposal. If no such relationship
exists, so declare.

ALLO is not aware of any current or past relation has existed with the State.

g.

CONTRACT PERFORMANCE

if the bidder or any proposed Subcontractor has had a contract terminated for default during the
past five (5} years, all such instances must be described as required below. Termination for default
is defined as a notice to stop performance delivery due to the bidder's non-performance or poor
pedormance, and the issue was either not litigated due to inaction on the parl of the bidder or
litigated and such litigation determined the bidder to be in default.
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i. SUMMARY OF BIDDER'S PROPOSED PERSONNEL/MANAGEMENT APPROACH
The bidder should present a detailed description of its proposed approach to the management of
the project.

T sidder should identify the specific professionals who will work on the State’s project if their
company is awarded the contract resulting from this RFP. The names and titles of the team
proposed for assignment to the State project should be identified in full, with a description of the
team leadership, interface and support functions, and reporting relationships. The primary work
assigned to each person should also be identified.

The bidder should provide resumes for all personnel proposed by the bidder to work on the project.
The State will consider the resumes as a key indicator of the bidder's understanding of the skill
mixes required t~ rarry out the requirements of the RFP in addition to assessing the experience of
s ific individu

Resumes should not be longer than three {3) pages. Resumes should include, at a minimum,
academic background and degrees, professional cerlifications, understanding of the process, and
at least three (3) references {hame, address, and telephone number) who can attest to the
competence and skill level of the individual. Anyc¢ g r  >po n shallor 2e
imptemented after written approval from the State.

In 2018, ALLO virtualized our Metaswitch to add capabilities and redundancy from locations in
Denver, Colorado and Bellevue, Nebraska. The project, which included expanding capacity on
our regional network, was complex but readies ALLO for the future needs of the State of Nebraska
and our other customers. ALLO continues to be the Nebraska leader in telecommunications
capabilities. With our recent upgrades and expansion, ALLO has widened the gap between our
competitors.

The Project Manager will be the main point of contact throughout the installation project. The
Project Manager will be responsible for working with the OCIO voice project team to generate the
project management time line and assigning tasks to all team members.

plan
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ALLO technicians will connect the handsets to the network and make test calls. Once the OCIO,
Agency and ALLO agree they are ready to port the phone numbers a mutually agreeable port date
will be set. Training will be completed the day of or depending on the size of the port could be a
few days before the porting of numbers.

Subsequent to porting, ALLO installation technicians will re-test the handsets verifying dial tone
and in-bound/out-bound call completion. ALLO’'s HPBX team will be on site for One-on-One
support for end users with questions or issues. The State Agency will not be turned over to the
ALLO’s post support team until the OCIO voice team and State’s Agency are satisfied with the
conversionfinstallation.

Subsequently, the Account Manager and sales team will manage the day-to-day requests for
move, additions and changes.

I PROJECT MANAGER
The Bidder's proposal must describe policies, plans and intentions with regard to maintaining
continuity of key personnel and the implementation team assigned to the project to avoid and
minimize the impact of necessary staff changes.

m. SUBCONTRACTORS
If the bidder intends to Subcontract any part of its performance hereunder, the bidder should
provide:
a) name, address, and telephone number of the Subcontractor(s);
b} specific tasks for each Subcontractor(s);
c} percentage of performance hours intended for each Subcontract; and
d) total percentage of Subcontractor(s) performance hours.

ALLO does not intend to use subcontractors. If a subcontractor is necessary, ALLO will gain
OCIO approval of the contractor.

3. TECHNICAL APPROACH
The technical approach section of the Technical Proposal should consist of the following subsections:

a. Understanding of the project requirements;
b. Proposed development approach;
Page 38
RFP Boilerplate | 12/14/2017









VIl. COST PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS
This section describes the requirements to be addressed by hidders in preparing the State’s Cost Sheet. The bidder must use
the State’s Cost Sheet. The bidder should submit the State's Cost Sheet in accordance with Seclion | Submission of Proposal.

THE STATE’S COST SHEET AND ANY OTHER COST DOCUMENT SUBMITTED WITH THE PROPOSAL SHALL NOT BE
CONSIDERED CONFIDENTIAL OR PROPRIETARY AND IS CONSIDERED A PUBLIC RECORD IN THE STATE OF
NEBRASKA AND WILL BE POSTED TO A PUBLIC WEBSITE.

This section describes the requirements to be addressed by bidders in preparing the Cost Proposal. The bidder must
submit the Cost Proposal in a secticn of the proposal that is a separate section or is packaged separately as specified
in this RFP from the Technical Propasal section. For Option A: OCIO-Hosted, see Attachment A; for Cption B: Carrier-
Hosted, see Attachment B.

A, PRICING SUMMARY

The State reserves the right to review all aspects of the Cost Proposal for reasonableness and fo request clarification
of any proposal where the cost component shows significant and unsupported deviation from industry standards or
in areas where detailed pricing is required.

1.

COST SHEET
This summary shall present the total fixed price to perform all of the requirements of the RFP. The bidder
must include details in the State's Cost Sheet supporting any and all costs.

Option A: OCIO-Hosted, see Cost Proposal Option A; Option B: Carrier-Hosted, see Coest Proposal Option
B.

The State reserves the right to review all aspects of cost for reasonableness and to request clarification of
any proposal where the cost component shows significant and unsupported deviation from industry
standards or in areas where detailed pricing is required.

PRICES

Prices quoted shall be net, including transpertaticn and delivery charges fully prepaid by the bidder, F.O.B.
destination named in the RFP. No additional charges will be allowed for packing, packages, or partial
delivery costs. When an arithmetic error has been made in the extended total, the unit price will govern.

v"  ALLO has read and complies. See Tab 6 for Pricing
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Form A
Bidder Contact Sheet

Request for Proposal Number 5885 Z1

Form A should be compfeted and submitted with each response to this RFP, This is intended fo provide the State with
information on the bidder's name and address, and the specific person(s) whao are responsible for preparation of the bidder's

response.

Preparation of Response Contact Information

Bidder Name:

ALLO Communications

Bidder Address:

330 South 215t St
Lincoln, Ne 68508

Contact Person & Title:

Kathy Carstenson, Business Sales Director

E-mail Address:

kcarstenson@allophone.net

Telephone Number (Office):

402-261-0932

Telephone Number (Cellular):

402-430-5269

Fax Number;

888-882-7850

Each bidder should also designate a specific contact person who will-be responsible for respending to the State if any
clarifications of the bidder's response should become necessary. This will also be the person who the State contacts to set
up a presentation/demonstration, if required.

Communication with the State Contact Information

Bidder Name:

ALLO Communications

Bidder Address:

330 South 215t St
Lincoln, Ne 68508

Contact Person & Title;

Kathy Carstenson, Business Sales Director

E-mail Address:

kcarstenson@allophone.net

Telephone Number (Office):

402-261-0932

Telephone Number (Cellular):

402-430-5269

Fax Number;

888-882-7850
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Form B

Notification of Intent to Attend Pre-Proposal Conference
Request for Proposal Number 5885 Z1

Bidder Name: ALLO Communications
Bidder Address: 330 South 215 St
Lincaln, Ne 68508
Contact Person: Kathy Carstenson, Business Sales Director
E-mail Address: kcarstenson@allophone.net
Telephone Number: 402-261-0932
Fax Number: 888-882-7850
Number of Attendees: 2

The “Notification of Intent to Attend Pre-Proposal Conference” form should be submitted te the State Purchasing Bureau via
e-mail (as.materielpurchasing@nebraska.gov), hand delivered or US Mail by the date shown in the Schedule of Events.
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR CONTRACTUAL SERVICES FORM

By signing this Request for Proposal for Contractual Services form, the bidder guarantees compliance
with the procedures stated in this Request for Proposal, and agrees to the terms and conditions unless
otherwise indicated in writing and certifies that bidder maintains a drug free work place.

Per Nebraska’s Transparency in Government Procurement Act, Neb. Rev Stat § 73-603 DAS is required to
collect statistical information regarding the number of contracts awarded to Nebraska Contractors. This
information is for statistical purposes only and will not be considered for contract award purposes.

X __NEBRASKA CONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT: Bidder hereby attests that bidder is a Nebraska Contractor.
“Nebraska Contractor” shall mean any bidder who has maintained a bona fide place of business and at least

one employee within this state for at least the six (6) months immediately preceding the posting date of this
RFP.

| hereby certify that | am a Resident disabled veteran or business located in a designated enterprise
zone in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. § 73-107 and wish to have preference, if applicable, considered in
the award of this contract.

[ hereby certify that | am a blind person licensed by the Commission for the Blind & Visually Impaired
in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §71-8611 and wish to have preference considered in the award of this
contract.

FORM MUST BE SIGNED USING AN INDELIBLE METHOD (NOT ELECTRONICALLY)

FIRM:
ALLO Communications
COMPLETE ADDRESS:
330 South 215t Street, Lincoln NE 68510

TELEPHONE NUMBER:

308-633-7802
FAX NUMBER:

888-882-7850
DATE:

August 20, 2018

SIGNATURE:
TYPED NAME & TITLE OF SIGNER: President, ALLO Communications
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Bidder

Response:

Upon receiving an order for a port request from the State, ALLO will process the request within 24 hours and
will notify the State of any rejections within the standard requirements of 5-7 business days. In the event of a
large port request (100 + numbers}, extra time will be required to allow the carriers to process the large

request.

SR-11

The Contractor must be able to provide new telephone numbers when requested in each and every city on Attachment
C. Itis preferable that the Contractor reserve blocks of numbers in each community for use by the State. Describe the

process for providing new telephone numbers.

Bidder

Response:

Upon recelving a request for new telephone numbers, ALLO can purchase and providse a block of numbers.
ALLO will reserve sald numbers until requested to put into service. ALLO can provide numbers for the cltles

In the attachment.




SR-12 Bidder's golution must include all necessary connectivity to the Public Switched Telephone Network at no additional cost.
Connectivity will include PSTN trunks/call paths in quantities necessary to support call volumes with a Grade of Service
of P.01 or better during peak call periods. In addition, bidder's solution will include all equipment, soflware, licensing,
installation, and maintenance necessary to support PSTN call paths. Describe how the solution meets this requirement.

Bidder

Response:

SR-13 Bidder must route all out bound toll calls to the State’s contracted toll carrier, if requested, at ne additional cost to the
State  Dezrribe hnw the aohitinn maats this reanirement

Bidder

Response:

SR-14 Unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing, the Contractor will, during the contract period, maintain any and all
software and licensing products at the most current version or no less than one version back from the most current
version at no additional charge, provided that such third-party software version upgrades can be installed and maintained
with the State staff indicated in the Proposal for the Maintenance and Support services. Any patches made available by
equipment manufacturers must be applied by the Contractor at a time and date mutually agreed upon. Describe how the
solution meets this requirement.

Bidder

Rasponse:

SR-15 All bidders must be certified by the Nebraska Public Service Commission (NPSC) as an LEC or CLEC in every city as
noted on Attachment C. Proposals submitted by bidders who are not certified by the NPSC will not be considered.
[reerrihe how the hidder meests this realireameant

Bidder

Response:

SR-16 Contractors must provide service in all of the cities listed on Attachment C. Describe how the solution meets this
reniriramant

Bidder

Response:

SR-17 The Contractor must provide for total security of information and its services, This must include holding all databases
and call records as confidential. With the exception of requests made by Law Enforcement agencies and the OCIO, the
Contractor may not release information concerning call records. The Contractor may not provide any information
concerning service covered by this contract to any individuals or entities who engage in any form of telemarketing. The
Contractor may not market their products or services to any State agency except the OGO without prior written
pnrmic:::inn MNeaserina hew tha hidder meets this renniremeant

Bidder

Response:
SR-18 Ring down capability must be available with the bidaers solution. Uescribé how the solution meets ths requirement.
Bidder

Response:
SR—Tg -I Aa NANAr S SAlLTan st OmMmyioe mise On=rcin P IESOETICIE TV ITIR SOTLINITnE PRI 1P FeT M ermiesni . __
Bidder

Response:
SR-20 Hunt Gsroup capabliity must be avallable with the DIogers solution.  LIescripe Now Ine Solution meers his requirement.
Bidder

Response:

SR-21 | he midoers solution MUSt pe aple 1o provide 1H 10 analog conversion wWnere neeoed. LESCMIOE NOW e SoIUTIon Meets
thie rannirameant

Bidder

Response:
SR-22 Telephone sets must be repair or replacement guaranteed and supported for the life of the contract including all renewals

and extensions. Describe how the solution meets this requirement.




Bidder ALLO understands and agrees to ¢......,-
Response.
SR-23 Describe your procedure for replaci  1on-working telephone sets.
Bidder ALLO will work with the State on a process that works best for everyone. One option would be the State would
Response: identify someone to be responsible for spare phones at certain locations of the States choosing and an
Administrator. ALLQ will provide training on the procedure to follow for phone replacement,
After trouble shooting the phone and identifying it as bad, the bad phone would then be sent to ALLO for
ranlacamant Oaca 811 N rocoivae the bad nhane a new nbhane would he 1t cfnr ranls nt
SR-24 The State requires the Do Not Disturb Feature. Describe how the solution meew wis ieydirement.
Bidder Some phones already have existing buttons that are specifically designed for this purposs. You can enable
Response! DND by pressing the key once and then disable DND by pressing the key again. The phone display will indicate

whether DND is enable or not. Alternatively, if the phone doesn’t have an explicit DND function built into it, you
can set one up using access codes. You can use one access code to enable DND and another access code to
disable it. Meanwhlle, you can display your DND status in CommPortal and use CommPortal to modIfy your

e







Bidder Cnce New fifMl. v v i covsm sin wes s e B wvironment, a notification will be sent to the OCIO contact

Response: informing them of a scheduled date for the upgrade. The State can request a different date and time if our
supplied date has a conflict.

SR-39 Prowirde a list nf wiralacs headzate that are cnmnatihle with nranacsd talanhnna cate

Bidder
Response:

SR-40 Lescnoe any aaminisiratve Intemaces avanarie 1o the State 1o manage, configure of ¢hange sstings on an individual ine

[ ennn PR H AT

Bidder l
Response:

SR-41 Deseribe how errars and alarms will be rannrtad ta the Stata far izenaa within Cantractar rsmed amoinmant 7]

Bidder
Response:













Session Border Controllers and firewall devices would be deployed at existing State/ALLO network

Bidder
Response: interconnection points. ALLO personnel will need physical access to these devices for repair and some
maintenance activities. Remote access monitoring and maintenance of this equipment will be provided in-
band via ALLO's existing network connections,
An Integrated Access Device will need to be placed on site where ever there is a need to convert a SIP line to
an analog line.
SN-5 Provide the bandwidth requirements with regards to the following:
Any overhead network reguirements
bandwidth per call
bandwidth for management
Bidder 64Kbps for G.711 is the bandwidth required for each call.
Response: Bandwidth for Management is SMbps per site.
There are no specific overhead network requirements.
SN-6 What are the network requirements 1o include but not limited to the following:
latency
jitter
QOS prieritizatior
QOS5 bandwidth reoe vuuwn
Bidder Latency (one-way) - 20ms recommended, 50ms maximum
Response: Jittgr - <2ms
Prioritization - RTP voice and signaling traffic will need to be prioritized on Slate's network based on DSCP
values {C53 for signaling, EF for RTP)
Bandwidth Reservation - 256 Kbps reserved on top of any actlve calls,
SN-7 Describe how the solution supports [Py,
Bidder ALLO does not support IPv6 for volce services at this time.
Response:

10













Biddel

e wowwswullNdS and accepts.

Response:

BR-6 The State requires timely response to all requests for order activity. All requests should be ackiuwiedged by t
Contractor in writing within 48 hours. Contractor order number and order due date must be sent to the OCIO witnin 5
business days. Describe how the solution meets this requirement.

Bidder Once an order is submitted your Account Manager will send you an email notification of receiving the order and
Response:  |will follow up with an estimated due date. The Account Manger will also keep the State informed on status of
orders. ALLQD r-~tnrmtmmdn cod nnno t~ b3 time frames,

BR-7 With the excep. . ce mimmim —meeme 0rling delays, all order activity must be completed by the Contractor within
14 calendar days of the State placing the order. Describe how the solution meets this requirement.

Bidder The State will have a dedicated team to handle orders and inventory of phones in stock. Depending on the
Response: size and complexity of the order ALLO will clear communication with the State of any issues meeting their
date.

BR-8 The State and the Contractor will work in partnership to ensure the services provided under this contract will be refreshed
as technologies evolve and user needs grow. This technology refreshment clause will be a required condition of the
contract. At a minimum the State and the Contractor will canduct yearly reviews during the term of the contract to review
service offerings and pricing. These reviews may result in expanding the services offered by the Contractor to include
new optional pricing elements or pricing reductions assaciated with improved economies of scale and/or technological
innovations. Changes in the industry related to regulation and/for pricing mechanisms may also result in modification of
rates identified in the services offered by the Contractor, Describe how the solution meets this reguirement.

Bidder ALLQO has read and accepts.
Response:

14




BR-g Bidder must submit a Change Management Plan with their bid response detailing the change management process and
annroach.

Bidder

Respanse:

BR-10 All due dates must be met by the Contractor. In the event that a Contractor provided due date cannot be met, the OCIO
must be notified in writing at least two (2) business days prior to original due date.  The Contractor must notify the
service requestor when a work order has been completed. Describe how the solution meets this requirement.

Bidder

Response:
Project Planning And Management
Carrier-hosted solution

PP-1 Bidder must describe in the proposal each of the steps they will take during discovery, network assessment, individual
site assessment, and install. Bidder must provide a draft Project Management Plan with their proposal.

Bidder

Response:
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SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT

This Service Level Agreement (SLA) applies to ALLO business clients, and sets forth certain rights and
remedies regarding the performance of the ALLO network.

Network Availability Guarantee

ALLO’s network, as defined n this scetion, is guaranieced to be available and capable of forwarding IP packets
99.99% of the time, averaged over a calendar month. ALLO’s [P network includcs the customer access port {the
port on the ALEO aggregation router upon which the customer’s circuit lerminates) and the ALLO IP backbone
network. The ALLO IP backbone includes ALLO owned and controlled routers and circuits, including any
transit conncetions and the custormer-based network inferface device. ALLO’s Network Availability Guarantee
does not in¢lude: networks owned and/or controlled by other carriers, interconnections to or from and within
other Internct Service Provider (ISP} networks, the local access point , the customer’s Local Area Network
(LAN), scheduled and unscheduled maintenance events, customer-owned Customer Premise Equipment (router
or CPE), any third party or cusiomer-caused outages or disruptions, any act or omission of customer, customer’s
vendor or contractor, or other third party, including, without limitation, failing to provide access to customer’s
premise to enable ALLO to comply with its service obligations, failing to take any remedial action as
recommended by ALLO, or customer’s failure to notify ALLO of a fault in ALLLO’ IP network, and force
majeure events. If the Network Availability Guarantee is not met in a calendar month, the customer, upon
request, is eligible to receive a credit up to 1/30th of the monthly service charge (MRC) for that month for each
full hour of outage in excess of the 99.99% guaranteed under this SLA up to a maximum of one month’s
recurring charge.

Latency Guarantee

The ALLO nctwork (as defincd above) is guaranteed to have an average round trip packet transit time within the
ALLQ backbone network over a calendar month of 40ms or less. The average network latency is measured as
the average of 5 minutc samples taken throughout the month. The ALLO Latency Guarantee does not include:
networks owned and/or controlled by other carriers, interconnections to or from and within other Internet
Service Provider (ISP) networks, the local access point , the customer’s Local Area Network (LAN), scheduled
and unscheduled maintenance events, customer-owned Customer Premise Equipment (router or CPE), any third
party or customer-caused outages or disruptions, any act or omission of cuslomer, cusiomer’s vendor or
contractor, or other third party, including, without limitation, failing to provide access to customer’s premise to
enable ALLO to comply with its scrvice obligations, failing to take any rcmedial action as recommended by
ALLQ, or customer’s failure to notify ALLO of a fault in ALLO’ IP network and force majeure events. If the
Latency Guarantee is not mct in a calendar month, the custorner, upon requcst, is eligible o receive a credit up
to 1/30th of the monthly service charge (MRC) for that month for each full 1ms above the 40ms average
maximum guarantced under this SLA up to a maxumum of one month’s recurring charge.

610 Broadwa P.O. Bax 1123 Imperial, Nebrask 3 08-882-7800 866-481-ALLO (2556 308-882-7850
g P TEG8 1 of6 2950)



Mean Time (o Repair (MTTR)

MTTR SLA is measured as the average time it takes to restore all Failures of the Network Availability
Guarantee for all Customer sitcs with similar circuit types during a calendar month. (For the purposes of
determining MTTR measurements, only a failure of the Network Availability Guarantee shall constitute a
Failure; failures of other guarantces do not apply to MTTR.)

Ethernet — 4 hours

Measurement: MTTR is the period of time beginning when a trouble ticket is opened by either ALLO or the
Customer as a result of a Failure, and ending when the Failurc has been remedied. The MTTR service guarantee
takes effect on the st calendar day of the first full month after the connection is successfully installed and
activated. If ALLO fails to meet the MTTR for a calendar month, the Customer will receive a eredit of 1/30th of
the MRC for that month for cach hour over the MTTR.

Packet Loss Guarantee

The ALLO network is guaranteed to have a maximum average packet loss of 1 percent or less during any
calendar month.

Packet Loss Guarantee only includes networks controlled by ALLO.

In the event that ALLO does not meet the objectives, thc monthly credit requested by the Customer will be
equal to 10% ot the MRC for associatcd service.

Credit Requests

ALLO will offer the credits outlined above should these guarantees not be met, subjeet to verification by
ALLO. Credifs will only apply to the service directly experiencing service or connectivity issues; loss of scrvice
or connectivity at one site location does not constitute credit for all site localions, even if all locations are under
one billing address. Requests for credits must be in writing and received by ALLO no later than seven days
from the distuption in service as outlined in the guarantees above. Customers requesting crediis must have
opened a trouble ticket with the ALLO Network Operations Center (NMC) at the time of the incident by calling
{308) 633-5000.

Please allow one week for credit requests to be adequately researched by ALLO prior to posting to a customer’s
account, Total credits under this SI.A are limited to the monthly service charge for the month in which the
service does not mect the guarantee. Concurrent events will not provide consecutive credits. Credits will be
taken after any promotional offers or discounts and do not apply to governmental fees, taxes, and surcharges,
Requests for credits may be mailed to ALLO, 610 Broadway, Box 1123, Imperial, NE 69033, or faxed to 308-
882-7850 or they can be emailed to infoallophone.net. Please include the trouble ticket #, a description of the
issue, and the date and time of the incident. No credits will be issued to clients who are delinquent on their
payments, All decisions made by ALLO regarding this SLA or associated credit requests remains final.
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AGENGY GUSTOMER ID: NELNE-1

LOC #:
y ) o
AC_C/)RD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 2
[ac 1 NAMED INSURED
SilverStone Group Nelnet, Inc. {Sea Additional Named Insd)
121 8. 13th Street, Suite 201
POLICY NUMBER Lincoln NE 68508
CARRIER NAIC CODE
EFFECTIVE DATE:
ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

$500,000 Retention (Class Action claims subject ta $1,000,000 retention)
Retro Date: 4-10-78

Excess Professional Liability and Gyber Liability
Carrier. Barbican (Lloyds of Londan)

Policy Number: XCY2010502

Policy Period: 11-1-17 to 10-2-18

$5,000,000 Excess $5,000,000

Excess Cyber liability anly

Carrier; Allianz Global US Risk Insurance Company
Policy Number: XCY2010502

Policy Period: 11-1-17 to 10-2-18

$5,000,000 excess $10,000,000

Crime continued:

$10,000,000 Fidelity (Employee Dishonasty)

$10,000,000 On Premises

$10,000,000 In Transit

$10,000,000 Fargery or Alteration

$10,000,000 Securities

$10,000,000 Counterfeit Money

$10 710,000 Computer Systems Fraud including Data Processing

$1 1,000 Destruction of Data or Programs by Hacker

$1.. .0,000 Dastruction of Data or Programs by Virus

$10,000,000 Voice Computer Systemns Fraud {Telephone Long Distance)

$10,000,000 Fraudulent Transfer Instructions

$10,000,000 Unauthorized Signatures

$250,000 Single Loss Deduclible ) )
Includes 3rd Parly Coverage (Employee Dishanesty) Extended through definition of "Covered Properly”. Applies to loss of properly (A) Owned by the insured,
(BHeld by the Insured in any capacily, or (C) Owned and held by someone else under circumstances which make the insured respansible for the property prior
{o teh oceurrence of the loss.

Annual Aggregate for all loss during bond period: $20,000,000

Excess Crime Coverage

Carrier: Beazley Insurance Company Inc.

Policy Number: V20D49170101

Policy Period: 11-1-17 1o 10-2-18

$10,000,000 Single Limit of Liability Excess of $10,000,000
$20,000,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability Excess of $20,000,000

Mamed Insureds:

National Education Loan Netwark, Inc. aka Nelnet, Inc.

Nelnet Guarantoer Solutions, LLC

Natianal Higher Education Loan Program, Inc.

Nelnhet Education Loan Funding, Inc.

Nelnet Student Loan Funding, LLC

Chela Education Funding, Inc.

Melmae, LLC

College Bound Loans, Inc.

Nelnet Studenl Loan Funding Management Corporation
Nelnet Management Corparation - 1

M&P Building, LLC

Nelnet Business Solutions, Inc.

CUNet , LLC

FACTS Education Solutions, LLC f/kfa Peterson's Nelnet, LLC
First National Life Insurance Company of the U.S.A.

Nelnet Academic Services, LLC

Merchant Preservation Services, LLC

Nelnat Capital, LLC

Ne Real Estate Ventures, Inc. formerly Haalth Education Solutions, Inc.
Ne Asset Management, Inc.

Nelnet Diversified Solutions LLC fka NLS Holding Company, LLC
Nelnet FFELP Student Loan Warehouse-1, LLC

EFS Finance Co.

Nelhet Servicing, LLC dba Proxi Quisourcing

Nelhet Servicing, LLC d/bfa Firstmark Services, LLC

ACORD 101 {2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logao ara registered marks of ACORD
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AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: NELNE-1

LOC #:
y } o

ACORD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 of 2_
__g —
AGENCY NAMED INSURED

SilverStone Group Nelnet, Inc. {See Addilional Named Insd}

121 5. 13th Street, Suite 201
POLICY NUMBER Lincoln NE 68508

CARRIER NAIC CODE

EFFECTIVE DATE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE GF LIABILITY INSURANCE
hHZ280 Solutions, LI (G

Whitetail Rock Capital Management, LLG
Municipal Tax Investment, LLC

NHELP-II, LLC
NHELP-III, LG
Globalnel. LLC

Sparkroom, LLC previously CUNet Software, LLC
Municlpal Tax Property, LLC

Nelnet UNL Alliance, LLC

Wilcomp Sofiware LLC dba Renweb School Managernent Software
Invite Education, LLC

Class bundl, LLC

Education Funding Capital |, LLC

Education Lending Services, Inc.

GGO Education Loan Funding Trust-1l

GCO Education Loan Funding Trust - |

GCO SLIMS Trust - 1

Nelnet B2B Services, LLG

Nelnet Captive Insurance Company, Inc.

Nelnet Consumer Finance, Inc.

Nelnet Finance Corp.

Nelnet Fund Strategies, LLC

Nelnet Student Loan Funding || Management Corporation
Nelnet Student Laan Funding Il, LLC

Next Gen Web Soluticns, LLC

Total Waill Baing, LLC

SmartDegree, LLC

Whitetail Rock Fund Management, LLC

Whitetail Rock Quanlitative Sirategies |, LLP
Unicn Financial Services, Inc.

Wachovia Education Loan Funding, LLGC
Studiocode, LLC

Nelnet Private Student Loan Warehouse-t, LLC
Nelnet Private Student Loan Financing Corporation
Nelnet Loan Acquisition Corparation

Nelnet Fund Management, LLC

Meinet Enrollment Salutions, LLC

NBS Sales Co., LLC

Lincoln Workspace, LLC

IniPHI, LLC

PaymentSpring, LLC

FACTS Education Solutions fikfa Mind Streams Education, LLC
Allo Communications, LLC;

Allo Twin Cities, LLC

Allo Alliance, LLC

Great Lakes Educational Loan Services, Inc.

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Business Operations

As a world class telecommunications company ALLO understands the importance of a resilient network and business
operations ensuring reliable service to the customers we serve. In order to live out one of our core values of being
local, ALLO’s business cperations are decentralized. Instead of centralizing operations under one roof in a single
community, ALLO has offices located in the communities in which we provide service. In addition to supporting our
core value of being local, decentralization provides operational redundancy. If one of our operational facilities
became inoperable, other ALLO offices would still be online to serve customers with little to no impact.

Network

ALLO's central offices are carrier grade with built in redundancy, including redundant power sources and battery
backups. Each central office is physically and logically connected to at least two other markets, providing additional
redundancy.

Voice services are supported by two geo redundant dual core voice processors. The virtualized voice servers are
operated with redundant power and battery backups. In the event of electrical failure, back up cards begin operating
immediately. ALl O stocks spare components which are hot swappable, limiting or eliminating down time during a
network event.

Should an extreme disaster occur damaging the switch room and related equipment, ALLO's two core sites are .
connected via a 100Gb ring and will immediately fail over to one of the redundant processors. All voice, video, and
data processing is duplicated in carriergrade facilities located in Denver, CO and Omaha, NE. These facilities
maintain multiple levels of redundant power and diverse fiber routes into each of the buildings.

ALLO's voice solution utilizes packet switch over a fiber optic network that provides several advantages over older
traditional copper circuit switch networks. The ability for the network operations center to view signaling to the
Network Interface Device (NID) and, in the case of IP telephone, to the telephone set at a packet level is a significant
advantage over a traditional copper switch network. As a result, ALLO’s response times during a network event are
vastly improved and, in many cases, ahead of the customer noticing degradation of service.

Netwaork equipment is monitored 24/7/365, allowing for rapid issue identification and resolution.

Physical Fiber Network and Customer Premise Equipment

ALLO’s fiber network has redundancy built into the distribution fiber. A fiber cut will be re-routed resulting in minimal
or no customer impact. ALLO’s fiber backbone includes a 100Gb ring between Omaha, Lincoln, Scottsbiuff, and
Denver. Core fiber routes connect the Alliance, Bridgeport, Ogallala, North Platte, Hastings, and Fort Morgan
markets redundantly to the 100Gh Ring. ALLO has fiber splicers on staff and in our markets to provide restorative
services 24/7/365.

ALLO maintains an inventory of spare electronics that can be deployed to customer's site. In the event of a failure,
the Network Technical Assistance Center (NTAC) will be alerted of communication degradation between the central
office and the customer premise equipment and will begin corrective action immediately. If the degradation is
customer impacting, an on-site technician is immediately dispatched with the spare equipment.

Summary

ALLO, as a segment within Nelnet, participates in the corporate Business Continuity Management Program (BCMP).
The BCMP helps to manage business operations under adverse conditions through the introduction of appropriate
resilience strategies, recovery objectives, business continuity practices, risk management considerations, and
standards for communicating. It includes strategies to:

*  Protect the employees and the assets

= Address disruptions to the business or technical environments

= Prevent of reduce the exposure to calastrophic events

= Limit damage during, or immediately after, a catastrophic event
= |dentify and mitigate risks to customers and business operations
s« |dentify recovery options
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ALLO has implemanted a resilient network with multiple points of redundancy in order to prevent customer impact
resulting from a network event. Should such an evant occur, customers benefit from a decentralized local operations
staff capable of mabilizing to limit customer impact and downtima.

Following is a sample business continuity plan for our custorner sarvice reprasentative tearmn located in Lincoln, NE.
ALLO would be happy to provide our complete Business Continuity Plan upon request.
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Purpose

The purpose of this business continuity plan is to prepare ALLO Communications in the event of extended service
outages caused by factors beyond our control (e.g., natural disasters, man-made events), and to restcre services to
the widest extent possible in a minimum time frame. All ALLO sites are expected to implement preventive measures
whenever possible to minimize network failure and to recover as rapidly as possible when a failure occurs. This
document pertains specifically to ALLO's operations throughout the Lincoln Community.

This plan encompasses all ALLO system sites and operations facilities within Lincoln.
1.1 Scope

The scope of this plan is limited to major disasters or prolonged outages which could threaten the continued business
operations of ALLO Communications. This is a disaster recovery plan, not a daily problem resolution procedures
document.

1.2 Plan Objectives

* Serves as a guide for the ALLO recovery teams.

s« References and paints to the location of any data that resides outside this document.

« Provides procedures and resources needed to assist in recovery.

s Identifies vendors and customers that must be notified in the event of a disaster.

s Assists in avoiding confusion experienced during a crisis by documenting, testing and reviewing recovery
procedures.

s Identifies alternate sources for supplies, resources and focations.

1.3 Assumptions

s Key people {Team Leaders ar Alternates) will be available following a disaster.

=« A national disaster, or disaster which impacts all ALLO locations is beyond the scope of this plan.

=« This document and ali vital records are stored in a secure off-site location and not only survived the disaster but
are accessible immediately following the disaster.

1.4 Disaster definition

Any loss of utility service (power, water), connectivity (system sites), or catastrophic event (weather, natural disaster,
vandalism) that causes an interruption ar major disruption in the service provided by ALLO operations. The plan
identifies vulnerabilities and recommends measures to prevent extended service outages.

1.5 Plan Activation Authorization

The following ALLO persannel are authorized to determine a state of disaster and can activate the Disaster
Recovery Plan. The bolded names are employees who reside tn Lincoln full time and therefore are mare likely to be
immediatelv present or availahle.

Nate Buhrman Caontroller 402-781-4819 402-429-1013
Todd Heyne Director of Plant Operations 402-263-6566 202-650-3500
Don Schoening Regional Director, Field Operations 402-781-4078 402-419-4918
Jeff Kuenne VP of Networking 308-633-7822 816-716-7224
Allison O'Neil VP of Customer Operations 308-633-7805 308-883-0190

Once a state of disaster has been determined, refer to the table in Appendix A. The table includes a checklist of
what subsequent steps should be taken to return to normal operations as efficiently as possible.
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[T ALLO building is still not
available for re-entry, begin
to find a more permanent
location for CSR's

Recovery Team, Paul
Carmack

24 hrs
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Appendix A — Recovery Checklist

TN AR ] AT WV I AT b IR SR I P VRl R IR T DT T R LD 1 1-a% I\U\JPUI [L¥ L—]]
1. {Individuals listed in Section 1.5).
2 Determine whether or not a disaster has taken place. Strategic Level Management

Leadership will make assessment regarding damages {i.e. whather or Strateqgic Level Management
3. not building is still accessible, if some resources are still available and

functioning, etc.)

Recovery team will be contacted, and will assemble either in person Strategic Level Management
4. or via conference call.

Review with Recovery Team the pre-determined strategy/strategies: Recovery Team
5 - Walkthrough status of critical functions (Sections 2.1 and 2.2).

) - Walkthrough order of priority and recovery time objectives.
- Confirm owners of each critical business function.

Update the Announcement message on the ALLO Inclement Weather Recavery Team

Hotline
6. - Callin to 402.817.0836

- When message picks up enter *685102
- Choose extended absence greeting to update

Communication will be initiated to associates. Order of communication Recovery Team
7. can he found using the call lree in Appendix C

Ensure that communication continues to flow until all associates have Recovery Team/Management
8 been made aware of situation.

) - (uideline scripts for various types of employees can be
found in Appendix D.

Identify communication needs for customers, trading partners, Allison O'Nail
9. external entitias. (ISPN)

Assign ownership of communication to team member~

Identify critical vendors and communicate circumstanucas anu nocus. Supervisors/Managers
10.

SteDS beyond th|S pOint Sh0U|u LS USUSHHHSU DG O Qilalign g arsd NELUYc ¥ rsaill @i o ays o
11. | spedcific needs.
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Appendix B — Business Hours Response and Safety
Checklist

Immeadiate actions to be taken by the Recovery Team Leader/Functional Manager or assigned alternate for an
emergency during business hours:

mmtaar am taaram e mrar s mm s s w mas e e e e m e o

and available. If anyone is missing, notify the Executive
Management Team immediately.

2. | Callin to the Executive Management Conference Bridge to get | Supervisor/Manager/Director
instruction from the Executive Management Team. The
Executive Management Team conference bridge is: {308) 633-
5554 code 874071

3. | Record all the information and instructions given by the Supervisor/iManager/Director
Recovery Team.

4. | Before contacting anyone review scripts found in Appendix D | Supervisor

5. | If instructed by the Recovery Team, begin any recovery Supervisor
checklist or other action items given responsibility for.

Page 11 of 20



Appendix C - Call Tree

Allison O'Neil is responsible for contacting all managers that report directly to her. Each manager is responsible for
contacting their reporting supervisor. Supervisors are then responsible for contacting ALL of their team members via
phone call or group message. Managers without a reporting supervisor are then responsible for contacting their team

members. Thase with highlighted names should be contacted first. Phone numbers for all employees in this graphic
can be found in Appendix E.

First Responder

i

Strategic Management
{Numbers Found Above)

i

Allison O’Neil

i

Jason Mentore

i

All Managers (Names and Numbers found in Appendix E)

i i

All Supervisors (Appendix E):
Managers are responsible for calling all supervisors who report to them. If they do not
have supervisors beneath them, they are responsible for calling all direet reports.

i | l

All Individual Team Members

12
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Appendix D — Call Script

The Business Recovery Team leader, alternate or assigned individual upon activation of the Business Recovery Plan
will contact team personnel using the following script:

Script 1 — Associates that need to report to the alternate work area and Recovery Team Members:
P'm calling to notify you that our office has been affected by <disaster> and we wilf need 1o recover our
business in our alternate work area. Please wnile down lhe following instructions:

1.
2

ook W

Locate your copy of the Business Recovery Plan, if you have a copy.
Report to the alternate work area located al:
{Street Address)
At (Time) on (day)
Bring your ALLQ badge to the new location.
Please do not contact or notify other associafes, this will be done by the leadership team.
Please do not make any public staterments, speak with the media, customers or agencies oulside of
Nelnet, this will be done by the designated spokespeople.
<add any additional instructions specific to your department or this situation>.

Script 2 - Associates that work remotely (home office} or other ALLO offices:

P'm calling to notify you that our <location, city> office has been affected by <disaster> and we will need to
recover our business in cur alternate work area. Please write down the following instructions:

1.
2

3.

Provide instructions for these associates not impacted dirsctly by the disaster/issue.

You can calf in to the ALLO Inclement Weather Hotline Number (402.817.0836) for updales and
instructions.

Please do not contact or notify other associates, this wiff be done by the leadership team.

Please do not make any public statements, speak with the media, customers or agencies outside of
Nelnet, this will be done by the designated spokespeople.

Add any additional instructions specific to your depariment or this situation.

13
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FORWARD-LOOKING AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements and information that are based on management's cuwirent expectations as of the date of this
document. Statements that are not historical facts, including statcments about the Company's plans and expectations (or future (inancial
condition, results of operations or economic perforinance, or that address manapement's plans and objectives for future operations, and
stutemnents that assume or are dependent upon future events, are forward-looking staternents. The words “may,” “should,” “could,” “would,”
“predict,” “potential,” “continue,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “future,” “intend,” “scheduled,” “plan,” “believe,” “estimate,” “assumec,”
“forecast,” “will,” and siinilar expressions, as well as statements in future tense, are inlended to identily forward-looking statements,

ELIY ELIY

The forward-looking statements are based on assuinptions and analyses made by management in light of management's expericnce and its
perception of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments, and other factors thatmanagement believes are appropriate
under the circumstances, These statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assuinptions, and other factors that may
cause the actual results and performance to be materially different from any future resulis or performance expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements. These factors include, among others, the risks and uncertaintics sct forth in “Risk Factors™ and clsewhers in
this report, and melude such risks and uncertainties as:

*  loan portfolio risks such as intcrest ratc basis and repricing risk resulting from the fact that the interest rate characteristics of the student
loan assets do not match the interest rate characteristics of the funding for those assets, the risk ol loss of floor income on certain
student loans originated under thc Federal Family Education Loan Program (the "FFEL Program" or "FFELP™), risks rclated to the
use of derivalives 1o manage exposure to inlerest rale fucluations, uncerlainlies regarding the expected benefits from purchased
securitized and unsecuritized FFELFP, private education, and consumer loans and initiatives to purchasc additional FFELP, private
education, and consumer loans, and risks [rorn changes in levels of loan prepayment or default rales;

+  financing and liquidity risks, including risks of changes in the general interest rate environment and in the securitization and other
financing markets for loans, including adverse changes resulting from slower than expected payments on student loans in FFELP
securitization trusts, which may increase the costs or limit the availability of financings necessary to purchase, refinance, or continue
to hold student loans;

»  risks from changes in the educational credit and services markets resulting from changes in applicable laws, regulations, and government
programs and budgels, such as the expected decliue over time in FFELP loan inieresi income and fee-based revenues due to the
discontinuation of new FFELP loan originations in 2010 and potential government initiatives or legislative proposals to consolidate
existing FFELP loaus 1o the Federal Direct Loan Program or otherwise aflow FFELP loans to be refinanced with Federal Direct Loan
Program loans;

«  the uncertain nature of the expceted benefits from the acquisition of Great Lakes Educational Loan Services, [ne. {"Great Lakes™) on
February 7, 2018 and the ability to successfully integrate iechnology, shared services, and other activities and successfilly maintain
and increase allocated volumes of student loans serviced under existing and any future servicing contracts with the U.S. Department
of Education (the "Department™), which cwrrent contract between the Company and the Department accounted for 21 percent of the
Company's revenue in 2017, risks to the Company related to the Department's initiative to procure new contracts for federal student
loan servicing, including the risk that the Company on & post-Great Lakes acquisition basis may not be awarded a contract, risks related
1o the development by the Company and Great Lakes of 2 new student loan servicing platform, including risks as to whether the
cxpected benefits from the new platform will be realized, and risks related to the Coinpany's ability to comply with agreements with
third-party customers for the servicing of FFELT, Federal Direct Loan Propram, and private education and consumer loans;

»  risks refated 1o a breach of or failure in the Company's operational or information systems or infrastructure, or those of third-party
vendors, including cybersecurity risks related to the potential disclosure of confidential student loan borrower and other customer
information;

= uncertainties inherent in forecasling future ¢ash flows from student loan assets and related asset-backed securitizations;

*  the uncertain nature of the expecled benefits from the acquisition of ALLO Communications LLC on December 31, 2015 and the
ability to integrate its communications operations and successfully expand its fiber network in existing scrvice areas and additional
communities and manage related construction risks;

»  risks and uncertainties related 1o initialives to pursue additional strategic investments and acquisitions, including investments and
acquisitions that are intended to diversify the Company both within and outside of its historical core educalion-related businesses; and

»  risks and uncertainties associated with litipation matters and with maintaining compliancc with the extensive regulatory requirements
applicable to the Company's businesses, reputational and other risks, including the risk of increased repulatory costs, resulting from
the recent politicization of student loan scrvicing, and uncertainties inherent in the estimates and assumptions about future events that
management is required Lo make in the preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements,

All forward-looking stateinents contained in this report are qualified by these cautionary statements and are made only as of the date of
this document. Although the Company may from tiine Lo lime voluntarily update or revise ils prior lorward-looking slalements to reflect
actual results or chanpes in the Company's expectations, the Company disclaims any commitment to do so cxccpt as required by sceurities
laws.



PART I.
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

Neinet, Inc. {the “Company™) is a diverse company with a focus on delivering education-related products and services and loan
assct management, The largest operating businesses engage in student Joan servicing, tuition payment processing and school
information systems, and comnmunications. A significant portion of the Company's revenue is net interest incoine earned on a
portfolio of federally insured student loans. The Company also makes investments to further diversify the Company both within
and outside of its historical core education-related businesses, including, but not limited to, investinents in real estate and start-up
ventures. Substantially all revenue from external customers is earned, and all long-lived assets are located, in the United States.

The Company was formed as a Nebraska corporation in 1978 to service federal student loans for two local banks. The Company
built on this mitial foundalion s a servicer (o become a leading origingtor, holder, and servicer of federal sludent loans, principally
consisting of loans originated under the Federal Family Education Loan Program. A detailed description of the FFEL Program is
included in Appendix A to this report.

The Health Carc and Education Recongiliation Act of 2010 (the “Reconciliation Act of 2010™) discontinucd new loan originations
under the FFEL Program, cffcctive July 1, 2010, and requires that all new federal student loan originations be made directly by
the Department through the Tederal Direct Loan Program. This law does not alter or affect the terms and conditions of existing
FFELP loans.

Asg a result of the Recongiliation Act of 2010, the Company no longer originates new FFELP loans. However, a significant portion
of the Company's income continues to be derived from its existing FFELP student loan portfolio. As of December 31, 2617, the
Company had a $21.8 billion loan portfolio, consisting primarily of FFELP loans, that management anticipates will amortize over
the next approximately 20 years and has a weighted average remaining life of 7.5 years. Interest income on the Company's existing
FFELP loan portfolio will decline over time as the portfolio is paid down. However, since July 1, 2010, which is the effective
date on and after which no new loans can be originated under the FFEL Program, the Company has purchased $21.4 billion of
FFELP loans froin other FFELP loan holders looking to adjust their FFELP businesses. The Company believes there may be
additional opportunities to purchase FFELP portfolios to generate incremental earnings and cash flow. However, since all FFELP
loans will eventually run off, a key objective of the Company is to reposition the Company for the post-FFELP environment.

To reduce its reliance on interest income on student loans, the Company has cxpanded its services and prodncts. This expansion
has been accomplished through internal growth and innovation as well as business acquisitions. In addition, in 2009, the Company
began servicing federally owned student loans for the Depariment. As of December 31, 2017, the Company was scrvicing $172.7
billion of student loans for 5.9 million borrowers on behalf of the Department.

Recent Developmenis

On February 7, 2018, the Company acquired 100 pereent of the outstanding stock of Great Lakes for a purchase price of $150,0
million in cash, Nelnet Servicing, LLC (“Nelnet Servicing”™), a subsidiary of the Company, and Great Lakes are two of the four
large private sector companies (referred to as Title IV Additional Servicers, or “TIVAS™) that have student loan servicing contracts
awarded by the Department in June 2009 to provide servicing for loans owned by the Department.

Going forward, Great Lakes and the Company will continue to service their respective government-owned portfolios on behalf
of the Department, while maintaining their distinet brands, independent scrvicing operations, and teamns. Likewise, cach entity
will continue to compete for new studeni loan volume nnder its respeetive existing contract with the Departrent. Nelnet will
integrate technology, as well as shared services and other activitics, to become nore cfficient and cffective in mecting borrower
nceds,

Headquartered in Madison, Wisconsin, Great Lakes has approximately 1,800 employees and as of December 31, 2017, Great
Lakes was servicing $224.4 billion in government-owned student loans for 7.5 million borrowers, $10.7 billion in FFELI loans
for almost 479,000 borrowers, and $8.5 billion in private education and consumer loans for over 415,000 borrowers.

The operating results of Great Lakes will be included in the Company's Loan Systems and Servicing operating segment beginning
February 7, 2018.



Operating Segments
The Company has four reportable operating segments summarized below,

Loan Systems and Servicing
= Recferred to as Nelnet Diversified Solutions (“NDS8”)
«  Focuscs onstudent loan servicing, consumer loan origination and servicing, student loan servicing-related technology
solutions, and outsourcing services for lenders and other entities
+  Includes the brands Nelnet Loan Servicing, Firstrnark Services, GreatNet Solutions, and Proxi

Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce

»  Referred to as Nelnet Business Solutions {*“NBS8”)

»  Focuses on tuition payment plans and billings, financial needs assessment services, online payment and refund
processing, school information system software, payment technologies, and professional development and
educational instruction services

» Includes the brands FACTS Management, Nelnet Campus Commerce, RenWeb, PaymentSpring, and FACTS
Education Solutions

Communications
» Includes the operalions of ALLO Communications LLC ("ALLO"}
= Focuses on providing fiber optic scrvice directly to homes and businesses for internet, broadband, telephone, and
television services

Asset Generation and Management
« Includes the acquisition and management of the Company's student and other loan assets

Sepment Operating Results

The Company's teportable operating segments are defined by the products and services they offer or the types of customers they
serve, and they refleet the manner in which financial information is currently evaluated by management. The Company includes
separate financial information about its reportable segments, including revenues, net income or loss, and total assets for each of
the Company's reportable segments, for the last threc fiscal years in note 15 of the notes to consolidated financial statements
included in this report. For segment reporting purposcs, business activilies and operating segments that are not reportable are
combined and included in "Corporate and Other Activities."

Loan Systems and Servicing
The primary service offerings of this operating segment include:

+  Servicing federally-owned student loans for the Department

»  Servicing FFELP loans

»  Originating and servicing private cducation and consumer loans

»  Providing student loan servicing software and other information technology products and services
»  Providing outsourced services including call center, processing, and marketing services

In addilion, this segment provided servicing, outsourcing services, and collection services to two FFELP guaranty ageocics. The
contract with one agency expired on October 31, 2015, and was not renewed. The remaining guaranty agency customer exited
the FFELP guaranty business at the end of its contract tertm on June 30, 2016. After the expiration of this contract, the Company
has no remaining guaranty revenuc,

As of December 31, 2017, the Company serviced $211.4 billion of student loans for 7.8 million borrowers. See Part 11, [tem 7,
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Loan Systems and Servicing Operating
Sepment - Results of Operations - Student Loan Servicing Volumes" for additional information related to the Company's servicing
volume.



Servicing federally-owned sindent loans for the Deparinient

As previously discussed, the Company is one of four large private sector companies, or TIVAS, awarded a student loan scrvicing
contract by the Departinent in June 2009 to provide additional servicing capacity for loans owned by the Department. These loans
include Federal Dhreet Loan Program loans originated directly by the Department and FFEL Program loans purchased by the
Depariment, Under the servicing contract, the Company earns a monthly fee from the Depariment for each unique borrower who
has loans owned by the Department and serviced by the Company. The amount paid per each unique borrowcer is dependent on
the status of the borrower {(e.g., in school or in repayment). As of December 31, 2017, the Company was scrvicing $172.7 billion
of student loans for 5.9 million borrowers under its contract with the Department. The Department is the Company's largest
customer, representing 21 percent of the Company's revenue in 2017,

The servicing contract with the Department is currently scheduled to cxpire on June 16, 2019, Tn April 2018, the Department
announced a new contract procurement process to acquire a single servicing platform to manage all student loans owned by the
Dcpartment. In May 2016, Nelnet Servicing and Great Lakes subinitted a joint response to the procurement as part of their GreatNet
Solutions, LLC {"GreatNct") joint venture created to respond to the contract solicitation process and to provide services under a
new contracl in the event that the Department selects it for a contract award.

On August 1, 2017, the Department canceled the prior procurement process. On February 20, 2018, the Departinent’s Office of
Federal Student Aid ("FSA") released information regarding a new contract procurement process. The contract solicitation proecss
is divided into two phases. Responses for Phase One are due on April 6, 2018. The contract solicitation requests responses from
interested vendors for nine components, including:

*  Component A: Enterprise-wide digital platform and related middlewarc

*+  Component B: Enterprise-wide contact center platform, customer relationship management (CRM), and related
middleware

«  Component C: Solulion 3.0 {core processing, related middleware, and rules engine)

*  Component D: Solution 2.0 {core processing, related middleware, and rules engine)

+  Component E: Solution 3.0 business process operations

« Component F: Solution 2.0 busincss process operations

«  Component G: Enterprise-wide data management platform

«  Component H: Enterprise-wide identity and access management (JAM)

+  Component I: Cybersecurily and data protection

The selicitation indicates Component C (Solution 3.0} is anticipated to be tailored for new customers and Component D (Solution
2.0 is anticipated to serve as the primary environment for FSA’s existing customers. After Solution 3.0 is deployed, FSA will
dctermine the best distribution of loans between Solution 2.0 and Solution 3.0. In addition, motc than onc business process
solution may be selected for Components E and F.

Vendors may provide a response [or an individual, multiple, or all components. The Company intends to respond to Phase One
of the solicitation.

The Department also has contracts with 31 not-for-profit ("NFP") entities to service student loans, although five NFP scrvicers
currently scrvice the volume allocated to these 31 entities. One NFP servicer exited the Federal Dircet Loan Program servicing
business in August 2016. The Company licenses its remote-~hosted servicing soflwarc to thrce of the five NTP servicers,

New loan volume was historically allocated by the Department among the four TIVAS based on certain performance metrics
established by the Departrment beginning in 2010. The Department currently allocates new loan volume among the TIVAS and
NFP servicers based on the following performance metrics:

»  Twomctrics measure the satisfaction among separate customer groups, including borrowers (35 percent) and Federal
Student Aid personnel who work with the servicers (5 percent).

+  ‘Three metrics measure the success of keeping borrowers in an on-time repayment status and helping borrowers avoid
default as reflected by the percentage of borrowers in current repayment status (30 percent), percentage of borrowers
more than 90 days but fewer than 271 days delinquent {15 percent), and percentage of borrowers over 270 days and
fewer than 361 days delinquent (15 percent). The loans are evaluated in 15 different loan portfolio stratifications to
account for differences in portlolios.






‘The Company's student loan servicing division uses proprietary systems to manage the servicing process. These systems provide
for automated compliance with most of the federal student loan regulations adopted under Title TV of the Higher Education Act
of 1965, as amended (the “Higher Education Act™).

The Company serviced FFELP loans on behalf of 28 third-party servicing customers as of December 31, 2017. The Company's
FFELP servicing customers include national and regional banks, credit unions, and various state and nonprofit secondary markets,
The majority of the Company's external FFELP loan servicing activities are performed under “life of loan™ contracts. Lifc of loan
contract servicing essentially provides that as long as the loan exists, the Company shall be the sole servicer of that loan; howevct,
the agreement may contain “deconversion” provisions where, for a fee, the lender may move the loan to another scrvicer,

The discontinuation of ncw FFELP loan originations in July 2010 has caused and will continue to cause FFELP servicing revenue
to decline as thesc loan portfolios are paid down. However, the Company believes there may be opportunities to service additional

FFELP loan portfolios from current EFELP participants as the program winds down.

Originating and servicing private education and consumer loans

The Loan Systems and Servicing operating segment conducts origination and servicing activities for private education and consumer
loans,

Private education loans are non-federal loans made to students or their families; as such, the loans are not issucd or guaranteed by
the federal government. These loans are used primarily to bridge the gap between the cost of higher cducation and the amount
funded through financial aid, federal loans, or the borrowers' personal resources. Although similar in terms of activitics and
functions as FFELP loan servicing (i.c., application processing, disbursement processing, payment processing, customer service,
statement distribution, and reporting), private education loan servicing activities are not required to comply with provisions of the
Higher Education Act and may be more customized to individual client requirements.

The Company has invested in modernizing key technologies and services o position its consumer loan servicing business for the
long-term, expanding scrvices to include personal loan products and other consumer installment assets. Improvements allow for
diversified produecis to be both originated and serviced with state-of-the-arl application and servicing platforms to drive growth
for the Company's client partners. Presenting a very wide market opporiunity of new cntrants and existing players, consumer
lending is a key growth area. In both back-up servicing and full servicing parlnerships, the Company is a valuable resource for
consumer lenders and asset holders as it allows for leveraged economies of scale, high compliance, and secure service to client
partners.

The Company serviced private education and consnmer loans on behalf of 27 third-party servicing customers as of December 31,
2017. In addition, the Company provides back-up servicing arrangements {o assist ninc cntities for more than 800,000 borrowers.
For a monthly fee, these arrangements require a 30 to 90 day notice {rom a triggering event to transfer the customer's servicing
volume to the Company's platform and becorning a tull servicing customer,

Providing student loan servicing software and other information technology products and services

The Loan Systems and Servicing operating scgment provides data center services and student loan servicing sofiware for servicing
private education and federal loans. These proprietary software systems are used internally by the Company and licensed to third-
party student loan holders and servicers. These software systems have been adapted so they can be offered as hosted servicing
software solations that can be used by third parties to service various types of student loans, including Federal Direct I.oan Program
and FFEL Program loans. The Company earns a monthly fee {rom its remote hosting custormers for each unique borrower on the
Company's platform, with a minimum monthly charge for most contracts. As of December 31, 2017, 2.8 million borrowers were
hosted on the Company's hosted servicing softwarc solution platforms,

Providing outsonrced services including call center, processing, ond marketing services

The Company provides business process outsourcing specializing in contact center management. The contact center solutions
and services include taking inbound calls, helping with outreach campaigns and sales, and intcracting with customers through
multi-channels.



Compelition

The Company's scalable servicing platform allows it lo provide compliant, efficicnt, and reliable service at a low cost, giving the
Company a cornpetitive advantage over others in the industry. The principal competitor for existing and prospective FFELP and
private education loan scrvicing business is Navient Corporation ("Navient"). Navientis the largest for-profit provider of servicing
functions, Tn contrast to its competitors, the Company has sepmented its privatc cducation loan servicing on a distinct platform,
created specifically to mect the needs of private education student loan borrowers, their families, the schools they attend, and the
lenders who serve them. This ensures access to specialized teams with a dedicated focus on servicing these borrowers.

With the elimination of new loan originations nnder the FFEL Program, four servicers, including the Company, were named by
the Department in 2009 as servicers of federally-owned loans. The three other servicers are Great Lakes (now owned by the
Company), FedLoan Servicing {Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Ageney ("PHEAA™)), and Navient, Tn addition, the
Department has contracts with 31 NUP entities to service student loans that are serviced by five prime NFP servicers. These NFP
entities were authorized in 2012 to begin servicing loans for existing borrower accounts. While previously these entities have only
serviced existing loans, beginning in the first quarter of 2015, they began to receive a portion of new borrower loan activity. The
Company currently licenses its hosted servicing software to 3 prime NFP servicers that represent 13 NFP organizations. PHEAA
is the only other TTVAS servicer offering a hosted Federal Direct Loan Program scrvicing solution to the NFP servicers.

The Company is one of the leaders in the development of servicing software for guaranty agencies, consumer loan programs, the
Federal Direct Loan Program, and FFELY student loans. Many student loan lenders and servicers utilize the Company's software
either directly or indirectly. The Company believes the investments it has made to scale its systems and to create a secure
infrastructure to support the Department's servicing volume and requirements increase its competitive advantage as a long-term
partner in the loan servicing market.

Tuition Payment Processing and Camipus Commerce

The Company's Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce operating segment provides products and services to help
students and families manage the payment of education costs at all levels (K-12 and higher education). It also provides innovative
education-focused technologies, services, and support solutions to help schools automate administrative processes and collect and
process commerce data. The Company also provides to K-12 schools professional development and educational instruction services
and provides payment technology and services for software platforms, businesses, and nonprofits beyond the K-12 and higher
education space.

The majority of this segment's customers are located in the United States; however, the Company has bepun providing its products
and services in Australia, New Zealand, and Southeast Asia, and currently helieves there arc opportunitics to increase its customer
base and revenues internationally.

Sce Part 11, Ttem 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Tuition Payment
Processing and Campus Commerce Operating Segment - Results of Operations" for a discussion of the seasonality of the business
in this operating segment.

K-12

In the K-12 market, the Company offers tuition management services, assistance with financial needs assessment and donor
managernent, school information systems, and professional development and education instruction services. The Company
provides services for nearly 11,500 K-12 schools and serves 2.2 million families representing 3.2 million students.

The Company is the market leader in actively managed ition payment plans and financial needs assessiment services. Tuition
management services include payment plan administration, incidental billing, accounts receivable management, and record
keeping. K-12 educational institutions contract with the Company to administer deferred payment plans that allow families to
make monthly payments generally over 6 to 12 months. The Company collects a fee from either the institution or the payer as an
administration fcc.

The Cormpany's financial needs assessment service helps K-12 schools evaluate and determine the amount of financial aid to
disburse to the families it serves, The Company's donor services allow schools to assess and deliver strategic fundraising solutions
using the latest technology.

RenWeb provides school information systems to help schools automnate administrative processes such as admissions, enrollment,
scheduling, student billing, attendance, and grade book management. RenWeb's information systems software is sold as a
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subscription service to schools. RenWeb also offers a streamlined, social, and fully integrated learning management system to
cnhance ¢lassroom instruction for both teachers and students. The comhbination of RenWeb’s school administration softwarc,
learning management system, and the Company’s tuition management and financial needs asscssment serviees has significantly
increascd the value of the Company’s offerings in this area, allowing the Company to deliver a comprehensive suite of solutions
to schools,

Under the brand FACTS Education Solutions, the Company provides customized professional development scrvices for teachers
and school leaders as well as instructional services for students expericneing academic challenges, These services provide
continuous advance learning and professional development while helping private schools identify and attain equitable participation
in federal education programs.

Higher Education

The Company offers two principal products to the higher education market: actively managed tuition payment plans, and campus
comunerce technologics and payment processing. The Company provides service for 970 colleges and universities worldwide and
serves 7 million students and families,

Higher cducation institutions contract with the Company to administer actively managed payment plans that allow the student and
family to make monthly payments on either a semester or annual basis. The Company colleets a fee from the student or family as
an administration fee.

The Company's suite of campus commerce solulions provides services that allow for families' electronic billing and payment of
campus charges. Campus commerce includes cashiering for face-to-face transactions, campus-wide commerce management, and
refunds management, among other activitics. The Company eamns revemue for e-billing, hosting and maintenance, credit card
processing fees, and e-paymenl iransaction fees, which are powered by the Company's secure payment processing systems.

The Company's campus commerce products are sold as a subscription service to colleges and universities. The systems process
payments through the appropriale channcls in the hanking or credit card networks to make deposits into the client's bank account.
The systems can be further deployed to other departments around campus as requested (e.g., application fees, alumni giving,
parking, events, etc.).

Non-education services

Under the brand PaymentiSpring, the Company has expanded its customer base to include both education and non-education
customers. PaymentSpring offers payment services including electronic transfer and credit card processing, reporting, billing and
invoicing, mabile and virtual terminal solutions, and specialized integrations to business software.

Competition

The Company is the largest provider of tuition management and financial needs assessment services o the private and faith-bascd
K-12 market in the United States. Competitors include financial institutions, iuition management providers, financial needs
assessment providers, accounting firms, and a myriad of soflware companics.

In the higher education market, the Company targets business offices at colleges and universities. [n this market, the priniary
competition is limited to only a few campus commerce and tuition payment providers, as well as solutions developed in-house by
colleges and univcersities.

The Company's principal competitive advantages are (i) the customer service it provides to instilutions and consumers, {11} the
technology provided with the Company's service, and (iii) the Company's ability to intcgrate its technology with the institution
clients and their third party service providers. The Company belicves its elients sclect products primarily based on technology
features, functionality, and the ability to integrate with other systems, but price and service also impact the selection process.

Communications

On December 31, 2015, the Company acquired the majority of the membership interests of ALLO. ALLO derives its revenue
primarily from the sale of telecommunication scrvices, including intermet, broadband, telephone, and television services, to business
and residential customers in Nebraska, and specializes in high-speed internet and broadband services available through iis all-
fiber network. ALLO currently serves the Scottsbluff, Gering, Bridgeport, North Platte, Ogailala, Alliance, and Lincoln
communities in Nebraska. ALLO began providing services in Lincoln, Nebraska in September 2016, as part of a multi-year project
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to pass substantially all commercial and residential properties in the community. [n the fourth quarter of 2017, ALLO announced
plans to expand its network to inake services available in Hastings, Nebraska and Fort Morgan, Colorado. This will expand total
households in ALLO’s current markets from 137,500 to over 152,000, InDecember 2017, the Fort Morgan cily council approved
a 40-year agreement with ALLO for ALLO to provide broadband service over a fiber network that the city will build and own,
and ALLO will lease and operate to provide services to subscribers. ALLO plans to continue expansion to additional communities
in Ncbraska and Colorado over the next several years.

Internet, broadbhand, and television services

Internet, broadband, and television services include data and video products and scrvices to residential and business subscribers.
ALLO data services provide bhigh-speed internet access over ALLQ's all-fiber network at various symmeilrical speeds up to 1
gigabit per second for residential customers, depending on the pature of the network facilities that arg available, the level of serviee
selected, and the geographic market availability. ALLO also offers a variety of data connectivity services for businesses, including
Ethernet services capable of multiple connections over ALLO's fiber-based networks. ALLO's Internet Protocol Television Video
("TPTV") services range from limited basic service to advanced television, which includes several plaus, each with bundreds of
local, national, and music channels, including premiwm and pay-per-view channels, as well as video on demand service. Subscribers
may also subscribeto ALLO's advanced videa services, which consistofhigh definition television, digital videorecorders (“DVR™),
and/or a whole home DVR. ALLQ's whole home DVR gives customers the ability to watch recorded shows on any tclevision in
the house, record multiple shows at one time, and utilize an intuitive on-screen guide and user interface.

ALLQ expects that internet and broadband services will continue to increase as a more significant component of its overall services,
and offset the anticipated decline in tradifional residential telephone and television services.

Telephone services

Local calling services include a full suite of telephone services, includimg basic services, primary rate interface ("PRI"), and session
initiation protocal {"SIP"). ALLO'sservice plansinclude options for voicemail and other enhanced custom calling features including
hunting, caller ID, call forwarding, and call waiting, among others. Services are charged at a fixed monthly rate or can be bundled
with selected services at a discounted rate. ALLO provides a hosted private branch exchange ("PBX") package, which utilizes a
soft switch and allows the customer the flexibility of utilizing new telephone technology and features without investing in a new
telephone system. The package bundles local service, calling features, and internet protocol (“IP™) business telephones.

Long-distance services include traditional domestic and intemational long distance, which enables customers to make calls that
terminate outside their local calling area. These services also include toli-free calls and conference calling. ALLO offers a variety

of long distance plans, including unlimited flat-rate calling plans, and offers a combination of subscription and usage fees.

Sules and marketing

The key components of ALLO's overall marketing strategy include:

»  Promoting the advantages of an all-fiber network connected directly to homes and businesses capable of delivering
synchronous intemet speeds of over one gigabit per second

+  Building complete fiber communities by passing all homes and businesses within its network

+  QOrganizing sales and marketing activities around consumcr, entcrprisc, and carrier customers

»  Positioning ALLO as a single point of contact for customers’ communications needs

+  Providing customers with a broad array of internet, broadband, television, and telephone services and bundling these
services whencver possible

+  Providing excellent local customer service, including 24/7/365 customer support to coordinate installation of new services,
repair, and maintenance functions

»  Developing and delivering new services to mcet cvolving customer needs and market demands

»  Utilizing proven modem technology to deliver services

ALLO currently offers services through direct marketing, call centers, its website, communication centers, and commissioned
sales representatives. ALLO markets its services both individually and as bundled services, including its triple-play offering of
internet, television, and telephone services. By bundling service offerings, ALLO is able to offer and scll a more complete and
competitive package ol services, which simultaneously increases its margin per customer and adlds value for the consumer. ALLO
also believes that bundling leads to increased custorer loyalty and retention.
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Netwark architecture and technology

ALLO has made significant investments in its technologically advanced telecommunications networks, As a result, ALLQ is able
to deliver high-quality, reliable internet, broadband, telephone, and television services through fiber optics, ALLO's wide-ranging
network and extensive use of fiber provide an easy reach into existing and new areas. By bringing the fiber network to the customer
premises, ALLO can increase its service offerings, quality, and bandwidih services, ALLO's cxisting fiber network enables it to
efficiently respond and adapt to changes in technology and is capable of supporting the rising customer demand for bandwidth in
order to support the growing number of intemnel devices in the home, ALLO's all-fiber network enhances its operating efficiencies
by facilitating new network and technology choices that provide for lower costs to operate. ALLO's networks are supported by
an advanced digital telephone switch and IPTV scrviee platform. The digital switch provides all local telephone customers with
access to a full suite of telecommunication products, custom calling features, and value-added services. ALLO's fiber network
utilizes fiber-to-the-premisc (“T'TTP”) nctworks to offer bundled residential and commercial services. ALLO leverages its high
definition IPTV headend equipment to distribute content across its network, allowing it to provide a sharp video picture and to
better manage costs of future channel additions and upgrades. ALLO's network provides substantially all of its marketable homes
and busincsses with bandwidth of 1 gigabit per second or more.

Growth sirategy

As discussed previously, ALLO plans to increase its customer basc with its superior all-fiber network by increasing its share in
existing markets and entering additional markets currently scrved by carricrs using traditional copper and coaxial cable in their
telecommunications networks. Although the initial capital expenditures for most of these expansion efforts are expected to be
significant, ALLO believes thal its service delivery mode! will continue to gencrate customer demand sufficient to provide attractive
returns on the capital investment. In addition, ALLO is focused on inereasing revenues per customer by capitalizing ou increased
demand for bandwidih by commercial and residential customers,

Competition

Telecommunications businesscs arc highly competitive and continue to face increased competition as a result of technology changes
and indusiry legislalive and regulatory developments. ALLO faces actual or potential competition from many existing and emerging
companies, including incumbent and competitive local telephone companies, long distance carriers and resellers, wireless
companies, internel service providers ("ISPs"), satellite companies, cable television companies, and in some cases by new forms
of providers who arc ahle to offer competitive services through software applications, requiring a comparatively small initial
investment. Due lo consolidation and strategic alliances within the industry, ALLO cannot predict the number of competitors it
will face at any given time, The wireless business has expanded significantly, causing many residential subscribers of traditional
telephone services to discontinue those services and rely exclusively on wireless service. Consumers are finding individual
television shows of intcrest to thern through the internet and are watching content that is downloaded to their computers. Some
providers, including tclevision and cable television content owners, have initlated what are referred to as “over-the-top™ services
that deliver video content to televisions and computers over the internet. Over-the-top services can inclnde episodes of highly-
rated television series in their current broadcast seasons. They also can include content that is related to broadeast or sports content
that ALLO carries, but that is distinct and may be available only through the alternative source. Finally, the transition to digital
broadcast television has allowed many consumers to obtain high definition local broadeast television signals {including many
uetwork affiliates) over-the-air, using a simple antenna. Consumcts can pursuc cach of these options without foregoing any of the
other options. The incnmbent telephone carricrs in the markets ALLO serves enjoy certain business advantages, including size,
financial resources, favorable regulatory position, a more diverse product mix, brand recognition, and connection to virtually all
of ALLOY's customers and potential customers. The largest cable operators also enjoy certain business advantages, inclnding size,
financial resources, ownership of or superior access to desirable programming and other content, a more diverse product mix,
brand recognition, and first-in-the-field advantages with a customer base that generates positive cash flow for its operations.
ALLO's competitors continue to add features and adopt aggressive pricing and packaging for scrvices comparable to the services
ALLO offers. Their success in selling some services competitive with ALLO's can lead to revenue crosion in other related arcas,
ALLO faces intense competition in its markets for long distance, internct access, and other ancillary services that are important
to ALLO's business and to its prowth strategy.
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Assef Generafion and Management

The Assct Gieneration and Management operating segment includes the acquisition, management, and ownership of the Company's
loan asscts, primarily its federally insured student loan portfolio. As of December 31, 2017, the Company's loan portfolio was
$21.8 billion. The Company generates a substantial portion of its earnings from the spread, referred to as the Company's loan
spread, between the yield it receives on its loan portfolio and the associated costs to finance such portfolio. See Part II, ltem 7,
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Asset Generation and Management
Operating Segment - Results of Operations - Loan Spread Analysis,” for further details rclated 1o the loan spread. The student
loan assets are held in a scrics of cducation lending subsidiarics and associated sccuritization trusts designed specifically for this
purposc. In addition to the loan spread carned on its portfolio, all costs and activity associated with managing the portfolio, such
as servicing of the assets and debt maintenance, are included in this segment,

Loans consist of federally insured student loans, private educatiou loans, and consumer loans. Federally insured student loans
were originated under the FFEL Program. The Company's portfolio of federally insured student loans is subject to minimal credit
risk, as these loans are guaranieed by the Department at levels ranging from 97 percent to 100 percent. Substantially all of the
Company's loan portfolio (98.8 percent as of Decernber 31,2017) is federally insured. The Company's portfolio of private cducation
loans is subject to credit risk similar to other consumer loan assets. In 2017, the Company began to purchase consumer loans,

The Higher Education Act regulates every aspect of the federally insured student loan program, including certain communications
with borrowers, loan originations, and default aversion. Failure to service a student loan properly could jeopardize the guarantee
on federal student loans. In lhe case of death, disability, or bankruptcy of the borrower, the guaraniee covers 100 percent of the
loan's principal and accrued inlerest.

FFELP loans are guaranteed by state agencies or nonprofit companies designated as guarantors, with the Department providing
reinsurance to the guarantor, Guarantors are responsible for performing certain functions necessary to ensure the program's
soundness and accountability. Generally, the gnarantor is responsible for ensuring that loans are serviced in compliance with the
requirements of the Higher Education Act. Wheu a borrower defaults on a FFELP loan, the Company submits a claim to the
guarantor, who provides reimbursements of principal and accrued interest, subject to the applicable risk share percentage.

QOricination and acquisition

The Recounciliation Act of 2010 discontinued originations of new FFELP loans, effective July 1, 2010, However, the Company
believes there will be ongoing apporlunities to continue to purchase FFELP loan portfolios from current FFELP participants looking
to adjnst their FFELP businesses, For cxample, from July 1, 2010 through December 31, 2017, the Company purchased a total
of $21.4 billion of FFELP studcnt loans from various third partics. However, since all FFELP loans will eventually run off, a key
objective of the Company is to reposition the Company for the post- FFELP environment. As such, the Company is actively
cxpanding its private education and consurner loan portfolios. The Company's competition for the purchase of loan portfolios and
residuals includes large banks, hedge funds, and other student loan finance companies.

Interest rate risk management

Since the Company gencrales a significant portion of its earnings from its loan sprecad, the interest rate sensitivity of the Company's
balancce sheet is very important to its operations. The current and future interest rate environment can and will affect the Company's
interest income and net income. The effects on the Company's results of operations as a result of the changing interest rate
environments are further outlined in Part IT, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fmancial Condition and Results
of Operations - Asset Generation and Management Operatiug Segment - Results of Operations - Loan Spread Analysis" and Part
11, Item 7A, “Quantitative and Qnalitative Disclosures About Market Risk - Interest Rate Risk.”

Corporate and Other Activities

Whitetail Rock Capital Management, LLC ("WRCM")

As of December 31, 2017, WRCM, the Company's SEC-registered investment advisor subsidiary, had $874.3 million in asset-
backed security assets, consisting primarily of student loan asset-backed securities, under management for third-party customers.
WRCM earns annval management fees of 25 basis points for assets under management and up to 50 percent of the gains from the
sale of securities or securities being called prior to the full contractual maturity for which it provides advisory services. During
2017, WRCM traded almost §1.3 billion for their customers, generating $10.1 million in performance fees. Assuming assets under
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management remain at their current levels, management fees should be relatively stable in future years. However, the Company
currently anticipates that opportunities for WRCM to earn performance fees could be limited in future years.

Real estate and other investmenis

The Company makes invesiments to further diversify itself both within and outside of its historical core education-related
businesses, including investments in real estate and start-up ventures. Recent real estate investments have been focnsed on the
development of commereial properties in the Midwest, and particularly in Lincoln, Nebraska, where the Company is headquartered.
These investments include projects for the development of properties in Lincoln’s east downtown Telegraph District, where a new
facility for the Company’s student loan servicing operations is located, and a building in Lincoln’s Haymarket District that is the
ncw headquarters of Hudl, an online video analysis and coaching tools software company for athletes of all levels, The Company
is also a tenant at Hudl's headquarters. As of December 31, 2017, the lotal amount of teal estate investrnents by the Company was
$49.5 million. In addition, the Company has a total equity investment in Hud] of $51.8 million. David S, Graff, 2 member of the
Company’s board of dircctors, is a co-founder, the chicf cxeeutive officer, and a director of TTudl.

Regulation and Supervision

The Company's operating segments and industry partners are heavily regulated by federal and state govemment regulatory agencies.
The following provides a summary ofthe more significant existing and proposed legislation and regulations affecting the Company.
A failure to comply with these laws and regulations could subject the Company to substantial fines, penalties, and remedial and
other costs, restrictions on business, and the loss of business. Regulations and supervision can change rapidly, and changes could
alter the manner in which the Company operates and increase the Company’s operating expenses as new or additional regulatory
compliance requirements are addressed.

Loan Systems and Servicing

The Company's Loan Systems and Servicing operating segment, which services Federal Direct Loan Program, FFELP, and private
education and consumer loans, is subject Lo federal and state consumer proteclion, privacy, and related laws and regulations, Some
of the more significant federal laws and regulations include:

+  The Higher Education Act, which establishes [inancial responsibilily and administrative capability that govern all third-party
servicers of federally insured student loans

*  The Telephone Consumer Protection Act (“TCPA”), which govems communication methods that may be used to contact
customers

*  The Truth-In-Lending Act and Regulation Z, which governs disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers

*  The Fair Credit Reporting Act and Regulation V, which governs the use and provision of information to consumer reporting
agencies

«  The Equal Credit Opportunity Act and Regulation B, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, creed, or other
prohibited factors in extending credit

*  The Servicemembers Civil Relicf Act (“SCRA™), which applies to all debts incurred prior to commencement of active military
service and limits the amount of interest, including certain fees or charges that are related to the obligation or liability

*  The Electronic TFunds Transfer Act (“EFTA”) and Regulation E, which protects individual consumers engaged in electronic
fund transfers (“EFTs”)

*  The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (“GLBA”) and Regulation P, which governs a financial institution’s treatment of nonpublic
personal informatiou about consumers and requires that an institation, under certain circumstanccs, notify consumers about
its privacy policies and practices

«  Laws prohibiting unfair, deceptive, or abusive acts or practices

*  Various laws, regulations, and standards that govern government contractors

As a student loan servicer for the federal government and for financial institutions, including the Company’s FFELP student loan
portiolio, the Company is subject to the Higher Education Act and related laws, rules, regulations, and policies. The Higher
Education Act regulates every aspect of the federally insured student loan program. The Company has desipned its servicing
operations to comply with the Higher Education Act, and it regularly monitors the Company's opcrations to maintain compliance.

Under the TCPA, plaintiffs may seek actual monetary loss or damages ol $500 per violation, whichever is greater, and courts may
treble the damage award for willful or knowing violations. In addition, TCPA lawsuits have asserted putative elass action claims.
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The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act {the “Dodd-Frank Act™) cstablished the Consumer Financial
Protection Bureau (“CFPB™), which has broad authority to regulate a wide rapge of consumer financial products and services. The
Company's student loan servicing business is subject to CFPB oversight authority.

In 2015, the CFPB conducted a pnblic inquiry into student loan servicing practices throughout the industry and issucd a report
discussing public comments submitted in response to the inquiry, and suggesting a framework to improve borrower outcomes and
rednce defaults, including the creation of consistent, industry-wide standards for the entire servicing market.

The CFPB has authority to draft new regulations implementing federal consumer financial protection laws, to enforce those laws
andregulations, and to conduct examinations of'the Company's operations to detcrming compliance, The CFPB s aathority includes
the ability to assess financial penalties and fines and provide for restitution to consumers if it determines there have been violations
of consumer financial protection laws. The CFPB also provides consumer financial education, tracks consumcr complaints,
requests data from industry participants, and promotes the availability of financial services to underserved consumers and
communitics. The CFPB has authorily to prevent unfair, deceptive, or abusive acts or practices and to ensure that all consumers
have access to fair, transparent, and competitive markets for consumer financial products and services. The CFPB's scrutiny of
financial services has impacted participants’ approach to their services, including how the Company interacts with consumers.

In addition, where a company has violated Title X of the Dodd-Frank Act or CHPB regulations implemented under Title X of the
Dodd-Frank Act, the Dodd-Frank Act empowers state attorneys general and state regulators to bring civil actions to remedy
violations of state law. Most states also havc statutes that prohibit unfair and deceptive practices. To the extent states enact
requirements that differ from federal standards or state officials and courts adopt interpretations of federal consumer laws that
differ from those adopted by the CFPB under the Dodd-TFrank Act, the Company's ability to oiler the same products and services
to consumers nationwide may be limited.

As a third-party service provider to financial institutions, the Company is subject to periodic examination by the Federal Financial
Institutions Examination Council {“"FFIEC"). FFIEC is a formal interagency body of the U.5. government empowered to prescribe
uniform principles, standards, and report forms for the federal examination of financial institutions by the Federal Reserve Banks,
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"), and the CFPB, and to make recommendations to promote uniformity in the
supervision of financial institutions.

Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce

The Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce operating scgment provides tuition management services and school
information software for K-12 schools and tuition management scrvices and campus commerce solntions for higher education
institutions. The Company also provides payments technologics and payment services for software platforms, businesses, and
nonprofits beyond the K-12 and higher education space. As a service provider that takes payment instructions from institutions
and their constituents and sends them to bank partuers, the Company is directly or indirectly subjcct to a varicty of federal and
state laws and regulations. The Company's contracts with clients and bank partners require the Company to comply with these
laws and regulations.

The Company's payment processing services are subject to the EFTA and Regulation E, which govern automatic deposits to and
withdrawals from deposit accounts and customers’ rights and liabilities arising from the nse of debit cards and certain other
electronic banking services. The Company assists bank partners with fulfilling their compliance obligations pursuant to these
requirements.

The Company's payment processing services are also subject to the National Automated Clearing House Association (“NACHA™)
requirements, which include operating rules and sound risk management procedures to govern the use of the Automated Clearing
House ("ACH") Network. These rules are used to ensure that the ACH Network is efficient, reliable, and secure for its members,
Beeausc the ACH Network uscs a batch process, the iinportance of proper submissions by NACHA members is magnified.

The Company is also impacted by laws and regulations that affcct the bankcard industry. The Company is registered with Visa,
Mastercard, American Express, and the Discover Network as a scrvice provider and is subject to their respective rules.

The Company's higher education institution clients are subject to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA™),
which protects the privacy of student education records. The Company's higher education institution clients disclose certain non-
directory information concerning their students to the Company, including contact information, student identification numbers,
and the amount of students’ credit balances pursuant to one or more exceptions under FERPA. Additionally, as the Company is
indirectly subject to FERDPA, it may not permit the transfer of any personally identifiable information to another party other than
in a manner in which an educational institution may properly disclose it. While the Company believes that it has adequate policies
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and procedures in place to safeguard the privacy of such information, a breach of this prohibition could result in a five-year
suspension of the Company's access to the related client’s records. The Company may also be subject to similar state laws and
regulations that restrict higher education institutions from disclosing certain personally identifiable student inforination.

Sorne of the Company's K-12 and higher cducation ipstitution clients choose to charge convenience fees to students, parents, or
olher payers who makc online payments using a credit or debit card. Laws and regulations related to such fees vary from state to
state and ccrtain states have laws that to varying degrees prohibit the imposition of a surcharge on a cardholder who elects to use
a credit or debit card in lieu of cash, check, or other means.

Thc Company's contracts with higher education institution clients also require the Company to comply with repulations promulgated
by the Department regarding the handling of student financial aid funds received by institutions on behalf of their students under
Title TV of the Higher Education Act. On October 30, 2015, the Department amended cash management and other regulations to
ensure students have convenient access to their Title I'V funds, do not incur unrcasonahle fees, and arce not led to believe they must
opcn a financial account to receive such funds.

Communications

The telecommunications business is subject to extensive federal, state, and local regulation. Under the Telecommunications Act
of 1996 (“Telecommmunications Act™), federal and state regulators share responsibility for implementing and enforcing statutes
and regulations designed to encourage competition and to preserve and advance widely available, quality telephone service at
affordable prices.

Atthe federal level, the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") generally exercises jurisdiction over facilities and services
oflocal exchange carriers to the extent they are used to provide, originate, or terminate intersiate or international communications.
The FCC has the authority to condition, modify, cancel, terminate, or revoke operating authority for failure to comply with applicable
federal laws or FCC rules, regulations, and policies.

State regulatory commissions generally exercise jurisdiction over carriers’ facililies and services lo the exient they are used o
provide, originate, or terminate intrastate communications. In addition, municipalities and other local governmeni agencies regulate
the public rights-of-way necessary to install and operate networks.

The Communications Act of 1934 ("Commumecalions Act") requires, among other things, that telecommunications carriers oller
services at just and reasonable rates and on non-discriminatory terms and conditions. The 1996 amendments to the Comminications
Act, contained in the Telecommunications Act, dramatically changed, and likely will continuc to change, the landscape of the
telecommunications industry. The central aim of the Telecommunications Act is to open local telecommunications markets to
competition while enhancing universal service. The Telecemmunications Acl imposcs a numnber of interconnection and other
requirements on all local communications providers, All telecommunications carricrs have a duty to intcrconneet dircetly or
indirectly with the facilities and eqnipment of other telecommunications carricrs,

The State of Nebraska Public Scrvices Commission dictates scrvice requireinents and fees that have required ALLO to obtain
franchiscs from each incorporated municipality in which it operates. ALLO is also required to obtain permits for street opening
and construction, or for operating franchises to install and expand fiber optic facilities. These permits or other licenses or agreements
typically require the payment of fees.

ALLO's aerial and underground construction operations are subject to extensive laws and regulations relating to the maintenance
of safe conditions in the workplace. ALLO conld also be subject to potential liabilitics in the event it causcs a release of hazardous
substances or other environmental damage resulting from underground objects it encounters.

Internet services

The provision of internet access services is not significantly regulated by either the FCC or the state commissions. However, the
FCC has in recent years taken sonie steps toward the imposition of some controls on the provision of internet access, and has
asserted that it has jurisdictional authority in some areas related to the promotion of an open internet. The extent of the FCC’s
Jjurisdiction with respect to the internet has not been resolved, and the outlcome could lead to increased costs for ALLO in connection
with its provision of internet services, and could affect ALLO's ability to effectively compete.

As the internet has matured, it has becoine the subject of increasing regulaiory interest. Congress and federal regulalors have
adopted a wide range of measures directly or potentially affecting internei use, including, for example, consumer privacy, copyright
protections, defamation liability, taxation, obscenity, and unsolicited commercial email. ALLO's miernet services are subject to
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the Communications Assistance for Law linforcement Act ("CALEA™) requirements regarding law enforcement surveillance.
Content owners are now seeking additional legal mechanisms to combat copyright infringement over the inlernet. Pending and
future legislation in this area could adverscly afTect ALLO's operations as an ISP and relationship with internet customers.
Additionally, th¢ FCC and Congress are considering subjecting internet access scrvices to the Universal Service funding
requirements. Thesc funding requirements could impose significant new costs on ALLO's high-speed internct scrvice. Also, the
FCC and some state regulatory commissions direct certain subsidies to telephone companics deploying broadband to areas deemed
to be “unserved” or “underserved.” State and local governmental organizations have also adopled internet-related regulations.
These various governmental jurisdictions are also considering additional regulations in these and other areas, such as privacy,
pricing, service and product quality, and taxation. The adoption of new internet regulations or the adaptation of existing laws to
the intcrnet could adversely affect ALLO's business.

On June 12, 2015, the FCC Net Neutrality Order beeame effective. On December 14, 2017, the FCC voted to repeal the Open
Internet Order and effectively the net neutrality rules. The previous rules prohibited TSPs from engaging in blocking, throttling,
and paid prioritization, and transparency rules compelling the disclosure of network management policies were enhanced. The
FCC was also granted the authority under the tules to hear complaints and take enforcement action if it determined that the
interconnection activities of 1SPs were not just and reasonable, or if TSPs failed to meet general obligations not to harm consumers
orwhat are refcrred to as edge providers. The final version of the net neutrality repeal order restores the Federal Trade Commission's
jurisdiction over broadband internet access services. The uncertainty around how the Federal Trade Commission will respond
and challenges to the FCC repeal could limit ALLO’s ability to efficiently manage internct service and respond to operational and
competitive challenges.

Althouph the FCC approved the repeal of Net Neutrality regulations, ALLO’s views on the consumer protection aspect of Net
Neutrality remain intact. ALLO will continue to treat internet speeds and access as they were under Net Neutrality regulations.

Television services

Federal regulations currently restrict the prices that cable systems charge for the minimum level of television programiming service,
referred to as “basic service,” and associated equipment. All other television service offerings are now universally cxempt from
raleregulation. Although basic service rate regulation operatcs pursuant to a federal formula, local governments, commonly referred
lo as local franchising authoritics, are primarily responsible for administering this regulation. The majority of ALLO's local
franchising authorities have never been certified to regulate basic service cable rates (and ordet rate reductions and refunds), but
they generally retain the right to do so (subject to potential regulalory limitations under state franchising laws), except in those
specific communities facing “effective competition,” as defined under federal law. There have been frequent calls to impose
expanded rate regulation on the cable industry. As a result of rapidly inercasing cable programming costs, it is possible that Congress
may adopt new constraints on the retail pricing or packaging of cable programming. Federal rate regulations currently include
certain markcting restrictions that could affect ALLO's pricing and packaging of service tiers and equipment. As ALLO altempts
to respond to a changing marketplace with compctitive pricing practices, it may face regulations that impede its ability to compete.

IPTV operations require state or local franchise or other anthorization in order to provide cable service to customers, ALLO is
subject to regulation under a Communications Act framework that addresses such issues as the use of local streets and rights of
way; the carriage of public, educational, and governmental channels; the provision of channcl space for leased commercial access,
the amount and payment of franchise fecs; consumer protection; and similar issues. In addition, fedcral laws and FCC regulations
place limits on the common ownership of cable systems and compcting multichannel television distribution systems, and on the
common owncrship of cable systems and local telephone systems in the same geographic area. The FCC has recently expanded
its oversight and regulation of cable television-related matters. Federal law and regulations also affect numercus issnes related to
television programming and other content. Under federal law, certain local television broadcast stations (both commercial and
non-commercial) can elect, every three years, to take advantage of rules that require a cablc operator to distribute the station’s
content to the cable system’s customers without charge, or to forego this “must-carry” obligation and to negotiate for carriage on
an arm’s length contractual basis, which typically involves the payment of a fee by the cable operator, and sometimes involves
other consideration as well. The current three-year cycle began on January 1, 2018. ALILO has negotiatcd agreements with the
local television broadcast stations that would have been eligible for “must carry” treatment in each of its current markets, The
contractual relationships between cable operators and most providers of content who are not television broadcast stations generally
are not subject to FCC oversight or other regulation.

The Communications Act requires most utilities owning utility poles to provide access to poles and conduits, and subjects the rates
charged for this acccss to either federal or state regulation. In 2011, the FCC amended its existing pole attachment rules to promote
broadband deployment. The 2011 order allows for new penalties in certain cases involving unauthorized attachments, but generally
strengthens the ahility to access investor-owned utility poles on reasonable rates, terms, and conditions.
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ALLO's IPTV systcms are subject to a federal copyright compulsory license covering carriage of television and radio broadcast
signals. The possiblc modification or elimination of this compulsory copyright license is the subjecl of continuing legislative
proposals and administrative review and could adversely affect ALLO's ability to obtain desired broadcast programming, Copyright
clearances for non-broadeast programming scrvices are arranged through private negotiations. IPTV operators also must obtain
music rights for locally criginated programming and advertising from the major music performing rights organizations, These
licensing fees have been the source of litigation in the past, and license fee disputcs may arise in the fnture.

Telephone services

ALLO offers voice communications scrvices over a broadband network, The FCC has ruled that competitive telephone companies
are entitled to interconnect with incumbent providers of traditional tclccommunications services, which ensures that services can
compete in the market. The FCC has also declared that certain scrvices are not subject to traditional state public utility regulation.
The full extent of the FCC preecmption of state and local regulation of services is not yet clcar.

Assef Generation and Management

The Dodd-Frank Act provides the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the "CFTC") and the Securitics and Exchange
Commission (the "SEC") with substantial authority to regulate over-the-counter derivative transactions, and includes provisions
that require derivative transactions to be cxccuted through an exchange or central clearinghouse. On December 24, 2016, new
risk retention rulcs went into effect that require issuers of asset-backed securitics or persons who organize and initiate asset-backed
securilics transactiens to retain a percentage of the underlying assets’ credit risk. The higher retention requircments could decrease
the leverage the Company obtains in a sceuritization and therefore potentially decrease the Company's rcturn on equity from
securitization transactions. These rules also expand disclosure and reporting requirements for cach tranche of asset-backed
securitics, including new loan-level data requirements, and expand disclosure requirements relating to the representations,
warrantics, and enforcement mechanisms available to investors,

Corporate

Grovernmental bodies in the United States and abroad have adopted, or are considering ihe adoption of, laws and regulations
restricting the transter and requiring the safeguarding of nonpublic personal information. For cxample, in the United States, the
Company and its financial institution clients are, respectively, subject to the Federal Trade Commission’s and the federal banking
regulators’ privacy and inlormation safeguarding requirements under the GLBA. The GLBA and Regulation P govern a financial
institution’s treatment of nonpublic personal information about consumers and requirc that an institution, under certain
circumstances, notify consumners about its privacy policies and practices. With certain exceptions, the GLBA prohibits a financial
institution from disclosing a consurner’s nonpublic persnnal information to a nonaffiliated third party unless the institution satisfies
various notice requirements and the consumer does not clect to prevent, or “opt out of,” the disclosure. The GLBA also imposes
specific requirements rcgarding the disclosure of customer account numbers and the reusc and redisclosnre of information a
financial institution provides to a third party. Additionally, the Buropean Union ("EU") has adopted a General Data Protection
Regulation ("GDPR"), which comes into effect in May 2018. The GDPR imposcs significant new requirements on businesscs
that collect and process personal data of individuals residing in the EU, and providcs for significant fines and other penaltics for
non-compliance, While the Company's operations are subject to certain provisions of these privacy laws, the Company has limited
use of consumer information sclely to providing services to other businesses and financial institutions. The Company limits sharing
of nonpublic personal information (o that necessary to complete transactions on behalf of the consumer and to that permitted by
federal and state laws.

Intellectual Property

The Company owns numerous trademarks and scrvice marks (“Marks™) to identify its various products and services, As of
December 31,2017, the Company had 52 registered Marks, The Company activcly asserts its rights to these Marks when it believes
infringement may exist. The Company belicves its Marks have developed and continue to develop strong brand-name recognition
in the industry and the consnmer marketplace. Each of the Marks has, upon registration, an indefinite duration so long as the
Company continues to use the Mark on or in connection with such goods or services as the Mark identifies. In order to protect the
indetinite duration, the Company makes filings to continue registration of the Marks. The Company owns one patent application
that has been published, but has not yet been issued, and has also actively asserted its riphts thercunder in situations where the
Company believes its claims may be infringed upon. The Company owns many copyright protected works, including its various
computer system codes and displays, websites, and marketing inaterials, The Company also has trade secret rights to many ol its
processes and strategies and its software product designs. The Company's software products are protected by both registered and
commaon law copyrights, as well as strict confidentiality and ownership provisions placed in license agreements, which restrict
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the ability to copy, distribute, or improperly disclose the softwarc products. The Company also has adopted internal procedures
designed to protect the Company's intellectual property.

The Company seeks federal and/or state protection of intellectual property when deemed appropriale, including patent, trademark/
scrvice mark, and copyright. The decision whether to seek such protection may depend on the perecived value of the intellectual
property, the likelihood of securing protection, the cost of securing and maintaining that protcction, and the potential for
infiingement, The Company's cmployccs are trained in the fundamentals of intellectual property, intellectual property prolection,
and infringement issucs, The Company's cmployces are also required to sign agreements requiring, among other things,
confidentiality of trade secrets, assignment of inventions, and non-solicitation of other employees post-termination, Consultants,
suppliers, and other business partners are also required to sign nondisclosure agreements to protect the Company's proprietary
rights.

Employees

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had approximatcly 4,300 employees. On February 7, 2018, the Company acquired Great
Lakes, which has approximately 1,800 employees, None of the Company's employees are covered by collective bargaining
agreements. The Company is not involved in any material disputes with any of its cmployees, and the Company believes that
rclations with i1s employees are good.

Available Information

Copies of the Company's annual reports on Form 10-K, quarlerly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to such reporis are available on the Company's webgite free of charpe as soon as reasonably practicable after such
reports are {iled with or furnished to the SEC. Investors and other interested parties can access these reports and the Company's
proxy statements al htlp://www.nelnetinvestors.com. The Company routinely posts important information for investors on its
website.

The Company has adopted a Code of Elhics and Conduct that applies to directors, officers, and employecs, including the Company's
principal executive officer and its principal financial and accounting officer, and has posted such Code of Ethics and Conduct on
its website. Amendments to and waivers granted wilh respect to the Company's Code of Ethics and Conduct relating to ils executive
officers and directors, which are required to be disclosed pursuant to applicable securities laws and stock exchange rules and
regulations, will also be posted on its website. The Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines, Audit Committee Charter,
Compensation Committee Charter, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter, Risk and Finance Committec
Charter, and Compliance Commitice Charter are also posted on its website.

Information on the Company's website is not incorporated by reference into this report and should not be considered part of this
report.

ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS

We operate our businesses in a highly compctitive and regulated environment. We are subject to risks including, but not limited
to, strategic, market, liquidity, credit, regulatory, technology, operational, security, and other business risks such as reputation
damage related to negative publicity and dependencies on key personnel, customers, vendors, and systems. This section highlights
specific risks that could affect us. Although this section attempts to highlight key risk factors, other risks may emerge at any time
and we cannot predict all risks or estimate the extent to which they may affcct our financial performance. These risk factors should
be read in conjunction with the other information included in this report.

Loan Portfolio

Our loan portfolio is subject 1o certain risks related to interest rates, our ability to manage the risks velated 1o inferest rates,
prepayment, and credit risk, each of which could reduce the expected cash flows and earnings on our portfolio.

Interest rate risk - basis and rvepricing risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk in the form of basis risk and repricing risk because the interest rate characteristics of our loan
assets do not always match the inlerest rate characteristics of the funding for those assets.

We fund the majority of our FFELP student loan assets with onc-month or three-month LIBOR indexed floating rate securities.
In addition, the interest rates on some of our debt are set via a “dutch auction.” Meanwhile, the interest earned on our FFELP
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student loan asscts is indexed to one-month 1.IBOR, three-month commercial paper, and Treasury bill rates. The diflcrent intercst
rate characteristics of our loan assets and our liabilities funding these asscts result in basis risk.  We also face repricing risk duc
to the timing of the interest rate resets on our liabilities, which may occur as infrequently as once a quarter, in contrast to the liming
of the interest rate rescts on our assets, which generally occur daily. In a declining interest rate environment, this may cause our
student loan spread to compress, while in a rising interest rate environment, it may cause the spread to increase.

As of December 31, 2017, we had $20.0 billion, $1.1 billion, and $0.6 billion of FFELP loans indexed to the one-month LIBOR,
three-month commercial paper, and three-month Treasury bill rate, respectively, all of which reset daily, and $11.7 billion of debt
indexed Lo three-month LIBOR, which resets quarterly, and $8.6 billion of debt indexed to one-month LIBOR, which rcscts monthly.
Whilc these indices are all short term in nature with rate movements that are highly correlated over a longer period of time, there
have been points in recent history related to the U.S. and Curopean debt crisis that have caused volatility to be high and correlation
1o be reduced. There can be no assurance that the indices’ historically high level of correlation will not be disrupted in the future
due to capital market dislocations or other facturs not within our control. In such circumstances, our eamings could be adversely
afluctled, possibly to a maternal extent.

We have entered into basis swaps to hedge our basis and repricing risk. Fur these derivatives, we receive three-month LIBOR set
discretely in advance and pay onc-month LTIBOR plus or minus a spread as defined in the agreements (the "1:3 Basis Swaps™).

Interest rate risk - losy of floor income

FFELP loans originated prior to April 1, 2006 generally earn interest at the higher of the borrower rate, which is fixed over a period
of time, or a floating rate based on the Special Allowance Payments ("SAP") formula set by the Department. The SAP rate is
based on an applicablc index plus a fixed spread that depends on loan type, origination date, and repayment slatus, We gencrally
finance our student loan portfolio with variable rate debt. In low and/or certain declining interest rale environments, when the
fixed borrower rate is higher than the SAP rate, these student loans earn at a fixed rate while the interest on the variable rate debt
typically continues to reflect the low and/or declining interest rates. In these interest rate environments, we may carn additional
spread income that we refer to as floor income.

Depending on the type of loan and when it was originated, the borrower rate is either fixed to term or is resct to an annual rate
cach July 1, As a result, for loans where the borrower rate is fixed to term, we may eam floor income far an extended periad of
time, which we refer to as fixed rate floor income, and for those loans where the borrower rate is reset annually on July 1, we may
carn floor income to the next reset date, which we rcfer to as variable rate floor income.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, we carncd §117.3 million of fixed rate floor income, which includes $10.8 million of net
settlement proceeds received related to derivatives used to hedge loans earning fixed rale floor income. Absent the use of derivative
instraments, a rise in interest rates will reduce the amount of floor income received and this will have an impact on earnings due
to interest margin compression caused by increased financing costs, until such time as the federally insured loans earn interest at
a variable rate in accordance with their SAP formulas. In higher interest rale cnvironments, where the interest rate rises above the
borrower rate and fixed rate loans cffectively convert to variable rate loans, the impact of the rate fluctuations is reduced.

[nterest vate risk - use of derivotives

We utilize derivative instruments to manage interest rate sensitivity. Our derivative instruments are intended as cconomic hedges
but do not qualify for hedge acconnting; consequently, the change in fair value, called the “mark-lo-market,” of these derivative
instruments is included in our operating results. Changes or shifts in the forward yield curve can and have significantly impacted
the valuation of our derivatives. Accordingly, changes or shifts in the forward vield curve will impact our results of operations.

Although we believe our derivative instruments are highly effective, developing an cffective strategy for dealing with movements
in interest rates is complex, and no strategy can completely insulate us from risks associated with such fluctuations. Because many
of our derivatives are not balance guaranteed to a particular pool of student loans and we may not elect to fully hedge our risk on
a notional and/or duration basis, we are subject to the risk of being under ur over hedged, which could result in malerial losses.
In addition, our intcrest rate risk management activities could expose us to substantial mark-to-markel losses il inlcrest rates move
in a materially different way than was expected based on the environment when the derivatives were enlered into, As a result, we
cannot offer any assurance that our economic hedging activities will effectively manage our interesl rate sensitivity or have the
desired beneficial impact on our results of operations or financial condition.

The Dodd-Frank Act provides the CFTC with substantial authority to regulate over-the-counter derivative transactions, Since June
10, 2013, the CFTC has required over-the-counier derivative transactions to be executed through an cxchange or central
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clearinghouse. Accordingly, all over-the-counter derivative contracts executed by us since that date are cleared posi-execution at
a regulated clearinghouse. Clearing is a process by which a third-party, the clearinghouse, steps in between the original
counterparties and guarantees the performance of both, by requiring that each post substantial amounts of liquid collateral on an
initial (initial margin) and mark-to-market {variation margin} basis to cover the clearinghouse's potential future exposurc in the
cvent of defaull. The CFTC's clearing requirements do not alter or affect the terms and conditions of our over-the-counter derivative
instruments exceuted prior to June 10, 2013, The clearing requirements require us to post substantial amounts of liquid collateral
when exceuting new derivative instruments, which could negatively impact our liquidity and capital resources and may prevent
or limit us from utilizing derivative instruments to manage intercst rate sensitivily and risks. However, the clearing requirements
reduce counterparty risk associated with over-the-counter derivative instruments cxecuted by us after June 10, 2013.

For derivatives executed on and prior to June 10, 2013 or not executed through an exchange or central clcaringhouse ("non-centrally
cleared derivatives"}, we are exposed to credit risk. We attempt to manage credit risk by entering into trangactions with high-
quality counterparties that are reviewed periodically by our internal risk committee and our board of directors' Risk and Finance
Committee. As of December 31, 2017, all of our derivalive counlerparties had investment grade credit ratings. We also have a
policy of requiring that all derivative contracts be governed by an International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. Master
Agreement. When the fair value of a non-centrally cleared derivative is positive {an assct on our balance sheet), this generally
indicates that the counterparty owes us if the derivative was settled. If the counterparty fails to pertorm, credil risk with such
counterparty is equal to the extent of the fair value gain in the derivative less any collateral held by us. If we were unable to colleel
from a counterparty, we would have a loss eqnal to the amount at which the derivative is recorded on the consolidated balance
sheet,

When the fair value of a non-centrally cleared derivative is negative (a liability on our balance sheet), we would owe the counterparty
ifthe derivative was settled and, therefore, have no immediate creditrisk. If'thenegative fair value of derivatives with a counterparty
exceeds a specified threshold, we may have to make a collateral dcposit with the counterparty. The threshold at which we may be
required to post collateral is dependent upon our unsecured credit rating. We believe any downgrades from our current unsecured
credit ratings (Standard & Poor's: BBB- (stable outiook), Moody's: Ba! (stable outlook), and DBRS: BEB (low) (stablc outlook)),
would not result in additional collateral requirements of a material nature. In addition, no counterparty has the right to terminate
our contracts in the event of downgrades from the current ratings.

Interest rate movements have an impact on the amount of collateral we are required to deposit with our derivative instrument
counterparties and variation margin paymcnts with our clearinghouse. We attempt to manage market nsk associated with interest
rates by establishing and monitoring limits as to the types and degree of risk that may be undertaken. Our derivative portfolio and
hedging strategy is reviewed periodically by our internal risk committec and our board of directors' Risk and Finance Committee.
Based on the interest rate swaps outstanding as of December 31, 2017 (for both the floor income and hybrid debt hedges), if the
forward interest rate curve was one basis point lower for the remaining duration of these derivatives, we would have been required
te pay $1.5 million in additional collateral and/or variation margin. Tn addition, if the forward basis curve between 1-month and
3-month LIBOR experienced a one basis point reduction in spread for the remaining duration of our 1:3 Basis Swaps (in which
we pay 1-month LIBOR and receive 3-month LIBOR), we would have been required to post $3.2 million in additional collateral
and/or variation margin.

With our current derivative portfolio, we do not currently anticipate a near term movement in interest rates having a material impact
on our liquidity or capital resources, nor expect futurc movemenis in intcrest rates to have a material impact on our ability to meet
potential collateral deposit requirements with our counterparties or variation margin payments to our clcaringhouse. Due to the
existing low interest rate environment, our exposure to downward movements in interest rates on our intcrest ratc swaps is limited.
In addition, we believe the historical high correlation between 1-month and 3-month ILJBOR limits our exposure to interest rate
movements on the 1:3 Basis Swaps.

However, if interest rates move materially and negatively impact the fair value of our derivative portfolio or if we enter into
additional derivatives in which the fair value of such derivatives becomes negative, we could be required fo pay a siguificant
amount of collateral to our derivative instrument counterparties and/or varialion margin to our clearinghouse. These payments,
if significant, could negatively impact our liquidity and capital resources,

Prepayment risk

Hipher rates of prepayments of student loans, including consolidations by the Department through the Federal Direct Loan Program
or private refinancing programs, would reduce our interest income.
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Pursuant to the Higher Lducation Act, borrowers may prepay loans made under the FFEL Program at any time without penalty.
Prepayments may result [rom conselidations of student loans by the Department through the Federal Dircet Loan Program or by
a lending institution through a private education or unsecured consumer loan, which historically tend 1o occur more frequently in
low interest rate environments; from horrower defaults, which will result in the receipt of a guaranty payment; and from voluntary
full or partial prepayments; ameng other things.

Legislative risk cxists as Congress evaluates proposals to reauthorize the Higher Education Act. If the federal government and
the Department initiatc additional loan forgiveness, other repayment options or plans, or consalidation loan programs, such
initiatives could further increase prepayments and reduce interest income, and could also reduce servicing fees.

The rate of prepayments of student loans may be influenced by a variety of economic, social, political, and other factors affecting
borrowers, including interest rates, federal budgetary pressures, and the availability of altemative financing. Our profits could be
adversely affected by higher prepaymenis, which reduce the balance of loans outstanding and, therefore, the amount of interest
income we receive.

Credit risk
Future losses due to defaulis on loans held by us present credit risk which could adversely affect our earnings.

The vast majority (98.8 percent) of owr student loan portfolio is federally guaranteed. The allowance (or loan losses from the
federally insured loan portfolio is based on periodic evaluations of our loan pertfolios, considering loans in repayment vetrsus those
in nonpaying staius, delinquency status, trends in defaults in the portfolio based on Company and industry data, past experience,
trends in student loan claims rejected for payment by guarantors, changes te federal student loan programs, current economic
conditions, and other relevant factors. The federal government currently guarantees 97 percent of the principal and interest on
fedcrally insurcd student loans disbursed on and after Fuly 1, 2006 (and 98 percent for those loans disbursed on and after October
1, 1993 and prior to July 1, 2006), which limits our loss exposure on the outstanding balance of our federally insured portfolio.
Student loans disbursed prior to October 1, 1993 are fully insured for both principal and interest.

Qur private education and consumer loans are unsecured, with neither a government nora privatc insurance guarantee. Accordingly,
we hear the full risk of lass on these loans if the harrower and co-borrower, if applieable, default, Tn determining the adequacy
of the allowance for loan losses on the private education and consumer loans, we consider several factors, including: loans in
repayment versus those in a nonpaying status, delinquency status, lypc of program, trends in defaults in the portfolio based on
Company and industry data, past experience, current economic conditions, and other relevant factors. We place our private
education and consumer loans on nonaccrual status when the collection of principal and interest is 90 days past due, and charge

off the loan when the collection of principal and interest is 120 days past due.

The evaluation of the allowance for loan losses is inhcrently subjective, as it requires material estimates that may be subject to
significant changes. As of December 31, 2017, our allowance for loan losses was $54.6 million. During the year ended
December 31, 2017, we recognized a provision for loan losses of $14.5 million. The provision for loan losses reflects the activity
for the applicable period and provides an allowance at a level that management believes is appropriate to cover probable losses
inherent in the loan portfolio. However, future defaults can be higher than anticipated due to a variety of factors, such as downturns
in the cconomy, regulatory or operational changes, and other unforeseen future trends. If actual performance is significantly worse
than currently estimated, it would materially affect our estimate of the allowance for loan losscs and the related provision for loan
losses in our statements of income.

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued accounting guidance regarding the measurement of credit losses
on financial instruments, which will change the way cntities recognize impairment of many financial assets by requiring immediate
recognition of estimated credit losses expected to occur over the asset's remaining life. We currently use an incurred loss model
when calculating our allowance for loan losses. As a result, we expect the new guidance will increase our allowance for loan
losses. This puidance will be effective for us beginning January 1, 2020. This standard represents a significant departure from
existing accounting standards, and may result in significant changes to our accounting for the allowance for loan losses and could
negatively impact our financial position and results of operatious.
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Liquidity and Funding

The current matuvities of our student loan warehouse financing facilities do not match the maturities of the related funded
student loans, and we may not be able to modify and/or find alternative funding related to the student loan collatcral in these
Jucilities prior to their expiration.

The majority of cur portfolio of student loans is funded through asset-backed securitizations that are structured to substantially
match the maturilics of the funded assels, and there are minimal liquidity issues related to these facililies, We also have student
Joans funded in shorter term warehousc facililies. The current maturities of these facilities do not match the maturity of the related
funded assets. Therefore, we will need to modify and/or find allernative funding related to the student loan collateral in these
facilities prior to their expiration.

As of Deeember 31, 2017, we maintained two FFELP warehouse facilities as described in note 5 of the notes to consolidated
financial statements included in this report. The FFELP warehouse facilities have revolving financing structures supported by
364-day liquidity provisions, which expire in May 2018 and September 2019. [n the event wc arc unable to renew the liquidity
provisions for a facility, the facility would become a term facility at a stepped-up cost, with no additioual student loans being
eligible for financing, and we would be required to refinance the existing loans in the facility by the final maturity datcs in May
2020 and November 2019, respectively. The FFELP warchousc facililies also contain financial covenants relating to levels of our
consolidated net worth, ratio of adjusted EBITDA to corporate dcbt interest, and unencumbered cash. Any noncompliance with
these covenanis could result in a requirement for the immediate repayment of any outstanding borrowings under the facilities. As
of Dceember 31, 2017, $336.0 million was outstanding under the FFELP warchouse facilitics and $22.4 million was advanced as

equity suppot,

If we are unable to obtain cost-effective funding alternatives for the loans in the warehouse facilities prior to the facilities' maturitics,
our cost of funds could increase, adversely affecting our rcsults of operations. If we cannot find any funding alternatives, we
would lose our collateral, including the student loan assets and cash advances, related to these facilities.

We are exposed to mark-to-formula collateral support risk on one of our FFELP warehouse facilities.

Onc of our FFELP warchouse facilities provides formula based advance rates based on market conditions, which requires equity
support to be posted to the facility. As of December 31, 2017, $189.5 million was outstanding under this warchouse facility and
$9.5 million was advanced as equity support. In the event that a significant change in the valuation of loans results in additional
required equity funding support for this warchouse facility greater than what we can provide, the warehouse facility could be
subject to an event of default resulting in termination of the facility and an acceleration of the repayment provisions. If we cannot
find any funding alternatives, we would lose our collateral, including the student loan assets and cash advances, related to this
facility. A default on the FFELP warehouse facility would result in an event of default on our $350.0 million unsecured line of
credit that would result in the outstanding balance on the line of credit becoming immediately due and payable.

We are subject to economic and market fluctuations related fo our investments.

We currently invest a substantial portion of our excess cash in student loan asset-backed securities and other investments that are
subject to market fluctuations, The fair value of these investments was $80.9 million as of December 31, 2017, including $76.9
million in student loan and other asset-backed sccurilies. The student loan asset-backed securities earn a floating interest rale and
carry expected returns of approximately LIBOR + 200-400 basis points to maturity. While the vast majority of these securities
are backed by FFELP government gnaranteed student loan collaieral, most are in subordinate tranches and have a greater visk of
loss with respect to the applicable student loan collateral pool. While we expect these securilies to have few credit issues if held
to maturity, (hey do have limited liquidity, and we could incur a significant loss if the investments were sold prior to maturity at
an amount less than the original purchase price.

Changes in ratings on assef-backed securitization transactions, including those we sponsor, can have a materiul adverse impact
on our ability to access the asset-backed secuvities markel.

After securitizations are initially issued, if their pcrformance does not align with rating agencies' expectations at the time of issuance,
or if the rating agencies iodify their assuinptions and methodologies used for rating student loan securitizations, it is possible that
initial high quality ratings on our subsidiaries’ securitizations, or those of other asset-backed securities issuers, could be materially
lowered. Such actions could adversely affect our ability to access the asset-backed securities market, or make new securitization
transactions more expensive by requiring us to pay a higher spread over LIBOR when pricing new bonds.
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Operations

Risks associated with our operations, as further discussed below, include those related to our information technology systems and
potential security and privacy breaches, our ability to manage performance related to regulatory requirements, and the importance
of maintaining scale by retaining existing customers and attracting new business opportunities.

Various events could disvupt our networks, information systems, or properties which could impair our operating activities and
negatively impact our reputation.

As a loan servicer, soflware provider, payment provider, and telecommunications company for the federal government, financial
inslitutions, education industry, and local communities that serve millions of customers throngh the internet and other disiribution
channels across the U.S., we depend on our ability to process, secure, record, and monitor a large number of cuslomer transactions
and confidential information on a continuous basis. Additionally, we depend on the efficient and nninterrupted operation of our
computcr network systems, software, datacenters, aid telecomununications systems, ag well as the systems of third partics.

Information security risks continue to increase in part because of the proliferation of new technologics, the usc of the internet and
telecommunications technologies to support and process customer lransactions, and the increased sophistication and activities of
organized crime, hackers, terrorists, activists, and other exteral partics. Our business segments rcly on our digital technologies,
computer and email systems, software, and networks to conduct their operations. In addition, to access our products and services,
our customers may nse personal smartphones, lablct PCs, and other mobile devices that are beyond our control systems.

Although we believe we have robusl information sccurity procedures, controls, and business continuity plans, we may be subject
to information technology system failures and network disruptions. Malicious and abusive activities, such as the dissemination of
computer viruses, worms, and other destructive or disruptive software, computer hackings, social engineering, process breakdowuns,
denial of service altacks, and other malicious activities have become more common. If directed at us or technologies upon which
we depend, these activitics could have adverse consequences on our network and our customers, including degradation ol scrvice,
excessive call volume to call eenters, and damage to our or our customers' equipment and data. Further, these activities could result
in sccurity breaches, such as misappropriation, misuse, leakage, falsification or accidental release or loss of information maintained
in our information technology systemns and networks, and in our vendors’ systems and networks, including cuslomer, personncl,
and vendor data. System failures and network disruptions may alsa be cansed by natural disasters, accidents, power disruptions,
or telecommunications failures. If a significant incident were to occur, it could damage our repuiation and credibility, lcad to
customcr dissatistaction and, ultimately, loss of customers or revenue, in addition to increased costs Lo scrvice our customers and
protect our network, These events also could result in large expenditures to repair or replace the damaged propertics, networks,
or information systems or to protect them from similar events in the future. System redundancy may be incffeetive or inadequate,
and our business continuity plans may not be sufficient for all eventualities. Any significant loss of customers or revenue, or
significant increase in costs of serving those customers, could adversely alfect our growth, financial condition, and results of
operations,

Although to date we have not experienced a material loss relating to cyber-attacks, information sccurity breaches, or system outage,
there can be no assurance that we will not suffer such losses in the future or that there is not 4 current threat that remains undetected
at this time. Our risk and exposure to these maliers remains heightened because of, among other things, the evolving nature of
these threats, and the size and scale of our services.

In addition, the personal consumer data that we receive and maintain in our operations is subject to privacy laws and regulations,
and we expect regulatory oversight will continue to increase and consumer privacy protection regulalions, standards, supervision,
examinations, and enforcement practices will continue to evolve in both detail and scope. This evolution may significantly add to
our privacy compliance and operating costs.

As aresult of these mafters, the continued development and enhancement of our training, controls, processes, and practices designed
to protect, momitor, and restore our systems, computers, sofiware, data, and networks from attack, darnage, or unauthorized access
remain a priority for the Company and each of our business scgments, Iven though we maintain technology and telecommunication,
professional services, media, network sceurity, privacy, injury, and liability insurance coverage to offset costs that may be incurred
as a result of a cyber-attack, information sceurity breach, or extended system outage, this insurance coverage may not cover all
costs of such incidents,
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We must adapt to rapid technological change. If we are nnable to take advantage of technological devclopments, or if we adopt
and implement them more slowly than our competitors, we may experience a decline in the demand for our producis and
services.

Our long-term eperating results depend substantially upon our ability to continually enhance, develop, introduce, and market new
products and services. We must continually and cost-cffeetively maintain and improve our information technology systems and
iufrastructure in order to successfully deliver competitive and cost cffective products and services to our customers. The widespread
adoption of new technologies and market demands could require substantial expenditures lo enhance system infrastructure and
existing products and services. If we fail to enhance and scale our systems and operational infrastructure or products and services,
our operaling scgments may lose their competilive advantage and this could adversely affect financial and operating resulls.

Our software products may experience quality problems and development delays, which could damage client relations, our
potential profitability, and expose us to liability.

Our Loan Systems and Servicing and Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce products are based on sophisticated
software and computing systems that often encounter development delays, and the underlying softwarc may contain undetected
bugs or other defects that interfere with its intended operation. Quality problems with our software products and crrors or delays
in our processing of eleetronic transactions could result in additional development costs, diversion of technical and other resoutccs
from our other development efforts, loss of credibility with current or potential clients, harm to our reputation, or exposure to
liability claims. In addition, we rely on technologies supplicd to us by third partics that may also contain undetected errors or
defects that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We outsource critical operations, which exposes us to risks related to our third-party vendors.

We bave entered into contracts with third-parly service providers that provide critical services, technology, and software to our
business segments. Some of our third-party vendors are primary service providers for which there are few substitutes. If any of
these vendors should experience financial difficultics, system interruptions, regulatory violations, security threats, or they cannot
otherwise meet our specifications, our ability to provide some scrvices may be materially adversely affected, in which case our
business, results of operations, and financial condition may be adversely affected.

We must satisfy certain requirements necessary fo maintain the federal guavaniees of our federally insured loans and the
Sederally insuved loans that we service for third parties, and we may incur penalties or lose our guaraniees if we fuil to meet
these requirements.

As of December 31, 2017, we serviced $27.3 billion of FFELP loans that maiutained a federal guarantee, of which $17.8 billion
and $9.5 billion were owned by the Company and third-party entities, respectively.

We must meet various requirements in order to maintain the federal guaraniee on federally insured loans. The federal guarantee
on federally insured loans is conditional based on compliance with origination, servicing, and collection policies set by the
Department and guaranty agencies. Ifthe Company misinterprets Department guidance, or incorrectly applies the Higher Education
Act, the Department could determine that the Company is not in compliance. Federally insured loans that are not originated,
disbursed, or serviced in accordance with the Department's and guaranty agency regulations may risk partial or complete loss of
the guaranice, If we experience a high rate of servicing deficiencies (including any deficiencies resulting from the conversion of
loans from one servicing platform to another, errors in the loan origination process, establishment of the borrower's repayment
status, and due diligence or claim filing processcs), il could result in the loan guarantee being revoked or denied. In most cases
we have the oppertunity to cure these deficiencies by following a prescribed cure process which usually involves obtaimng the
borrower's reaffirmation of the debt. However, not all deficicneics can be cured.

We are allowed three years from the date of the loan rejection to curc most loan rejections, If a cure cannot be achieved during
this three-year period, insurauce is permanently revoked, although we maintain our right to collect the loan proceeds from the
borrower, Tn cases where we purchase loans that were previously serviced by another servicing institution and we identify a serving
deficiency by the prior servicer, we may, based on the terms of the purchase agreement, have the ability to require the previous
lender to repurchasc the rejected loans.

A guaranty agency may also asscss an interest penalty npon claim payment if the deficiency does not result in a loan rejection,
These interest penaltics arc not subject Lo cure provisions and are typically related to isolated instances of due diligence deficiencics,
Additionally, we may become incligible for special allowance payment benefits from the time of the first deficiency leading to
thc loan rejection through the date that the loan is cured.
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Failure to comply with federal and guarantor regulations may resull in fines, penalties, the loss of the insurance and related federal
guarantees on affectcd FFELP loans, the loss of special allowance payment benefits, expenses required to cure servicing deficiencies,
suspension or iermination of the right to participate as a FFELP servicer, negative publicity, and potential legal claims, including
potential claims by our scrvicing customers if they lose the federal guarantce on loans that we service for them. If the Company
is subjected to significant fines, or loss of insurance or guarantees on a matcrial nuinber of FEFELP loans, or if the Company loses
its ability to scrvice TFELP loans, it could have a material, negative impact on the Company's business, financial condition, or
results of opcrations.

Our largest fee-based customer, the Department of Education, represented 21 percent of our revenue in 2017. Failure to extend
the Depariment contract or obtain a new Department contract, unfavorable contract modifications or interpretations, ov our
inahility fo consistently surpass competitor performance metrics, could significantly lower loan servicing revenue and hindev
Suture servicing opportunities.

We are one of four TIVAS awarded 4 student loan servicing contract by the Deparlment to provide additional servicing capacity
for loans owned by the Department. The Departinent also has contracts with 31 NFP cntities to service student loans, although
currently 5 NFP servicers service the volume allocated to these 31 enlities. New loan volume is allocated among the four TIVAS
and 5 NFP servicers based on certain performance metrics established by the Department and compared among all loan servicers
in this group. As ol Decernber 31, 2017, we were servicing $172.7 billion of student loans for 5.9 million borrowers under this
contract. For the year ended December 31,2017, we recognized $155.8 million in revenue from the Department, which represented
21 percenl ol our revenue,

The amount of future allocations of new loan volume could be negatively impacted if we are unable to consistently surpass
comparable competitor performance metrics. In addition, in the event the existing Department servicing contract becomes subject
to unfavorable modifications or interpretations by the Department, loan servicing revenue could decrease significantly.

Our contract with the Department is currently scheduled to cxpire on June 16, 2019. On February 20, 2018, the Department's
Office of Tederal Student Aid released information regarding a new procurement process. The contract solicitation process is
divided into two phases. Responses for Phase One arc due on April 6, 2018. The contract solicitation requcsts responses from
interested vendors for nine components. Vendors may provide a response for an individual, multiple, or all components, We intend

to respond to Phase One of the solicitation,

In the event that our servicing contract is not cxtended beyond the expiration date or we arc not choscn as a subsequent servicer,
loan servicing revenue would decrease significantly. There are significant risks and uncertaintics regarding the current Department
contract and potential fufure Department contracts, including potential delays, cancellation, or matcrial changes to the structure
of the contract procurement process.

Additionally, we are pattially dependent on the existing Department contract to broaden servicing operations with the Department,
other federal and state agencics, and commercial clients. The size and importance of this contract provides us the scale and
infrastructure needed to profitably expand into new business opportunities. Failurc to extend the Department contract beyond the
current expiration date, or abtain a new Department contract, could significantly hinder future opportunities.

Our contract with the Department of Education exposes us to additional risks inherent in government contracts.

The Federal government could engage in a prolonged debate linking the federal deficit, debt ceiling and other budget issues. 1f
.8, lawmakers in the future fail to reach agreement on these issues, the federal government could stop or delay payment on its
obligations. Further, legislation to address the federal deficit and spending could imposc proposals that would adversely affect the
FFEL and Federal Direct Loan Programs' servicing businesses.

We contract with Federal Student Aid (FSA) to administer loans held by FSA in both the FFEL and Federal Direct Loan Programs,
we own a portfolio of FFELY loans, and we service our FFELP loans and loans for third parties. These loan programs are authorized
by the Higher Education Act and subject to periodic reauthorization and changes to the programs by the Adminisiration and U.S.
Congress. The latest round of reauthorization is laking place currently. We cannot predict what will or will not be in the final law.
Tlowever, any changes, including the potential for borrowers to refinance loans via Direct Consolidation Loans, both federal and
private, could have a material impact to our cash flows from servicing, interest income, and operating marging,
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Government entities in the United States often reserve the right to audil contract costs and conduct inquiries and investigations of
business practices. These entities also conduct reviews and investigations and make inquiries regarding systems, including systems
of third parties, used in connection with the performance of the contracts. Negative findings from audits, investigations, or inquirics
could affect the contractor’s future revenues and profitability. If improper or illcgal activities are found in the course of government
andits or investigations, we could become subject to various civil and criminal penalties, including those under the civil U.S, False
Claims Acl. Additionally, we may be subject to administrative sanctions, which may include termination or non-renewal of contracts,
forfeiturc of profits, suspension of payments, fines and suspensions, or debarment from doing business with other agencies of that
government, Due to the inherent limilations of internal controls, it may not be possible to detect or prevent all improper or illegal
activities.

The Government could change governmental policies, regulatory environments, spending sentiment, and many other factors and
conditions, some of which could adversely impact our business, financial condition, and resulis of operations. We cannot predict
how or what programs or policies will be impacted by the federal government. The conditions described above could impact not
only our contract with the Depariment, but also other existing or future contracts with government or commercial enfities.

Our ability to continue to grow and maintain our contracts with commercial businesses and government agencies is partly
dependent on our ability to maintain compliance with various laws, regulations, and industry standards applicable to those
contracts.

We are subjeet to various laws, repulations, and industry standards related to our commercial and government confracts. In most
cases, these contracts are suhject Lo lermination rights, audits, and investigations. The laws and regulations thal irnpact our operating
segments are outlined in Part T, item 1, "Regulation and Supervision." Additionally, our contracts with the federal government
require that we maintain internal controls in accordance with the National Institute of Standards and Technologics (“NIST") and
our operating segments that utilize payment cards arc subject to the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (“PCI-DSS™).
If we are found to be in noncompliance with the contract provisions or applicable laws, regulations, or standards, or the contracied
party exercises its termination or other rights for that or other rcasons, our reputation could be nepatively affected, and our ability
to compete for new contracts or maintain existing contracts could diminish. If this were to oceur, our results of operations from
cxisting contracis and tuture opportunities for new contracts could be negativcly affected,

Our failure to successfully mandge business and certain asset acquisitions and other investments could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, and/or results of operations.

The success of our acquisition of ALLO in Deeember 2015 and continued investment in the communications business depends in
large part on the ability of ALLO to successfully develop and expand fiber networks in existing service areas and additional
communities within acceptable cost parameters, gain market share in communities in existing service areas, and ohtain acceptable
market share levels in additional communities that we do not yet serve. ALLO may not be able to achieve those objectives and
we 1nay not realize the expected benefits from ALLQ, Tn addition, the expected benetits are subject to risks related to the uncertain
nature of our ability to successfully integrate operations; the ability to successfully maintain technological competitive advantages
with respect to the ofTered telecommunications, internet, television, telephone, and other related services and minimize potential
system distuptions to the availability, speed, and quality of such services; potential changes in the marketplace, including potential
decreases in markct pricing for telecommunications and related services; potential changes in the demand for fiber optic internet,
television, and telephone services; and increases in transport and content costs as discussed below.

We acquired Great Lakes on February 7, 2018, Great Lakes and our subsidiary, Nelnet Servicing, will continue to service their
respective government-owned portfolios on behalf of the Department, while maintaining distinct brands, independent servicing
operations, and teams. Likewise, each entity will continue to compete for new student loan volume under its respective existing
contract with the Department. However, these entities will integrate technology, as well as shared services and other activities, to
become morce efficient and effective in meeting borrower needs. The success of our acquisition of Great Lakes depends on our
ability to successfully integrate technology, shared services, and ather operating activities and successfully maintain and increase
allocated volumes of student loans scrviced under existing and any future servicing contracts with the Depariment. Great Lakes
and Nelnet Servicing have also been working for almost two years to develop a new, state-of-the-art scrvicing system for
government-owned student loans, The servicing plaiform under development will utilize modern technology to effcelively scale
for additional volume, protect customer information, and support enhanced borrower experience initiatives. The expecled benelils
from the servicing platform under development may not be realized.

We may acquire other new businesses, products, and services, or enhance existing businesses, products, and services, or make
other investments to further diversify our businesscs hoth within and outside of our historical education-related businesses, through
acquisitions of other companies, product lincs, technologies, and personnel, or through investments in new asset classcs, real estate,
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or other companies, Any acquisition or investment is subject to a number of risks. Such risks may include diversion of management
time and resources, disruption of our ongoing businesses, difficultics in integrating acquisitions, loss ofkey employees, degradation
ol scrvices, difficulty expanding information technology systems and other business processes to incorporate the acquired
busincsses, cxtensive regulatory requirements, dilution to cxisting sharcholders if our common stock is issued in consideration
foranacquisitionorinvestment, incurring or assuming indebtedness or other liabilities in connection with an acquisition, unexpected
declines in real estate values or the failure to realize cxpected benefits from real estate development projects, lack of familiarity
with new markets, and difficulties in supporting new product lines. Our failure to successfully manage acquisitions or investments,
or successfully integrate acquisitions, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and/or results of
operations, Correspondingly, our expectations as to the accretive nature of the acquisitions or investments could be inaccurate,

Transport and content costs related to ALLO’s video products and services are substantial and continue to increase.

The cost of video transport and content costs is expected to continue to be one of ALLO’s largest operating costs associated with
providing television service. Television programming content includes cable-orienled programming, as well as the programming
of local over-the-air television stations that ALLO retransmits. In addition, on-demand programming is being made available in
response to customer demand, In recent years, the cable indnstry has experienced rapid increases in the cost of programming,
especially the costs for sports programming and for local broadcast station relransmission consent, Programming costs are generally
assessed on a per-subscriber basis, and therefore are related directly o the number of subscribers to which the programming is
provided. ALLO’ relatively small base of subscribers limils our ability to negotiate lower per-subscriber programming cosis,
whercas larger providers can often obtain discounts based on the number of their subscribers. This cost difference can cause ALLO
to experience reduced operating margins relative lo our competitors with a larger subscriber base. In addition, escalators in existing
content agreements cause cost increases that are out of line with general inflation. While ALLO expecis these increases to continue,
it may nat be able to pass programming cost increascs on to customers, particularly as an increasing amount of programming
content becomes available via the internet at little or no cost. Also, some competitors (or their affiliates) own programming in their
own right and ALLO may be unable to secure license rights to that programuming. As ALLO’s programming contracts with content
providers expire, there can be no assurance that they will be renewed on acceptable terms or at all, in which casc ALLO may be
unable to provide such television programming causing business results to be adversely affected.

If ALLO cannot obtain and maintuin necessary rights-of-way for its communications network, ALLO's operations may be
interrupted and it would likely foce increasved costs.

AJLLO is dependent on easements, franchiscs, and licenses from various private parties such as cstablished tclephone companies
and other utilities, railroads, long-distance companies and from state highway authorities, local governments and transit authorities
for access to aerial pole space, underground conduits, and other rights-of-way in order to construct and operate its networks, Some
agreements relating to rights-of-way may be short-term or revocable at will, and ALLO cannot be certain that it will continue to
have access to existing rights-of-way after the governing agreements are terminated or cxpire. If any of ALLO's right-of-way
agreements were terminated or could not be renewed, it may be forced to remove network facilities from the affected areas, relocate,
or abandon networks, which would interrupt operations and force ALLQ to {ind alternative rights-of-way, and make unexpected
capital expenditures.

IfALLO cannot successfully manage construction risks and uncertainties, the expansion of its communications nefworks may
not be achieved within acceplable cost paramefers or result in desived levels of market share.

The success ol our investment in ALLO depends on the ability of ALLO to successfully execute its current efforts and plans to
construct expanded fiber communications networks to make its services available to additional homes and businesses. The
construction ol comrmunications networks is subject to various risks and uncertainties, including risks and uncertainties related to
the determination of the precise locations of easements and other rights-of-way necessary to construct and operate the networks,
and the management of such construction in a manner that reasonably minimizes the disruption to other private property owners,
including minimizing any unintended damage to property or equipment owned or utilized by private parties. If ALLO is not
successful in managing these and similar construction risks, it could cxperience higher than expected costs and reputational damage
that adversely impacts market share and future revenues, and the currently expected benefits from its expansion efforis and plans
may not be realized.

ALLO may incur liabilities or suffer negative financial impact relating to occupational, health, and safety matters or failure
to comply with safety or environmentul laws,

Aerial and underground constrction of ncw networks and service requires employees and contractors 1o wotk in the proximity
of gas, electric, water, sewer, and other competitors® utility services, and ALLO's operations are subject 1o cxtensive laws and
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regulations relating to the maintenance of safe conditions in the workplace. While ALLO has invested, and will continuc to invest,
substantial resources in its robust occupational, health, and safety programs, ALLO's business involves a high degree of operational
risk, and there can be no assurance that it will avoid significant exposure. Thesc hazards can canse personal injury and loss of life,
severe dmnage to or destruclion of property and equipment, and other conscquential damages and could lead to suspension of
operations, large damage claims and, in extreme cases, criminal liability. ALLO could also be subject to potential liabilities in the
event it causes a relcasc ofhazardous substances or other environmental damage resulting from underground objects they encounter.
Environmental laws and regulations can imposc significant fines and criminal sanctions for violations. Costs associated with the
discharge of hazardous substances may include clean-up costs and related damages or liabilities. These costs could be significant
and could adversely affect ALILO's results of operations and cash [lows.

Industry changes and competitive pressures may harm revenues and profit margins, including future revenues and profit
margins of our communicutions business through ALLO.

We face agpressive price competition for our products and services and, as a result, we may have to lower our product and service
prices to stay competitive, while at the same time, cxpand market share and maintain profit margins. Even if we are able to maintain
or increase market share for a product or service, revenue or profit margins could decline because the product or service is in a
maturing markel or market conditions have changed due to economic, polilical, or regulatory pressures.

The internet, television, and lelecommunications businesses are highly competitive, For a discussion of the competitive factors
faced by ALLO, see Part T, Ttem I, "Communications - Competition." ALLO may not be able to successfully anticipate and respond
to many of these various competitive factors aflceting the industry, including regulatory changes that may alfect competitors and
ALLO differently, new technologies, services and applications that may be introduced, and changes in consumer preferences,
demographic trends, and discount or bundled pricing stratcgies by competitors which are larger and have morc resources than
ALLO. TLALLO does not comnpete effectively, it could losc customers, revenne, and market share; customers may reduce their
usage of ALLO's services or switch to a less profitable service; and ALLO may need to lower prices or increase marketing cflorts
to remain competitive,

Our enterprise risk management framework may not be effective in mitigating all risks,

Qur enterprise risk management framework includes policies, processes, personnel, and control systems to identify, measure,
monitor, control, and report risks, This framework is designed to mitigate and appropriately balance risk exposure with the
company’s strategic objectives and desired returns, Howcver, there may be risks that exist, or that devclop in the future, that we
have not anticipated, identified, or mitigated. Tf our enterprisc risk management framework does not effectively identify and manage
these risks, we could suffer unexpected losses, and our results of operations, cash flow, or financial condition could be materially
adverscly affccted.

Regulatory and Legal

Federal and state laws and regulations can restrict our businesses and result in increased compliunee expenses, and
noncompliance with these laws and regulations could result in penalties, litigation, reputation damage, and o loss of customers,

Our operating segments and custormners are heavily regulated by federal and state government regulatory agencics. Sce Part I, Item
1, "Regulation and Supervisiou." The laws aud regulations ecnforeed by these agencies are proposed or enacted to protect consumers
and the financial industry as a whole, not necessarily the Company, our operating segments, or our shareholders. We have procedures
and controls in place to monitor conpliance with numerous federal and state laws and regutations. However, because these laws
and regulations are complex, differ between jurisdictions, and are often subject to interpretation, or as a result of unintended errors,
we may, from time to time, inadvertently violate these laws and regulations. Compliance with these laws and regulations is
expensive and requires the time and attention of management. These costs divert capital and focus away from efforts intended to
grow our business. If we do not successfully comply with laws, regulations, or policies, we could incur fines or penalties, lose
existing or new customer contracts or other business, and suffer damage to our reputation. Changes in these laws and regulations
can significantly alter our business environment, limit business operations, and increase costs of doing business, and we cannot
prediet the impact such changes would have on our profitability.

The CFPB has the authority to supervise and examine large nonbank student loan servicers, including us. 1f in the course of such
an examination the CFPB were to determine that we were not in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and CFPB positions,
it is possiblc that this could result in material adverse consequences, including, without limitation, settlements, fines, pcnalties,
adversc regulatory actions, changes in our business practices, or other actions. In 2015, the CFPB conducted a public inquiry into
student loan scrvicing practices and issued a report recommending the creation of consistent, industry-wide standards for the entire
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servicing market. The CT'PB has also announced that it may issuc student loan servicing rules in the future, This area is expected
to be a continuing focus of the CFPR,

There is significant uncertainty regarding how the CFPB's recommendations, strategies, and priorities will impact our businesses
and our results of operations going forward. Actions by the CFPB could result in requirements to alter our services, causing them
to be less attractive or cffective and impair our ability to offer them profitably. In the event that the CFPB changes regulations
adopted in the past by other regulators, or modifies past regulatory guidance, our compliance costs and litigation exposure could
increase.

As a result of the Reconciliaffon Act of 2010, interest income on our existing FFELP loan portfolio, as well as revenue from
FFELP servicing and FFELP loan servicing software licensing and consulting fees, will continue to decline over time as our
and our third-party lender clients' FFELP loan portfolios are paid down and FFELP clients exit the market.

The Reconciliation Act of 2010 discontinucd new loan originations under the FFEL Program effective July 1, 2010, and requircs
that all new federal loan originations he made through the Federal Direct Loan Program. Although the law did not alter or affect
the terms and conditions of existing FFELP loans, interest income and rcvenue streams related to existing FFELP loans will continue
to decline over time as exisling FFELP loans are paid down, refinanced, or repaid by guaranty agencies afler default.

During the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, we recognized approximately $290 million, $360 million, and $425
million, respectively, of net interest income on our FFELP loan portfolio, approximately $16 million, $26 million, and $71 million,
respectively, in guaranty and third-party FFELP servicing revenue, and approximately $5 million, $6 million, and $5 million,
respectively, in FFELP loan servicing software licensing and consulting fees related to the FFEL Program. These amounts will
continue to decline over time as our and our third-party lender clients' FFELP loan portfolios arc paid down and FFELP clients
exit the market.

If we are unablc to grow or develop new revenue streams, our consolidated revenue and operating margin will decrease as a result
of the declinc in FFELP loan volume outstanding,

Exposure related to certain tax issues could decrease our net income.

Federal and state income tax laws and regulations are often complex and requirc intcrpretation. The nexus standards and the
sourcing of rceeipts from intangible personal property and services have been the subject of state audits and litigation with state
laxing authorities and tax policy debates by various state legislatures. As the U.S. Congress and U.S. Supreme Court have not
provided clear guidance in this regard, conflicting state laws and court decisions crcate significant uncertainty and expensc for
taxpayers conducting interstate commmerce. Changes in income tax regulations could negatively impact our results of opcrations.
If statcs enact legislation, alter apportionment methodologies, or aggressively apply the income tax nexus standards, wc may
beeome subject to additional stale taxes.

From time to time, we engagc in transactions in which the tax conscquences may be subject to uncertainty. Examples of such
transactions include asset and business acquisitions and dispositions, financing fransactions, apporiionment, nexus standards, and
income recognition. Significant judgment is required in asscssing and estimating the tax consequenecs of these transactions, We
prepare and file tax returns based on the interpretation of tax laws and regulations. In the normal course of business, our tax returns
are subject to examination by various taxing authoritics. Such examinations may result in future tax and interest assessments by
these taxing authorities. In accordance with authoritative accounting guidance, we establish reserves for tax contingencies related
to deductions and credits that we may be unable to sustain. Differences between the reserves for tax contingencies and the amounts
ultimately owed are recorded in the period they become known. Adjustments to our reserves could have a material effect on our
financial statements.

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, sigued into law on December 22, 2017, included a comprehensive tax overhaul that had significant
impacts on our operaling results in 2017 and will impacl our upcrating results in future periods. This legislation reduced the
corporate statulory federal tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent, imposed new limits on business intcrest deductions, altered tax
depreciation rules, changed the taxation of foreign earnings, and includes many other changes to 1,S. corporate taxation. Given
the timing of cnactment and extensive changes associated with the tax reforin, our risk associated with federal tax laws has increased
due 1o the absence of guidance on various uncertainties and aiubiguities in the application of certain provisions of the legislation,
and the possibility that taxing authorities could issue subsequent guidance or take positions on audit that differ from our prior
interpretations and assumptions. Although he reduction in the statutory tax rate is eficctive January 1, 2018, it had an impact cn
our 2017 results of operations due to accounting guidance requiring us to adjust (or re-mcasurc) our deferred tax assets and liabilities
on the enactment date, which is the date (he tax ratc changes were signed into law. Accordingly, a taxing authority may take a

29



different position as to the appropriate timing of an item in our tax return, which could negatively impact our results of operations
as the tax rates differ between periods.

In additien to corporate tax matters, as both a lender and scrvicer of student loans, we are required to report student loan interest
received and cancellation of indebtedness to individuals and the Internal Revenue Scrvice on an annual basis. These informational
forms assist individuals in complying with their federal and state income tax obligations. The statutory and regulatory guidance
regarding the calculations, recipients, and timing are complex and we know that intcrprelations of these rules vary across the
industry, The complexity and volnme associated with these informational forms creates a risk of crror which could result in
penalties or damage to our reputation.

Principal Shareholder and Related Party Transactions

Our Executive Chairman beneficially owns 77.7 percent of the vating righty of our shaveholders and effectively has control
over all matters at our Company.

Michael 8. Dunlap, our Executive Chairman and a principal shareholder, beneficially owns 77.7 percent of the voting rights of
our shareholders. Accordingly, each member of the Board of Directors and each member of management has been clecied or
effectively appointed by Mr. Dunlap and can be removed by Mr. Dunlap. As a result, Mr. Dunlap, as Executive Chairman and
controlling shareholder, has control over all matters at our Company and has the abilily io take actions that benefit him, but may
not benefil other minorily shareholders, and may otherwise exercise his control in a manncr with which other minority shareholders
may not agree or which they may not consider to be in their best interests.

Our contractual arrangements and transactions with Union Bank and Trust Company (" Union Bank"), which is under common
control with us, present conflicts of interest and pose risks to our shareholders that the terms may not be as favorahle to us as
we could receive from unrelated third pavties.

Union Bank is controlled by Farmers & Merchants Investment Inc, ("F&M"), which owns 81.4 percent of Union Bank's common
stock and 15.4 percent of Uniou Bank's non-voting non-convertible preferred stock, Mr. Dunlap, a significant shareholder, as well
as Execulive Chairman, and a member of our Board of Directors, along with his spousc and children, owns or controls a tota] of
33.0 pereent of the stock of F&M, including a total of 48.6 percent of the outstanding voting common stock of F&M, and Mr,
Dunlap's sistcr, Angela L. Muhleisen, along with her spouse and children, owns or controls a total of 31.7 percent of F&M stock,
including a total of 47.5 percent of the outstanding voting common stock of F&M. Mr, Dunlap scrves as a Director and Chairman
of F&M, Ms, Muhleisen scrves as a Director and Chief Executive Officer of F&M and as a Director, Chairperson, President, and
Chief Fxecutive Officer of Union Bank, Union Bank is deemed to have beneficial ownership of a significant number of shares
of Nelnet because it serves in a capacity of trustee or account manager for various trusts and accounts holding shares of Nelnet,
and may share voting and/or investment powcr with respect to such shares. As of December 31, 2017, Union Bank was deemed
to beneficially own 11.3 percent of the voting rights of our outstanding common stock. As of December 31, 2017, Mr. Dunlap
and Ms. Muhleisen beneficially owned 77.7 percent and 12.4 percent, respectively, of the voting rights of our outstanding common
stock.

We have entered into certain contractual arrangements with Union Bank, including loan purchases, loan servicing, loan
participations, banking scrvices, 529 Plan administration services, lease airangements, and various other investment and advisory
services. The net aggregate impact on our consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and
2015 related to the transactions with Union Bank was income {before income taxes) of $12.5 million, $7.0 million, and $6.6
million, respectively. See note 20 of the notes to cansolidated financial statements included in this report for additional information
related to the lransactions between us and Union Bank,

Transactions between Union Bank and us are generally based on available market information for comparable assets, products,
and services and are extensively negotiated. In addition, all related party transactions hetween Union Bank and us are approved
by both the Union Bank Board of Directors and our Board of Directors. Furthermore, Union Bank is subjcel io regulatory oversight
and review by the FDIC, thc Federal Reserve, and the State of Nebraska Department of Banking and Finance. The FDIC and the
State of Nebraska Department of Banking and Finance regularly review Union Bank's transactions with affiliates. The regulatory
standard applied to the bank falls under Regulation W, which places restrictions on certain “covered” transactions with alfiliates.

We intend to maintain our relationship with Union Bank, which our management believes provides certain benefits to us. Those
benefits include Union Bank's knowledge of and experience in the FFELP industry, its willingness to provide services, and at times
liquidity and capital resources, an an cxpedicnt basts, and the proxiinity of Union Bank to our corporate headquarters located in
Lincoln, Nebraska.
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The majority ofthe transactions and arrangements with Union Bank are not offered to unrelated third pariics or subjcct to competitive
bids. Accordingly, these transactions and arrangements not only present conflicts of interest, but also pase the risk to our shareholders
that the terms of such transactions and atrangements may not be as favorable to us as we could receive from unrclated third parties.
Morcover, we may have and/or may enier into contracts and business transactions with related parties that benefit Mr, Dunlap and
hig sister, as well as other related parties, that may not benefit us and/or our minority shareholders.

ITEM 1B, UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

The Company has no unresolved comments from the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission regarding its periodic or
current reports under the Securntics Exchange Act of 1934,

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The following table lists the principal facilities for office space owned or leased by the Company as of December 31, 2017. The
Company owns the building in Lincoln, Nebraska where its principal office is located.

Approximate Lease expiration
Location Primary function or scgment square feet datc
Lincoln, NE Corporate Headquarters, Loan Systems and 192,000 (a) —
Servicing, Tuition Payment Processing and Campus
Commerce
Highlands Ranch, CO  Loan Systems and Servicing 67,000 October 2020
incoln, NE Loan Systems and Servicing 65,000 —
Omaha, NE Loan Systems and Servicing, Toition Payment 56,000 December 2020 and
Processing and Campus Commerce December 2023
Lincoln, NE Loan Systems and Servicing, Asset Generation and 51,000 November 2023 and
Management March 2024
Aurora, CO Loan Systems and Servicing 37,000 September 2019
Lincoln, NE Communications 29,000 Month-to-month
Lincoln, NE Comimunicalions 28,000 —
Lincoln, NE Loan Systems and Servicing, Asset Generation and 22,000 Month-to-month
Management, Tuition Payment Processing and and October 2018
Campus Comumerce
Lincoln, NE Carporate Activitics 21,000 Qctober 2027
Borleson, TX Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce 17,000 October 2021
Scottsbluff, NE Communications 15,000 April 2019
North Platte, NE Communications 11,000 August 2026
Alliance, NE Communications 6,000 May 2022
Imperial, NE Communications 6,000 —

(a) Excludes a total of approximately 22,000 square feet of owned office space that the Company leases to third parties.

ALLO's physical assets consist of network plant and fiber, including signal receiving, encoding and decoding d¢vices, headend
rceeption facilities, distribution systems, and customer-located property. The network plant and fiber assets arc gencrally attached
to utility poles under pole rental agreements with local public utilities and telephone companies, or are buried in underground
ducts or trenches, generally in utility eascments. ALLO owns or leases real property for signal reception sites, and owns its own
vehicles. ALLO's headend reception facilitics and most offices are located on leased property. Additionally, ALLQ leases office
and warehouse facilities in most communitics where it operates.

31



The Company leases other office facilities located throughout the United States. These propertics arc leased on terms and for
durations that are reflective of commercial standards in the communities where these properties arc located. The Company belicves
that its respective properties are generally suitable and adequate to meet its long term husiness goals. The Company's principal
office is located at 121 South 13™ Street, Suite 100, Lincoln, Nebraska 68508.

On February 7, 2018, the Company acquired Great Lakes, which will be included in the Company's [.oan Systems and Servicing
operaling segment. GreatLakesisheadquarieredin Madison, Wisconsin, and owns two buildings at that location with approximately
181,000 squarc feet of office space. Great Lakes owns and leases several other offices around the United States with approximately
203,000 square feet of office spacc.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is subject to various claims, lawsuits, and proceedings that arise in the normal course of business. These matters
frequently involve claims by student loan borrowers disputing the manner in which their student loans have been serviced or the
accuracy of reports to credit burcaus, claims by student loan borrowers or other consumers alleging that state or Federal consumer
protection laws have been violated in the process of collecting loans or conducting other business activities, and disputes with
other business entities. In addition, from time to time the Company receives information and document requesls from state or
federal regulators concerning its business practices. The Company cooperates with these inguiries and responds to the requests,
While the Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of any regulatory examination, inquiry, or investigation, the Company
believes ils activilies have materially complied with applicable law, including the Higher Education Act, the rules and regulations
adopted by the Depattment thereunder, and the Deparltnent's guidance regarding those rules and regulations. On the basis of
present information, anticipated insuranee coverage, and advice received from counsel, it is the opinion of the Company's
management that the disposition or ultimatc determination of these claims, lawsuits, and proceedings will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, financial position, or results of aperations,

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the change in the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company's Class A common stock to
that of the cumulative retumn of the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 500 Financials Index. The graph assumes that the value of an
investment in the Company's Class A common slock and each index was $100 on December 31, 2012 and that all dividends, if
applicable, were reinvested. The performance shown in the graph represents past performance and should not be considered an
indication of future performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Nelnet, Inc_, the S&P 500 Index
and the S&P 500 Financials Index
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The preeeding information under the caption “Performance Graph” shall be deemed to be “furnished” but not “liled” with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Stock Repurchases

The following table summarizes the repurchases of Class A common stock during the fourth quarter of 2017 by the Company or
any “alliliated purchaser” of the Company, as defined in Rule 10b-18(2)(3} under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Certain
share repurchases included in the table below were made pursuant te a trading plan adopted by the Company in accordance with
Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

Total numberof  Maximum number
shares purchased  of shares that may

Total nnumber as part of publicly  yet be purchased
of shares Average price  announced plans  under the plans or
Perind rmurcrhacad fad naid nar chara nr nraaramce fh nranvanas fh

(a) Thetotalnumber of sharcs includes: (i) shares repurchased pursuant to the stock repurchase program discussed in footnote
(b) below; and (ii) sharcs owned and tendered by employces to satisfy tax withholding obligations upon the vesting of
restricted shares. Shares of Class A common stock lendered by employees to satisfy lax withholding obligations included
440 shares, 307 shares, and 2,263 shares in Oclober, November, and December, respectively. Unless otherwise indicated,
shares owned and tendered by employees Lo satisfy tax withholding obligations were purchased at the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of vesting.

(b} On August 4, 2016, the Company announced that its Board of Directors authorized a new stock repurchase program in
May 2016 to rcpurchase up to a total of fve million shares of the Company's Class A common stock during the three-
year period cnding May 285, 2019.
Equity Compensation Plans

For information regarding the securities authorized for issuance under the Company's equity compensation plans, see Part 111, Ticm
12 of this report,
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reporting period fluctuates significantly from period to period. Tnaddition, the Company has incurred unrealived foreign curency transaction adjustments
for periodic fluctuations in currency cxchange rates between the 115, dollar and Euro in connection with its sludent loan asset-backed Furo-denorminated
bonds with an interest rate based on a spread to the EURIBOT index, The principal and acerued interest on these bands were remeasured al each reporting
period and recorded in the Company's consolidated balance sheet in 11,8, dollars based on the foreign cwrency exchange ratc on that date.

The Company believes these point-in-time estimates of asset and liability valucs relaled to its derivative insirumcents and Luro-denominated bonds that
arc or were subject to interest and curreney rate fluctuations are or were subject lo volatility mostly due to timing and market factors beyond the conlral
of management, and affect the period-to-petiod comparability of the results of operations. Accordingly, the Company’s management utilizes opetaling
resuits cxcluding these iterns for comparability purposes when making decisions regarding the Cornpany’s performance and in presentations with credil
raling agencics, lenders, and inveslors. Consequently, the Company reports this non-GAAT information because the Company belicves that it provides
additional information regarding operational and performance indicators that are closely assessed by management. There is no comprehensive, anthoritative
guidance for ihe presentation of such non-GAAP information, which is only meant to supplement GAAT results by providing additional information that
management utilizes Lo assess perfonmance.

On October 25, 2017, the Company completed a remarketing of the Company’s bonds that were prior to that dale denominated in Euros, to denominate
thosc bonds in U.S. dollars and resel the interest rate to be based on the 3-month LIBOR index. The Company also lerminated a eross-currency interest
rale swap associated with thase bonds, As a result, forcign currency transaction adjustments will not be incurred with respect (o those bonds after October
25,2017,

The decrease in net income, excluding derivative market value and foreign currency adjustrments, for 2017 as compared to 2016,
was expected due to the runofl'of the Company's student loan portlolio and lower student loan spread, which decreased net interest
income. In addition, ALLO's dilutive impact to the Company's consolidated earnings continues to increase as it builds its nctwork
in Lincoln, Nebraska.

Operating Results

The Company earns net interest income on its loan portfolio, consisting primarily of FFELP loans, in its Asset Generation and
Management ("AGM") opcrating segment. This segment is cxpected to generate a stable net interest margin and significant
amounts of cash as the FFELP portfolio amortizes. As of December 31, 2017, the Company had a $21.8 billion loan portfolio that
management anticipates will amortize over the next approximately 20 years and has a weighted avcrage remaining life of 7.5
years. The Company actively works to maximize the amount and timing of cash flows generated by its FFELP portfolio and seeks
to acquire additional loan assets to leverage its servicing scale and cxperlise 1o generate incremental earnings and cash flow.
However, duc to the continued amortization of the Company’s FFELP loan portfolio and anticipated increases in interest rates,
the Company's net income generated by the AGM segment will continue to deercasc. The Company currently believes that in the
short-term it will most likely not be able to invest the excess cash generated from the FFELP loan portfolio into assets that
immediately gencratc the rates of return historically realized from that portfolio,

In addition, the Company earns fee-based revenue through the following reportable opcrating segments:
»  Loan Systems and Servicing ("LSS") - referred to as Nelnet Diversified Solutions ("NDS")
+  Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce {"TPP&CC") - referred to as Nclnet Business Solutions ("NDS")
«  Communications - referred lo as ALLO Communications ("ALLO")

Other busincss activities and operating scgmenis that are not reportable are combined and included in Corporaie and Other Activities

("Corporate"), Corporate and Other Activities also includes income earned on eertain investments and interest expense incurred
on unsecured debt transactions.
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-

The Company currcntly anticipates ALL('s operating results will be dilutive to the Company's consolidated eamings as
it continues to build its network in Lincoln, Ncbraska, and other communities, due to large upfront capital expenditures
and associated depreciation and upfront customer acquisition costs.

Asset Generation and Management

During 2017, the Company began to purchase consumer loans. As the Company’s FIFELP loans continue to amortize,
the Company is actively expanding its private education and consumer loan portfolios.

Other Corporate Activities

As of December 31, 2017, Whitetail Rock Capital Management, LLC (“WRCM™), the Company’s SEC-registered
investment advisor subsidiary, had $874.3 million in asset-backed security assets, consisting primarily of student loan
assct-backed securities, under management for third-party customers. WRCM earns annual management fees of 25 basis
points for asscts under management and up to 50 percent of the gains from the sale of securities or securities being called
prior to the full contractual maturity for which it provides advisory services. During 2017, WRCM traded almost $1.3
billicn for their customers, generating $10.1 million in performance fees. Assuming assets under management remain
at their current levels, management fees should be relatively stable in future years. However, the Company currently
anticipates that opportunities for WRCM to eamn performance fees could be limited in future years.

On December 31, 2017, the Company sold Petersou’s, its college planning, digital marketing, and content solutions
subsidiary. Peterson’s revenue in 2017 was $12.6 million, a decrease from $14.3 million in 2016 and $19.6 million in
2015, During the fourth quarter ot 2017, the Company recognized an impairment charge of $3.6 million {pre-tax) related
to goodwill initially recorded upon the acquisition of Peterson’s in 2006.

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Act”), signed infe law on December 22, 2017, reduced the corporate statutory federal
tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent. As aresult ofthe Act, in Decemnber 2017, the Company re-measured its net deferred
tax liabilities to reflect the new statutory rate, resulting in a decrease to income tax expense of $19.3 million, resulting
in a 2017 effective tax rate of 27.25 percent. The Company curtently anticipates its effective tax rale will range between
23 1o 24 percent in 2018 and future periods, as compared to its historical effective tax rate that ranged belween 35 to 38
percent.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

-

The Company has historieally gencrated positive cash flow from operations. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the
Company’s net cash provided by opcerating activities was $227.5 million.

The majority of the Company’s portfolie of student loans is funded in asset-backed securitizations that will generate
significant earnings and cash flow over the life of these transactions. As of December 31, 2017, the Company currently
expects future undiscounted cash flows from its securitization portfolio to be approximately $1.92 billion, of which
approximately $1.34 billion will be generated over the next five years,

The Company intends to usc its liquidity position to capitalize on market opportunities, including FFELP, private education,
and consumer loan acquisitions; stratcgic acquisitions and investments; expansion of ALLQ’s telecommunications
network; and capital management initiatives, including stock repurchases, debt repurchases, and dividend distributions,
The timing and size of these opportunities will vary and will have a dircct impact on the Company’s cash and investment
balances.

Recent Eventy

Aeouisition of Great Lakes

On February 7, 2018, the Company acquired 100 percent of the outstanding stock of Great Lakes for a purchase price of
$150.0 million in cash. The Company and Great Lakes are two of the four large private sector companies (referred to as
Title IV Additional Servicers, or “TTVAS”) that have student loan servicing contracts awarded by the Department in Junc
2009 to provide servicing for loans owned by the Department. These contracts are currently scheduled to expire on June
16, 2019,
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Going forward, Great Lakes and the Company will continue 1o service their respective government-owned portfolios on
behall of the Department, while maintaining their distinet brands, independent servicing operations, and teams. Likewise,
each entity will continuc to compete fornew student loan volume under its respective existing contract with the Department.
Nelnet will inteprate technology, as well as shared services and other activitics, to become more efficient and effective
in meeting borrowcr nceds,

The Company and Great Lakes have also been working together for almost two years to develop a new, state-of-the-art
servicing system for government-owned student loans through their GreatNct joint venture, The efficiencies gained by
leveraging a single platform for government-owned loans supporting millions more borrowers will give the Company
and Great Lakes opportunities to invest in strategics to further enhance borrower experiences.

Headquartered in Madison, Wisconsin, Great Lakes has approximately 1,800 employees. As of December 31, 2017,
Great Lakes was servicing $224.4 billion in government-owned student loans for 7.5 million borrowers, $10.7 billion in
FFEL Program loans for almost 479,000 borrowcrs, and $8.5 billion in privatc or consumer loans for over 415,000
borrowers. During 2017, Great Lakes recognized approximately $230 million in servicing revenuc.

As of December 31, 2017 (on a pro-forma basis), the combined companies serviced $455 billion of loans for 16.2 million
borrowers, including $397 billion in government-owned student loans for 13.4 million borrowers, $38 billion in FFEL

Program loans for 1.9 million borrowers, and $20 billien in privatc or consumecr loans for almost 918,000 borrowers.

Depariment of Education Servicing Contract

+  On February 20, 2018, the Department’s Office of Tederal Student Aid {("FSA™) released information regarding a new
confract procurement process to service all student loans owned by the Department. The contract solicitation process is
divided into two phases. Responses for Phase Onc are due on April 6, 2018. The contract solicitation requests responses
from interested vendors for nine components, including:

* Component A: Enterprisc-widc digital platform and related middleware

»  Component B: Enterprise-wide contact center platform, customer relationship management (CRM), and rclated
middleware

*  Component C: Solution 3.0 {core processing, related middleware, and rules engine)

*  Component D: Solution 2.0 (core processing, related middleware, and rules engine)

«  Component E: Solution 3.0 business process operations

»  Component F: Solution 2.0 busincss process operations

+  Component G: Enterprise-widc data management platform

«  Component H: Enterprisc-wide identity and access management {IAM)

«  Component I: Cybersceurity and data protection

The solieitation indicates Component C (Solution 3.0) is anticipated to be tailored for new customers and Compenent
D {Solution 2.0) is anticipated to serve as the primary environment for FSA’s existing customers. After Solntion 3.0 is
deployed, FSA will determine the best distribution of loans between Solution 2.0 and Solution 3.0. In addition, morc
than one busiuess process soluticn may be selected for Components E and F.

Venders may provide a response for an individual, mnltiple, or all components. The Company intends to respond to
Phase One of the solicitation.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATTONS
An analysis of the Company's operating results for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 1s provided below.

The Company’s operating results arc primarily driven by the performance of its existing portfolio and the revenues generated by
its fee-based busincsscs and the costs to provide such services. The performance of the Company’s portfolio is driven by net
intercst income (which includes financing costs) and losses related to credit quality of the assets, along with the cost to administer
and scrvice the assets and related debt.

The Company operates as distinct reportable operating segments as deseribed above. Forareconciliation of the reportable segment
operating results to the consolidated results of operations, sec note 15 of the notes to consolidated financial statements included
in this report. Sincethe Company monitors and assesses its operations and results based on these segments, the discussion following
the consolidated results of operations is presented on a reportable segment basis.
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The following table summarizes the cormponents of "other income."

Year ended December 31,
ed1) 3 2014 208
KEHIIZ60 AT WILEAILLCU Iy Ol HLVOS LILIGLLYS CIAYSILICU 4% avallauie-
fnr-cala anAd trading neat 7514 2773 143
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(a) The Company provides investment advisory services through WRCM under various arrangements and earns annual fees of
25 basis points on the outstanding balance of investments and up to 50 percent of the gains from the sale of securities or
securities being called prior to the full contractual maturity for which it provides advisory services. As of December 31,2017,

the outstanding balance of investments subject to these arrangements was $874.3 million.

(b) The year over year decrease in revenue was due to the loss of rights to a certain publication. On December 31, 2017, the

Company sold Peterson's.

(c) The operating results for the year ended December 31, 2016 include a gain of approximately $3.0 million related to the

Company's sale of Sparkroom, LLC in February 2016.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company’s Loan Systems and Servicing and Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commeree operating segments are
non-capital intensive and both produce positive operating cash flows. As such, a minimal amount of debt and cquity capital is
allocated to these segments and any liquidity or capital needs are satisfied using cash flow from operations. Therefore, the Liquidity
and Capital Resources discussion is concentrated on the Company’s liquidity and capital needs to meet existing debt ohligations
in the Asset Generation and Management operating segment and capital needs to expand ALLO's communications network in the
Company's Communications operaling segment.

The Company may issue equity and debt securities in the future in order to improve capital, increase liquidity, refinance upcoming
maturities, or provide for general corporate purposes. Moreover, the Company may from time-to-time repurchase cerlain amounts
of its outstanding secured and unsecured debt securities, including debt securities which the Company may issuc in the [ulure, lor
cash and/or through exchanges for other secnrities. Such repurchases or exchanges may be made in open market transactions,
privately negotiated transactions, or otherwise. Any snch repurchases or exchanges will depend on prevailing market conditions,
the Company’s liquidity requircments, contractual restrictions, compliance with securities laws, and other factors. The amounts
involved n any such transactions may be material.

The Company has historically utilized operating cash flow, secured financing transactions (which include warchouse facilities,
asset-backed securitizations, and liquidity programs offered by the Department), operating lines of credit, and other borrowing
arrangements lo fund its Asset Generation and Management operations and loan acquisitions. In addition, the Company has uscd
operating cash flow, horrowings on its unsecured line of credit, and unsecured debt offerings to fund corporate activities, business
acquisitions, repurchases of common stock, repurchases of its own debt, and expansion of ALLO's fiber network. The Company
has also used its common stock to partially fund certain business acquisitions.

Sources of Liquidity

The Company has historically generated positive cash flow from operations. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
the Company's net cash provided by operating activities was $227.5 million and $325.3 million, respectively.

As of Decemher 31, 2017, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $66.8 million. The Company also had a portfolio of
availahle-for-sale investments, consisting primarily of student loan asset-backed securities, with a fair value of $80.9 million as
of December 31, 2017,

The Company also has a $350.0 million unsecured line of ¢redit that matures on December 12, 2021, As of December 31, 2017,
there was $10.0 million outstanding on the unsecured line of credit and $340.0 million was availablc for futurc use.

In addition, the Company has repurchased certain of its own asset-backed securities (bonds and notes payahle) in the secondary
market. For accounting purposes, these notes are eliminated in consolidation and are not included in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. However, these securities remain legally outstanding at the trust level and the Company could sell these
notes to third parties or redeem the noles al par as cash is generated by the trust estate. Upon a sale of these notes fo third parties,
the Company would oblain cash proceeds equal lo the market value of the notes on the date of such sale. As of December 31,
2017, the Company holds $76.1 million (par valuc) of ils own assel-backed securities.

The Company intends to use its liquidity position to capitalize on market opportunities, including FFELP, private education, and
consumer loan acquisitions; strategic acquisitions and investments; expansion of ALLO's telecommunications network; and capital
management initiatives, including stock repurchases, debt repurchases, and dividend distributions. The timing and size of these
opporiunitics will vary and will have a direct impact on the Company's cash and mvestment balances.

On February 7, 2018, the Company acquired 100 percent of the outstanding stock of Great Lakes for a purchase price of §150.0
million in cash. The Company financed the acquisition with existing cash and by using its $350.0 million unsecured line of credit.

Cash Fiows

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company gencrated $227.5 million from opcrating activitics, compared to $325.3
million for the same period in 2016. The decrease in cash provided by operating activitics reflects the decrcase in net income,
changes in the adjustments to net income from deferred income taxes and payments from termination of derivative instruments
and the impact of changes in accrued interest receivable, accounts receivable, other asscts, and accrued interest payable during
the year ended December 31, 2017 as compared to the same period in 2016. These factors were partially offset by an increase in
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the adjustments to nct income for depreciation and amortization, derivalive markel valuc adjustments, unrealized forcign currency
ransaclion adjustments, and net proceeds received in 2017 from the Company's clearinghousc to scttle variation margin.

The primary itemns included in the statement of cash flows for investing activities arc the purchasc and repayment of loans. The
primary ilemns included in financing activities are the proceeds from the issuance of and payments on bonds and notes payable
used to fund loans. Cash provided by investing activities and cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31,
2017 was $3.3 billion and $3.5 billion, respectively, and for the vear ended December 31, 2016 was $3.3 billien and $3.6 billion,
respecetively. Tnvesting and financing activities are further addressed in ihe discussion that follows,

Liquidity Needs and Sources of Liquidity Available to Satisfy Debt Obligations Secured by L.oan Asscts and Related
Collateral

'The following table shows the Company's debt obligations outstanding that are secured by loan assets and related collateral:

Bonds and Notes Issued in Asset-backed Securitizations

The majority of the Company’s portfolio of student loans is funded in asset-backed securitizations that are structured to substantially
match the maturity of the funded assets, thereby minimizing liquidity risk. Cash gencrated from student loans funded in asset-
backed sceuritizations provide the sources of liquidity to satisfy all obligations related to the outstanding bonds and notes issued
in such sceuritizations. In addition, due to (i} the difference between the yicld the Company receives on the loans and cost of
financing within these transactions, and (ii}) the servicing and administration {ces the Company carns from these transactions, the
Company has created a portfolio that will generate earnings and signilicant cash flow over the lifc of these transactions.

As of December 31, 2017, based on cash flow models developed to relleet management’s current estimate of, among other factors,
prepayments, defaults, deferment, forbearance, and interest rales, the Company currently expects future undiscounted cash flows
from its portfolic to be approximately $1.92 billion as detailed below. The $1.92 billion includes approximately $848.5 million
(as of December 31, 2017) of overcollateralization included in the assct-backed securitizations. These excess net asset positions
are reflected variously in the following balances on the consolidated balance sheet; "loans receivable," "restricted cash," and
"accrued interest receivable.”
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FFELP Warechouse Facilitiey

The Company funds a portion of its FFELP loan acquisitions using its FFELP warehouse facilities. Student loan warehousing
allows the Company to buy and manage student loans prior to transferring them into more permanent financing arrangements. As
of December 31, 2017, the Company had two FFELP warchouse facilities with an aggregate maximum financing amount available
of $1.0 billion, of which $0.3 billion was outstanding and $0.7 billion was available for additional funding. One warehouse facility
provides for formula-based advance rates, depending on FEELP loan type, up to a maximum of the principal and interest of loans
financed. The advance rales for collateral may increase or decrease based on market conditions. The other warehouse facilily has
stalic advance rates thal requires injtial equily for loan funding, but does not require increased equily based on markel movements,
As of December 31, 2017, the Company had $22.4 million advanced as oquity support on thesc facilities. For {urlher discussion
ol the Company's FFELP warehouse facilitics outstanding at December 31, 2017, see note 5 of the notes to consolidated financial
statements included in this report.

Upon termination ot cxpiration of the warchouse facilities, the Company would expect 1o access the securitization market, obtain
replacement warehouse facilities, use operating cash, consider the sale of assets, or transfer collateral to satisfy any remaining
obligations.

Other Uses of Liquidity

Effective July 1, 2010, no new loan originations can be made under the FFRI, Program and all new federal loan originations must
be made through the Federal Dircet Loan Program, As a result, the Company no longer originates new FFLLP loans, but continues
to acquirc FFELD loan porifolios from third partics and believes additional loan purchase opportunities exist, including privatc
education and consurner loans,

The Company plans to fund additional loan acquisitions using current cash and investments; using its Union Bank parlicipation
agreement (as described below); using its existing FFELP warehousc facilities (as described abovc); establishing new warchouse
facilities; and continuing to access the assct-backed securities market.

Union Bank Participation Agreement

The Company maintains an agreement with Union Bank, a related party, as trustee for various grantor trusts, under which Union
Bank has agreed to purchase from the Company participation intercsts in student loans. As of December 31,2017, $552.6 million
of loans were subjcct to outstanding participation interests held by Union Bank, as trustee, under this agreement. The agreement
automatically rencws annually and is terminable by either party upon five business days' notice. This agrecment provides
beneficiaries of Union Bank’s grantor trusts with access to investments in interests in student loans, while providing liquidity to
the Company. The Company can participate loans to Union Bank tu the extent of availability under the grantor trusts, up to $750.0
million or an amount in excess of $750.0 million if mutually agrced to by both parties. Loans participated under this agreement
have been accounted for by the Company as loan sales. Accordingly, the participation interests sold are not included on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets,

Asset-bucked Securities Transactions

During 2017, the Company completed three asset-backed securitizalions totaling $1.5 billion {par value). The proceeds from
these transactions werc used primarily to refinance student loans included in the Company's FFELY warehouse facilitics.

Depending on future market conditions, the Company currently anticipates continuing to access the asset-backed securitization
market. Such assct-backed securitization transactions would be uscd to refinance student loans included in its warchouse facilities,
loans purchased from third parties, and/or student loans in its cxisting asset-backed sceuritizations.

Liquidity Tmpact Related to Hedging Activities

The Company utilizes derivative instruments to manage interest rate sensitivity. By using derivative instruments, the Company is
cxposed to market risk which could impact its liquidity, Based on the derivative portfolio cutsianding as of December 31, 2017,
thc Company does not currently anticipate any movement in interest rates having a material impact on its capital or liquidity profile,
nor does the Compauy cxpect that any movement in interest rates would have a material impact on its ability to mect potential
collateral deposits with its counterparties and/or variation margin payments with its third-party clearinghouse. However, if interest
rates move materially and negatively impact the fair value of the Company's derivative portfolio or if the Company cnters into
additional derivatives for which the fair value beeomes negative, the Company could be required to deposit additional collateral

59



wilh its derivative instrument counterparties and/or pay additional variation margin to a third-party clearinghouse. Derivalive
contracts cxccuted through a clearinghouse require daily movement of variation margin to be exchanged based on the nct fair
valuc of the contracts. The collateral deposits or variation margin, if significant, could negatively impact the Company's liquidity
and capital resources. In addition, clearing requirements require the Company to post amounts o! liquid collateral when exccuting
new derivative instruments, which could prevent or limit the Company from utilizing additional derivative instrumnents to manage
interest rate sensitivity and risks.

Liquidity Impact Related to the Communications Operating Segment

ALLOQ has made significant investments in its communications network and currently provides fiber directly to homes and
businesses in scven Nebraska communities. In 2016, ALLO began to expand its network to make its services available to
substantially all commercial and residential premises in Lincoln, Nebraska, and currently plans to expand to additional communitics
in Nebraska and Colorado over the next several years. For the year ended December 31, 2017, ALLQ's capital cxpenditures were
$115.1 million. The Company anticipates total ALLO network capital expenditures of approximately $75.0 million in 2018,
However, this amount could change based on customer demand for ALLO's services. As of December 31, 2017, ALLO had a
$270.0 million linc of credit with Nelnet, Tnc. (parent company) that ALLO used for its operating activities and capital expenditures.
The outstanding amount owed by ALLO to Nelnet, Inc. and the related interest expense incurred by ALLO and the inierest income
recognized by Nelnet, Inc. under this line of credit was eliminated in the Company's consolidated financial slalements. On January
1, 2018, ALLO received funds contributed by Nelnet, Inc. [or a non-participaling capital interest in ALLO that has a preferred
return, ALTO used the proceeds from this capital contribution (o pay off all of the outstanding balance on its line of credit with
Nelnet, Inc, including all accrued and unpaid interest on such line of eredit. For financial reporting purposes, the capital interest
recorded by ALLO will be classificd as debt and such debt and the preferred return paid to Nelnet, Inc. on the capital interest
{reflected as interest expensc lor ALLO) will be eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

The Company currently plans to use cash from operating activities and its third-party unsecured line of credit primarily to fund
ALLO's capital expenditures.

Other Debt Facilitics

As discussed above, the Company has a $350.0 million unsceured line of credit with a maturity date of December 12, 2021, As
of December 31, 2017, the unsecured line of credit had $10.0 million outstanding and $340.0 million was available for future use.
Upon the maturity date in 2021, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to maintain this line of credit, increase
the amount outstanding under the line, or find altemative funding if necessary.

The Company has issucd Junior Subordinated Hybrid Securities (the "Hybrid Securities") that have a final maturity of September
15,2061. The Hybrid Securities are unsecured obligations of the Company. During the first quarter of 2017, the Company initiated
a cash tender offer to purchase any and all of its outstanding Hybrid Securities, including a relaied consent solicitation to effect
certain amendments to the indenture governing the notes to eliminate a provision requiring a minirnum prineipal amount of the
notes to remain outstanding after a partial redemption. The aggregate principal ameunt of notes tendered to the Company was
$29.7 million. The Company paid $25.3 million to redeem thesc notcs, and the amendments described above were made to the
indenture. As of December 31, 2017, the Company had $20.4 million of Hybrid Securities that remain outstanding,.

During 2017, the Company entered into a repurchase agreement, the proceeds of which are collateralized by FFELP asset-backed
security investments. As of December 31, 2017, $50.4 million was subject to this repurchase agreement. Upon termination or
expiration of the repurchase agreement, the Company would use cash proceeds or transfer collateral to satisfy any outstanding
obligations subject to the repurchase agreement.

The Company also has three notes payable, which were each issued by TDP Phase Three, LLC ("TTDP") in connection with the
development of a commercial building in Lincoln, Nebraska that is the new corporate headquarters for Hudl, a related party. TDP
is an entity established during 2015 tfor the sole purpose of developing and operatmg this building. The Company owns 25 percent
of TDP. However, because the Company was the developer of and a current tenant in this building, the operating results of TDP
are included in the Company's consolidated financial statements. Recourse to the Company on the outstanding balance of these
noles is cqual to its ownership percentage of TDP. A summary of the TDP notes outstanding as of December 31,2017 is summarized
below:
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Contractual Obligations

'The Company’s contractual obligations were as follows:

As of December 31, 2017

Liess than More than
Tvtal 1 vanw 1 ta 1 vaare A tn & vaare & vaava

(a) Amounts exclude iuterest as substantially all bonds and notcs payable carry variable rates of interest.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had a reserve of $22.4 million for uncertain income tax positions {including the federal
benefit received from state positions). This obligation is not included in the above table as the timing and resolution of the income
tax positions cannot be reasonably cstimated at this time.

In 2016, ALLO began providing telecommunications services in Lincoln, Nebraska, as part of a commitment under franchisc
agrcements with the city for ALLO to use commercially reasonable best cfforts to pass substantially all commercial and residential
propertics in the community within the first four years of the agreements. During 2017, ALLO’s capital expenditures were $115.1
million, and ALLO anticipates network capital expenditures of approximately $75.0 million in 2018. The majority of these capital
expenditures are for the network build-out in Lincoln. The currently anticipated capital expenditures for 2018 and beyond to build
out the Lincoln network are not included in the above table, since there are no fixed and/or determinable minimum amounts which
ALLO must incur, and the amounts and timing thereof could change based on customer demand for ALLO’s scrvices.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations discusses the Company’s
consolidatcd financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States, The preparalion of these financial statements requires management to make cstimales and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting periods. The
Company bases its estimatcs and judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that the Company believes are
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under varying assumptions or conditions. Note
3 of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in this report includes a summary of the significant accounling policies
and methods used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

On an on-going basis, manageinent evaluates its ¢stimates and judgments, particularly as they relate to accounting policies that
management believes are most "critical” — that is, they arc most important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condition
and results of operations and they require management’s most difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, often as a result of the
nced to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncerlain. Management has identified the following critical
accounting policics and estimates hat are discussed in more detail below: allowancc for loan losses, income taxes, and accounting
for derivatives.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of probable losses on loans. This evaluation process is subject
to numcrous cstimates and judgments. The Company evaluates the appropriatcness of the allowance for loan losses separately on
each of its federally insured, private education, and consumer loan portfolios.

The allowance for the federally insured student loan portfolio is based on periodic evaluations of the Company’s loan porifolios
considering loans in repayment versus those in a nonpaymg status, delinquency status, trends in defaults in the portfolio based on
Company and industry data, past expericnec, trends in student loan claims rejected for payment by guarantars, changes to federal
student loan programs, current econommic conditions, and other relevant factors. Should any of these factors change, the estimates
made by management would also change, which in turn would impact the level of the Company’s future provision for loan losses.

In determining the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses on the private education and consumer loans, the Company
considers several factors including; loans in repayment versus those in a nonpaying status, delinquency status, type of program,
trends in defaults in the pertfolio based on Company and industry data, past experience, current economic conditions, and other
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relevant faciors, Should any of these factors change, the estimates made by management would also chanpe, which in turn would
impact the level of the Company’s future provision for loan losses. The Company places a private education or consumer loan on
nonaccrual status when the collection of principal and interest is 90 days past due and charges off the loan and accrucd intcrest
when the collection of principal and interest is 120 days past due.

The allowancc for loan losses is maintained at a level management belicves is appropriate to provide for estimated probable credit
losses inhercnt in the loan portfolios. This evaluation is inherently subjective because it requires estimates that may be susceptible
to sipnificant changes.

Income Taxes

The Company is subject to the income tax laws of the U.S., Canada, Australia, and the states and municipalities in which the
Company operates. These tax laws are complex and suhject to different interpretations hy the taxpayer and the relevant goverument
taxing authorities. In establishing a provision for income tax expense, the Company must make judgments and interpretations
about the application of these inherently complex tax laws. The Company must also make estimates about when in the future
certain items will allect taxahle income in the various tax jurisdictions. Disputes over interpretations of the tax laws may be snbject
to review/adjudication by the court systems of the various tax jurisdictions or may be settled with the taxing authority upon
examination or audil. The Company reviews these balances quarlerly and as new information becomes available, the balances are
adjusted, as appropriate.

Derivative Accounting

The Company determines the fair value for its derivative contracts using either (i) pricing models that consider current market
conditions and the contractual terms of the derivative instrument or (ii) counterparty valuations. The factors that impact the fair
valuc include interest rates, time value, forward interest rate curve, and volatility factors, as well as Toreign cxchange ratcs, Pricing
models and their underlying assumptions impact thc amount and timing of realized and unrealized gains and losscs recognized,
and the use of different pricing models or assurnptions could produce different tinancial results. Management has structured the
majority of the Company’s derivative transactions with the intent that each is economically effective. Howcver, the Company’s
derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Accordingly, changes in the fair valuc of derivative instruments are

reported in cwrrent period eamings

$943 1Y LA

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Revenue Recognition

InMay 2014, the ¥inancial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued accounting guidence regarding the recognition of revenuc
from contracts with customers, which requires an cntity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it cxpeets to be entitled for
the transfer of premised goods or services to customers. This guidance will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance
effective January 1, 2018 and the standard allows the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. Due
to identifying its Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce operating segmeni as the principal in its payment services
transactions, the Company now plans to use the retrospective transition method rather than the cumulative effect transition method,
as previously disclosed. As a result of this change, the Company will recast its prior year financial statements to present this
activity gross rather than net. The costs to provide payment services iransactions of $47.4 million and $43.0 million for the years
ended Decembcer 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, is currently included in the Company’s “tuition payment processing, school
information, and campus commerce revenue” in the consolidated staternents of incoine. These costs will be presented separatcly
in the consolidated statements of incame as “costs to provide tuition payment processing, school information, and campus commerce
scrvices.”

The majority of the Company's revenue earned in its Asset Generation and Management segment, including loan intcrest and
derivativeactivity, is explicitly excluded from the scope of the new guidance. Other than the payment serviccs transactions discussed
previously, the Company’s other fee-based aperating segments will recognize revenue materially consistent with historical revenue
recognition patterns.

Classification and Measuvement

In January 2016, the FASB issued accounting guidance regarding the recognition and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, which will change the income statement impact of equity mvestments. The new guidance requirces all cquity investments
to bc measured at fair value, with changes in the fair value recognized through net income (other than thosc cquity investments
accounted for under the equity method of aeccounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee), Howevet, an cntity may
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choose to measure equity investments that do not havc readily determinable fair values at cost minus impairment, il any, plus or
minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or a similar invesiment of the same
issuer. The impairment assessment of equity investments without readily determinable fair values will be simplified by requiring
a qualitative asscssment to identify impairment,

On January 1, 2018, the effective date of this guidance, the Company recorded a cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings
of $1.7 million, net of taxes, related to equity securities with rcadily delerminable fair values. The guidance is effective for equity
sccuritics withoul readily determinable fair values prospectively, The Company will continue to measure equity investments that
do not have readily determinable fair values at cost and monitor such values for impairment and observable price changes. Upan
adoption, this pronouncement will not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Leases

In Kebruary 2016, the FASB issued accounting guidance regarding the accounting for leases. The new standard will require the
identification of arrangements that should be accounted for as leases by lessees and the disclosure of key information about leasing
arrangements. In general, lease arrangements exceeding a twelve-month term will be recognized as assets and liabilities on the
balance sheet of the lessee. A right-of-use (ROU) asset and lease obligation will be recorded for all leases, whether operating or
financing, while the income statement will reflect lease cxpense for operating leases and amortization/interest expense for financing
leascs. The balance sheet amount recorded for existing leascs ai lhe dale of adoption must be calculated using the applicable
incremental borrowing rale at the date of adoption. The standard requircs the use of the modified retrospective transition method,
which will require adjustment o all comparative periods presented with certain practical expedients available. 1t will be cfleclive
for the Company beginning January 1, 2019 with early adoption permitted. The Company currently expects to adopt the new
standard on its effective date and to elect all of the standard's available practical expedients on adoption. While the Company is
evaluating the impact this prenouncement will have on its ongoing financial reporting, it currcatly believes the most significant
changes relate to the recognition of new ROU assets and lease liabilities on its balance sheet primarily for otfice operating leases
and the derecognition of existing assets and liabilitics for certain sale-leaseback transactions arising from build-to-suit lease
arrangements for which construction is complete and the Company is leasing the constructed assets that currently do not qualify
for salc accounting.

Allowance for Loan Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued accounting guidance regarding the measurement of credit losses on financial instruments, which
will change the way entities recognize impairment of many financial assets by requiring iminediate recognition o[ estimated credit
losscs expected to occur over the asset's remaining life. The Company currently uses an incurred loss model when calculating its
allowanec for loan losses. As a result, the Company cxpects the new guidance will increase the allowance for loan losses. This
guidance will be effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2020. Early application is permitted beginning January 1, 2019.
This standard represents 2 significant departure from existing GAAP, and may result in sigmificant changes to the Company's
accounting for the allowance for loan losses. The Company is cvaluating the impact this pronounceinent will have on its ongoing
financial reporting.

Statement of Cash Flows

Tn August 2016, lhe FASB issued accounting guidance regarding (he presentation and classification of certain cash receipts and
cash payments in the statement of cash flows. Among the cash flow matiers addressed in the update are payments for cosls related
to debt prepayments ot extinguishments, payments related to settlement of certain types ol debl instruments, payments of contingent
consideration made after a busincss combination, and distributions received from equity mcthod investees, among others, This
guidance is effective for the Cempany beginning January 1, 2018. The guidance will be applicd using a retrospective transition
method to each period presented, unless impracticable for specific cash flow maiters, in which casc the update would be applied
prospectively as of the earliest date practicable. This pronouncement willnothave a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statcments.

Tn Novermber 2016, the FASB issued accounting puidance which provides amendments to current guidance to address the
classifications and presentation of changes in restricted cash in the statement of cash flows. This guidance is effective for the
Company beginning January 1, 2018. The amendments will be applied using a retrospective transition mecthod to cach period
presented, This pronouncement will not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill

InJanuary 2017, the FASH issued accounting guidance which eliminates the two-step process thatrequires identification of potential
impairment and a separate measurc of the actual impairment. Under the new guidance, the annual assessment of goodwill
impairment is determined by using the diffcrence between the carrying amount and the fair valuc of the reporting unit. The effective
date of this standard is January 1, 2020, however, early adoption is permitted for goodwill impaitment tests with measurement
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Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

In 2006, the Company issued €352.7 million of sindent loan assct-backed Turo Notes (the "Huro Notes") with an interest raie based
on a spread to the EURIBOR index. Asaresult, the Company was cxposed to market risk related to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and Euro. The Company cntered inte a cross-currency interest rate swap in connection
witlh the issuance of the Euro Notes. See note 6 of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in this report for additional
information, including a summary of the terms of the cross-currcney interest rate swap associated with the Buro Notes and the
relaled financial statement impact.

On October 25, 2017, the Comnpany compleled a remarketing of the Euro Notes which reset the principal amount outstanding on
the Huro Notes to $450.0 million U.S. dollars, with an interest rate based on the 3-month LIBOR index. In conjunction with the
remarketing of the Euro Notes, the Company terminated the cross-currency interest rate swap.

Financial Statement Impact — Derivatives and Forcign Currency Transaction Adjustments

For a table sumnmarizing the ¢ffect of derivative instruments in the consolidated statements of income, including the components
of "derivative market valuc and foreign currency Iransaction adjustments and derivative settiements, net”" included in the
consolidated statements of income, see note 6 of the notes to consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Referenec is made to the consolidated financial stalements listed under the heading *“(2) L. Consolidated Financial Statcments”™ of
Item 15 of this report, which consolidated {inancial statements are incorporated into this report by reference in responsc to this
Ttem 8.

TTEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None,
TTEM 2A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under supervision and with the participation of certain members of the Company’s management, including the chief executive
and chief financial officers, the Company completed an evaluatiou of the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in SHC Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934). Based on
this evaluation, the Company’s principal executive and principal financial officers concluded that the disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report to provide reasonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed in reports the Company files or submits under the Sceurities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed,
surnmarized, and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and is accumulated and communicated
io the Company's management, including the chief executive and ¢hief fluancial officers, as appropriate to allow limety decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Company’s iuternal control over financial reporting during the Company’s last fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is rcasonably likely to materially aftect, the Company’s intcrnal control over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) for the Company. The Company's internal control system was designed to
provide reasonable assurance to the Company's management and board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation
of published financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, All internal control systems,
no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect lo financial statement preparation and presentation.
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Management maintains a comprchensive sysiem of controls intended to ensure that transactions are executed in accordance with
management's authorization, asscts arc safcguarded, and financial records are reliable. Management also takes steps to ensure that
information and communication flows arc cflective and to monitor performance, including performance of internal control
procedures.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017 based
on the criteria for effective internal contro) described in Tnternal Controf - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organirations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management bclieves that, as of
December 31, 2017, the Company's internal control over financial reporting is effective.

The effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of Deeember 31, 2017 has been audited by KPMG
LLP, the Company's independent registered public accounting firin, as stated in their report included herein, which expressed an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017,

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Internal Controls

The Comnpany's management, including the chief executive and chief financial officers, undersiands that the disclosurc controls
and procedures and internal control over financial reporting are subject to certain limitations, including the exercise of judgment
in designing, implementing, and evaluating the controls and procedures, the assumptions used in identifying the likelihood of
future events, and the inability to eliminate misconduct completely. The design of a control systern musi rellect the fact that there
are resource constraints, and the benefits of a control systemn must he considered relative to their costs. Thesc inherent limitations
include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that hreakdowns can occur because of simple error or
mistake. Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts of somc persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by
management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is hased in part on certain assuinptions about the
likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succced 1n achieving its stated goals under all
potential future conditions. Projcctions of any evaluation of controls effectiveness to future periods are subject to risks. Over
time, controls may become inadequate beeausce of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policics
ot pracedures.

As a result, there can be no assurance that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures or intcrnal control over financial
reporting will prevent all errors or fraud or ensure that all material information will be made known to management in a timely
fashion, By their naturc, the Company's or any system of disclosurc controls and procedures or internal contral over financial
reporting, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance regarding management's control
objectives.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the shareholders and board of directors
Nelnet, Inc.:

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited Nelnet, Inc. and subsidiarics’ (the “Company”) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017,
based on criteria established in Iniernal Control - Integrated Framework (2013} issued by the Committee of Spobsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 1n our opinion, the Company maintained, in a]l material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Conimission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31,2017 and 2016, therelated consolidated slalements
of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2017, and the related noles (collectively, the “consolidated financial statements™), and our report dated Fcbruary
27, 2018 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements,

Basis for Opinion
"The Company’s management is responsible for inaintaining ctfective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the cffectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal

Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting bascd on our sudit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and arc required to be independent with
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respect to the Company in accordance with the 11.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Sceurities
and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform ihe
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Onr audit of intcrnal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating eftectiveness ol
internal conlrol bascd on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered neccssary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit providcs a reasonable basis for our opinion,

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Acompany’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurancc regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policics and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of rceords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as nccessary to permit preparation of financial
staternents in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that reccipts and expenditures of the company arc
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide rcasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s asscts that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degrec of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Lincoln, Nehraska
February 27, 2018

ITEM 9B, OTHER INFORMATION

During the fourth quarter of 2017, no information was required to be disclosed in a report on Form 8-K, but not reported.

PART III.
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information as to the directors, executive officers, corporate governance, and Seclion 16(a) beneficial ownership reporting
compliance of the Cormpany set forth under the captions “PROPOSAL 1 - ELECTION OF DIRHCTORS,” “EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS,” “CORPORAT]L GOVERNANCE,” and “SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS,
AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS - Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” m the definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed on Schedule 14A with the SEC, no later than 120 days aficr the end of the Company's fiscal year, relating to
the Company's 2018 Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be held on May 24, 2018 (the “Proxy Statement™), is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information set forth under the captions “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE” and “EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION” in the
Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference,

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information set forth under the caption “SECURITY OWNERSIHIP OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND
PRINCTPAL SHAREHOLDERS - Stock Ownership” in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. There are no
arrangements known to the Company, the operation of which may at a subscquent date result in a change in the control of the
Company.
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The following table sumumarizes information aboul compensation plans under which equity sceuritics are authorized for issuance.

Equity Compensation I"lan Information

As of December 31, 2017

Number of shares
remaining available for
future issnance nnder

Number of shares to be Weighted-average equity compensation
issued upon exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in
Plan categorv warrants. and rights (a) warrants. and rights (b) column {an (c)

(1} Includes 1,800,188, 37,207, and 491,622 shares of Class A Common Stock remaining available for future issuance under
the Nelnet, Inc. Restricted Stock Plan, Nelnct, Inc. Directors Stock Compensation Plan, and Nelnet, Inc. Employce Sharc
Purchasc Plan, respectively.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information set forth under the captions “CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS,” “CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE - Board Composition and Director Independence,” and “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - Board Commitices™
in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information sct forth under the caption “PROPOSAL 2 - RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT

REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING TIRM - Independent Accountant Fees and Services” in the Proxy Statement is
mcorporated herein by reference.

PART 1V.
I'TEM 15, EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
{a) 1. Consolidated Financial Statements

The lollowing consolidated financial stalements of Nelnet, Tnc, and its subsidiaries and the Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm thereon are included in Ttem 8 above:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 F-3
Consolidated Statcments of Tncome for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 -4
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 E-5
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 -6
Consolidatcd Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-8

2. Finangial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they arc not applicable or the required information is shown in the consolidated financial
statcments or notes thercto,
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3. Exhibits

'I'he exhibits listed in the accompanying index to exhibits are filed, furnished, or incorporated by reference as part of this
report.

(b} Exhibits

Exhibit Index

Exhibit No. Description

2, 1% ++ Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of October 18, 2017, among Nelnet Diversified Solutions, LLC, as
Purchaser, Nelnet, Inc., as Purchaser Parent, and Great Lakes Higher Education Corporation, as Seller.

2.2% First Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of Tebruary 1, 2018, among Nelnet Diversificd
Solutions, LLC, as Purchascr, Nelncet, Inc., as Purchaser Parent, and Great Lakes Higher Education Corporation,
as Seller.

2.3* Second Amendment to Stock Pnrchase Agreement dated as of Febmary 1, 2018, among Nelnet Diversified
Solutions, LLC, as Purchaser, Nelnet, [nc., as Purchaser Parent, and Great Lakes Higher Education Corporation,
as Seller.

3.1 Composite Sccond Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Nelnet, Inc., as amended through May

25,2017, filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2017 and incorporated by refercnee herein.

32 Eighth Amended and Restated Bylaws of Nelnet, Inc., as amended as of May 25, 2017, filed as Exhibit 3.2
to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 25, 2017 and incorporated by reference herein.

4.1 Form of Class A Cominon Stock Certificate of Nelnet, Inc., filed on November 24, 2003 as Exhibit 4.1 to the
registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-1 (Regisiration No. 333-108070) and incorporated by reference
herein.

4.2 Certain instrnments, including indentures of trust, defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the

registrani and its consolidated subsidiaries, none ofwhich instruments authorizes a total amount of indebtedness
thereunder in excess of 10 pereent of the total assets of the registrant and its subsidiarics on a consolidated
basis, are omitted from this Exhibit Index pursuant to llem 601(b){(4)(iii)}{A) of Regulation S-K. Many ofsuch
instruments have been previously filed with the Secunities and Exchange Commission, and the registrant
hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the Comimission upon request.

43 Registration Rights Agrecment, dated as of December 16,2003, by and among Nelnet, Inc, and the sharcholders
of Nelnet, Ine. signatory thereto, filed on November 24, 2003 as Exhihit 4,11 to the registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-108070) and incorporated by reference herein.

10.1 Composite Form of Amended and R estated Participation A greement, dated as of June 1,2001, between NELnet,
Inc. (subsequently renamed National Education Loan Network, Inc.) and Union Bank and Trust Company, as
amended by the First Amendment thereto dated as of December 19, 2001 through the Cancellation of the
Fiftcenth Amendment thereto dated as of March 16, 2011 (such Participation Agreement and each amendment
through the Cancellation of the Fifteenth Amendment thereto have been previously filed as set forth in the
Exhibit Index for the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, and
arc incorpotated by reference herein), filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2013 and incorporated by reference herein

10.2 Sixieenth Amendment of Amended and Restated Participation Agreement, dated as of March 23, 2012, by
and between Union Bank and Trnst Company and National Education Loan Network, Inc., filed as Exhibit
10.3 to the registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended March 31, 2012 and incorporated
by relerence herein.

103 Guaranteed Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2001, by and between NELnet, Inc. (subsequently
renamed National Education Loan Network, Inc.) and Union Bank and Trust Company, filed on September
25,2003 as Exhibit 10.36 to the tegistrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-108070)
and incorporated by reference herein,

10.4 First Amendment of Guaranteed Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2002, by and between NELnet,
Inc. (subsequently renamed National Education Loan Network, Inc.) and Union Bank and Trust Company,
filed on September 25, 2003 as Exhibit 10.37 to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333-108070) and incorporated by reference herein.
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Exhibit Index

Second Amendment of Guaranteed Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between
Nelnet, Inc. ({7k/a/ NELnet, Inc.) (subsequently renamed National Hducation Loan Network, Inc.) and Union
Bank and Trust Company, filed on September 25, 2003 as Exhibit 10.38 to the registrant’s Registration
Statement on Farm $-1 (Registration No. 333-108070) and incorporated by refercnee herein.

Guaranteed Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2010, by and between Nelnet, Inc. and Union Bank
and Trust Company, filed as Tixhibit 10.3 to the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2010 and incorporated by reference herein.

First Amendment of Guaranteed Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 22, 2011, by and between Nelnet,
Tne. and Union Bank and Trust Company, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the registrant's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011 and incorporated by reference herein.

Amendment of Apreements dated as of February 4, 2005, by and between National Education Loan Network,
Inc. and Union Bank and Trust Company, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-
K filed on February 10, 2005 and incorporated by reference herein.

Nelnet, Inc. Employee Share Purchase Plan, as amended through March 17, 2011, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the
registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-() for the quarter ended March 31, 2011 and incorporated by reference
herein.

Office Building Lease dated June 21, 1996 beiwcen Miller & Paine and Union Bank and Trust Company, filed
as Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 16, 2006 and incorporated by
reference herein.

Amendment to Office Building Lease daled June 11, 1997 between Miller & Paine and Union Bank and Trust
Company, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 16, 2006 and
incorporated by reference herein.

Lease Amendment Number Two dated February §, 2001 between Miller & Painc and Union Bank and Trust
Company, filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the registrant's Current Report on Form §-K filed on October 16, 2006 and
incorporated by reference herein.

Lcase Amendment Number Three dated May 23, 2005 between Miller & Paine, LL.C and Union Bank and
Trust Company, filed as Exhibit 10.6 Lo the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 16, 2006
and incorporated by reference herein.

Lease Amendment Number Four dated November 13, 2007 between M & P Building, LLC and Union Bank
and Trust Company.

Lease Amendment Number Five entered into in September 2008 between M & P Building, LLC and Union
Bank and Trust Company,

Lease Amendment Number Six dated December 15, 2017 between Nelnet Real Estate Ventures, Inc, and Union
Bank and Trust Company.

Lease Agreement dated May 20, 2005 between Miller & Paine, LLC and Union Bank and Trust Company,
filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the registrant's Ciurent Report on Form 8-K filed on October 16, 2006 and incorporated
by reference herein.

Office Soblease dated April 30, 2001 between Union Bank and Trust Company and Nelnet, Inc., filed as
Exhibit 10.8 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 16, 2006 and incorporated by
reference herein,

Nelnet, Inc. Restricted Stock Plan, as amended through May 22, 2014, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 28, 2014 and incorporated by reference herein,

Nelnet, Inc. Directors Stock Compensation Plan, as amended through April 18, 2008, filed on June 27, 2008
as Exhibit 99.1 to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-8 (Registration No. 333-151911) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Nelnet, Inc. Exceutive Officers Tncentive Compensation Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on May 28, 2014 and incorporated by reference herein.

Nelnet, Inc. Executive Officers Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended effective March 9, 2017, filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 and
incorporated by reference herein.
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Exhibit Index

Loan Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 25, 2008, by and between Nelnet Education Loan Funding,
Inc., f/k/aNEBHELP, INC ., acting, wherc applicablc, by and through Wells Fargo Bank, National Association,
not individually but as Eligible Lender Trustee for the Scller under the Warchouse Agrecment or Eligible
Lender Trust Agreement, and Union Bank and Trust Company, acling in its individual capacity and as trustee,
filed as Exhibit 10.71 to the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008
and incorporated hercin by reference,

Student Loan Servicing Conltract belween the United States Department of Education and Nelnet Servicing,
L1LC, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

Madification of Contract dated effective as of June 17, 2014 for Student Loan Servicing Conlract belween
the United States Department of Education and Nelnet Servicing, LLC, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's
Current Repori on Form 8-K filed on June 18, 2014 and incorporated by reference herein.

Modification of Contract dated effective as of Septemnber 1, 2014 for Student Loan Servicing Contract between
the United States Department of Education and Nelnet Servicing, LLC, filed as Exhibit 10.] to the registrant's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 2, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference,

Management Agreement, dated effective as of May 1, 2011, by Whitetail Rock Capiial Managemeni, LLC
and Union Bank and Trust Company, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

Management Agreement, dated effective as of January 20, 2012, by and between Union Bank and Trust
Company and Whitetail Rock Capilal Management, LLC, filed as Exhibit 10.58 to the registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 140-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 and incorporated herein hy reference.

Management Agreement, dated effective as of October 27, 2015, by and belween Union Bank and Trust
Company and Whitetail Rock Capital Management, LLC, filed as Exhibit 10.25 to ihe registrant's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 and imcorporated herein by reference.

Managemenl Agreement, daled effective as ol JTanuary 4, 2016, by and between Union Bank and Trust Company
and Whitetail Rock Capital Management, LLC, filed as Exhibit 101 to the registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.

Management Agreement, dated cffeetive as of March 23, 2017, by and between Union Bank and Trust Company
and Whitetail Rock Capital Management, LLC, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 and incorporated by reference herein,

Investment Management Agreement, dated effective as of February 10, 2012, by and among Whiletail Rock
SLAB Fund I, LLC, Whitetail Rock Fund Management, LLC, and Whitetail Rock Capital Management, LLC,
filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012
and incorporated herein by reference,

Investment Management Agreement, dated effective as of Fehruary 14, 2013, by and among Whitctail Rock
SLAB Fund I, LLC, Whitetail Rock Fund Management, LLC, and Whitetail Rock Capital Management,
LLC, filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2013 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Custodian Agreement for Whitetail Rock SLAB Funds by and among the Fund, Whitetail Rock Fund
Management, LLC, and Union Bank and Trust Company, filed as Exhibit 10.27 to the registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year cnded December 31, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Administrative Services Agreement for Whitetail Rock SLAB Funds by and among the Fund, Whitetail
Rock Fund Management, LLC, Adminisystems, Inc., and Union Bank and Trust Company, filed as Exhibit
10.28 to the registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decernber 31, 2014 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of October 30, 2013, among Nelnet, Inc., U.S. Bank National
Association, as Administrative Agent, l.ead Arranger and Book Runner, Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as Syndication Agent, and Citibank, N.A. and Royal Bank of Canada, as Co-Documentation
Agents, and various lender parties thereto, filed as Fxhibit 10.1 to the registrant's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q) tor the quarter ended Septernber 30, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment No. | dated as of December 12, 2016 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as
af October 30, 2015, by and among Nelnet, Inc., U.S. Bank National Association, as Administrative Agent,
and various lender parties thereto, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on Decernber 14, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.
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Exhibit Index

Amended and Restated Guaranty daled as of Oclober 30, 2015, by each of the subsidiaries of Nelnet, Inc.
signatorics thereto, in favor of U.S. Bank National Association, as Administrative Agent, filed as Exhibii 10.2
to the registraut's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Annex I to Guaranty dated as of December 12, 2016 to the Amended and Restated Guaranty dated as of October
30, 2015 by ALLO Communications LLC, a subsidiary of Nelnet, Inc., in favor of U.S. Bank National
Association, as Administrative Agent, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the regisirant's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on December 14, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.

Alrcraft Purchase Agreement dated as of May 20, 2013, by and between Galena Air Services Company and
National Education Loan Network, Inc., filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the regisirant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 and incorporated by reference herein.

First Amendmcnt of Aireraft Purchase Agreement dated as of June 11, 2013, by and between Galena Air
Services Company and National Education Loan Network, Iuc., filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the rcgistrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 and incorporated by reference herein.

Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Interest in Aircraft dated as of June 25, 2013, by and between National
Education Loan Network, Inc. and Union Financial Services, Inc., filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 and incorporated by reference herein.

Aircraft Joiut Ownership Agreement dated as of June 25, 2013, by and between National Education Loan
Network, Inc. and Union Fiuancial Services, Inc., filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the registrant's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 and incorporated by reference herein.

AircraftManagement Agreement, dated as of Junc 25,2013, by and between Duncan Aviation, Inc. and National
Fducation Loan Network, Ine. and Union Financial Services, Inc., filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 and incorporated by reference herein,

Consulting and Services Agreement made and entered into as of May 1, 2013, by and between Nelnet, Inc.,
and Union Bank and Trust Coinpany, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter euded September 30, 2013 and incorporated by reference herein.

Amended and Restated Consulting and Services Agreement made and enlered into as of October 1, 2013, by
and between Nelnet, Inc. and Union Bank and Trust Company, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the registrant's Quarterly
Report on Form 19-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 and incorporated by reference herein,

Master Privale Loan Program Agreement dated as of December 22, 2014, by and between Union Bank and
Trust Company and Nelnet, Inc., filed as Exhibit 10.43 to the registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference.

Education Loan Marketing and Referral Agrecement dated as of December 22, 2014, by and between Nelnet
Consumer Finance, Inc. and Union Bank and Trust Company, fited as Exhibit 10.44 to the registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference.

Private Student Loan Origination and Servicing Agreement dated as of December 22, 2014, by and between
Nelnet Servicing, LLC and Union bank and Trust Company, filed as Exhibit 10.45 to the registrani's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 and incorporated herein by refercnee.

Guaranteed Purchase Agreement dated as of December 22, 2014, by and between Nelnet, Ine. and Union Bank
and Trust Company, filed as Exhibit 10.46 to the registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference.

Private Loan Sale Agreement dated as of October 9, 2014, by and between Nelnet, Inc. and Union Bank and
Trust Company, filed as Exhibit 10.47 to the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference.

Private Student Loan Scrvicing Agreement dated as of October 9, 2014, by and between Nelnct Servieing,
LLC and Union Bank and Trust Coinpany, filed as Exhibit 10.48 to the registrant's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference,

First Amendment of Loan Servicing Agreement dated as of September 27, 2013, by and between Nelnet, Inc.
and Union Bank and Trust Company, filcd as Exhibit 10.49 to the registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2014 and incorporaled herein by reference.

Private Loan Scrvicing Letter Agreement dated as of February 27, 2017, by and between Nclnet Servicing,
LLC and Union Bank and Trust Company.
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10.55% Form of Trust/Custodial/Safckecping Agrecment by and between National Education Loan Network, Inc., as
Principal, and Union Bank and Trust Company, as Trustee.

10.56% Form of Special Investment Directions by National Education Loan Network, In¢. and its affiliates, as Principal
under the Form of Trust/Custodial/Safekeeping Agreement between Principal and Union Bank and Trust
Campany, as Trustee,

21.1% Subsidiaries of Nelnet, Inc.

23.1* Consent of KPMG LI.D, Independent Registered Public Accouniing Firm.

311* Certitication Pursuant to Scction 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ot Chief Exccutive Officcr Jeffrey
R. Noordhoek.

3.2+ Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbancs-Oxley Act of 2002 of Chief Financial Officer James D.
Kruger.

32%* Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Scetion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002,

101, INS* XBRL Instance Document

101.8CH*  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documcent

101.CAL*  XBRL Taxcnomy Oxtension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF*  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB* XBRI. Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE*  XBRL Taxonomy Lixteusion Presentation Linkbase Document

*x

*#

+

et

Yiled herewith
Furnished herewith

Indicatcs a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement contemplated by Ttem 15(a}(3) on
Formi 10-K.

Pursuant to Ttem 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, certain schedules and similar attachments to the exhibit have been
omittcd, The registrant hereby agrees to fumish supplementally a copy of any omitted schedule or attachment to the
U.S. Securitics and Exchange Commission upon request. The exhibit is nel intended to be, and should not be relied
upon as, including disclosures regarding any facts and circumstances relating to the registrant or any of its subsidiaries
or affiliates. The exhibit containg representations and warranties by the registrant and the other parties that werc made
only for purposes of the agreement set forth in the cxhibit and as of specified dates. The representations, warranties,
and covenants in the agreemenl were made solely for the benefit of the parties to the agreement, may be subject to
limitations agreed upon by the contracting parties (including being qualified by confidential disclosures made for the
purposcs of allocating contractual risk between the parties to the agreement instead of establishing these matters as
facts), and may apply contractual standards of materiality or material adverse effcct that generally differ from those
applicable to investors, In addition, information conceruing the subject matter of the representations, warranties, and
covenants may change after the date of the agreement, which subsequent information may or may not be fully reflected
in the regisirant's public disclosures.

Filed herewith for purposes of providing a complele sel of all amendment documents to the Office Building Lease by
and among M & P Building, LLC and Union Bank and Trust Company. The Office Building Lease and all prior
amendment documents thereto have been previously filed.

+ Certain portions of this exhibit have been redacted and are subject to a confidential treatment ordet granted by the U.S,

Sceuritics and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934,

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

The Company has elected not to include an optional summary of information required by Form 10-K,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Scction 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: Fcbruary 27, 2018
NELNET, INC

By: /s/ JEFFREY R. NOORDHOEK
Name: Jeffrey R. Noordhoek
Title: Chief Executive Officer

{(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Daie
/s JEFFREY R. NOORDHOEK Chief Executive Officer February 27, 2018

(Principal Executive Officer)

Jeffrey R. Noordhoek

\ Chief Financial Officer
fs/ IAMES D. KRUGER (Principal Financial Officer and February 27, 2018
JTames D. Krugcr Principal Accounting Cfficer)
fsf MICHAEL S. DUNLAP Executive Chairman February 27, 2018

Michael 8. Dunlap

/s{ STEPHEN F. BUTTERIIELD Viece Chairman February 27, 2018
Stephen F. Butterfield
/s/ JAMES P. ABEL Director Fcbruary 27, 2018
James P. Abel
/s/ WILLIAM R. CINTANI Director February 27, 2018
William R. Cintani
/s KATHLEEN A. FARRELL Director February 27, 2018
Kathleen A. Farrell
/s/ DAVID S. GRAFF Director February 27, 2018
David S. Graff
/st THOMAS E. HENNING Director February 27, 2018
Thomas E. Henning
/s KIMBERLY K. RATH Director February 27, 2018
Kimberly K. Rath
/s/ MICHAEL D. REARDON Director February 27, 2018

Michael D. Reardon
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the shareholders and board of directors
Nelnet, Inc.:

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Nelnet, Inc. and subsidiarics (the “Company™) as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the rclated consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, sharcholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes (collectively, the
“consolidated financial statements™). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present faicly, in all matenial respects,
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
cach of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2017, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovcrsight Board (United States)
(*PCAOB™), the Company’s intcrmal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (200!3) issucd by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission, and our report dated February 27, 2018 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether
due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statcments, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedurcs that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Cur audits
also included cvaluating the acconnting principles used aud significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ KPMG LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1998.

Lincoln, Nebraska
February 27, 2018
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NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcments
{Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)

1. Description of Business

Nelnet, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Nelnet” or the “Company™) is a diverse company with a focus on delivering cducation-related
products and services and loan asset management. The largest nperating businesses engage in loan servicing, itinn payment
processing and school information systems, and communications. A significant portion of the Company's revenue is net intercst
income earned on a portfolio nf federally insured student loans. The Company also makes investments to further diversify the
Company both within and outside of its historical corc cducation-refated businesses, including, but not limited to, investments in
real cstate and start-up ventures. Substantially all revenuc from external customers is earned, and all long-lived assets are located,
in the United States.

"The Company was formed as a Nebraska corporation in 1978 to service federal student loans for two local banks. The Company
built on this initial foundation as a servicer 10 become a leading originator, holder, and servicer of federal student loans, principally
consisting of loans originated under the Federal Family Education Loan Program (“FFELP” or “FFEL Program™) of the 1.5.
Department of Education {the “Department’),

The TTealth Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (the "Reconciliation Act of 2010”) discontinued new loan originations
under the FFEL Program, effective July 1, 2010, and requires that all ncw federal student loan originations be made dircctly by
the Department through the Federal Direct Loan Program. This law does not alter or affect the terms and conditions of existing
FFELP loans. As a result of this law, the Company no longer originates new FFELP loans. To reduce its reliance on interest
income on student loans, the Company has expanded its services and products. This expansion has been accomplished through
internal growth and innovation as well as business acquisitions.

The Company bas four reportable operating segments. The Company's reportable operating segments include:

» Loan Systems and Servicing

+ Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce
» Communications

+ Asset Generation and Management

A description of each reportable opcrating segment is included below. See note 15 for additional information on the Company's
segment reporting.

Loan Systems and Servicing
The primary service offerings of the Loan Systems and Servicing operating scpment include:

= Servicing federally-owned student loans for the Department of Education

»  Servicing FFELP loans

*  Originating and servicing private education and consumer loans

»  Providing student loan servicing software and other information technology products and services
¢ Providing outsourced services including call center, proccssing, and marketing services

In addition, this segment provided servicing and outsourcing services for FFELP guaranty agencies, including FFELP guaranty
collection services, through June 30, 2016.

The Loan Systems and Servicing operating scgment provides for the servicing of the Company's student loan portfolio and the
portfolios of third parties. The loan servicing activities include loan conversion activities, application processing, barrower updates,
customer service, payment processing, due diligence procedures, funds management reconciliations, and ¢laim processing. These
activities are performed internally for the Company's portfolio in addition to generating external fee revenue when performed for
third-party clients.

The Conipany is one of four private sector companies {referred to as Title IV Additional Servicers, or "TIVAS") awarded a student
loan servicing contract by the Department to provide additional servicing capacily for loans owned by the Department,

This operating segment also provides student loan servicing software, wbich is used internally by the Company and licensed to
third-party student loan holders and servicers. These softwarc systems have been adapted so that they can be offered as hosted
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NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (continued)
{Dollars in thousands, cxcept share amounts, unless otherwise noted)

scrvicing software sclutions usable by third partics to service various types of student loans, including Federal Direct Loan Program
and FFEL Program loans.

This segment also provides business process outsourcing specializing in contact center management. The contact center solutions
and services include taking inbound calls, helping with outreach campaigns and sales, and intcracting with customers through
multi-channels.

In addition, this operating segment provided servicing activities for guaranty agencics, which serve as intermediaries between the
Department and FFELP lenders, and are respousible for paying the claims made on defaulted loans, The services provided by the
Company included providing software and data center services, borrower and loan updates, default aversion tracking services,
claim processing services, and post-default collection services. The Company's guaranty scrvicing and collection revenuc was
earned from two guaranty servicing clients. A contract with one client expired on October 31, 2015, and was not renewed. The
remaining guaranty servicing client exited the FFELP guaranty business at the end of their contract term on June 30, 2016, and
afier this datc the Company has no remaining guaranty servicing and collection revenue.

Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce

The Company's Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce operating segment provides products and services to help
students and families manage the payment of education costs at all levels (K-12 and higher edncation), Tn addition, this operating
segment provides K-12 private and faith-based schools (i) school information sysiem sofiwarc that help schools automate
administrative processes snch as admissions, scheduling, student billing, attendance, and gradc book management and (ii)
professional development and cducational iustruction services. This segment also provides innovative education-focused
technologies, services, and support solutions to help schools with the everyday challenges of collecting and processing commerce
data.

In the K-12 market, the Company offers actively managed tition payment plans and billing services, school information system
and learning management software, professional development and educational instruction services, and assistance with financial
needs assessment and donor managemeni. Ju the higher educailon markei, the Company primarily offers actively managed tuition
payment plans and campus commerce technologies and payment processing,

Outside of the education market, the Company also offers payment services including electronic transfer and credit card processing,
reporting, billing and invoicing, mobile and virtual terminat solutions, and spccialized integrations to business software.

Communications

OnDecember 31,2015, the Company purchased lhe majority of the ownership interests of ALLO Communications LLC (“ALLO™).
ALLO provides pure fiber optic service to homes and businesses for intemnet, broadband, television, and telephone scrvices. The
acquisition of ALLO provides additional diversification of the Company's revenues and cash flows outside of cducation. Tn
addition, the acquisition leverages lhe Company's existing infrastructure, customer service capabilitics and call centers, and financial
strength and liquidity for continucd growth. For financial reporting purposes, the Company providcs the operating results of ALLO
as a separate reportable opcrating segment. The ALLO assets acquired and liabilities assumncd were recorded by the Company at
their respective estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. As such, ALLO’s assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2015
are included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. However, ALLO had no impact on the censolidated statement ofincome
for 2015. Beginning January 1, 2016, the Company began to reflect the operations of ALLO in the consolidated statements of
Income.

ALLQ derives its revenue primarily (rom the sale of communication services to residential and business customers in Nebraska,
Intemet, broadband, and television services include revenue frorn residential and business cnstomers for subscriptions to ALLO's
video and data prodnets. ALLO data scrvices provide high-speed internet access over ALLO's all-fiber network at various
symmetrical speeds of up 1o 1 gigabit per second for residential customers and is capable of providing symmetrical speeds of over
1 gigabit per second for business custorners. Local calling services include fiber ielephonc service and other basic services. Long-
distance services includc traditional domestic and international long distance which enables customers to make calls that terminate
outside their local calling arca.
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NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcmenls - (continued)
{Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)

Asset Generation and Management

The Company's Asset Generation and Management operating segment includes the acquisilion, management, and ownership of
the Company's loan assets. Substantially all loan assets included i this segment are student loans originated under the FFEL
Propram, including the Stafford Loan Program, the PLUS Loan program, and loans that reflcet the consolidation into a single loan
of certain previously separate borrower obligations (“Consolidation” loans). The Corupany also acquires private education and
consumer loans. The Company generates a substaptial portion of its eamings from the spread, referred to as the Company's loan
spread, betwcen the yield it receives on its loan portfolio and the associated costs to finance such portfolio. The student loan
assets are held in a series of'education lending subsidiaries and associated scouritization trusts designed specifically for this purpose.
In addition to the loan spread earncd on its portfolio, all costs and activity associated with manaping the portfolio, such as servicing
of the assets and debt maintenance, arc included in this segment.

Corporate and Other Activities

Otherbusiness activitics and aperating segments that are notreportable are combined and included in Corporate and Other Activities.
Corporate and Other Activitics inelnde the following items:

«  Theoperating results of Whitctail Rock Capital Manapgement, LLC {"WRCM"), the Company's SEC-registered investment
advisor subsidiary

+ Income eamed on certain investment activitics, including real estate and start-up ventures

+  Interest cxpense incurred on unsecured debt trangactions

«  Other product and service offerings that are not considered reportable operating segments

Corporate and Other Activitics also include certain corporate activities and overhcad functions related to executive management,
human resources, accounting, lcgal, cnterprise risk management, information technology, occupancy, and marketing. These costs
are allocated to each operating segment bascd on estimated use of such activities and scrvices.

2. Recent Developments

On Fcbruary 7, 2018, the Company acquired 100 percent of the outstanding stock of Great Lakes Educational Loan Services, Inc.
(“Great Lakcs™) for a purchase price of $150.0 million in cash. The Company and Great Lakes are two of the four large private
sector companics, or TIVAS, that have student loan servicing contracts with the Department of Hducation to provide servicing for
loans owned hy the Department. The operating results of Great Lakes will be included in the Company's Loan Systems and
Servicing operating segment beginning February 7, 2018,

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices
Consolidation

The consolidated (inancial statements include the accounis of Nelnet, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. In addition, the accounts
of all variable interest entities {“VIEs") of which the Company has determined that it is the primary beneficiary are included in
the consolidated financial slalements. All sigmficant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Variable Interest Entities

The following entities arc VIEs of which the Company has determincd that it is the primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary
is the entity which has both: (1) the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's cconomic
performance, and (2) the obligation to absorb losses or receive benefits of the entity that could potentially be significant to the
VIE.

The Company's education lending suhsidiaries are engaged in the securitization of education finance assets. These education
lending subsidiaries hold beneficial interests in eligible loans, subject to creditors with specific interests. The liabilities of the
Company's education lending subsidiaries are not the direct obligations of Nelnet, Inc. or any of its other subsidiaries. Bach
education lending subsidiary is sttuctured to be bankruptcy remote, meaning that it should not be consolidated in the event of
bankruptcy of the parent company ot any other subsidiary. The Company is generally the administrator and master servicer of the
securitized assets held in its education lending subsidiaries and owns the residual interest of the securilization trusts. As a result,
for accounting purposcs, the transfers of student loans to the securitization trusts do not qualify as sales. Accordingly, all the
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NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Naotes to Consolidated Financial Statements — {continucd)
(Daollars in thousands, except sharc amounts, unless otherwise noted)

financial activities and rclated assets and liabilities, including debt, of the securitizations arc reflected in the Company's consalidated
financial statements and arc summarized as supplemental information on the balance sheel.

The Company owns 91.5 percent of the cconomic rights of ALLO Communications LLC and has a disproportional 80 percent of
the voling rights related to all operaling decisions for ALLO's business, See note 1, “Description of Business,” for a description
of ALLO, including the primary services offered. ALLO's management, as cwrrent minority members, has the opportunity to earm
anadditional 11.5 percent ofthe 1otal ownership interests based on the financial performance of ALLO, Tnaddition to the Company’s
cquity investment, Nelnel, Inc. (the parent) has issued a $270.0 million line of credil to ALLO. As of December 31, 2017 and
2016, the outstanding balance, including accrued interest, on the line of credit was $193.1 million and $58.0 miliion, respectively.
Nelnet, Inc.’s maximum exposurc to loss as a result of its involvement with ALLO is ¢qual to its equity investment and the
outstanding balance and accrued interest on the line of credit, The amounts awed by ALLO to Nelnet, Inc., including the intercst
costs incwred by ALLO and interest eamnings recognized by Nelnet, Inc., are not reflected in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet as they were climinated in consolidation. All of ALLO’s financial activities and rclated assets and liabilities, excluding the
line of credit, are reflected in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Sce note 15, “Segment Reporting,” for disclosure
of ALLO’s total assets and results of operations (included in the "Communications" operating segment), note 10, "Goodwill," for
disclosure of ALLO's goodwill, and note 11, “Property and Equipment,” for disclosure of ALLO’s fixed assets, ALLO's goodwill
and property and equipment comprise the majority of its assets. The asscts tccognized as a result of consolidating ALLO are the
property of ALLO and are not available for any other purpose, other than to Nelnet, Inc. as a secured lender under ALLQO's line of
credit,

Noncontrolling Interests

Amounts for noncontrolling interests reflect the proportionate share of membership interest (equity) and net income attributable
to the holders of minority membership intcrests in the following entities:

*  Whitctail Rock Capital Management, LLC - WRCM is the Company’s SEC-registered investment advisar subsidiary.
WRCM issued 10 percent minority membership interests on January 1, 2012,

*  ALLO Communications LLC - On December 31, 2015, the Company purchased 92.5 percent of thc owncrship interests
of ALLO. On January 1, 2016, the Company sold a 1.0 percent ownership interest in ALLO to a non-rclated third-party.
The remaining 7.5 percent of the ownership interests of ALLO is owned by ALLO management, who has the opportunity
to earn an additional 11.5 percent (up to 19 percent) of the total ownership interests based on the financial performance
of ALLO.

* 401 Building, LLC (*401 Building”) - 401 Building is an ¢ntity established on October 19, 2015 for the sole purpose of
acquiring, developing, and operating a commercial building. The Company owns 50 percent of 401 Building.

*  TDP Phase Three, LLC (“TDP") and TDP Phase Three- NM'TC ("TDP-NMTC") - TDP and TDP-NMTC are entities that
were established in October 2015 for the sole purpose of developmg and operating the new headquarters of Hudl. The
Company owns 25 percent of each TDP and TDP-NM'TC.

*  330-333 Building, LLC{"330-333 Building") - 330-333 Building is an entity established on January 14, 2016 for the sole
purpos¢ of acquiring, developing, and operating a commercial building. The Company owns 50 percent of 330-333
Building.

The Company is a tenant in the 401 Building, the headquarters of Hudl, and the 330-333 Building. Because the Company,
as lessee, was involved in the asset construction, 401 Building, TDP, TDP-NMTC, and 330-333 Building are included
in the Company's consolidated financial statements,

+  GreatNet Solutions, LLC ("GreatNet") - GreatNct is a joint venture created to respond to an initiative by the Department
for the procurement of a contract for federal student loan servicing, As of December 31, 2017, Nelnet Scrvicing, LLC
("Nclnct Servicing"), a subsidiary of the Company, and Great Lakes cach owned 50 percent of the ownership interests
in GreatNet, For financial reporting purposes, the balance shect and operating results of GrealNet are included in the
Company's consolidated financial statements and presented in thc Company's Loan Systenis and Servicing operating
segment, On February 7, 2018, the Company purchased 100 pereent of the outstanding stock of Great Lakes. See note
2, “Recent Developments” for additional information on this business acquisition.
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NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (continued)
{Dotllars in thousands, cxcept share amounts, unless otherwise noted)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP™) requires management to make a number of estimates and assurmptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, reported amounts of revenues and expenses, and other disclosures. Actual results may differ [rom those estimates.

Loans Receivable

Loans consist of federally insured student Joans, private education loans, and consumer loans. 1f the Company has the ability and
intent to hold loans for the foreseeable future, such loans are held for investment and carried at amortized cost. Amortized cost
includes the unamortized premium or discount and capitalized origination costs and fees, all of which are amortized to interest
income. Loans which are held-for-investment also have an allowance for loan loss as nceded. Any loans the Company has the
ability and intent to scll are classified as held for sale and are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Loans which are held for
sale do not have the associated premium ar discount and origination costs and fees amortized into interest income and there is also
no related allowance for loan losscs. There were no loans classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Federally insnred loans were originated under the FFEL Program by certain cligible lenders as defined by the Higher Education
Act of 1965, as amended (the “Higher Education Act”). These loans, including rclated accrued interest, are guaranteed at their
maximum level permitted under the Higher Education Act by an authorized guaranty agency, which has a contract of reinsurance
with the Department, The terms of the loans, which vary on an individual basis, generally provide for repayment in monthly
installments of principal and interest. Generally, Stafford and PLUS loans have repayment periods betwecn five and ten years.
Consolidation loans have repayment periods of twelve to thirty years. FFELP loans do not require repayment while the borrower
is in-school, and during the grace period immediately upon leaving school. The borrower may also be granted a deferment or
forbearance for a period of time based on need, during which time the borrower is not considered to be in repayment. Intcrest
continues to accrue on loans in the in-school, deferment, and forbearance program periods. In addition, eligible borrowers may
qualify for income-driven repayment plans offered by the Department. Thesc plans determine the borrower's payment amount
based on their diseretionary income and may extend their repayment period. Intercst rates on federally insured student loans may
be fixed or variable, dependent upon the type of loan, terms of the loan agreements, and date of origination.

Substantially all FFELP loan principal and related accrued interest is guaranteed as provided by the Highcr Education Act. These
guarantees are subject to the performance of certain loan servicing due diligence procedures stipulated by applicable Department
regulations, If these dne diligencee requircments are not met, affected student loans may not be covered by the guaraniees in the
event of borrower default. Such student loans are subject to “cure” procedures and reinstatement of the guarantee under certain
circumstances.

Loans also include private education and consumer loans, Private education loans are loans to students or their families that are
non-federal loans and loans not insured or guaranfeed under the FFEL Program. These loans are used primarily to bridge the gap
between the cost of higher education and the amount funded through financial aid, federal loans, or borrowers' personal resources.
The (erms of the privale education loans, which vary on an individual basis, generally provide forrepayment in monthly installments
of principal and intercst over a period of up to 30 years. The private education loans are not covered by 1 guaraniee or collateral
in the event of borrower default. Consumer loans are nnsecured loans to an individual for personal, family, or household pnrposes.
The terms of the consumer loans, which vary on an individoal basis, generally provide for repayment in weekly or monthly
installments of principal and interest over a period of up to 6 ycars.

Allowarnce for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents management's estimate of probable Josscs on loans, The provision for loan losses reflects
the activity for the applicable period and provides an allowance at a level that the Company's management believes is appropriate
to cover probablc losscs inherent in the loan portfolio. The Company evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on
its federally insured loan portfolio separately from its privale education and consumer loan portfolios. These cvaluation processes
are subject to numerous judgments and uncertainties.

The allowance for the federally insurcd loan portfolio is based en periodic evaluations of the Company's loan portfolios considering
loans in repayment versus those in a nonpaying status, delinquency status, trends in defaults in the portfolio based on Company
and industry data, past experience, trends in student loan claims rejected for payment by guarantors, changes to federal student
loan programs, eurrent economic conditions, and other relevant factors. The federal government guarantees 97 percent of the
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principal of and the interest on federally insured student loans disbursed on and aller July 1, 2006 (and 98 percent for those loans
disbursed on and after October 1, 1993 and prior to July 1, 2006), which limits the Company's loss exposure on the outstanding
balance of thc Company's federally insured portfolin. Student loans disbursed prior to October 1, 1993 are fully insured.

In determining the appropriate allowance for loan losses on the private education and consumer loans, the Company considers
several factors, including: loans in repayment versus those in a nonpaying status, delinquency status, type of program, trends in
defaults in the portfolio based on Company and industry data, past experience, current economic conditions, and other relevant
factors, The Company places privatc education and consumer loans on nonacerual status when the collection of principal and
intcrest is 90 days past due, and charges off the loan when the collection of principal and interest is 120 days past due. Collections,
if any, are reflected as a recovery through the allowance for loan losses.

Management has determined that each of the federally insured loan portfolio, private education loan portfolio, and consumer loan
portfolio meets the definition of a portfolio segment, which is defined as the level at which an entity develops and documents a
systematic method for determining its allowance for credit losses. Accordingly, the portfolio segment disclosures are presented
on this basis in note 4 for each of these portfolios. The Company does not disaggregate its portfolio segment loan portfolios into
classes of finaucing receivables. The Company collectively evaluates loans for impairmeni and as of December 31,2017 and 2016,
the Company did not have any impaired loans as defined in the Receivables Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification.

For loans purchased where there is evidence of credit deterioration since the origination of the loan, the Company records a credit
discount, scparate from the allowance for loan losses, which is non-accretable to intercst income. Remaining discounts and
premiums for purchased loans are recognized in interest income over the remaining cstimated lives of the loans. The Company
contioucs to evaluate credit losses associated with purchased loans based on current information and changes in expectations to
detcrmine the need for any additional allowance for loan losses.

Cash and Cask Equivalents and Statement of Cash Flows

For purpases of the consolidated statcments of cash flows, the Company considers all investments with oripinal maturitics of three
months ur less 1o be cash equivalents,

Accrued interest on loans purchased and sold is included in cash flows from operating activities in the respective period. Net
purchased loan accrued intercst was $71.4 million in 2015. Net purchascd loan accrued interest in 2017 and 2016 was insignificant.

Investments

The Company's available-for-sale investment portfolio consists of student loan and other asset-backed sccurities and equity and
debt securities. These securities are carried at fair value, with the temporary changes in fair value, net of taxes, carried as a separate
component of shareholders® equity. The amortized cost of debt securities in this category (including the student loan and other
asset-backed sccurities) is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, which are amortized using the effective
interest rate method. Other-than-temporary impairment is evaluated by considering scveral factors, including the length of time
and cxtent to which the fair value has been less than the amortized cost basis, the financial condition and near-term prospects of
the issuer of the security (considering factors such as adverse conditions specific to the security and ratings agency actions), and
the intent and ability of the Company to retain the investment to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. The entire fair
value loss on a secority that has experienced an other-than-temporary impairment is recorded in earnings if the Company inteuds
to sell the security or if it is more likely than not thal the Company will be required to sell the security before the expected recovery
of the loss. However, if the impairment is other-than-temporary, and either of those two conditions does not exist, the portion of
the impairment related to credit losses is recorded in earnings and the impairment related to other factors is recorded in other
comprehensive income.

Securitics classified as trading are accounted for at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in "other income" in the
consolidated statements of income.

When an investment is sold, the cost basis is determined through specitfic identification of the security sold.

"The Company accounts for investments in which it does not have significant influence or a controlling financial interest using the
cost method of accounting. Cost method investments are recorded at cost. Cost method investments are evaluated for other-than-
temporary impairment in the satne manner as described above for available-for-sale investinents.
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The Company accounts for investments over which it has significant influcnce but not a controlling financial interest using the
equity method of accounting, Equity method investments are recorded at cost and subsequently incrcased or deercased by the
amount ofthe Comnpany’s proportionate share ofthe net earnings or losses and other comprehensive income ofthe investee. Equity
method investments are evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment using certain impairment indicators such as a scrics of
operating losses of an investee or other factors. These factors may indicate that a decrease in value of the investment has occurred
that is other-than-temporary and shall be recopnized.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash primarily includes amounts for student loan securitizations and other secured borrowings. This cash must be used
to make payments related to trust obligations. Amounts on deposit in these accounts are primarily the result of timing differences
between when principal and interest is collected on the student loans held as trust assets and when principal and interest is paid
on the lrust's assel-backed debi securities. Reslricted cash also includes collateral deposits with derivative counterparties and
third-parly clearinghouses.

Restricted Cash - Due to Customers

As a servicer of student loans, the Company collects student loan remittances and subsequently disburses these remittances to the
appropriate lending entities. In addition, as part of the Company's Tuition Payment Processing and Cainpus Commerce operating
segment, the Company collects tuition payments and subsequently remits these payments to the appropriate schools. Cash collected
for customers and the relaled liability are included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are presented at their net realizable values, which include allowances for doubtful accounts. Allowance
estimates are based upon individual customer experience, as well as the age of receivables and likelihood of collection,

Business Combinations

The Company uses the acquisition method in accounting for acquired businesses. Under the acquisition method, the financial
statements reflect the operations of an acquired business starting from the completion of the acquisition. The assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are recorded at their respective estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the purchase
price over the estimated fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. All contingent consideration is
measured at fair value on the acquisition date and included in the consideration transferred in the acquisition. Contingent
consideration classified as a liability is remeasured to fair valuc at cach reporting date until the contingency 13 resolved, and changes
in fair value are recognized in eamings,

Goodwill

The Company reviews goodwill for impairment annually (in the fourth quarter) and whenever triggering events or changes in
circumstances indicate its carrying value may not be recoverable. Goodwill is tested for impairment using a fair value approach
at thcreporting unit level, A reporting unit is the operating segment, or a business one level below that operating segment if discrete
financial information is prepared and regularly reviewed by segment management. However, components arc agpregated as a
single reporting unit if they have similar economic characteristics.

The Company tests goodwill for impairment in accordance with applicable accounting guidance. The guidance provides an cotity
the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or circuinstances leads to a determination
that it is more likely than not {more than 50%) that the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. Tf
an entity elects to perform a qualitative assessment and determines that an impairment is more likely than not, the entity is then
required lo perform & quantitative impairment test {described below), otherwise no further analysis is required. An entity also may
elect nol Lo perform the qualitative assessment and, instead, proceed directly to the quantitative impairment test.

If the Company elects to not perform a qualitative assessment or if the Company determines it is more likely than not that the fair

value of a reporting unit is less than the carrying amount, then the Company performs a quantitative impairment test on goodwill.

In the quantitative test, the Company compares the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value, If the fair value of the

reporting unit exceeds the carryimg value of the net assets assigned to that unit, goodwill is considered not impaired and the
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Company is not required to perform further testing. 1f the carrying value of the net assets assigned to the reporling unit excceds
the fair valuc of the reporting unit, then the Company would record an impairment loss equal to the difference.

Determining the fair valuc of 4 reporting unit involves the usc of significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions include revenue growth rates and operating marging used to calculate prejected future cash flows, risk-adjusted
discount rates, futurc cconomic and market conditions, and dctermination of appropriate market comparables. Actual future results
may differ from those estimates,

See note 10 for information regarding the Company's annual goodwill impairment review.

Intangible Assets

Intangible asscts with finite lives are amortized over their cstimated lives, Such assets are amortized using a method of amortization
that reflects the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible asset are consumed or otherwise used up. If that pattcrn
cannot be rcliably determined, the Company nses a straight-line amortization method.

The Company evaluates the estimated remaining useful lives of purchased intangible assets and whether events or changes in
circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining periods of amortization.

Property and Eguipment

Property and equipment are carricd at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as
incurred, and major improvements, including leasehold improvements, are capitalized. Gains and lesses from the sale of property
and equipment are included in dctermining net income. The Company uses the straight-line method for recording depreciation
and amortizalion. Leasehold improvements are amortized siraight-line over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life
of the asset.

Impairment of Long -Lived Assefs

The Company reviews its long-lived assets, such as properly and cquipment and purchased intangibles subject to amortizaiion,
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicatc that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability ofassets to be held and used is measured by a comparison ofthe carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows,
an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.
The Company uscs estimates to determine the fair valuc of long-lived assets. Such estimates are generally based on estimated
future cash flows or cost savings associated with particular asscts and are discounted to present value using an appropriatc discount
rate. The cstimates of future cash flows associated with asscts are generally prepared using a cost savings method, a lost income
mcthod, or an excess return method, as appropriate. In utilizing such methods, management must make certain assumptions about
the amount and timing of estimated future cash flows and other economic benefits from the assets, the remaining cconomic useful
life of the assets, and general economic factors concerning the selection of an appropriate discount rate, The Company may also
use replacement cost or market comparison approaches to estimating fair value if such mcthods are determined to be more
appropriate.

Assumptions and estimates about future values and remaining uscful lives of the Company's intangible and other long-lived asscts
arc complex and suhjective, They can be affected by a varicty of factors, including external factors such as indusiry and cconomic
trends, and internal factors such as chanpes in the Company's business strategy and internal forecasts. Although the Company
bhelieves the historical assumptions and estimatcs used are reasonable and appropriate, different assumptions and estimates could
materially impact the reported financial results.

Fair Value Measurements
The Company uscs estimates of fair value in applying various accounting standards for its financial statements.

Fair valne is defined as the price to sell an asset or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between willing and able market
participanis. In general, the Company's policy in estimating fair values is to first look at observable market prices for identical
assets and liabilities in active markets, where available. When these are not availablce, other inputs are used to model fair value,
such as prices of siinilar instruments, yield curves, volatililies, prepayment speeds, default rates, and credit spreads, relying first
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on observable data from active markets. Depending on cwrent market conditions, additional adjustments to fair value may be
based on factors such as liquidity, credit, and bid/offer spreads. In some cases fair valucs arc based ou estimates using present
value or other valuation techniques. Thosc lechniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount
rate and estimates of future cash flows. Transaction costs are not included in the determination of fair value. When possible, the
Company seeks to validate the model's output to market transactions. Depending on the availability of abservable inputs and prices,
different valnation models could produce materially diffcrent fair valne estimates. The values presented may not represent future
fair values and may not be realizable. Additionally, there may be inherent weaknesses in any calculation technique, and changes
in the underlying assumptions used, including discount rates and estimates of futurc cash flows, could significantly affcet the
estimates of current or future values.

The Company categorizes its fair valuc cstimates based on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of price
transparency utilized in measuring assets and labilities at fair value. Classification is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value of the instrument. The three levels include:

»  Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets. The types of financial instruments included in Level 1 arc
highly liquid instrurnents with quoled prices.

+  Level 2: Quoted prices for similar instruments in aciive markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets
that are not active; and model-derived valuations whosc inputs are abservable or whose primary valuc drivers are observable.

»  Level 3: Instruments whose primary value drivers are unobservahle. Inpits are developed based on the best information
available; howevet, significant judgment is required by management in developing the inputs.

The Company's accounting policy is to recognize transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period.

Revenue Recognifion

The Campany recognizes revenue when (i) persuasive cvidence of an arrangement exists between the Cornpany and the customer,
(ii) delivery of the product to the customer has occurred or scrvice has been provided to the customer, (iii) the price to the customer
is fixed or detenminable, and (iv) collectability of the sales price is reasonably assured. Additional information related to the
Company's revenuce recogaition of specific items is further provided below,

Loan interest income - Loan interest on federally insured student loans is paid by the Department or the borrower, depending on
the status of the loan at the time of the accrual. In addition, the Department makes quarterly interest subsidy payments on certain
qualified FFELP loans until the student is required under the provisions of the Higher Education Act to begin repayinent. Borrower
repayment of FFELP loans normally begins within six months after completion of the borrower's course of study, leaving school,
or ceasing to carry at least one-half the normal full-time academic load, as determined by the cducational institution. Borrower
repayment of PLUS and Consolidation loans normally begins within 60 days from the date of loan disbursement. Borrower
repayment of private education loans typically begins six months following the borrower's graduation from a qualificd institution,
and the intercst is cither paid by the borrower or capitalized annually or at repayment. Repayment of consurner loans typically
starts upon origination of the loan.

The Department provides a special allowance to lenders participating in the FFEL Program. The special allowance is accrued
based upon the fiscal quarter average rate of 13-week Treasury Bill auctions (for loans originated prior to January 1, 2000), the
fiscal quarter average rate of the daily three-month financial commercial paper rates (for loans originated on and after January 1,
2000) or the fiscal quarter average rate of daily onc-month LIBOR rates (for loans originated on and after January 1, 2000, and
for lenders which elected to change the special allowancc index to one-month LIBOR effective April 1, 2012) relalive to the yield
of the studeni loan.

The Company recognizcs loan interest income as earned, net of amortization of loan premiums and deferred origination cosls and
the accretion of loan discounts. Loan interest income is recognized based upon the expected yield of the loan after giving effect
to interest ratc reductions resulting {rom borrower utilization of incentives such as timely payments ("borrower benefits") and
other yield adjustments, Loan premiums or discounts, deferred origination costs, and borrower benefits are amortized/accreled
over the estimated life of the loans, which includes an estimate of forccasted payments in excess of contractually required payments.
The Company periodically evaluates the assumptions used to cstimate the life of the loans and prepayment rates. Tn instances

F-16



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcments — (continued)
{Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)

whcre there are changes to the assumptions, amortization/accretion 18 adjusted on a cumulative basis to reflect the chanpe since
the acquisition of the loan.

In the third quarter of 2016, the Company revised its policy to correct for an error in its method of applying the intercst method
used to amortize premiums and deferred origination costs and acercle discounts on its loan portfolio. Previously, thc Company
amortized premiums and deferred origination costs and accreted discounts by including in its prepayment assumption forceasted
payments in excess of contractually required payments as well as forecasted defaults. The Company has determined that only
payments in exccss of contractually required payments {cxcluding forecasted defaults) should be included in the prepayment
assumnption. Under the Company's revised policy, as of September 30, 2016, the constani prepayment ratc used by the Company
to amortize/accrete loan premiums/discounts was decrcased. The constant prepayment rates under the Company's revised policy
are 5 percent for Stafford loans and 3 percent for Consolidation loans. The constant prepayment rates under the Company's prior
policy in effect before this correction were G percent and 4 percent, respectively. During the third quarter of 2016, the Company
recorded an adjustroent to reflect the cumulative nct impact on prior periods for the correction of this error that resulted in an $8.2
millionreduction to the Company's net loan discount balance and a corresponding pre-tax increase to interest income. The Company
concluded this error had an immalerial impact on 2016 results as well as the results for prior periods.

The Company also pays the Department an annual 105 basis point rebate fec on Consolidation loans. These rebate fees are netted
against loan interest income.

Loan systems and servieing revenue — Loan systems and servicing revenue consists of the following items:

*  Loanand guaranty servicing fees — Loan servicing fees are determined according to individual agreements with customers
and are calculated based on the dollar value of loans, number of loans, ar number of borrowers serviced for each customer.
Guaranty servicing fees were generally calculated based on the number of loans serviced, volume of loans scrviced, or
amounts collected. Revenue is recognized over the period in which scrvices are provided to customers, and when ultimate
collection is assured.

includes licensc and maintenance fees associated with student loan software products. Computer and softwarc consulting
and remole hosting revenues are recognized over the period in which services are provided to custorners.

¢ Qutsourced services revenue - Outsourced services revenuc is determined from individual agreements with customers
and generally recognized over the period in which services are provided to customers.

*  Guaranty collections revenue — Guaranty collections revenue was earned wben collected. Collection costs paid to third
parties associated with this revenue was expenscd upon successful collection.

Tuition payment processing, school infarmation, and campus commerce revenye - Tuition payment processing, school information,
and campus commerce revenue includes actively managed tuition payment solutions, remote hosted school information systems
and leaming management software, professional development and educational insiruction services, assistance with financial needs
assessment and donor management, and payment processing services. Fees lor these services are recognized over the period in
which services are provided io customers. Cash received in advance of the delivery of services is included in deferred revenue,

Communications revenue - Communications revenue based on a flat fee, derived principally from internet, television, and telephone
services are billed in advance and recognized in subsequent periods when the services are provided. Revenucs for usage-based
services, such as access charges billed to other telephone carriers for originating and terminating long-distance calls on the
Company's network, are billed in arrears. The Company recognizes revenue from these scrvices in the period the services are
rendercd rather than billed. Eamed but unbilled usage-based services are recorded in accounts receivable.

Costs to provide cornmunication services is primarily associated with television programming costs. The Company has various
contracts to obtain video programming from programming veudors whose compensation is typically based on a flat fee per customer,
The cost of the right to exhibit nctwork programming under such arrangements is recorded in the month the programming is
available for exhibition. Programming costs are paid each month based on calculations performed by the Company and are subject
ta periodic audits performed by the programmers. Other costs included in costs to provide communication services include
connectivity, franchise, and other regulatory costs directly related to providing internet and voice services.
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Enrollment services vevenue - Tnrollment services revenue was derived from fees which were earned through the delivery of
qualified inquiries or clicks. Delivery was deemed to have occurred at the time a qualified inquiry or click was delivered to the
customer, provided that no significant obligations remained.

For a portion of this revenue, the Company had agreccments with providers of online media or traffic ("inquiry peneration vendors"”)
used in the generation of inquiries or clicks. The Company received a fee from its customers and patd a fee to the inquiry generation
vendors either on a cost per inquiry, cost per click, or cost per number of impressions basis. The Company was the primary obligor
iu the transaction. As a result, the fees paid by the Company's customers werc recognized as revenue and the fees paid to its ingniry
generation vendors are includcd in "cost to provide enrollment services" in the Company's consolidated statements of income.

On February 1, 2016, the Company sold 100 percent of the membership interests in Sparkroom LLC, which included the Company's
inquiry managemeni products and services. After this sale, the Company no longer earus enrollment services revenue.

Orther income - Other income consists primarily of the following items:
*  Realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments

»  Borrower late fee income - Late fee income is eamned by the education lending subsidiarics and is recognized when
payments are collected from the borrower.

= Investment advisory income - Invesiment advisory scrvices are provided by the Company through an SEC-registered
investment advisor subsidiary under various arrangements, The Company earns annual fees based on the outstanding
balance of mvestments and certain performance measures, which arc recognized monthly as earned.

»  Digital markeiing and content sohitions - The Company earned revenue related to digital marketing and content solution
products and services under the brand name Peterson's. These products and services included test preparation study guides,
school directories and databases, carecr cxploration guides, on-line courses and test preparation, scholarship search and
scleetion data, career planning information and guides, and on-line information about colleges and nniversities. Several
content solutions services included services to connecl students to colleges and universities, and were sold based on
subscriptions, Revenue from sales of subscription scrvices was recognized ratably over the term of the contract as it was
earned. Subscription revenue received or receivablc in advance of the delivery of services was included in deferred
revenue. Revenuc from the sale of print products was gencrally eammed and recognized, net of estimated tcturns, upon
shipment or delivery. All other digital marketing and content solutions revenue was recognized over the period in which
services were provided to customers. On December 31, 2017, thc Company sold Peterson's. See note 10 for additional
information regarding this sale.

Interest Expense

Interest expense is bascd upon contractual interest rates, adjusted for the amortization of debt issuance costs and the accretion of
discounts. The amortization of debt issuance costs and accretion of discounts are recognized using the effective interest method.

Transfer of Financial Assets and Extinguishmenis of Liabilities

The Company accounts for loan sales and deht repurchases in accordance with applicable accounting guidance. If a transfer of
loans qualifies as a sale, the Company derecognizes the loan and recognizes a gain or loss as the difterence between the carrying
basis of the loan sold and the consideration received, The Company from time to time repurchases its outstanding debt and records
a gain or loss on the carly extinguishment of debt based upon the difference between the carrying amouni of Lhe debt and the
amount paid to the third parly. The Company recognizes the results of a transfer of loans and the extinguishment of debt based
upon the settlement date of the ransaction.

Devivative Accounting
Effective June 10, 2013, all over-the-counter derivative contracts cxecutcd by the Company are cleared post-execution at the

Chicago Mercantile Exchange (“CME™), 2 regulated clearmghouse. Clearing is a process by which a third-party, the clearinghouse,
steps in between the original counterparties and guarantees the performance of both, by requiring that each post liquid collateral
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on an initial (initial margin) and mark-to-market {variation margin) basis to cover the clearinghouse’s potential future exposure in
the event of default.

Prior to January 3, 2017, the Company accounted for variation margin payments to the CME as collateral against its derivative
position. As such, these payments were treated as a scparate unit of account from the derivative instrument and reported as a
liability for cash collatcral received and an asset {restricted cash) for cash collateral paid. Effeclive January 3, 2017, the CME
amended its rulebooks to legally characterize variation margin payments for over-the-counter derivatives they clear as settlements
of the derivatives’ cxposure rather than collateral against the exposure. Based on thesc rulebook changes, for accounting and
presentation purposes, the Company considers variation margin and the corresponding derivative instrument as a single unit of
account. Assuch, cffective January 3, 2017, the variation margin received or paid is no longer accounted for separately as a liability
or asset ("collatcralized-to-market"). Instead, these payments are considered in determining the fair valuc of the centrally cleared
derivative portfolio ("settled-to-market"). The principal difference for accounting and presentation purposes is that prior to January
3, 2017, the Company recorded the fair value of collateralized-to-market derivative contracts on its balance sheet as "fair value
of derivative instruments" with an equal amount of variation margin collatcral accounted for separately as an assel or Hability.
Subsequent to January 3, 2017, the Company records settled-to-markel derivative contracts on its balance sheel with a fair value
of zero and no collateral posied duc to the payment or receipt of variation margin between the Company and the CMT settling the
outstanding tnark-to-markel exposure on such derivatives lo a balance of zero on a daily basis, and records the underlying daily
changes in the market value of such derivative contracis that result in such receipts or payments on its income statement as realized
derivative market value adjustments in "Derivative markel value and foreign currency transaction adjustments and derivative
settletnents, net."

The new clearinghouse requirements did not alter or affcet the accounting and presentation of the Company’s derivative instnunents
executed prior to Junc 10, 2013 and those derivatives that are not required to be cleared at a clearinghouse {non-centrally cleared
derivatives). The Company records these derivative instruments in the consolidated balance shects on a gross basis as either an
asset or liability mcasurcd at its fair value. Certain non-centrally cleared derivatives are subject to right of offset provisions with
counterparties. For these derivatives, the Company docs not offset fair value amounts executed with the same counterparty under
a master netting arrangement. In addition, the Company does not offset fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments
with respect to the right to reclaiim cash collatcral (& receivable) or the obligaiion io return cash collateral (a payabie).

The Company dctermines the fair value for its derivative instruments using either (i) pricing models that consider cnrrent market
conditions and the contractual terms of the derivative instrument or (ii) counterparty valuations, The factors that impact the fair
value of the Company's derivatives includc intcrest rates, time value, forward intercst ratc curve, and volatility factors, as well as
foreign cxchange rates. Pricing models and their underlying assumptions impact thc amount and timing of realized and unrealized
gains and losses recognized, and the usc of different pricing models or assumptions could produce different financial results.
Managcment has structured all of the Company's derivative transactions with the intent that each is economically effective; however,
the Company's derivative instraments do not qualify for hedge accounting. As a result, the change in fair valuc of derivative
instruments is reported in current period earnings. Changes or shifts in the forward yield curve and fluctuations in currency rates
can significantly impact the valuation of the Company’s derivatives, and therefore impact the financial position and results of
operations of the Company. Any proceeds received or payments made by the Company to terminate a derivative in advance of its
expiration date, or to amend the terms of an existing derivative, are included in the Company's consolidated-statements of income
and are accounted for as a change in fair value of such derivative. The changes in fair value of derivative instruments, as well as
the settlement payments made on such derivatives, arc included in “derivative market value and foreign currency adjustments and
derivative scttlements, net” on the consolidated statements of income.

Foreign Currency

During 2006, the Company issued Euro-denominated bonds, which were included in “bonds and notes payable” on the consolidated
balance sheets. Transaction gains and losses resulting from exchange rate changes when re-measuring thesc bonds to U.S. dollars
at the balance sheel dale were included in “derivative markel value and foreign currency adjustmenis and derivative settlements,
net” on the consolidated statements of income. On Oclober 25, 2017, the Company completed a remarketing of its Euro notes
which resel the principal amount outstanding on the notes to U.S. dollars.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred 1ax assels and liabilities are recognized for the future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement camrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective 1ax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temnporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled, The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes
the enactment date.

Income tax expense includes deferred tax expense, which represents the nel change in the deferred tax asset or liability balance
during the year, plus any change made in the valuation allowance, and current tax expense, which represents the amount of tax
currently payable to or receivable from a tax authority plus amounts for cxpected tax deficiencies.

Compensation Expense for Stock Based Awards

The Company has a restricted stock plan that is intended to provide incentives to attract, retain, and motivate employces in order
to achieve long term growth and profitability objectives. The restrieted stock plan provides for the grant to eligible employees of
awards of restricted shares of Class A common stock. The fair valuc of restricted stoek awards is determined on the grant date
based on the Company's stock price and is amortized to compensation cost over the related vesting periods, which range up to ten
years, For those awards with only service conditions that have graded vesting schedules, the Company recognizes compensation
expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award, as if the award
was, in substance, multiple awards. Hoelders of restricted stock are entitled to receive dividends from the date of grant whether or
not vested.

The Company also has a directors stock compensation plan pursuant to which non-employee directors can elect to receive their
annual retainer fees in the form of fully vested shares of Class A corminon stoek, and also elect to defer receipt of such shares until
the termination of their service on the board of directors. The fair value of grants under this plan is determined on the grant date
bascd on the Company's stock price, and is expensed over the board member's annual scrviee period.

Stock Repurchases

In accordance with the corporate laws of the stale in which the Company is incorporated, all shares repurchased by the Company
are legally retired upon acquisition by the Company.
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Unsecured Line of Credit

The Company has a $350.0 million unsecured line of credit thal has a maturity date of December 12, 2021. As of Decernber 31,
2017, $10.0 million was outstanding on the line of credit and $340.0 million was available for future use. Interest on amounts
borrowed under the line of credit is payable, at the Company's election, at an alternate base rate or a Eurodollar rate, plus a variable
rate (LIBOR), in each casc as defined in the credit agreemenl. The initial margin applicable to Eurodollar borrowings is 150 basis
points and 1nay vary from 100 to 200 basis points depending on the Company's credit rating.

The line of creditagreement contains certain financial covenants that, if not met, lead to an event of default under the agreement. The
covenanis include maintaining:

* A minimum consolidated net worth

* A minimum adjusted EBITDA to corporate debt interest (over the last four rolling quarters)

* A limitation on recourse indebtcdness

*  Alimitation on the amount of unsecuritized private education and consumcr loans in the Company’s portfelio

* Alimitation on permiticd investments, including business acquisitions that are not in one of the Company's existing lincs
of business

As of December 31, 2017, the Company was in compliance with all of these requirements. Many of these covenants arc duplicated
in the Company's other lending facilities, including its warchouse facilities.

The Company's operating line of credit does not have any cavenants related to unsecured debt ratings. Howcver, changes in the
Company's ratings (as well as the amounts the Company borrows) have modest implications on the pricing level at which the
Company obtains funds

A dcefault on the Company's warehouse facilitics would result in an event of default on the Company's unsecured line of credit that
would result in the outstanding balance on the line of credit becoming immediately due and payablc.

Junior Subordinated Hybrid Securities

Omn September 27, 2006, the Company tssued $200.0 million aggregate principal ainount of Junior Subordinated Hybrid Securities
("ITybrid Securities"). The Hybrid Securities are unsecured obligations of the Company. The interest rate on the Hybrid Securities
through September 29, 2036 ("the scheduled maturity date") is equal to three-month LIBOR plus 3.375%, payable quarterly, which
was 5.07% at December 31, 2017. The principal amount of the Hybrid Securities will become due on the scheduled maturity date
only to the extent that prior to such date the Company has received proceeds from the sale of certain qualifying capital securities
(as defined in the Hybrid Securitics’ indenture). Ifany amount is not paid on the scheduled maturity date, it will remain outstanding
and bear interest at a floaling rate as defined in the indenture, payable maonthly. On September 15, 2061, the Company must pay
any remaining principal and interest on the Hybrid Securities in full whether or not the Company has sold qualifying capital
securities. Althe Company's option, the Hybrid Securities arc redeemable in whole or in part at their principal amount plus accrued
and unpaid interest,

During the first quarter of 2017, the Company initiated a cash tender offer to purchase any and all of its outstanding Hybrid
Securities, including a related consent solicitation to effect certain amendments to the indenture geverning the notes to eliminate
a provision requiring a minimum principal amount of the notes to remain ootstanding aftcr a partial redemption. The aggregate
principal amount of notes tendcred to the Company was $29.7 million. The Company paid $25.3 million to redeem these notes,
and the amendrnents described above were made to the indenture.

Other Borrowings
During 2017, the Company entered into a repurchase agreement, the proceeds of which are collateralized by FFELP asset-backed

security investments, Tncluded in "other borrowings" as of December 31, 2017 was $50.4 million subject to this repurchase
agrecment,
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that were held in the private education loan warchousc legal entity and paid $929,000 to enter into new inlerest rate cap conlracts
with identical terms at Nelnet, Inc. (the parent company). The Company currently i nds to keep these derivatives ouistanding
to partially mitigate a rise in inlercst rates and its iimpact on earnings related to its student loan porttolio earning a fixed rate.

Interest rate swaps -- unsecured debt hedges

Asof December 31,2017 and 2016, thc Company had $20.4 million and $30.2 million, respectively, ef unsceurcd Hybrid Sceurities
outstanding. The interest rate on the Hybrid Securities through September 29, 2036 is equal to three-month LIBOR plus 3.375%,
payable quarterly. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had the lollowing derivatives outstanding that are used to
effectively convert the variable interest rate on a portion of the Hybrid Securities to a fixed ratc of 7,66%,

Weighted average
fixed rate paid by
Maturity Notional amount  the Companv (a)

2036 3 FRRVIEY 4,28

(a) Vor all interest rate derivatives, the Company reccives discrete three-month 1LIBOR.
Forcign Currency Exchange Risk

v 06, the Company issued €352.7 million of student loan asset-backed Furo Notes (the "Euro Notes") with an interest rate based
on a spread to the EURIBOR index. On October 25, 2017, the Company ¢ sted a remarketing of the Euro Notes which resct
principal amount outstanding on the Euro Notes to $450.0 million U5, dollars with an interest rate based on the 3-month LIBOR
index. As aresult of the Euro Noles, the Company was exposed to market risk related to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rales between the U.S. dollar and Euro. The prineipal and acerued interest on these notes werer  1easured at each reporting period
and recorded in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet in U.S. dollars based on the foreign currency exchange rate on that
date. Changes in the principal and acerucd intcrest amounts as a result of foreign currency exchange rate (luctuaiions were ineluded
in the Company’s consolidated statcinents of income,

The Company entered into a cross-currency interest rate swap in connection with the issuance of the Euro Notes. On Qctober 25,
2017, the Company terminated the cross-currency swap when the Euro Notes were remarketed. Under the tenins of the cross-
currency interest rate swap, the Company received from the counterparty a spread to the EURIBOR index based on a notional
amount of €352.7 million and paid a spread to the LIBOR index based on a nolional amount of $450.0 million,

The following table shows the income statement impact as a result of the re-measurement of the Curo Notes and the change in the
fair value of the related derivative instruments.

Year ended December 31,
2m7 216 21 A

(1) The financial statementimpact of the above items is included in "Dernivative market value and foreign currency adjustments
and derivative settlements, net” in the Company's consolidaled stateinents of income,

Management structured the eross-cwrrency interest rate swap to economically hedge the Euro Notes to effectively convert the Huro
Nates to 1,8, dollars and pay a spread on these notes based on the LIBOR index. However, the cross-currency interest rate swap
did not qualify for hedge accounting. The re-measurement of the Euro-denominated bonds generally correlated with the change
in the fair value of the corresponding cross-currency inlerest rate swap. However, the Company experienced unrealized gains and
losses between these financial instruments due to the principal and accrucd interest on the Huro Notes being re-measured to U.S.
doliars at each reporting date based on ihe [oreign cuwrrency exchange rate on that date, while the cross-currency interest rate swap
was measured at fair value at each reporting dale with the change in fair value recognized in the current period eamings.
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15. Segment Reporting
The Company has four reportable operating segments. The Company's reportable operating segments include:

* Loan Systems and Servicing

*+ Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce
» Communications

» Assel Generation and Management

The Company camns fee-based revenue through its Loan Sysiems and Servicing, Tnition Payment Processing, and Communications
operating segments. In addition, the Company earns interest income on its loan portfolio in its Asset Generation and Management
operating segment.

The Company’s operating segments are defined by the products and services they offer and the types of customers they serve, and
they reflect the manner in which financial information is currently evaluated by management. See note 1, "Description of Business,"
for a description of each operating segment, including the primary products and scrvices offercd.

The management reporting process measures the performance of the Company’s operating segments based on the management
structure of the Company, as well as the methodology used by management to evaluate performance and allocate resources,
Exceutive management (the "chicf operating decision maker"} evaluates the performance of the Company’s operating segments
based on their financial results prepared in conformity with U.3. GAAP.

The accounting policies of the Company’s operating segments arc the samc as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. I[ntersegment revenues are charged by a segment that provides a product or scrvice to another
segment. Intersegment revenues and expenses are included within each segment consistent with the income statement presentation
provided to management. Income taxes are allocated based on 38% of income before taxes for each individual operating segment.
The difference between the consolidated income tax expense and the sum of taxes calculated for each operating segment is included
in incomne taxes in Corporate and Other Activities.

Corporate and Other Activities

Other business activities and operating segments that arc not reportable are combined and included in Corporate and Other
Activities. Corporate and Other Activities includes the following items:

= Income earned on certain investment activities

= Interest expense incurred on unsecured debt transactions

»  Other product and service offerings that are not considered reportable operating segments including, but not lLimited to,
WRCM, the SEC-registered investment advisor subsidiary

Corporate and Other Activitics also includes certain corporate activities and overhead functions related to executive management,
internal audit, hutnan resources, accounting, legal, enterprise risk management, informalion technology, occupancy, and wnarketing,
These costs are allocated to each operating segment based on estimated use of such activities and services.

Segment Results

The following tables include the results of each of the Company's reportable operating seginents reconciled to the consolidated
financial statcments,
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AsofDecember 31,2017, therc was $8.1 million of unrecognized comnpensation costincluded in equity on the cansolidated balance
sheet related to restricted slock, which s expected to be recognized as compensation expense as shown in the table below.

Far the years ended Decemnber 31, 2017, 2016, and 20185, the Company recognized compensation cxpense of $4,2 million, $4.1
million, and $5.2 million, respectively, related to shares issued under the restricted stock plan, which is included in "salaries and
benefits" on the consolidated statements of income.

Employee Share Purchase Plan

The Company has an employee share purchase plan pursuant to which employees are entitled to purchase Class A common stock
from payroll deductions at a 15 percent discount from market value, During the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015,
the Company recognized compensation expense of approximately $197,000, $287,000, and 147,000, respectively, in connection
with issuing 16,989 shares, 25,5351 shares, and 23,912 shares, respectively, under this plan.

Non-emplovee Directors Compensation Plan

The Company has a compensation plan for non-employee directors pursuant to which non-employee directors can elect to receive
their annual retainer lees in the lorm of cash or Class A comumon stock. If a non-employee director elects lo receive Class A commnon
stock, the number of shares ol Class A cornmon stock that are awarded is equal to the atnount of the annual retainer fee atherwise
payable in cash divided by 85 percent of the fair market value of a share of Class A common slock on the datc (he [ec is payable,
Nan-employee directors who chaose to receive Class A common stock may also elect to defer receipt of the Class A common stock
until termination of their service on the board of directors.

For the years ended Deceber 31, 2017, 2016, and 20135, the Company recognized approximaicly $922,000, $922,000, and
$905,000, respectively, of expense related to this plan. The following table provides the mumnber of shares awarded under this plan
for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015,

Shares issued Share
- nat Aaforead Aanlnrrad Tanial

As of December 31, 2017, a cumulative amount of 171,519 shares have been deferred by direclors and will be issued upon the
termination of their service on the board of directors. These shares are included in the Company's weighted average shares
outstanding calculation.

20. Related Parties
Transactions with Union Bank and Trust Company

Union Bank and Trust Company {"Union Bank") is controlled by Farmers & Merchants Tnvestment Inc. (“F&M™), which owns a
majority of Union Bank's cotnmon stock and a minority share of Union Bank's non-voting preferred stock. Michael S. Dunlap,
Iixecutive Chairman and a member of the board of direciors and a significant sharcholder of the Company, along with his spouse
and children, owns or controls a significant portion of the stock of F&M, and Mr. Dunlap's sister, Angela L. Muhleisen, along with
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her spouse and children, also owns or controls a significant portion of F&M stock. Mr. Dunlap serves as a Director and Chairman
of F&M, Ms. Muhleisen serves as a Director and Chief Executive Officer of F&M and as a Director, Chairperson, President, and
Chief Executive Officer of Union Bank. Union Bank 1s deemed to have beneficial ownership of a significant number of shares
of the Company because it serves in a capacity of trustee or account manager for various trusts and accounts holding shares of the
Company, and may share voting and/or investment power with respect to such shares. Mr. Dunlap and Ms. Muhlcisen benelicially
own a significant percent of the voting rights of the Company's outstanding common stock.

The Cormpany has cntered into certain contractual arrangements with Union Bank. These transactions are summarized below.
Loan Purchases

On December 22, 2014, the Company entered into an agreement with Union Bank in which the Company provides marketing,
origination, and loan servicing services to Union Bank related to private education loans. The Company committed to purchase,
or arrange for a designec to purchase, all volume originaled by Union Bank under this agreement. During 2016 and 2015, the
Company purchased $29.6 million {par value) and $4.4 million (par value), respectively, of private education loans from Union
Bank, pursuant to this agreement. No loans were originated under this agrcement in 2017.

In addition to the agreement previously discussed, during 2017, the Company also purchased $2.9 million (par valuc) of private
education loans and $10.3 million {par value) of consumer loans from Union Bank.

Loan Servicing

The Company serviced $462.3 million, $483.8 million, and $563.1 million of FFELP and private education loans for Umon Bank
as of December 31, 2017, 2016, and 20135, respectively. Servicing revenue carned by the Company from servicing loans for Umon
Bank was $0.5 million, $0.6 million, and $0.5 million for the years cnded December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively. As
of December 31, 2017 and 2016, accounts receivable includes approximately $42,000 and $36,000, respectively, due from Union
Bank for loan servicing.

Funding - Participation Agreement

The Company maintains an agrecement with Union Bank, as trustee for various grantor trusts, under which Union Bank has agreed
to purchase from the Company participation interests in siudent loans (the “FFELP Participation Agreement”). The Company uses
this facility as a source to fund FFELP student loans. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, $552.6 million and $496.8 million,
respectively, of loans were subject to outstanding participation interests held by Union Bank, as trustee, under this agreement. The
agreement automatically renews annually and is terminable by cither party upon tive business days' notice. This agreement provides
beneficiaries of Union Bank's grantor trusts with access to investments in interests in student loans, while providing liquidity to
the Company on a short-term basis. The Company can participate loans to Union Bank to the extent of availability under the
grantor trusts, up to $750 million or an amount in excess of $750 million if mutually agreed to by hoth parties. Loans participated
under this agreement have been accounted for by the Company as loan sales. Accordingly, the participation interests sold are not
included on the Company's consolidated balance sheets.

Operating Cash Accounts

The majority of the Company's cash operating accounts are maintained at Union Bank. The Company also invests amounts in the
Short term Federal Investment Trust (“STFIT™) of the Student Loan Trust Division of Union Bank, which are incleded in “cash
and cash equivalents - held at a related party” and “restricted cash - due to customers” on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had $115.8 million and $74.3 million, respectively, invested in the STFIT
or deposited al Union Bank in operating accounts, of which $56.0 million and $12.5 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, represented cash collecled for cusiomers. Interest income earned by the Company on the amounts invested in the
STFIT and in cash operating accounts for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, was 0.9 million, $0.4 million,
and $0.2 million, respectively.
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329 Plan Administration Services

The Company provides certain 529 Plan administration services to cerfain cullege savings plans (the “College Savings Plans™)
through a contract with Union Bank, as the program manager. Union Bank is cntitled tu a fce as program manager pursuant to its
program management agreernent with the College Savings Plans. For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, the
Company has received fees of 32.0 million, $1.6 million, and $3.5 million, respectively, from Union Bank related to the
administration services provided to the College Savings Plans.

Lease Arrangements

Union Bank leases approximately 4,000 square feet in the Company's corporate headquarters building. Union Bank paid the
Company approximately $74,000, $73,000, and $73,000 for commercial rent and storage income during 2017, 2016, and 2015,
respectively. The lease agreement expires on June 30, 2023,

Other Fees Paid to Union Bank

During the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, the Cormpany paid Union Bank approximately $127,000, $126,000,
and $111,000, respectively, in cash management fees. During lhe ycars ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company paid
Union Bank approximately $13,000 and 347,000, respeclively, in commissions. In addition, for the year ended December 31,
2015, the Company paid Union Bank approximaiely $205,000 in connection with servicing opportunities for various asset classes,
and $36,000 for administrative services.

Other Fees Received from Union Bank

During the years ended Decernber 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, Union Bank paid the Company approximately $219,000, $209,000,
and $201,000, respectively, under an employee sharing arrangement, and during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
Union Bank paid the Company approximately $10,000 and $19,000, respectively, for health and productivity services. During
the year ended Decernber 31, 2017, Union Bank paid the Company approximately $11,000 in paymeiit processiing fees (net of
merchant fees ol approximatcly $1,000).

401 ¢k) Plan Administration

Union Bank administers the Company's 401(k) defined contribution plan. Fees paid to Union Bank to administer the plan are paid
by the plan participants and were approximately $241,000, $280,000, and $469,000 during the years ended December 31, 2017,
2016, and 2015, respectively.

Investment Services

Union Bank has established various trusts whereby Union Bank serves as trustee for the purpose of purchasing, holding, managing,
and selling investments in student loan assct-backed sceuritics. On May 9, 2011, WRCM, an SEC-registered investment advisor
and a subsidiary of the Company, cntered into a management agreement with Union Bank, effective as of May 1, 2011, under
which WRCM performs various advisory and management services on behalf of Union Bank with respect to investments in
securities by the trusts, including identifying securities for purchase or sale by the trusts. The agreement provides that Union Bank
will pay to WRCM annual fees of 25 basis points on the outstanding balance of the investments in the trusts. As of December 31,
2017, the outstanding balance of investments in the trusts was $665.9 million. In addition, Union Bank will pay additional fees
to WRCM of up to 50 percent of the gains from the sale of securities from the trusts or sceurities being called prior to the full
contractual maturity. For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, the Company earned $9.2 million, $4.5 million,
and $2.7 million, respectively, of fees under this agreemenl.

in January 2012 and October 2015, WRCM entered into mmanagement agreernents with Union Bank under which it was designated
to serve as investment advisor with respect to the assets within several trusts established by Mr. Dunlap and his spouse. In January
2016, WRCM entered inlo a similar management agreement with Union Bank with respect to several trusts established in December
2015 by Stephen F. Buiterficld, Vice Chairman and a member of the board of directors of the Cornpany, and his spouse. Union
Bank serves as trustee for the trusts. Per the terms of the agreements, Union Bank pays WRCM five basis pomis of the aggregate
value of the assets of the trusts as ol the last day ol cach calendar quarter. Mr. Dunlap and his spouse contributed a total of 3,375,000
and 3,000,000 sharcs ol the Company's Class B cominon stock to the trusts upon the establishment of the trusts in 2011 and 2015,
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respectively, and Mr. Butterficld and his spousc contributed a total of 1,200,000 shares of the Company's Class B common stock
upon the estahlishment of the trusts in 2016. Tor the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, the Company camed
approximately $161,000, $142,000, and $71,000, respectively, of fees under these agreements.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, accounts receivable included $0.2 million and $0.8 million, respectively, due from Union
Bank related to fees earned by WRCM from the investment services described above.

WRCM has cstablished private investrnent funds for the primary purpose of purchasing, sclling, nvesting, and trading, dircetly
or indircetly, in student loan assct-backed sceuritics, and to engage in financial transactions related thereto. Mr. Dunlap, Union
Financial Services, Inc., which is owned 50 percent by each Mr, Dunlap and Mr. Butterfield, Jeffrey R. Noardhoek (an executive
officer of the Company), Ms. Muhleisen and her spouse, and WRCM have invested in certain of these funds. Based upon the
current level of holdings by non-affiliated limited partners, the management agreements provide non-affiliated limited partners
the ability to remove WRCM as manager without cause. WRCM earns 50 basis pomts (annually) on the outstanding balance of
the investmenis in these funds, of which WRCM pays approximately 50 percenl of such amount to Union Bank as custodian. As
of December 31,2017, the outstanding balance of investments in these funds was $149 .4 million, Forthe years ended December 31,
2017, 2016, and 2015, the Company paid Union Bank $0.3 million, $0.4 million, and $0.4 million, respectively, as custodian,

Transactions with Agile Sports Technologies, Inc. (doing business as "Hudl")

David Graff, who has served on the Company's Board of Directors smce May 2014, is CEQ, co-founder, and a director of Hudl.
OnMareh 17,2015 and July 7, 2017, the Company made a $40.5 million and $10.4 million preferred stock investment, respectively,
in Hudl, Prior to these investments, the Company and Mr. Dunlap made separate equity investments in Hudl. The Company and
Mr. Dunlap, along with his children, currently hold combined dircet and indireet cquity ownership intercsts in Hudl of 19.7% and
3.4%, rcspectively. The Company's and Mr. Dunlap's dircet and indircet equity ownership interests in Hudl consist of preferred
stock with certain liquidation preferences that are considered substantive. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the Company's
and Mr. Dunlap's equity ownership interests are not considered in-substance commeon stock and the Company is accounting for
its equity investment im Hudl under the cost method. The Company's investment in Hudl is included in "investments and notes
receivable" in the Company's consolidated balance sheet.

The Company makes investments to further diversify the Company both within and outside of its historical core education-related
businesses, including investmentsin real estate. Recentreal estate investments have been focused on the development of commercial
propertics in the Midwest, and particularly in Lincoln, Nebraska, where the Company's headquarters are located. One investment
includes the development of a building in Lincoln's Haymarket District that is the new headquarters of Hudl, in which Hudl is the
primary tenant in this building.

Transactions with Assuvity Life Insurance Company ("' Assurity")

Thomas Henning, who has served on the Company's Board of Directors since 2003, is the President and Chief Executive Officer
of Assurity. During the year ended December 31, 2017, Nelnet Business Solutions paid $1.5 million to Assurity for insurance
premiums for insurance on certain tuition payment plans. As part of providing the tuition payment plan insurance to Nelnet
Business Solutions, Assurity entered into a reinsurance agreement with the Company's insurance subsidiary, under which Assurity
paid the Company's insurance subsidiary reinsurance premiums of $1.4 million in 2017, and the Company's insurance subsidiary
paid ¢laims on such reinsurance to Assurity of $0.7 million in 2017, Tn addition, Assurity pays Nelnet Business Solutions a partial
refund annually based on claim experience, which was approximately $10,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017.

During the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 20135, the Company made available to its employees certam voluntary
insurance products through Assurity. Premiums are paid by participants and are remitted o Assurity by the Company on behalf
of the participants. The Company remitied to Assurily approximately $181,000, $166,000, and $116,000 in premiums related to
these products during 2017, 2016, and 2013, respectively.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash, Restricied Cash — Due to Customers, Accrued Interest Receivable/Payable, and
Due to Customers

The carrying amouni approximates fair value due to the variable rate of interesl and/or the short maturities of these instruments,
Bonds and Notes Payable

Bonds and noles payable are accounted for at cost iu the financial statements except when denominated in a foreign currency.
Foreign currency-denominated borrowings are re-measured at current spot rates in the financial statements. The fair value of
bonds and notes payable was determined from quoles [rom broker-dealers or through standard bond pricing models using the
stated terms of the borrowings, observable yield curves, market credit spreads, and weighted average life of underlying collateral.
Fair valuc adjustments for unsecured corporate debt are made based on indicative quotes from observable trades.

Limitations

The fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market information and information about the
financial instruments. Because no market cxists fora significant portion of the Company's financial ingtruments, fair valuc estimates
are based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve unccrtainties and matters of significant
judgment and thercfore cannot be determined with precision. Therefore, the calculated fair value estimates in many instances
cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cascs, may not be realizable in a current sale of the
instrament. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the cstimatcs,

22. Legal Proceedings

The Company is subject to various claims, lawsuits, and proceedings that arise in the nommal course of business. These matters
frequently involve claims by student loan borrowers disputing the manner in which their student loans have been serviced or the
accuracy of reports to credit bureaus, claims by student loan borrowers or other consumers alleging that state or Federal consumer
protection laws have been violated in the process of colleeting loans or conducting other business activities, and disputes with
other business entities. In addition, from time to time the Company receives information and document requests from state or
federal regulators concerning its business practices. The Company cooperates with these inquiries and responds to the requests.
While the Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of any regulatory examination, inquiry, or investigation, the Company
believes its activities have materially complied with applicable law, including the Higher Education Act, the rules and regulations
adopted by the Department thereunder, and the Department's guidance regarding those rules and regulations. On the basis of
present information, anficipated insurance coverage, and advice received from counsel, it is the opinion of the Company's
management that the disposition or ultimate detenmination of these claims, lawsuits, and proceedings will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, financial position, or results of operations.
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APPENDIX A

Description of
The Federal Family Education I.oan Program

The Federal Family Education Loan Program

The Higher Education Acl provided for a program of federal insurance for student loans as well as reinsurance of student loans
guaranteed or insured by stale agencies or private non-profit corporations.

The Higher Education Act authorized certain student loans to be insured and reingured under the Federal Family Education Loan
Program (“FFELP")., The Student Aid and Fiscal Responsibility Act, enacled into law on March 30, 2010, as part of the Health
Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, terminated the authority to make FFELP loans. As of July 1, 2010, no new FFELP
loans have been made.

Generally, a student was eligible for loans made under the Federal Family Education Loan Program only if he or she:
*  Had been accepted for enrollment or was cnrolled in good standing at an eligible institution of higher education;

*  'Was carrying or planning to carry at lcast one-half the normal full-time workload, as determined by the institution,
for the course of study the student was pursuing;

*  Was not in default on any federal education loans;

»  Had not committed a crime involving fraud in obtaining funds under the Higher Education Act which funds had not
been fully repaid; and

+  Met other applicable eligibility requirements.

Eligible institutions included higher educational institutions and vocational schools that complicd with specific federal regulations.
Each loan is cvidenced by an unsecured note.

The Higher Education Act also establishes maximum interest rates for cach of the various types of loans, These rates vary not
only among loan types, but also within loan types depending upon when the loan was made or when the barrower first obtained
a loan under the Federal Family Education Loan Program. The Iligher Education Act allows lesser rates of interest to be charged.

Types of loans
Four types of loans were available under the Federal Family Bducation Loan Program:

*  Subsidized Stafford Loans

*  Unsubsidized Slafford Loans
*« PLUS Loans

*  Consolidation Loans

These loan types vary as to eligibility requirements, interest rates, repayment periods, loan linits, eligibility for interest subsidies,
and special aliowance payments. Some of these loan types have had othcr names in the past. References to these various loan
types include, where appropriate, their predecessors.

The primary loan under the Federal Family Bducation Loan Program is the Subsidized Stafford Loan. Students who were not
eligible for Subsidized Staltord Loans bascd on their economic circumstances inight have obtained Unsubsidized Statford Loans,
Graduate or professioual students and parents of dependent undergraduate students might have obtained PLUS Loans,
Consolidation Loans were available to borrowers with existing loans made under the Federal Family Educaticn Loan Program
and other federal programs to consolidate repayment of the borrower's existing loans. Prior to July 1, 1994, the Federal Family
Education Loan Program also offered Suppleinental [ .oans for Students (“SLS Loans™) 1o graduate and professional students and
independent undergraduate students and, under certain circumstances, dependent undergraduate students, to supplement their
Stafford Loans.
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Subsidized Stafford Loans

General. Subsidized Stafford [oans were eligible for insurance and reinsurance under the Higher Education Act if the eligible
student to whom the loan was made was accepted or was enrolled in good standing at an eligible institution of higher education
or vocational school and carried at least one-half the normal full-time workload at that institution. Subsidized Stafford Loans had
limits ag to the maximum amount which could be borrowed for an academic year and in the agprepate for both undergraduate aud
graduate or professional study. Both annual and aggregate limitations excluded loans made under the PLUS Loan Program. The
Secretary of Education had discretion 1o raise these limits to accommodaie studenls undertaking specialized training requiring
exceptionally high cosls of education.

Subsidized Stafford Loans were made only to student borrowers who met the needs tests provided in the Higher Hducation Act.
Provisions addressing the implementation of needs analysis and the relationship between unmet need for financing and the
avajlability of Subsidized Stafford Loan Program funding have been the subject of frequent and extensive amendments.

Interest rates for Subsidized Stafford Loans. For Stafford Loans first disbursed to a “new™ borrower (a “new” borrower is defined
for purposes of this section as onc who had no outsianding balance on a FFELP loan on the date the new promissory note was
sigued) for a period of cnrollment beginning before January 1, 1981, the applicable interest rate is fixed at 7%.

TFor Stafford Loans first disbursed to a “new” borrower, for a period of enrollment beginning on or after January 1, 1981, but before
September 13, 1983, the applicable interest rate is fixed at 9%.

For Stafford Loans first disbursed to a “new” borrower, {or a period of enrollment beginning on or after September 13, 1983, but
before July 1, 1988, the applicable intercst rate is fixed at 8%.

For Stafford Loans first disbursed to a borrower with an outstanding balance on a PI.US, SI1.8, or Consolidation Loan, but not on
a Stafford Loan, where the new loan is intended for a period of enrollment beginning before July 1, 1988, the applicable interest
rate is fixed at 8%.

For Stafford Loans first disbursed before October 1, 1992, to a “new” borrower or to a borrower with an outstanding balance on
a PLUS, SLS, or Consolidation Loan, but not a Stafford Loan, where the new loan is intended {or a period of enrollment beginning
on or after July 1, 1988, the applicable intercst rate is as follows:

«  Original fixcd interest ratc of 8% for the first 48 months of repayment, Beginning on the first day of the 49™ month
of repayment, the interest rate increased to a fixed rate of 10% thereafter. Loans in this category were subject to
excess interest rebates and have been converted to a variable interest rate based on the bond equivalent rate of the
81-day Treasury bill auctioned at the final auction before the preceding June 1, plus 3.25%. The variable interest
rate is adjusted annually on July 1. The maximum interest rate for loans in this category is 10%.

For Stafford Loans first disbursed on or after July 23, 1992, but before July 1, 1994, to a borrower with an outstanding Stafford
Loan made with a 7%, 8%, 9%, or 8%/10% fixed interest rate, the original, applicable inlerest rate is the same as the rate provided
on the borrower's previous Stafford Loan (i.e., a fixed rate of 7%, 8%, 9%, or 8%/10%). Loans in this calegory were subject to
excess inlerest rebates and have been converted to a variable inierest rale based oo the bond equivalent rate of the 91-day Treasury
bill auctioned at the final auction before the preceding June 1, pius 3.1%. The variable interest rate is adjusted annually on July
1. The maxiinum interest rate for a loan in this category is equal to the loan's previous fixed rate {i.e., 7%, 8%, 9%, or 10%]).

For Stafford Loans first disbursed on or after October 1, 1992, but before December 20, 1993, to a borrewer with an outstanding
balance on a PLUS, SLS, or Conselidation Loan, but not on a Stafford Loan, the original, applicable interest rate is fixed at 8%.
Loans in this catepory were subject to excess interest rebates and have been converted to a variable interest rate based on the bond
equivalent rate of the 91-day Treasury bill auctioned at the final auction before the preceding June 1, plus 3.1%. The variable
interest rate 1s adjusted annually on July 1. The maximum interest rate for a loan in this category is 8%.

For Stafford Loans first disbursed on or after October 1, 1992, but before July 1, 1994, to a “new” borrower, the applicable intcrest
rate is variable and is based on the bond equivalent rate of the 91 -day Treasury bill auctioned at the final auction before the preceding
June 1, plus 3.1%. The variable interest rate is adjusted annually on July 1. The maximum interest rate for a loan in this category
is 59%.

For Stafford Ioans first disbursed on or after December 20, 1993, but before July 1, 1994, to a borrower with an outstanding
balance on a PI.US, SLS, or Consolidation ].oan, but not on a Stafford 1.0an, the applicable interest rate is variable and is based
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on the bond cquivalent rate of the 9]-day Treasury bill auctioned at the final auction before the preceding June 1, plus 3.1%. The
varigble interest rate is adjusted annually on July I. The maximum interest rate for a loan in this category is 9%.

For Stafford Loans first disbursed on or after July 1, 1994, but before July 1, 1993, where the loan is intended for a period of
cnroliment that includes or begins on or after July 1, 1994, the applicable interest rate is variable and is based on the bond equivalent
rate of the 91-day Treasury bill auctioned at the final auction before the preceding June 1, plus 3.1%. The variable interest rate is
adjusted annually on July 1. The maximum interest rate for a loan in this category is 8.25%.

For Stafford Loans first disbursed on or after July 1, 1995, hut before July 1, 1998, Lhe applicable intcrest rate is as follows:

= When the borrower is in school, in grace, or in an authorized period of deferment, the applicable interest rate is
variable and is based on the bond equivalent rate of the 91-day Treasury bill auctioned at the final auction before the
preceding June 1, plus 2.5%. The variable interest rate is adjusted annually on July 1. The maximum interest rate
is 8.25%.

+  When the borrower 1s in repayment or in a period of forbearance, the applicable interest rate is variable and is based
on the bond equivalent rate of the 91-day Treasury bill auctioned at the final auction before the preceding June 1,
plus 3.1%. The variable interest rate is adjusted annually on July 1. The maximnm interest rate is 8.25%.

For Stafford Loans first disbursed on or after July 1, 1998, but before July 1, 2006, the applicable interest rate is as follows:

*  When the borrower is m school, in grace, or in an aulhorized period of deferment, the applicable interest rate is
variable and is based on the bond equivalent rate of the 91-day Treasury bill auctioned at the final auction before the

preceding June 1, plus 1.7%. The variable interest rate is adjusted annually on July 1. The maximum interest ratc
is 8.25%.

*  When the borrower is in repayment or in a period of forbcarance, the applicable interest rate is variable and is based
on lhe bond equivalent rate of the 91-day Treasury bill auctioned at the final auction before the preceding June L,
plus 2.3%. The variable interest rate is adjusted annually on July 1. The maximum interest rate is 8.25%.

For Stafford Loans first disbursed on or afler July 1, 2006, the applicable interest rate is fixed at 6.80%. However, for Stafford
Loans for undergraduates, the applicable intcrest rate was reduced in phases for which the first disbursement was made on or after;

« Inly 1, 2008 and before July 1, 2009, the applicable interest rate is fixed at 6.00%,
+  July 1, 2009 and before July 1, 2010, the applicable interest rate is fixed at 5.60%.
Unsubsidized Stafford Loans

General. The Unsubsidized Stafford Loan program was created by Congress in 1992 for students who did not gnalify for Subsidized
Stafford Loans due to parental and/or student income and assets in excess of permitted amounts. These students were entitled to
borrow the difference between the Stafford Loan maximum for their status (dependent or independent) and their Subsidized Stalford
Loan eligibility through the Unsubsidized Stafford Loan Program. The general requirements for Unsubsidized Stafford Loans,
including special allowance payments, are essentially the same as those for Subsidized Stafford Loans. However, the terms of the
Unsubsidized Stafford Loans differ materially from Subsidized Stafford Loans in that the federal government will not make interest
subsidy payments and the loan limitations were determined without respect to the expected family contribution. The borrower is
required to either pay intercst from the time the loan is disbursed or the aceruing interest is capitalized when repayment begins at
the end of a deferment or forbearance, when the borrower is determined to no longer have a partial financial hardship under the
Income-Based Repayment plan or when the borrower leaves the plan. Unsubsidized Stafford Loans were not available before
October 1, 1992, A student meeting the general eligibility requirements for a loan under the Federal Family Education Loan
Program was eligible for an Unsubsidized Stafford Loan without regard to need.

Interest rates for Unsubsidized Stafford Loans. Unsubsidized Stalford Loans are subject to the same interest rate provisions as

Subsidized Stafford Loans, with the exception ol Unsubsidized Siallord Loans first disbursed on or after July 1, 2008, which retain
a fixed interest rate of 6.80%.
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PLUS Loans

General. PLUS l.oans were madc to parents, and under certain circumstances spouscs of remariied parents, of dependent
undergraduate students, Kffective July 1, 2006, graduate and professional students were cligible borrowers under the PLUS Loan
program. For PLUS Loans made on or after July 1, 1993, the borrower could not have an adverse credit history as determined by
crileria established by the Secretary of Hducation, The basic provisions applicable to PILUS Loans arc similar to those of Stafford
Loans with respect to the involvement of guarantee agencics and the Secretary of Education in providing federal insurance and
reinsurance on the loans. However, PLUS Loans differ significantly, particularly from the Subsidized Stafford Loans, in that
federal interest subsidy paymenis are not available under the PLUS Loan Program and special allowance payments are morc
restricted.

Interest rates for PLUS Loans. For PLUS Loans first disbursed on or after January 1, 1981, but belore October 1, 1981, the
applicable interest rate is fixed at 9%,

For PLUS Loans [irst disbursed on or after October 1, 1881, but before November 1, 1982, the applicable interest rate 1s fixed at
14%.

For PLUS Loans first disbursed on or aftcr November 1, 1982, but before July 1, 1987, the applicable interest rate is fixed at 12%.

Beginning July 1, 2001, for PLUS Loans first disbursed on or after July 1, 1987, but before October 1, 1992, the applicable interest
rate is variable and is based on the weekly average one-vear constant maturity Treasury bill vield for the last calendar week ending
on or before Junc 26 preceding July 1 of each year, plus 3.25%. The variable interest rate is adjusted annually on July 1. The
maximum interest ratc is 12%, Prior to July 1, 2001, PLUS Loans in this catcgory had interest rates which were based on the 52-
week Treasury bill auctioned at the final auction held prior to the preceding June 1, plus 3.25%. The annual (July 1) variable
iuterest rate adjustment was applicablc prior to July 1, 2001, as was the maximum interest rate of 12%. PLUS Loans originally
made at a fixed interest rate, which have been refinanced for purposes of securing a variable intercst rate, arc subject to the variable
interest rate calculation described in this paragraph,

Beginning July 1,2001, for PLUS Loans first disbursed on or after October 1, 1992, but before July 1, 1994, the applicablc interest
rate is variablc and is based on the weekly average one-year constant maturity Treasury yield for the last calendar week ending
on or before Junc 26 precediug July 1 of each year, plus 3.1%. The variable interest rate is adjusted annually on July 1. The
maximum interest ratc is 10%. Prior to July 1, 2001, PLUS Loans in this catcgory had interest rates which were based on the 52-
week Treasury bill auctioned at the final auction held prior to the preceding Junc 1, plus 3.1%. The annual (July 1) variable interest
rate adjustment was applicable prior to July 1, 2001, as was the maximum interest ratc of 10%.

Beginning July 1, 2001, for PL.US Loans first disbursed on or after July 1, 1994, but beforc July 1, 1998, the applicable interest
rate is variable and is based on the weekly average one-year constant maturity Treasury yield for the last calendar week ending
on or before June 26 preceding July 1 of each year, plus 3.1%. The variable interest rate is adjusted annually on July 1. The
maximum interest rate is 9%. Prior to July 1, 2001, PLUS Loans in this category had interest rates which werc based on the 52-
week Treasury bill aoctioned at the final auction held prior to the preceding June 1, plus 3.1%. The annual (July 1) variable interest
rate adjustment was applicable prior to July 1, 2001, as was the maximum interest rate of 9%.

For PLUS Loans first disbursed on or afler July 1, 1998, but before July 1, 2006, the applicable interest rate is variable and is
hased on the bond equivalent rate of the 91-day Treasury bill auctioned at the final suction before the preceding June 1 of each
yeat, plus 3.1%. The variable interest rate is adjusted annually on July 1. The maximum interest rate is 9%.

For PLUS Loans first disbursed on or after July 1, 2006, the applicable interest rate is fixed at 5.5%.
SLS Loans

General. SLS Loans were limited to graduate or professional students, independent undergraduate students, and dependent
undergradvate students, if the students' parents were unable to obtain a PLUS Loan. Exccpt for dependent undergraduate students,
eligibility for SLS Loans was determined without regard to need. SLS Loans were similar to Stafford Loans with respect to the
involvement of guarantee agencies and the Sccrctary of Education in providing federal insurance and reinsurance on the loans.
However, SLS Luaus differed significantly, particularly {rom Subsidized Stafford Loans, because federal intercst subsidy payments
were not available under the SL.S I.oan Program and special allowance payments were more restricted, The SLS Loan Program
was discontinued on July 1, 1954.
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Interest vates for SLS Loans. The applicable iniercst rates on SLS Loans made before October 1, 1992, and on SLS Loans
originally madc at 1 fixed interest rate, whicli have been refinanced for purposes of securing a variable interest rate, arc identical
to the applicable interest rates described for PLUS Loans made before October 1, 1992,

For SLS Loans first disbursed on or after October 1, 1992, bul before July 1, 1994, the applicable interest rate is as follows:

»  Beginning July 1, 2001, the applicable interest rate is variable and is based on the weekly average one-year constant
malurity Treasury yield for the last calendar week ending on or before June 26 preceding July 1 of cach year, plus
3.1%. The variable interest rate is adjusied annually on July 1. The maximum interest rate is 11%. Prior to July 1,
2001, SIS Loans in this category had intcrest rates which were based on the 52-week Treasury bill auctiened at the
final auction held prior to the preceding June 1, plus 3.1%. The annual (July 1) variable intcrest rate adjustment was
applicable prior to July 1, 2001, as was the maximum interest rate of 11%.

Consgolidation Loans

General. The Higher Education Act authorized a program under which certain borrowers could consolidate their various federally
insured education loans into 2 single loan insured and reinsured on a basis similar to Stafford Loans. Consolidation Loans could
be obtained in an amount sufficient to pay outstanding principal, unpaid intcrest, Jate charges, and collection costs on federally
insured or reinsured student loans incurred under the Federal Family Education Loan and Direct Loan Programs, including PLUS
Loans made to the consolidating borrower, as well as loans made under the Perkins Loan {formally National Direct Student Loan
Program), Federally Insured Student Loan (FISL), Nursing Student Loan (NSL), Health Education Assistance Loan (HEAL), and
Health Professions Student L.oan (HPSL) Programs. To be cligible for a FFELD Consolidation Loan, a borrower had to:

*  Have outstanding indebtedness on siudent loans made under the Federal Family Education Loan Program and/or
certain other federal student loan programs; and

+ Bein repayment status or in a gracc period on loans to be consolidated.

Bonowers who were in default on loans to be consolidated had to first make satisfactory arrangements to repay the loans to the
respective holder(s) or had to agree to repay the consolidating lender under an income-based repayment arrangement in order to
include the defaulted loans in the Consolidation Loan. For applications received on or after January 1, 1993, borrowers could add
additional loans to a Consolidation Loan during the 180-day period following the origination of the Consolidation Loan.

Amarried couple who agreed to be jointly liable on a Consolidation Loan for which the application was received on or after January
1, 1953, but before July 1, 2006, was treated as an individual for purposes of obtaining a Consolidation [Loan.

Interest rates jor Consolidation Loans. Tor Consolidation Loans disbursed before July 1, 1994, the applicable interest rate is
fixed at the greater of*

= 9%, or
*  The weighted average of the interest rates on the loans consolidated, rounded to the nearest whole percent,

For Consolidation Loans disbursed on or afler July 1, 1994, based on applications received by the lender before November 13,
1957, the applicable interest rate is lixed and is hased on the weighted average of Lhe interest rates on the loans consolidated,
rounded up to the nearest whole pereent.

For Consolidation Loans on which the application was received by the lender between November 13, 1997, and September 30,
1998, inclusive, the applicable interest rate is variable according (o the following:

*  Forthe portion of the Consolidation Loan which is comprised of FFELP, Direct, FISL, Perkins, HPSL, or NSL loans,
the variable interest rate is based on the bond equivalent rate of the 91-day Treasury bills auctioned at the final auction
before the preceding June 1, plus 3.1%. The variable mterest rate for this portion of the Consolidation Loan is adjusted
annually on July 1. The maxtmum intercst rate for this portion of the Consolidation Loan is 8.25%.

»  For the portion of the Consolidation Loan which is attributable to HEAL Loans (if applicable), the variable interest
rate is based on the average of the bond cquivalent rates of the 91-day Treasury bills auctioned for the quarter ending
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June 30, plus 3.0%. The variable interest rate for this portion of the Consolidation Loan is adjusted annually an July
1. There is no maximuin interest rate tor the portion of a Consolidation Loan that is represented by HEAL. Loans,

For Consolidation Loans on which the application was received by the lender on or after October 1, 1998, the applicable interest
rate is determined according to the following:

+  Forthe portion of the Consolidation Loan which is comprised of FFELP, Direct, FISL, Perking, ITPSL, or NSL loans,
the applicable interest rate is fixed and is based on the weighted average of the interest rates on the non-ITEAL loans
being consolidated, rounded up to the nearest one-eighth of one percent. The maximum interest rate for this portion
of the Consolidation Loan is 8.25%.

»  Forthe portion of the Consolidation Loan which is altributable to HEAL Loans (il applicable), the applicable interest
rate is variable and is based on the average of the bond equivalent rates of the 91-day Treasury bills auctioned for
the quarter ending June 30, plus 3.0%. The variahle interest rate for this portion of the Consolidation Loan 1s adjusted
annually on July 1. There is no maximum interest rate for the portion of the Consolidation Loan that is represented
by HEAL Loans.

For a discussion of required paymenis that reduce the return on Consolidation Loans, see “Fees - Rebate fee on Consolidation
Loans™ in this Appendix.

Interest rate during active duty

The Higher Education Opportunity Act of 2008 revised the Servicemembers Civil Relief Act to include FFIEL Program loans,
Interest charges on FFEL Program loans are capped at 6% during a period of time on or after August 14, 2008, in which a borrower
has served or is serving on active duty in the Armed Forces, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Public Health
Services, or National Guard. The interest charge cap includes the interest rate in addition to any fees, service charges, and other
charges rclated to the loan, The cap is applicable to loans made prior to the dale the borrower was called to active duty.

Maximum loan amounts

Each type of loan was subject to certain limits on the maximum principal amount, with respect to a given academic year and in
the aggregate. Consolidation [.oans were limited only by the amount of eligible loans to be consolidated. PLUS Loans were
limited to the difference between the cost of attendance and the other aid available to the student. Stafford Loans, subsidized and
unsubsidized, were subject to both annual and aggregate limits according to the provisions of the Higher Education Act.

Loan limits for Subsidized Stafford and Unsubsidized Stafford Loans. Dependent and independent undergraduate students were
subjcct to the same annual loan limits on Subsidized Staftord Loans; independent students were allowed greater annual loan limits
on Unsubsidized Stafford Loans. A student who had not successfully completed the first year of a program of undergraduate
education could borrow up to $3,500 in Subsidized Stafford Loans in an academic year. A student who had successfully completed
the first year, but who had not successfully completed the second ycar, could borrow up to $4,500 in Subsidized Stafford Loans
per academic year. An undergraduate student who had successfully completed the first and second years, but who had not
successfully completed the remainder of a program of undergraduate education, could borrow up te $5,500 in Subsidized Staftord
Loans per academic vear.

Dependent students could borrow an additional $2,000 in Unsubsidized Statford Loans for each year of undergraduate study.
Independent students could borrow an additional $6,000 of Unsubsidized Stafford Loans for each of the first two years and an
additional $7,000 for the third, fourth, and fifth years of undergraduate study. For students corolled in programs of less than an
academic year in length, the limits were generally reduced in proportion to the amount by which the programs were less than one
year in length. A graduate or professional student could borrow up to $20,500 in an academic year where no more than 38,500
was representative of Subsidized Stafford Loan amounts.

The maximum aggregate amount of Subsidized Stafford and Unsubsidized Stafford Loans, including that portion of a Consolidation
Loan uscd to repay such loans, which a dependent undergraduate student may bave outstanding is $31,000 (of which only $23,000
may be Suhsidized Staflord Loans). An independent undergraduate student may have an aggregate maximum of $57,500 (of which
only 823,000 may be Subsidized Stafford Loans). The maximum aggregate amount of Subsidized Stafford and Unsubsidized
Stafford Loans, including the portion of a Consolidation Loan used to repay such loans, for a graduate or professional student,
including leans for underpraduate education, is $138,500, of which only $65,500 may be Subsidized Stafford Loans. In some
instances, schools could certify loan amounts in excess of the limits, such as for certain health professiou students.
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Loan limifs for PLUS Loans. For PLUS l.oans made on or after Tuly 1, 1993, the annual amounts of PL.US J.oans were limited
only by the student's unmet nced. There was no aggregate limit for PLUS Loans.

Repayment

Repayment periods. Loans made under the Federal Family Education Loan Program, other than Consolidation Loans and loans
being repaid under an income-based or extended repayment schedule, must provide for repayment of principal in periodic
installmenls over a period of not less than five, nor more than ten years. A borrower may request, with concurreuce of the lender,
Lo repay the loan in less than five years with the right to subscquently extend the minimum repayment period to five years. Since
the 1998 Amendments, lenders have been required to offer extended repayment schedules to new borrowers disbursed on or after
Octuber 7, 1998 who accumulate outstanding FFELP Loans of more than $30,000, in which case the repayment period may extend
up to 25 years, subject to certain minimum repayment amounts. Consolidation Loans must be repaid within maximum repayment
periods which vary depending upon the principal amount of the borrower's outstanding student loans, but may not excecd 30 years,
For Consolidation Loans for which the application was received prior to January 1, 1993, the repayment period cannot exceed 23
years. Periods of authorized deferment and forbearance are excluded from the maximum repayment period. In addition, if the
repayment schedule on a loan with a variable interest rate does oot provide for adjustimenis Lo the amount of the monthly installment
payment, the maximum repayment period may be extended for up to three years.

Repayment of principal on a Stafford Loan does not begin until a student drops below at least a half-time course of study. For
Stafford Loans [or which the applicable rate of interest is fixed at 7%, thc repayment period begins between nine and twelve months
after the borrower ceases to pursue at least a half-time course of siudy, as indicated in the promissory note. For other Stafford
Loans, the repayment period begins six months after the borrower ceases to pursuc at Jeast a half-time course of study. These
periods during which payments of principal are not due are the “gracc petiods.”

In the case of SLS, PLUS, and Consolidation Loans, the repayment period begins on the date of final disbursement of the loan,
cxcept that the borrower of a SLS Loan who also has a Stafford Loan may postpone repayment of the SLS Loan to coincide with
the commencement of repayment of the Statford Loan,

During periods in which repayment of principal is required, unless the borrower is repaying uuder an income-based repayment
schedule, payments of principal and interest must in general be made at a rate of at least $600 per year, except that a borrower and
Icnder may agree to a lesser rate at any time before or during the repayment period. However, at a minimum, the payments must
satisfy the interest that accrues during the yecar. Bortowcrs may make accelerated payments at any time without penalty,

Income-sensitive repayment schedule. Since 1993, lenders have been required to offer income-sensitive repayment schedules,
in addition to standard and graduated repayment schedules, for Stafford, SLS, and Consolidation Loans, Beginning in 2000,
lenders have been required to ofler income-sensitive repayment schedules to PLUS borrowers as well. Usc of ineome-sensitive
repayment schedules may extend the maximum repayment period for up to five years if the payment amount estahlished from the
borrower's incomme will not repay the loan within the maximum applicable repayment period.

Income-based repaymient schedule, Effective July 1, 2009, 2 borrower in the Federal Family Edueation Loan Program or Federal
Direct Loan Program, other than a PLUS Loan made to a parent borrower or any Consolidation ILoan that repaid one or more
parent PLUS loans, may qualify for an income-based repayment schedule regardless of the disbursement dates of the loans if he
or she has a partial financial hardship. A borrower has a financial hardship if the annual loan payment amount based on a 10-year
repayment schedule exceeds 15% of the borrower's adjusted gross income, minus 150% of the poverly line for the borrower's
actual family size. Interest will be paid by the Sccretary of Education for subsidized loans for the first three years for any borrower
whose scheduled monthly payment is not sufficient to cover the accrued interest. Inlerest will capitalize at the end of the partial
financial hardship period, or when the borrower begins making payments nnder a standard repayment schedule, The Secretary of
Education will cancel any outstanding balance after 25 years if a borrower who has made payments under this schedule meets
certain criteria.

Deferment perinds, No principal payments need be made during ceriain periods of deferment prescribed by the Higher Education
Act, For a borrower who first obtained a Stafford or SLS loan which was disbursed before July 1, 1993, defermenis are available:

+  During a period not exceeding three years while the borrower is a member of the Armed Forces, an officer in the
Commissioned Corps of the Public Health Scrvice or, with respect to a borrower who first obtained a studeni loan
disbursed on or after July 1, 1987, or a student loan for a period of enrollment beginning on or after Inly 1, 1987, an
active duty metuber of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Corps;
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«  During a period not exceeding three years whilc the borrower is a4 volunteer under the Peace Corps Act;

+  During a period not exceeding threc ycars while the barrower is a full-time paid volunteer under the Domestic
Volunteer Act of 1973;

= During a period not exceeding three years while the borrower is a full-time volunteer in service which the Secretary
of Education has determined is comparable to service in the Peace Corp or under the Domestic Voluntcer Acl ol 1970
with an organization which is exempt from taxation under Section 501{c)3) of ihe Internal Revenue Codc;

*  During a period not exceeding two years whilc the borrower is scrving an internship necessary to receive professional
recognition required to begin prolessional practice or service, or a qualified intemship or residency program;

= During a period not exceeding three years while the borrower is tempaorarily totally disabled, as established by swormn
affidavit of a qualificd physician, or while the borrower is unable to secure employment because of caring for a
dependent who is so disabled;

¢+ During a period not exceeding two vears while the borrower is sceking and unable to fiud full-time employment;

»  During any period that the borrower is pursuing a full-time course of study at an eligible institution (or, with respect
lo a borrower who [irst obtained a student loan disbursed on or after July 1, 1987, or a student loan lor a period ol
enrollment beginning on or after July 1, 1987, is pursuing at least a half-time course of siudy);

*  During any period that the borrower is pursuing a course of study in a graduate fellowship program;

«  During any period the borrower is receiving rchabilitation training services for qualified individuals, as defined by
the Secretary of Education;

«  Dnring a period not cxeceding six months per request while the borrower is on parental leave; and

«  Only with respect to a borrower who first obtained a student loan disbursed on or after July 1, 1987, or a student loan
for a period of enrollment begiuning on or after Jnly |, 1987, during a period not excecding three years while the
borrower is a full-time teacher in a public or nonprofit private elementary or secondary school in a “teacher shortage
area” (as prescribed by the Secretary of Education), and during a period not cxcceding one year for mothers, with
preschool age children, whe are entering or re-entering the work force and who are paid at a rate of no more than $1
per hour more than the federal minimum wage.

For a borrower who first obtained a loan on or after July 1, 1993, deferments are available;
*  During any period that the borrower s pursuing at least a half-time course of study at an elipible institution;
*  During any period that the borrower is pursuing a course of study in a graduate fellowship program;

+  During any period the borrower is receiving rehabilitation training scrvices for qualified individuals, as defined by
the Secretary of Education;

»  During a period not excceding three years while the borrower is seeking and unable to find full-time employment;
and

*  During a period not exceeding three years for any reason which has caused or will cause the borrower economic
hardship. Economic hardship includes working full-time and earning an amount that does not exceed the greater of
the federal minimum wage or 150% of the poverty line applicable Lo a borrower's family size and state of residence.

" Additional categories of economic hardship are based on the receipt of payments from a state or federal public
assistance program, service in the Peace Corps, or until July 1, 2009, the relationship between a borrower's educational
debt burden and his or her income.

Effective October 1, 2007, a borrower serving on aclive duty during a war or other military operation or national emergency, or
performing qualifying National Guard duty during a war or other military operation or national emergency may obtain a military
deferment for all outstanding Title IV loans in repayment, For all periods of active duty service that include October 1, 2007 or
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begin on or after that date, the deferment period includes the borrower's service period and 180 days following the demaobilization
date.

Aborrower serving on or after October |, 2007, may receive up to 13 months of active duty student deferment after the completion
of military service if he or she meets the following conditions:

»  Is a National Guard member, Armed Forces reserves member, or retived member of the Armed Forces;
»  Is called or ordered to active duty; and

+  Isenrolled at the time of, or was enrolled within six months prior to, the activation in a program at an eligible
institution.

The active duty student deferment ends the earlier of when the borrower returns to an enrolled status, or at the end of 13 months.
PLUS Loans first disbursed on or after July 1, 2008, are ¢ligible for the following deferment options:

« A parent PLUS borrower, upon request, may defer the repayment of the loan during any period during which Lhe
student for whom the loan was borrowed is enrolled at least half time. Also upon request, the borrower can deler
the loan for the six-month period immediately following the date on which the studeni for whom the loan was
borrowed ceases to be enrolled al least half lire, or if the parent borrower is also a student, the date afier he or she
ceases to be enrolled at least half time.

*  Apraduate or professional student PLUS borrower may defer the loan for the six-month period immediately following
the date on which he or she ceases to be enrolled at least half time. This option docs not require a request and may
be granted each time the borrower ecases to be enrolled at least half time,

Prior to the 1992 Amendments, only some of the deferments described above were available to PLUS and Consolidation Loan
borrowers. Prior to the 1986 Amendments, PLUS Loan borrowers were not entitled to certain deferments.

Forbearance peripds. Thc Higher Education Act also provides for pericds of forbearance during which the lender, in case of a
borrower's temporary financial hardship, may postpone any payments. A borvower is entitled to forbearance for a pertod not
exceeding three years while the borrower's debt burden under Title TV of the Higher Education Act (which includes the Federal
Family Iiducation Loan Program) equals or exceeds 20% of'the borrower's gross income. A borrower is also entitled to forbearance
while he or she is serving in a qualifying internship or residency program, a “national service position” under the National and
Community Service Trust Act of 1993, a qualifying position for loan forgiveness under the Teacher Loan Forgiveness Program,
or a position that qualifies him or her for loan repayment under the Student Loan Repayment Program administered by the
Department of Defense. In addition, administrative forbearances are provided in circumstances such as, but not limited to, a local
or national emergency, a military mobilization, or when the geographical area in which the borrower or endorser resides has been
designated a disaster area by the President of the United States or Mexico, the Prime Minister of Canada, or by the governor of a
state.

Interest payments during grace, deferment, forbearance, and applicable income-based repayment ("IBR'") periods. The
Secretary of Education makes interest payments on behalf of the borrower for Subsidized loans while the borrower is in school,
grace, deferment, and during the first 3 years of the TBR plan for any remaining interest that is not satisfied by the IBR payment
amount. Interest that accrues during forbearance periods, and, if the loan is not eligible for interest subsidy payments during
school, grace, deferment, and IBR periods, may be paid monthly or quarterly by the borrower. Any unpaid accrued interest may
be capitalized by the lender.

Fees
Guarantee fee and Federal defoult fee. TFor loans for which the date of guarantee of principal was on or after July 1, 2006, a
guaranice agency was required to colleet and depositinto the Federal Student Loan Reserve Fund a Federal default fee in an amount

equal to 1% of the prineipal amount of the loan, The fee was collected either by deduetion from the proceeds of the loan or by
payment from other non-Federal sources. Tederal default fees could not be charged to borrowers of Consolidation Loans,
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Origination fee, Beginning with loans first disbursed on or after July 1, 2006, the maximum origination fee which could be charged
to a Stafford Loan borrower decrcased according to the following schedule:
+  1.5% with respect to loans for which the (irst disbursement was made on or after July 1, 2007, and beforc July 1,
2008;

= 1.0% with respect to loans for which the first dishursernent was made on or aller July 1, 2008, and before July 1,
2009; and

»  (.5% with respect to loans for which the first disbursement was made on or after July 1, 2009, and before July 1,
2010.

Alender could charge a lesser origination fee to Stallord Loan borrowers as long as the lender did so consistently with respect to
all borrowers who resided in or attended school in a particular siate. Regardless of whether the lender passed all or a portion of
the origination fee on to the borrower, the lender had to pay the origination fee owed on cach loan it made to the Secretary of
Education.

An cligible lender was required to charge the borrower of a PLUS Loan an origination fee equal to 3% of the principal amount of
the loan. This fec had to be deducted proportionately {rom each disbnrsement of the PLUS Loan and had to be remitted to the
Secretary of Education.

Lender fee. The lender of any loan made under the Federal Family Education Loan Program was reqnired to pay a fee to the
Secretary of Education. For loans made on or after October 1, 2007, the fee was equal to 1.0% of the principal amonnt of such
loan. This fec could not be charged to the borrower.

Rebate fee on Consolidation Loans. The holder of any Consolidation Loan made on or after October 1, 1993, was required to
pay to the Secretary of Education a monthly rebate fee, For loans made on or after October 1, 1993, from applications received
prior to October |, 1998, and after January 31, 1999, the fee is equal to 0.0875% (1.05% per annum) of the principal and accrued
interest on the Consolidation Loan, For loans made from applications received during the period beginning on or after October
1, 1998, through January 31, 1999, the fee is 0.0517% (0.62% per annum).

Interest subsidy paymenis

Interest subsidy payments are interest payments paid on the outstanding principal balance of an eligible loan before the time the
loan ¢nters repayment and during deferment periods. The Secretary of Education and the guarantee agencies cnter into interest
subsidy agreements wherchy the Secretary of Education agrees to pay interest subsidy payments on a quarterly basis to the holders
of eligible guaranteed loans (ot the benefit of students meeting certain requirements, subject to the holders' compliance with all
requirements of the Higher Education Act. Subsidized Stafford Loans are eligible for mterest payments. Consolidation Loans for
which the application was received on or after January 1, 1993, are eligible for interest subsidy payments. Consolidation Loans
made from applications received on or after August 10, 1993, are ¢ligible for interest subsidy payments only if all underlying loans
consolidated were Subsidized Stafford Loans. Consolidation Loans for which the application is received by an eligible lender on
or after November 13, 1997, are eligible for interest subsidy payments on that portion of the Consolidation Loan that repaid
subsidized FFELP Loans or similar subsidized loans made under the Direct Loan Program. The portion of the Consolidation Loan
that repaid HEAL Loans is not eligible for interest subsidy, regardless of the date the Consolidation Loan was made.

Special allowance payments

The Higher Education Act provides for special allowance payments (SAP) to be made hy the Secretary of Education to eligible
lenders. The rates for special allowance payments are based on formulas that differ according to the type of loan, the date the loan
was originally made or insured, and the type of funds used to finance the loan {taxable or tax-cxcmpt).

Stafford Loans. The effective fonmulas for special allowance payment rates for Subsidized Stafford and Unsubsidized Stafford
Loans arc summarized in the Tollowing chart. The T-Bill Rate mentioned in the chart refers to the average of the bond cquivalent
yicld of the 91-day Treasury bills auctioned during the preceding quarter.



Date of Loans Annualized SAP Rate

On or after October 1, 1681 T-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 3.5%
On or alter November 16, 1986 T-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 3.25%
On or after October 1, 1992 T-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 3.1%
On or after July 1, 1993 T-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 3.1%""
On or after July 1, 1998 1-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 2.8%%

3 Month (,onnncraal Paper Rate less Applicable Tnterest
On or after January 1, 2000 Rate + 2,340,049

On or after October 1, 2007 and beld by a Department of
Education certitied not-for-profit holder or Eligible Lender
Trustee holding on behalf of a Department of Education 3 Month Commg:rc,lal Paper Rate lcss Applicable Interest

certified not-for-profil entity Rate + ].94%™
3 Month Commcrmal Paper Rate less Applicable Interest
All other loans on or after October 1, 2007 Rate + 1.79%¥¢

() Substitute 2.5% in this formula while such loans are in-school, grace, or deferment status

@ Substitute 2.2% in this formula while such loans are in-school, grace, or deferment status.

) Substitute 1.74% in this formula while such loans are in-school, grace, or deferment status.

) Substitute 1.34% in this formula while such loans are in-school, grace, or deferment status.

) Substitute 1.19% in this formula while such loans are in-school, grace, or deferment status,

© The Military Construction and Veterans Affairs and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 2012 provides an alternate
calenlation methud that substitutes for 3 Month Commercial Paper Rate “1 Month London Inter Bank Offered Rate
{LIBOR) for United States dollars in effect for each of the days in such quarter as compiled and released by the British
Banker's Association." This method has to be selected by each lender or beneficial holder before April 1, 2012 and applies
to all loans held under the same lender identification number for the quarter heginming April 1, 2012 and all succeeding
3-month periods.

PLUS, SLS, and Consolidation Loans. The formula for special allowance payments on PLUS, SLS, and Consolidation Loans
are as follows;

Date of L.oans Annualized SAP Rate
On or after Oclober 1, 1992 T-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 3.1%

3 Month Commercial Paper Rate less Applicable Interest
On or after January 1, 2000 Rate + 2.64%""

PLUS loans on or after October 1, 2007 and held by a
Department of Education certified not-for-profit holder or
Eligible Lender Trustee holding on behalf of a Department 3 Month Commermal Paper Rate less Applicablc Intercst

of Education certificd not-for-profit entity Rate + 1.94%"
3 Month Cmnmcrc:]a] Paper Rate less Applicable [nterest
All other PLUS loans on or after October 1, 2007 Rate + 1.79%

Consolidation loans on or after October 1, 2007 and held

by a Department of Education certified not-for-profit holder

or Eligible Lender Trustee holding on behalf of a 3 Monih Commcrc:lal Paper Rate less Applicable Interest
Department of Education certified not-for-profit entity Rate + 2.24%

3 Month Commerc1al Paper Rate less Applicable Inieresi
All other Consolidation loans on or after October 1, 2007 Rate + 2.09%'"

U The Military Construction and Veterans Affairs and Related Apencies Appropriations Act of 2012 provides an alternate
calculation method that substitutes for 3 Month Commercial Paper Rate “1 Month London Inter Bank Offered Rate
(LTBOR) for United States dollars in effect for each of the days in such quarter as compiled and released by the British
Banker's Association." This method has to be sclected by cach lender or beneficial holder before April 1, 2012 and applies
to all loans held under the same lender identification number for the quarter beginning April 1, 2012 and all sncceeding
3-month periods.

For PLUS and SL8 Loans made prior te July 1, 1994, and PLUS loans made on or after July 1, 1998, which bear inieresi at rales
adjusted annually, special allowance payments are made only in quarters during which the interest rate ceiling on such loans
operates to reduce the rate that would olherwise apply based upon the applicable formula. See “Interest Rales for PLUS Loans”
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and “Interest Rates for SLS Loans.” Special allowance payments are available on variable rate PLLUS 1.oans and S1.S 1.oans made
on or after July 1, 1987, and before July 1, 1994, and on any PLUS Loans made on or after July 1, 1998, and befare January 1,
2000, only if the variable rate, which is reset annually, based on the weckly average one-year constant maturity Treasury vield for
loans made before July 1, 1998, and bascd on the 91-day or 52-weck Treasury bill, as applicable for loans made on or after July 1,
1998, exceeds the applicable maximun borrower rate. The maximum borrower rate is between 9% and 12% per annumn. The
portion, if any, of a Consolidation Loan that repaid a HEAL Loan is ineligible for special allowance payments.

Recapture of excess interest. The Higher Hducation Reconciliation Act of 2005 provides that, with respect to a loan for which
the first disbursement of principal was made on or after April 1, 2006, if the applicable interest rate for any three-month period
exceeds the special allowance support level applicable to the loan for that period, an adjustment must be made by caleulating the
excess interest and crediting such amounts to the Secretary of Education nol less often than annually. The amount of any adjustment
of interest for any quarter will be equal Lo:

»  The applicable interest rate minus the special allowance support level for the loan, multiplied by

= The average daily principal balance of the loan during the quarter, divided by

= Four
Special allowance payments for loans financed by tax-exempt bonds. The efféctive formulas for special allowance payment
rates for Slallord Loans and Unsubsidized Stafford Loans differ depending on whether loans to borrowers were acquired or
originated with the proceeds of tax-exempt obligations. "Uhe formula for special allowance payments for loans financed with the

proceeds ol lax-cxempt obligations originally issued prior to October 1, 1993 is:

T-Bill Rale lcss Applicable Interest Rate + 3.5%
2

provided that the special allowance applicable to the loans may not be less than 9.5% less the Applicable Interest Rate, Speeial
rules apply with respect to special allowance payments made on loans

*  Originated or acquired with funds obtained from the refunding of tax-cxempt obligations issued prior to October 1,
1993, or

«  Orginated or acquired with funds obtained from colleetions on other loans made or purchased with funds obtained
from tax-exempt obligations initially issued prior to October 1, 1993,

Amounts derived from recoverics of principal on loans eligible to receive a minimum 9.5% special allowance payment may only
be used to originate or acquire additional loans by a unit of a state or local government, or non-profit entity not owned or controlied
by or under common ownership of a for-profit entity and held directly or through any subsidiary, affiliate or lrusiee, which entity
has a total unpaid balance of principal equal to or less than $100,000,000 on loans for which special allowances were paid in the
most recent quarterly payment prior to September 30, 2005. Such entities may originate or acquirc additional loans with amounts
derived from recoveries of principal until December 31, 2010. Loans acquired with the proceeds of tax-exempt obligations
originally issued after October 1, 1993, receive speceial allowance payments made on other loans. Beginning October 1, 2006, in
order to receive 9.5% special allowance payments, a lender must undergo an audit arranged by the Secretary of Educaticon attesting
to proper billing for 9.5% payments on only eligible “first generation™ and “second generation™ loans. First generation loans
include those loans acquired using funds directly from the issuance of the tax-exempt obligation. Second-generation loans inciude
only those loans acquired using funds obtained directly from first-generation loans. Furthermore, the lender must certify compliance
of its 9.5% billing on such loans with each request for payment.

Adjustments to special allowance payments. Special allowance payments and interest subsidy paymenils arc reduced by the
amount which the lender is authorized or required to charge as an origination fee. In addition, the amount of the lender origination
fee is collected by offset to special allowance payments and interest subsidy paymenis. The Higher Education Act provides that
if special allowance payments or interest subsidy payments have not been made within 30 days after the Secretary of Education
receives an accurate, timely, and compleie request, the special allowance payable to the lender must be increased by an amount
equal to the daily interest accruing on the special allowance and interest subsidy payments duc the lender.






























Education:

Experience:

References:

Christina Peterson

cpeterson@allophone.net
(308) §83-0003

Southeast Community College, Lincoln, Nebraska
Associates of Science

Business Customer Service Manager
Allo Communications LLC, Imperial, Nebraska
November 2015 to Present
* Manages 10+ customer service representatives entering customer
information into data system

Business Customer Service Representative
Allo Communications, LLC, Imperial, Nebraska
April 2011 to November 2015
+ Obtained cuslomer informalivn and entered into data system
* Provided provision and communication with customers to set up
services provided

Allison O'Neil

Vice President of Customer Operations
Allo Communications, ILLC

912 Broadway Street

Imperial, Nebraska 69033

(308) 633-7805

aoneil@allophone net

Thomas Scheele

Hosted PBX Specialist

Allo Communications, LLC
912 Broadway Street
Imperial, Nebraska 69033
(402) 781-4653
tscheele@allophone.net

Tanna Hanna

Marketing Manager

Allo Communications, LLC
912 Broadway Street
Imperial, Nebraska 69033
(308) 633-7815
thanna@®allophone.net
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Education:

Experience:

Jay W. Gregg

jay.w.gregg@gmail.com
(573) 647-1479

University of Missouri-Columbia, Columbia, Missouri
Bachelor of Science, Hotel and Restaurant Management

Network Engineer
Allo Communications LLC, Highlands Ranch, Colorado
February 2018 to Present

Designs, tests, and deploys VoI’ infrastructure

Serves as final escalation point for large network outages related to
voice

Provides project iInanagement

Provides Metaswich cluser implementation - trunking

Provides rcmote and physical maintenance of VolIP core network
equipment during and after hours

Performs design and implementation of MOPs for engineering and
network operations

Performs design and implementation of training/troubleshooting
guides for VoIP access and core equipment

Management of Cisco ASA Firewall and ACLs through ASDM

NTAC Engineer II
Allo Communications, LLC, Highlands Ranch, Colorado
July 2017 to January 2018

Served as top escalation point for Network Technical Assistance
Center (Network Operations)

Provided remote and physical maintenance of core and access network
during and after hours

Designed and implemented Method of Procedures

Designed and implemented training/ troubleshooting guides for VoIP,
FTTH, and associated access equipment

Provided provision, design, and troubleshooting for subscribers for
Video, Voice, and Data on CALIX, Adtran, Metaswitch, Juniper, and
CISCO

Operations Technician II
CenturyLink Corporation, Littleton, Colorado
January 2015 to June 2017

Provided Tier II troubleshooting and support for Consumer and
Business VoIP customers

Addressed local, long distance, and international VoIP call routing
issues over Centurylink VolP, local, and long distance switches
SME and use of ticketing system REMEDY

Configured and perfonined troubleshooting on BROADSOFT and
SYLANTRO Hosted VoIP platforms

Perforried call traces and packet capturing in programs WIRESHARK
and IRIS. Interpreted and analyzed call traces to provide repair
recommendations

Pulled call details, analyzed SS7 and provided repair
recommendations from analysis
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+ Provided core router troubleshooting on DS1, DS3, Serial or Ethernct
interfaces including MPLS, BGP, VRT forwarding and QOS
configuration

Programmmer II/Lead
CenturyLink Corporation, Columbia, Missouri
April 2011 to January 2015
» Provided remoted support and assistance for technicians for nstalls,
trouble tickets, testing, adjusting, and maintaining, complex networks
& Served as lead and escalation point for department
e Provided activation and repair and ETHERNET OR ATM subscribers
on FIBER and Copper
* Provided provision and troubleshooting in CALIX CMS (E3, E5, E7,
C7)

Tier I Business Center Analyst
Socket Telecom, LLC, Columbia, Missouri
September 2009 to April 2011
» Provided remote, technical support to clientele to diagnose,
troubleshoot, and resolve computer hardware and soft issues affecting
business operations
¢ Provided troubleshooting and resolved issues on Cisco routers and
switches, DSL mterfaces, T1s, DS1, MPLS Networks, Point to Pomt,
ISDN
* Responsible for overseeing the completion of escalated issues, working
with Field Technicians, ILECs, and dispatchers to resolve customer
data and voice issues as well as restore and repair circuits for POTs,
ADSL, HDSL, T1, and resold services

Tier III Technician/Lead
Socket Telecom, LLC, Columbia, Missouri
January 2009 to September 2009
* Served as Technical Supervisor for the Support department during
business hours on evenings and weekends
» Ensured all escalated calls were promptly resolved and followed up
daily
e Partnered with other leads to ensure staffing and scheduling
requirements were met
¢ Participated in the hiring and performance evaluation of employecs in
order to maintain a healthy, positive work culture applicable to
company standards
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Education:

Experience:

References:

Thomas Scheele

tscheele@allophone.net
{402) 239-3923

Southeast Community College, Milford, Nebraska
Associate of Applicd Science in Automotive Technology

Southeast Community College, Milford, Nebraska
Associate of Applied Science in Automotive Collision Repair

Hosted PBX Support Specialist

Allo Communications, Lincoln, Nebraska

March 2018 to Present
s Supports customer phone needs including design
e Installs and sets up phones

Business Customer Service Representative
Allo Communications, Lincoln, Nebraska
November 2016 to March 2018
¢ Trained team members and resolved customer issues
¢ Provided coordination of several high value customers and assistance
with ICB process for engineering
¢ Trained team members

Business Customer Support Representative
Allo Communications, Lincoln, Nebraska
June 2016 to November 2016

s Processed orders and set up equipment for customers

Heather Schroer
Office Manager
Scudder Law
(402) 435-3223

Sarah Lavy
Administrative Assistant
Manzitto Real Estate
(402) 483-2302

Elisa Stritt

Office Manager

National Conference for Weights and Measures
(402) 434-4872
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Education:

Experience:

References:

Kristin Cross
crosskgk@gmail.com
(308) 241-1844

Western Nebraska Community College, Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Nursing Major

Business Customer Service Representative
Allo Communications LLC, Scottsbluff, Nebraska
February 2016 to Present

Processes incoming requests for new installations, including SIP
trunks, PRI's, and IP phones

Completes changes on business accounts based on custoiners’ requests
Takes incoming calls from business customers regarding trouble
issues, questions, and concerns

Handles outbound calls with the objective to collect on delinquent
accounts

Handles billing disputes and process billing errors

Manages business price list for the business team

Records Administrator
Riceo Inc,, Scottsbluff, Nebraska
July 2014 to Decermnber 2015

Performed filing and interfiling of items on a timely basis
Performed database queries and reports of activities

Retrieved and arranged file delivery

Accessed, coinpiled, gathered, and issued requested records and
information

Performed basic records center operations im accordance with RIM
procedures

Admissions Representative
Panhandle Mental Health Center, Scottsbluff, Nebraska
May 2012 to July 2014

Completed admissions paperwork with new customers
Updated financial paperwork for the sliding fee scale
Managed multiple clinicians’ work schedules

Set up appointments for customers

Verified insurance benefits

Emily Vogt

Business Supervisor

Allo Commmunications
610 Broadway Street
Imperial, Nebraska 69033
(308) 882-7800

Sheila Dinges

Business Lead

Allo Communicabons

1710 E. 20t Street
Scottsbluff, Nebraska 69361
(308) 633-7804
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Melody Marsh

Business Representative
Allo Communications

1710 E. 20th Street
Scottsbluff, Nebraska 69361
{308) 633-7899
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Education:

Experience:

References:

Matthew Greenwood

greenwood.sycksun@gmail.com
(402) 499-5376

Grace University, Omaha, Nebraska
Bachelor of Science in Psychology

Hosted PBX Support Specialist IT
Allo Communications LLC, Lincoln, Nebraska
February 2017 to Present

Responsible for supporting the Hosted PBX team and ensuring ALLO
delivers the highest level of customer service

Provides troubleshooting within a VoIP environment, hosted PBX
feature configuration, addition of services within the hosted
environment, documentation of configuration of design clements, and
completion of diagnostics and testing

Maintains customer satisfaction by providing problem solving
resources

Completes changes on business accounts based on customers’ requests

Bookkeeper/IT Liason
Hy Electric, Lincoln, Nebraska
October 2015 to February 2017

Responsible to paying bills, calculating and releasing payroll,
conunumicating with customers and vendors, invoice recovery, and
preparing cash flow and income reports for ownership

Provided rollout of communication devices for field staff to facilitate
productivity tools

Dr. Don Rice

Owner

Urgent Care Clinic
(402) 4884321

Lisa Miller

Office Manager
Leach Camper Sales
(402) 466-8581

Jetff Schmidt
President

Jenda Family Services
(402) 474-0011
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Education:

Experience:

Sonya M. Pinneo
Sonyamaric1304@live.com
(402) 314-1155

University of Nebraska - Kearney, Kearney, Nebraska
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration

Business Customer Service Manager
Allo Communications LLC, Lincoln, Nebraska
May 2018 to Present

Responsible for building and maintaining high performing Business
Custoruer Service and Hosted PBX teams

Ensures that adequate staffing is in place to handle the work functions
assigned to position’s area of responsibility

Effectively allocates and identifies area of improvement

Assists upper inanagement in planning and implementing new
procedures, allowing Customer Service and Hosted PBX emnployees to
carry out their responsibilities

Establishes and maintains processes that have business orders
completed within 21 days of signed order

Provides and enhances job aids for customer service representatives
Serves as custoiner interfacing escalation point

Works with Installation Technician Managers to ensure prospering,
scheduling and communication for installations

Analyzes data and statistics

Leads and participates in internal meetings, such as operation reviews

Hosted PBX Supervisor
Allo Communications LLC, Lincoln, Nebraska
August 2016 to May 2018

Responsible for building and overseeing a high performing Hosted
PBX teain

Supervised, trained, coached and mentored Hosted PBX
Representatives

Successfully developed, empowered direct reports to make decisions,
take action

Served as a business customer interfacing escalation point

Ensured operational plans were aligned with business objectives

Collaborated on the developimnent and implementation of custoiner

and contract performance metrics and tools

Worked with Installation Technician Managers and Sales Engineers to

ensure proper scheduling and communication for installations

Technical Training Specialist
Union Bank and Trust, Lincoln, Nebraska
August 2015 to Present

Enhances the productivity of bank employees by providing education
for increased efficiency and optimal use of technical tools

Creates and conducts various technical training modules including
topics such as Microsoft Office, Adobe, and other tools that support
bank efficiency efforts and major system upgrades

Serves as an Administrator of multiple online training platforins
Conducts New Employee Orientation for all new employees

Creates and maintains an onboarding, process for new employees in
each department

Page 15 of 25



¢ Completes ongoing research and development of existing and new
technical training modules as needed
s Provides training to employees on how to use digital banking tools

References: Brian Watkins
Vice President of Information Technology
Union Bank & Trust
(402) 432-3732

Karen Helmberger
Strategic Business Leader
(402) 430-0231

Ben Dinger

IT Director

Home Services
- {402) 434-8118

Todd Blome
Partner

BMG CPA’s, LLP
(402) 483-7781
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Education:

Experience:

References:

Todd A. Vanschoiack

TVanschoiack@allophone.net
(402) 781-4093

Midland Lutheran College, Fremont, Nebraska
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, Accounting and Finance

Business Sales Engineer
Allo Communications LLC, Lincoln, Nebraska
2016 to Present
¢  Meets with businesses and recommends network solutions
¢ Provides detailed drawings for Allo/customer network
» Provides project management for installations
¢  Provides site survey of custoiner premise to give a detailed scope of
work
s«  Works on proposals and quotes

Officer - Manager/Project Manager Technical Support Team
Union Bank and Trust Co., Lincoln, Nebraska
2012 - 2016
e Managed operations of the Technical Support Team within the IT
Department, including all job functions of two technicians and all
projects associated with the IT Department and bank-wide projects
+  Responsible for all technical projects from start to finish, including
research, proposals, budgeting, scheduling and implementation
e Responsible for bank-wide projects and reporting to management
+ Responsible for project communication with management, coworkers
and vendors
s Responsible for phone systein conversion VolIP
» Responsible for ticketing software implementation for IT Department.
+ Coordinated installs with vendors for cabling and communications for
remodels and new buildings

Officer - Manager Desktop Support Team
Unicn Bank and Trust, Lincoln, Nebraska
2001 to 2012
¢ Managed operations of the Desktop Support department within
Network Services
Responsible for all techrnical issues related to the end users
Responsible for all bank licensing on all software products
¢ Responsible for all inventory tracking of all hardware and software
» Coordinated departinent projects
e Responsible for personnel duties including interviewing, development
of procedures, maintenance of records, and delegation of workload

Adain Fousek

Officer and Network Supervisor
3401 Plantation Drive

Lincoln, Nebraska

(402) 323-1199

Matthew Martin
Senior Network Engineer, Security and Phones

Paqge 17 of 25



3401 Plantation Drive
Lincoln, Nebraska
{402) 3231769

John Wiechman

Low Voltage Cabling Manager
3333 Folkways Circle

Lincoln, Nebraska

(402) 472-7766
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Education:

Experience:

Timothy P. Hahn

Tim.hahn33@gmail.com
(402) 875-1925

Missouri Western State University, St. Joscph, Missouri
Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering Technology

Sales Engineer
Allo Commumcations LLC, Lincoln, Nebraska
December 2017 to Present

Designs and sell solutions to new customers and drives advanced data
networking solutions into existing accounts

Supports sales with proposal generation for complex designs (i.e. pricing
assistance, equipment design, Visio documentation, detailed scope of
work)

Prepares, completes, and presents all technical information to the
engineering team for customer implementations

Acts as a technical liaison between post sales implementation groups,
enginecring, and sales teams

Represents ALLO on customer appointments as a subject manner expert
for data services, LAN/WAN technologies, SIP and associated
LAN/WAN applications

Develops relationships via daily interaction with Sales personnel,
Engineering, Account Management, and support service teams
Manages and coordinates complex orders

Sales Engineer
Windstream Communications, Lincoln, Nebraska
1995 to September 2017

Conducted business in a consultative manner, understanding the
communication applications and business challenges facing prospective
and current customers

Designed and sold solutions to new customers and drove advanced data
networking solutions into existing accounts

Supported sales with proposal generation for all complex WAN designs
(i.e. pricing assistance, equipment design, Visio documentation, detailed
scope of work)

Prepared, completed, and presented all technical paperwork to the
engineering team for customer implementations

Conducted training for Sales and Account development on technical
concepts, features, and capabilities of network products

Conducted sales-focused training to customer groups to drive techmical
product sets into to new and existing accounts

Provided technical expertise to Marketing and Training teams during
rollout of new data services or enhancements of existing offerings

Acted as a technical liaison between post sales implementation groups,
engineering, and sales teams

Represented Windstream on customer appointments as a subject manner
expert for data services, LAN/WAN technologies, SIP and associated
LAN/WAN application

Systems Engineer
Windstream Commurmications, Lincoln, Nebraska
1997 to 2011
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References:

¢ Served as a Lead Engineer for high budget projects such as BryanLGH,

Ambassador Group, Assurity Life Insurance, Teledyne Isco, Lincoln
Surgical Hospital, and Kawasaki

*  Conducted site visits with customers to assess their communication and

data needs and capabilities
* Designed communication systems (phone, paging, voice and data

wiring, fiber installation, IP Telephony) and created bids for projects.
* Communicated with product distributors to learn about product pricing

and capabilities

¢ Conducted presentations for customers to educate them about products

or to introduce the customer to new technologies

¢ Managed projects to ensure that all of the customer’s necds were met

» Collaborated with other project contractors (building contractors,

electrical contractors, and architects) to coordinate respective projects

Stuart Zetterman

Human Resources Director
TELCOR, Ine.

(402) 770-9134
Zetsdnu@neb,rt.com

Brad Tuch

VolP Engineer

Kidwell Communications
(402) 525-6745
btuch@datavision.com

Tony Peterson

Manager, Local Operations
Windstream Communications
{402) 540-3879
Tony.Peterson@windstream.com
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Education:

Experience:

Robert Dew

rddew@hotmail.com
(954) 552-0859

University of Oklahoma, Norman, Oklahoma
Bachelor of Science in Computer Science

University of Oklahoma, Norman, Oklahoma
Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering

Technical Customer Support Engineer
Metaswitch Networks, Enfield, England
2010 to 2018

Provided technical support for more than ten strategic customers
including Centurylink, Charter, Level 3, Earthlink, Primus, and Cogeco
Commissioned new VoIP network deployinents on schedule from power
up to customer turnover

Configured all database/ translations, performed SIP/TDM trunk turn-
ups, and oversaw VolP/TDM subscriber acceptance testing

Authored technical specifications and MOPS detailing customer specific
projects

Developed and presented onsite training courses to customers based on
the technical specifications

Led Centurylink EAS MC consolidation project, including migration of
2M subscribers from IBM HS20 Blade Server Chassis systems to new
IBM X240 Flex systemn chassis systems

Provided IMS/VoLTE support for Metaswitch cloud-native product set
including Perimeta P-CSCF and IBCF, Clearwater 5-CSCF, I.CSCF, and
BGCF SBC, and Rhino TAS on AWS cloud based servers built with
VMWare virtualization

Systems Verification Engineer
Nokia Siemens Networks, Boca Raton, Florida
2006 to 2010

Supported French Telecom Lab trial of hiQ4200 VAS IMS network
solution

Managed Systems Verification Lab Network including hiQ8000, Cisco
CMTS, Siemens PCS5000, Nominum Navitas Enum Server, MGTS 557
PASM, and Cisco Catalyst 4500

Developed and successfully executed test plans using Agile processes
for software features including MLPP and Security (Military project),
TLS SOAP/ XML Security, ENUM query routing, PCMM Qo5
Bandwidth Management, and CALEA Electromic Surveillance

Product Assurance
Coppercorr, Inc., Baton Raton, Florida
2000 to 2006

Successfully managed s team of more than ten systems test engineers
Handled staffing, performance teviews, resource allocation, effort
estimates, and systems test lab resource management

Developed and presented systems test strategies to exccutive and project
management for four major teleases of software; Strategies included
feature testing, protocol testing, automated regression testing,
capacity/stress testing, and stability testing
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Championed Quality Action Teams to improve quality of product and
company processes. Teams included CPML Enhancement Team, SS7
Enhancement team, and Automation Team

Interfaced with Sales and Marketing to provide product
demonstrations for existing and prospective customets.

Reviewed all technical documentation for customer delivery
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Experience:

Kyle Nichols

3086316188@viaerosms.com
(308) 631-6188

Business Installation Technician
Allo Communications LLC, Scottsbluff, Nebraska
October 2005 to Present
¢ Installs voice services for businesses
Installs, develops, and supports IP phone situations
Provides troubleshooting for voice services on all platforms
Supports troubleshooting with Customer Service Representatives

Telephone System Technician
May 1986 to October 2005
¢ Installed and maintained business telephone systems
*  Worked on wire networks
» Installed voicemail systems
¢ Installed paging systems
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Education:

Experience:

Kathy Carstenson
kcarstenson@altophone.net
402-261-0932

University of Oklahoma, Norman, Oklahoma
Computer Science and Electrical Engineering

Director of Sales
Allo Communications LLC, Lincoln, Nebraska
February 2016 to Present

Oversee day to day sales and marketing

Facilitate growth in sales territorics

Work with engineering to develop new technologies

Train customers to implement new technologies to their needs

Prepare and present quotes to customers

Train sales representatives

Travel to different sales territories and work with local sales representatives on quoting and
closing

Customer service, visit with existing customer to make sure service is perfect

Designs and sell solutions to new customers and drives advanced data networking,
solutions into existing accounts

Represents ALLO on customer appointments as a subject manner expert for data services,
LAN/WAN technologies, SIP and associated LAN/WAN applications

Develops relationships via daily interaction with Sales personnel, Engineering, Account
Management, and support service teams

EVT of Sales and Operations
Pinpoint Communications, Omaha, Nebraska
September 2013 to February 2016

Manage the network team, which are responsible for the following

Long haul transport between Chicago and Denver. (BTI,Cyan and Cisco network
equipment)

Long haul transport between Reno and Las Vegas, (ALU, Fortinet)

Work and maintain vender relationships for transport, IT and phone.

Cogent, Windstream, Level 3, CenturyLink, Cyan, BTI, Cisco, Dell, ShoreTel.

Attend industry conventions to stay current with latest technology and build relationships
leading transport carriers.

Manage the IT teamn.

Provide weekly updates to President and Board members,

Worked with all teams to implement best practices in all areas,

Managed long haul and last mile carriers relationships to provide cost effective transport
connectivity for customer.

Venders Windstream, Centurylink, Level 3, SDN, Zayo

Project managed a $4 million dark fiber installation in Omaha Metro and came in on budget.

Director of Business Solutions, Sales Engineering Manager, Sales Engineer
Windstream Communications, Lincoln, Nebraska
March 1988 to September 2012

Ensured completion of training, maintained appropriate staffing levels, and made hiring and
termination decisions.

Managed the teams that engineered, programmed and installed enterprise telecommunication
systems and call management servers with skilled base routing.

Managed the data network en gineers to provide end customer solutions for Internet, MPLS
or layer-2 connectivity.

Monthly presentation/meeting with regional Director and VP on all upcoming and ongoing
projects.
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References:

Scott Von Minden

Vice President, Investments

Von Minden Wealth Solutions
Raymond James & Associates

8700 Executive Woods Drive, Suite 300
Lincoln, NE 68512

(402) 853-7663 Direct

Scott. VonMinden@RaymondJames.com

Mike Urdahl
President/ CEO
Pinpoint Holdings
(402) 575-1918
mike.urdahl@pnpt.com

Andy Jader

Vice President

Nebraska Central Telephone
Windstream Communications
(308) 468-6341
ajader@NCTC.NET
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PICTURES:
Cremarcation, wiring closat pctures
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Cooman Deployment settings
MataSphere CF5 cfi_name
Metasphare EAS 2as_hame
CF5 Subscriber Group

EAS Customar Group  defauliGroup
5P domals hame

Locale Engllsh (LS}

BG Bretnils

B Name 17760704 _ARC Company

CF5 Persistent Profile  HPBX - Businass Group

Line Class Code 4 2557
Line Class Code 2 567
Lina Class Code 3 234
Ling Class Code 4

Ling Class Code 5

Ling Class Code 6

Ling Class Code 7

Ling Class Code B

Lina Class Code 9

Ling Class Code 10

Leng distance carriar 13234
Intral ATA carriar 5673
Intarnational carvier G112
|crs PR's

Basic HFPEX - Business Baslc User
[Standard HPBX - Business Standard User
EPram|um HPBX - Businass Framium User
EAS CO5's

Basie MNo_Services

Standarg HPEX_Bus_Std_Llser

L Pramlum HPBY_BPU_po_AC

LEmergency Notifications
fApplication server
Typo Y

|siPrE Detallz
Davica version 2
MAC trustad until

Cluestions to ask:

Do they neeo;wunL Lisuosuye nngng 191 either |

Uo they need/want advanced alerting features? <

Do they neadfwant BG cail logs?

If uslng Accessian - 0o they want the non accession lines in the BG to share presence?
What will the Voicemail Code Prefix be?

Do they neadfwant an External Line cede? If so what should it be?

Do they want the External Ling code to pr prafived on Caller 1ID?

Do they needwant an OGperator Number for the BG?

[ra they want intarnal intercom calls ta show as the extension?

Dt they need to restrict massaging to within the BGET - |E - Mot abls to forward ¥i's to Vi boxes owlside the BG,

Do they needfwant emergency call notlflcatlons?

Da they neadfwant iaCD?

Bethe need/want [ACD with Monitor f Wispar / Barge in?

Hew manu Basic iACD Llcenses?

How many Premium iACD Licences? =

[ they need to lmit the number of schadulad IACD reports?

[to they want BG level disposition codes?

|f Yas - BG Disposition code 1

IFYes - BG Disposition eode 2

|FYes - BG Disposition code 3

If Yas - BG Disposition code 4

IF ¥es - BG Dispasition eode 5

Do they naedfwant Accession Meeting weblnar? [f yes - How any Licenzes?
Do they needwant Accassion Large Meating? If yes - How Many Licenses?

Pogm1cd1
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Hosted PBX Imtial Questions

Customer Contaed Information: Compuber System/PhenedIT Cantact [If any):
Campany: Coampany:
Mame: Mame:
Phena: Phane:
E-mail: E-mall:
Dala: Saies Contact:

1 ‘Would you like the cutbound DID far emplay be the mala bear or their ion?

2 What are your businoss hoursfdays?

2 What happans to calls that come In on your main ¢ompany number during working hours?

If Ad usad, should i furn off icaily 7
4 Wil tha racept|anist need to have their own DID number? Need voi i?
13 Aytamated Attendant “dial by name” method {fi othy?
B Da alher users lines need o be added to primary usars phones?

7 Will you ba using Hunt groups?
If yes, pleass Ml oul the "hun! groups” tab of ihis worksheet
B Will yau be using Pickup Groups?
If yes, pisase fill oul the “plokup groups” tak of this worksheed,
L] Will yau be using Phone Paging or Paging Greups?
Paglng groups enable users in page one anoiher tirough the speakerphons ol overhead paging)
10 I the billing address |= differant than the facllity address, enter it here:

11 What type LAM has bean deplayed [10/100 or Gig-E)?

12 If the customer is using VLAN's, please describe

Any special routingbridging?
12 Existing Equipmant [anter make and modsl)
Rauter
Firawnll

Wireless Access Paiml
POE 8wltch

14 Are there other pleces of equipmen requlred {enter equipment and reeson for need)

15 Enter Existing Intornal IP Schema;
IP Address
Subnat

Galeway

Page 1ol
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Meiassitch com

Note: Munt groups esxn overflow SENA or GFB to any isfephore number, aven anpiher hunt groug pitod nmber

Hosted PBX Hunt Group Worksheet

HUNT GROUP NAME [MLHG Nome} Sales HUNT GROUP NAME {MLHG Name)
MLHG Sarvice Level MLHG| |MLHG Service Level
DEPARTMENT Sales| |DEPARTMENT
Jdentifying Number 100| [idantifving Number
Adtow Log InfLeg Out of Hung Group? Yos; |Allow Log InlLog Out of Hung Group?
Hunt Group Algorithm Ring All] |Hunt Graup Algarithm
Cueuing susg 17 Yost GQueuing supparted?
AF yees, MATEmT Bl peetele I quess [Dalat & max = t8) 15 IF yes, maximum 2 o pecpls In gueas [Dedad? £ max = 18]
It yea, maximum tme call can be Ir queus 3604 H yes, maximum time zall 22n be In qoove|
(Defardt & mar=3E00 seconds, 1 heur) [Detault & MEx=3800 scecenns, 1 heur)
Hunt on no-answer? ¥es| |Hunt on no-answer?
No-znswer tirmeout. Numbar of 30 Ne-answer timeout. Number of
seconds a line should ring befora saconds 3 line sheuld ring befors
being passad tu the next agent Be being passed 1o tha next agert  Be
sure that this is fess than the lime stire that this is less than the tims
before # rolls to WM betorz it rolls Lo WM
{Datault 1s 30 saconds.) {Cafaullis 3 seconds.)
MNo-answer exclusion time? If an 30 Ne-answer exelusion time? If en
ageni doesn't answer, how long agenl doesn't answer, how long
shaould the switeh wail to offer another should the switch wait to offer
call o thal agent  (default 20 another call to thal agent  (default
$BLONHS) 30 sgeonds)
Hunt on direct-dizled calls? Ma| |Hunt on dirzet-dinled calls?
Offar calls to SIP Mnes in calls with spare MCAs IE! Difar calis to SIP lines in calts with spars MCAs
Deliver Called Number {Hunt Sroup Pilot D) as CID? Yusi |Daliver Gajind Number fHunt Group Fllat Oh) as GiD?
It ACD enabled Wean up enabled? Moy [IF AGD enabled Wrep up enablad?
Masumtm wrap up lima? Maximum wrap up time?
Use disposition codas? Hai Lise dispasition sodes?
Chisposition code 1 Dlsposilion code T
| Disposiioncode? [ Oispossian code 2
CHsposition code 3 Disposlion cods 3
Gisposition codo £ Dispasilion code 4
Dlsposition code 5 Dispuston sode §
MLHG Pilot DN MLHG Pilot BN
Namo of the Pilol DN Selos Nama of the Pilat DN
Phons Number [eoler # or nww (555) $55-999%5 Phane Numbar
Ctfer Distinetive Ring for calls Lo the Fiiet ON Yes| [Offer Distinetive Ring For calls {a the Pligt DN Yes
Dislinctr-g Ring type Digtinctive Ring type
jPrazant Pilot ON Meme as CID on Calls to agents Yes Presanl Pllot DN Name as CID on Calls to agonts Yos
Offer Ability to Exit the MLHG ¥Yos Offer Ability to Exit the MLHG hi ]
Exit to Yoi il Yes Exif ta Vei ] Yeo
E:t Lo Specifiz DN Exit to Spacific DN
Group Memb Group iembers _
NAME oo NAME [a]]x)
Mary White (555) 5551111
Kelly Star (B55) 5651112
Sue Hudson (555) 5551113
Fage 1 of 1
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Hosted PBX Call Pick-Up Group Worksheet

Call Pick Up Group Name Customar Service Group Name

Depertman Customar Service Departmen!

Sroup Momber Name [#}]s] {Group Mambors (Name/RID)
| Bl Black (B65) 5553333

Jack Green {555] 555-3334

If customer has a hunt group, callar can press *11 Lo pick up a call in any hunt group
If customer does not have hunt groups, allows user fo press *11 to pick up & call inging to any predefined group

Puaga 1 of1
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Hosted PBX Short Codes Worksheet

Shert codas are lke spead dials. Yoo dial an extansion mumber and I dngs & hum ter outside of the business group

Short eodas must mot ovarlap with any exsting axtenslons

Short Code
{4 digil number theal
does not stard with Directary Mumber
0,1 or 5) Ocpartmat [Ring to Rumber)
2000 Bales {555) 444-2252
Page 107 1
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Account Codes Waorksheet

Indlcate e call Typers that should Pequlte account codes List of Valld Arsount Codes
Aceount Sodes Yoz 1t y2, fIlf cul seclion bekaw | 201
Uetrtemat Al ik el Vgrifed 208
3 203
204
215
Lacal o 233
peraior Yes
Direttory Assist Yos
{Intra) Businegs Group No
Domestic LD Yes
Internationzl o5
Carrier Dialed (1010} Yeg
Page 1ef1
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Hosted PBEX Analog Device Worksheet

Dewice Mame Extiting Y Anatgg Mumnber Line Type Lomments
Fax Y (555} 4441111 coL Sales Fax
Firm Alarm H 1555) 444-1112 CoL
Page {al i
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Phone-Speaker Pagling

Dioas the custamer wish to setup Phone-Speakar Paging? Yes
IF yes, complele iha section below  [f no, skip he rest ol this warkshee!

Description
Page oll
Depl x

Moie, Mark DON's thal are allowed 1o ransmlt 8 Page |

Pageiol2
sodgaatih tar anFzme



}[all Pobycom phanas}

Paging Group Memberahips
ors Merbers

Al In Depatrnent x}

Group 3 Memirers

(AllLin Dopatmont x}

Group 4 &

Fage 2ol 2
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Overhead Paging - Ancillary Paging Unit

Does the HPBX nesd to interface with an averhsad paging syetem? Yas
if yes, Adet JOCK Moded X00X fo equinment teb and coplinue I ne, skip the rest of ihis fab

Does the customer have an existing overhead paging system?
If yes, coninug I no, refer customer o Sysfems division to quota Paging hardware,

Qverhead paging is accomplished by installing an  J00¢ Mode| XXX paging device

The XXX Model XXX has ong imtegrated speaker and an output that can imterface with an existing amplifier.
Pages sent to X0, Madel X000 will MOT also come thraugh the Phone spaakers

Heowever, the X Model 200X CAN be 2 member of 8 Polycom phone-speaker paging graup

Please indicate the phore number that should be associated with the paging device, or specify "new' to have a new number assigned.

Phiore Number Extenslan
[Paging Number | BOS5405423]
|is thers a PoF data port In lhe vicinity & where the XXX Model XXX _should ba mountad? |vas ]

If no, add to wiring quobe.

Should the X0 Model X000 be a member of ary phone speaker paging groups?
If yes, indicate which group(s)
Group 1 (Page All) [Yes
Graup 2|No
Group 3|No
Group 4 [No
Group 5| Mo

Page 1 of 1

If yes, paging will come through all phone speakers and overhead speaker(s)
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Hosted PBEX Toll Free Worksheet

Tall Fren 2 Blescnption Ring To 2

Page 1 e
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ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY

The 6863 offers an effictent Power over Ethernet {PoE)
Class 1 power rating as a convenient, environmentally
friendly alternative to traditional AC power adapters.

The 6863 also supports an optional Efficiency Level

V"' compliant power adaptor, if required. With smaller
packaging that includes 100% recycled and biodegradable
material, the Mitel 6800 series S|P Phones comprise one of
the most environmentally friendly family of SiP phones on
the market.

Page 12 of 21



*icense required

@ Copyight 2014, Meel Metwaorks Coiporation sl Rights Reserded  The Miksl word and lego ere tradernarks of Mitel Metworks Carporahon
Any reference be third party traoerr arks are fas refereace only and Mitel makes no representation of ownesig ol e narks

14050-17612-123456-RO11S-EM

Page 13 of 21






The Mitel 6865 SIP Phone features an innovative headset
pott that uniguely provides dual support for DHSG/EHS
and modular four-pin headset connections. Users with
wireless headsets that support DHSG/EHS can connect
directly to the 6865 using standard third party cables.

All Mitel 6800 series SIP phones have been desighed with
the environment in mind. Using dynamic Power over
Ethernet (PoE) class reporting, the 6865 has a PoE Class

2 rating and automatically switches classes when an
M685 LCD expansion module is connected, enabling the
phone and network switches to efficiently manage power
consumption, The Mitel 6865 SIP Phone also supports

an optional Efficiency Level V" compliant power adaptor
if required. With smaller packaging that includes 100%
recycled and biodegradable material, the Mitel 6800 series
SIP Phones comprise one of the most environmentally
friendly family of SIP phones on the market.

v 2 dedicated line keys with LEDs
« 8 Programmable keys with LEDs
« 4-way navigation key with Sefect/OK button

« Dedicated function keys, including Conference,
Transfer, Callers List, Hold, Redial, Goodbye,
Optians, 2 volurne keys, Mute {with LED) and
Speaker/Headset fwith LED)

« Mitel HI-Q Audio Technology

» Hearing aid compatible {HAC) handset
= Full-duplex quality speakerphone

= Wideband handset and speakerphone

« Codecs: G.711 y-law / A-law, G729 G722, AMR*,
AMR-WB(G.722.2)* G.726, iLBC, BV16, BV3Z L16

« Echo cancellation

« Comfort noise utilization

« Packet loss concealment

« Voice Quality Metrics, including MOS

+ DHSG/EHS and 4-pin modular headset supported

Monochrome LCD
« 347 128248 pixel graphicat backlit display

= Soft white backlight for user comfort in any
lighting condition

LED for call and message waiting indication

User and administrator leve! passwords for login
Encryption of configuration files

HTTPS configuration and web management
Phone lock with PIN

Digest Authentication

Transport Layer Security (TLS)

Secure Real-Time Protocol (SRTP)

Display controf based on user actions or events

Dynamic Phone Configuration
RTP Streaming Control
CT1 applications

Extensive XML documentation and sample apps

Page 15 of 21
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+ Support for up to nine (9) lines
+ HD wideband audio
+ Large color LCD display

+ Intuitive graphical user interface
and navigation menus

= Dual Gigabit Ethernat ports

» Multi-lingual support — English,
Franch, Spanish, ltalian, German

= Environmentally friendly design

» Support for up to three (3)
Expansion Modulas

= PoE Class 2

REMARKABLE AUDIO

All Mitel 6800i series SIP Phones feature Mitel's high
definition Hi-Q™ audio technology to deliver enhanced
performance and voice clarity. Integrating HD wideband
audio codecs, advanced audio processing, and hardware
components that support a true wideband frequency
range, the 6867i offers a superior voice experience on
each audio path — handset, speakerphone or headset
port — making conversations crystal clear and more
life-like.

LARGE COLOR SCREEN DISPLAY

Mitel 6867i SIP Phone features a high resolution 3.5°
QVGA color backlit LCD display that delivers a rich visual
presentation to maximize productivity. The large color
display combined with icon based navigation menus
and intuitive user interface makes the many powerful
telephony features of the 68671 instinctively easy to use.
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Polycomr

Polycom® SoundStation® IP 5000
IP Conference Phone

Advanced IP conference phone with Polycom HD
Voice™ clarity, designed for small conference rooms
and executive offices

The Polycom® SoundStation® IP 5000 conference phone delivers remarkably clear
conference calls for small conference rooms and executive offices. It features
Polycom HD Voice™ technology, broad SIP interaperability, and a modern deslgn that
Is |deal for smaller rooms—all at an affordable price.

With Polycom HD Voice technology, the SoundStation IP 5000 conference phone
boosts productivity and reduces listener fatigue by turning ordinary conference calls
into crystal-clear, Iriteractlve conversations. It captures both the deeper lows and
higher frequencies of the human volce for conference calls that sound as natural as
being there.

For all calls, the SoundStation IP 5000 conference phone delivers advanced audio
performance that is designed for executive offices and smaller conference rooms with
up to 6 participants. From full-duplex technclogy that eliminates distracting drop-outs
to the latest echo cancellation advancements, only Polycom can deliver a conference
phone experience with no compromises. Conference calls are made more productive
and efficient by three sensitive microphones with 360° coverage that allow users to
speak in a normal voice and be heard clearly from up to 7 feet away, The phone also
features technology that resists interference from mobile phones and other wireless
devices, dellvering clear communications without distractions.

The SoundStation IP 5000 leverages Polycom's strong history In bath conference
phone and ValP technology to deliver the most robust standards-based SIP
interoperability in the industry. It shares the same SIP phone software base with
Polycom's award-winning SoundPolnt IP products—the most comprehensive, reliable
and feature-rich SIP products in the industry with proven interoperability with a broad
array of IP PBX and hosted platforms.

Robust provisioning, management, and security features make Polycom's family of IP
conference phones the only choice for meeting rooms in SIP-based environments,
Integrated Power over Ethernet {PoE) simplifies setup, with an optional AC power

kit available for non-PoE environments, Plus, the SoundStation IP 5000 conference
phone Includes a high-resolution backlit display for vital call information and multi-
language support.
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Benefits

Unparalleled clarity — Polycom HD
Voice makes your conference calls
sound arnazingly clear and life-like

Maore productive conference
calls — Patented Polycom Acoustic
Clarity™ technology delivers

the best conference phone
experlence with no compromises

Ideal for smaller rooms — 7-foot
microphone pickup and a small
footprint designed for executive
offlces and smaller conference
rooms with up to 6 participants

Advanced |P feature support —
the most feature-rich family of IP
conference phones available, with
advanced call handling, security,
and provisloning features

Robust Interoperabillty —
compatibte with a broad array
of SIP call platforms to maximize
voice quality and feature
availability while simplifying
management and administration
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Project Name:
Project Number:

Prepared By: Author’s Name Here

Last Revised On: (Insert Date)

This change management plan is a component of the project management plan. It defines the process for
managing change on the project.
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The project manager is responsible for analyzing the change requests for impact to schedule, budget, risk and quality.
Once the sizing is complete, the project manager will electronically submit each change request to all members of
the change control board.

Members of the change control board will evaluate each written change request and decide whether it becor
approaved, approved with modifications, rejected or deferred. Once a decision is reached, the change request is
signed by an authorized member of the change control board and emailed to the project manager for planning
revisians, communication and implementation.

A. APPROVED

When a change request is approved by the change control board, the project manager will track the approval on the
change request log found in Attachment B, below. The project manager will also ensure implementation of the
change, as it was submitted and approved,

Where implementation affects changes to the project management plan, the project manager will revise the plan
and distribute notice of the revisions in accordance with the procedures set forth in the communication
management plan.

When a change request is approved with madifications, the project manager wilf track the modified approval on the
change request log found in Attachment B, below. The project manager will also ensure implementation of the
change, as it is modified and approved.

Where implementation affects changes to the project management plan, the project manager will revise the plan
and distribute notice of the revisions In accordance with the procedures set forth in the communication
management pian.
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Attach the change request log here.
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Schedule Kick off with customer

Meet with OCIO’s Project team

Review contract with OCIO Project team to ensure full understanding of
project scope

Review general implementation plan with QCIC Project team and determine

specifics for application

Discuss and plan roll out strategy

Gain approval for roll cut strategy

Order Equipment for st phase

Review communication plan

Reviewfupdate comr  ication plan as applicable {incorporate into this
project plan)

Develop documentaticn requirements and standards (e.g., set up
directories, file naming conventions, groupware)

Plan for meeting processes, agendas, minutes, and follow up

Initiate issues management process

Start an issues log

Plan for regular review of project progress and milestone compietion

Estabiish escalation process

Initiate change control process

Plan to use a formal change request and approval process

Manage changes to system (e.g., customization, priorities, budget)

Network Assessment & Site Visit

Discovery meeting with network team

Discuss DCHP requirements

Discuss IP requirement

Discuss with OCIO switch configurations

Verify the OCIQ's network is configured correctly for Hosted PBX voice

B Bl Bl B
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Verify cabling is in place

Test Hasted PBX voice line

Test analog paging

Test analog fax

b3 Bt B B
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Set up help desk for testing and trouble resolution

Port numbers

Test phones again

ALLO project team site for One-on-One support

Follow up each day untilal  sues are resolved

Gain acceptance from OCIO and Agency all is complete

B R B S

Turn over to Account Management

Send email notifying OCIO Project team and Agency of Completion

Review billing with Account Manager

Celebrate success

Review post support process with Agency/OCIO and ALLO so everyone
knows who to call or amail for support/itrouble

I R B
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Attachement
A Option A
Requirements
SR-20

RE SR 22: { The State
requires a solution that
provides for seasonal
suspension on select lines,
where the lines and hilling
are suspended at the end
of each season and
returned to service at the
beginning of the next
season. )

Question: What does the
State plan to do with the
physical endpoints during
the seasonal suspension?

These endpoints will remain
in place with the service
suspended.

Attachement
A Option A
Requirements
SR-21

RE SR-21: ( The State
requires the ability to block
alt incoming calls to select
lines. )

Question 1a; Does this
include the blocking of
incoming calls originating
from within the
organization?

Question 1b: Does this
include the blocking of
incaming calls originating
from the PSTN to an
allowed user which then
transfers the call to a
disallowed user?

Question 1¢:  Does this
include the blocking of call
originating from an internal
conference bridge?

1a. Yes

1b. Yes

1c.Yes

General
Question

At the Pre-Proposal
Conference on July 17th, it
was stated that site
locations with addresses
will be provided. When will
those be made available
or where can those be
found?

What are the approximate
# of devices at address be
made available?

See Attachment E for
information. The information
is only a snapshot of
inventory. Line counts and
addresses change and this
should be considered an
approximation.
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General
Question

is there a requirement for
public space phones to be
gigabit?

If not what % of percent of
phones are considered
public space?

Telephone sets not attached
to a waorkstation will not
require a gigabit connection.

The State does not have this
information to provide an
answer.

General
Question

Are phones required to be
TLS 1.2 compliant?

Yes

General
Question

Is the proposed solution
required to be FIPS 140-2
compliant?

Yes

General
Question

Do any of the SON user
base need to be maobile
workers or require
softphone or IP phones at
their home?

If yes what % of user base
requires this functionality?

Soft phones will nat be
utilized. There are currently
no IP phanes in homes.

10.

General
Question

Do any users not require a
desk phone and only
require a soft phone?

If yes what % of user base
only requires a soft
phone?

Soft phones will not be
utilized

11.

General
Question

Do any users require click
to call feature from a
client?

If yes what % of user base
requires this feature?

No

12.

General
Question

Do any users require the
ability to have an incoming
call ring both a desk phone
and another phong,
considered Single Number
Reach?

If yes what % of user base
requires this feature?

This is not a requirement of
this RFP.

13.

General
Question

Do any users require the
ability to have a desktop
client provide availability or
presence status?

If yes what % of user base
requires this feature?

This is not a requirement of
this RFP,

14.

General
Question

Do any users require video
capabilities in addition to
voice?

This is not a requirement of
this RFP.
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If yes what % of user base
requires this feature?

How will the State grade
and score pricing
responses considering the
various required and, in

Please see the Evaluation
Criteria posted on our web
site, which has the formula
used to determine how the

15. General some cases, optional cost points are calculator.
Question features that have been

requested such as
messaging, auto
attendant, ACD/UCD?
The Project Environment The Carriers are Windstream
section mentions the on contract 2844 04 and
current environment CenturyLink on  contract
including Carrier provided | 55323 04.

186. Centrex, who is the Carrier

and is it executed through
an ongoing contract? [f
s0, can | get the
associated contract
number?

This addendum will become part of the proposal and should be acknowledged with the Request

for Proposal response.
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EVALUATION CRITERIA

RFP NUMBER 5885 Z1,
Hosted Voice over Internet Protocol Telephony Service

Option B: Carrier Hosted Solution
Opening Date: Monday, August 20, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. Central Time

Mandatory Requirements
The proposals will first be examined to determine if all mandatory requirements listed below have been
addressed to warrant further evaluation. Proposals not meeting mandatory requirements will be
excluded from further evaluation. The mandatory requirement items are as follows:

1. Request for Proposal For Contractual Services form, signed in ink;

2. Corporate Overview;

3. Technical Approach; and

4. Cost Proposal.

Evaluation Criteria

All responses to this Request for Proposal, which fulfill all mandatory requirements, will be evaluated.
Each category will have a maximum possible point potentiat. Areas that will be addressed and scored
during the evaluation include:

Evaluation Criteria Possible Points
Part 1 — Corporate Ovearview 40
Part 2 — Technical Approach 600
Part 3— Cost Proposal Points 400
Total Points without Oral Interviews 1040
Oral Interviews, (if required) 400
Total Points with Oral Interviews 1440

Part 4 — Cost Proposal Points
Cost points should be calculated as follows:
1. Establish lowest cost submitted — lowest cost submitted receives the maximum paints.
2. To assign points to all others, the following formula should be followed:
Lowest Cost Submitted + Cost Submitted x Maximum Possible Cost Points =
Cost Points to Award {see samples below)

Formula Sample Sample Sample
Lowest Cost Submitted $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
+ Cost Submitted $100,000 $200,000 $150,000
X Maximum Paossible Cost Points 400 400 400
= Points To Award 400 200 266.67

STATE OF NEBRASKA EVALUATION CRITERIA 07/30/2015
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Attachment E
Address and Line Count

STRET_NO STRET_NM

644
736
445
340
938
2351
6815
6825
306
504
3603
001908
011990
000117
003000
003100
000121
001400
005109
10809
12505
3604
3811
3805
14808
7838
114
640
1406
1416
430
1033
5820
15951
16710
700
316
33
451
1100
700

120
3200
3621
30
471

4TH

4TH

MAIN
MORRISON
60TH

COUNTY ROAD 18
HIGHWAY 30
HIGHWAY 30
5TH
CARBERRY
HIGHWAY 34 & 6
0

6TH

HILL

LINCOLN
LINCOLN

S5

W SCOTT

W SCOTT
17TH
HARRISON TULL
SUMMIT PLAZA
TWIN CREEK
TWIN CREEK
STATE

BIG
FRONTAGE
ROAD 209

6TH

6TH

2ND

3RD
HIGHWAY 20
HIGHWAY 385
HIGHWAY 385
LAKE

MAIN

MAIN

MAIN

MAIN

MAPLE

RR 2

BRYAN
HIGHWAY 20
HIGHWAY 20
MAIN

S5QUAW CREEK

STRET_SFX CTY

ST
ST
ST
ST
RD

ST
ST

ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
RD
ST
DR
DR
DR
DR
ST
5PGS
RD

ST
ST
ST
ST

ST
ST
ST
5T
5T
5T

ST

ST
RD

AINSWORTH
AINSWORTH
AINSWORTH
AINSWORTH
ALDA

AMES

AMES

AMES
ATKINSON
ATKINSON
ATLANTA
AUBURN
AYR
BEATRICE
BEATRICE
BEATRICE
BEATRICE
BEATRICE
BEATRICE
BELLEVUE
BELLEVUE
BELLEVUE
BELLEVUE
BELLEVUE
BENNINGTON
BIG SPRINGS
BIG SPRINGS
BIG SPRINGS
CENTRAL CITY
CENTRAL CITY
CHADRON
CHADRON
CHADRON
CHADRON
CHADRON
CHADRON
CHADRON
CHADRGN
CHADRON
CHADRON
CHADRON
CHADRON
CLARKSON
CRAWFORD
CRAWFORD
CRAWFORD
CRAWFORD

ST_ABBR ZIP_CD

NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE

69210
69210
69210
69210
68810
68621
68621
68621
68713
68713
68923
68305
68925
68310
68310
68310
68310
68310
68310
68123
68005
68123
68123
68123
68007
69122
69122
69122
68826
68826
69337
69337
69337
69337
69337
69337
69337
69337
69337
69337
69337
69337
68629
69339
69339
659339
59339
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001005
1601
4454
1401
000532
000621
7425
221
401
3231
1674
1811
3431

1

101

507
2550
124
212
835
2951
827
1542
1610
1955
1959
435
725
1428
4349
54954
001320
309
900
2386
123
3218
100
117
205
1203
1424
2807
1306
102
3600
3010
2310
3335
3347
3204

E STATE HIGHWAY 33

BROADWAY
HIGHWAY 77
PINE

D

N 10TH

US HIGHWAY 281
STATE
BEECROFT
HIGHWAY 183
RR 1

2

LINCOLN
PARK DR25A
RIPLEY

SHED

SMITH

23RD

5TH

8TH

BROAD
CLARKSON

D

HIGHWAY 275
HWY 77 275
MILITARY
MILITARY
PARK

PARK

PARK

STATE LAKES
STATE HIGHWAY 14
G

AVENUE D
AVENUE J
GOTHENBURG
LAKE

LAKE

15T

15T

15T

2ZND

2ZND

ZND

3RD

60TH
ACADEMY
AIRPORT
CAPITAL
CAPITAL
CAPITAL
COLLEGE

ST

ST
ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
HWY

ST

AVE
DR
ST
ST
ST
5T
5T

AVE
AVE
AVE
AVE
AVE
RD

ST

AVE
AVE
5T
5T
5T
ST
ST
ST
ST
RD
RD
RD
AVE
AVE
AVE
ST

CRETE
DAKOTA CITY
DAKOTA CITY
DAKOTA CITY
DAVID CITY
DAVID CITY
DONIPHAN
ELKHORN

ELM CREEK
ELM CREEK
ELM CREEK
ELWOOD
ELWOQOD
ELWGOD
ELWOOD
ELWOOD
ELWOOD
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FREMONT
FULLERTON
GENEVA
GOTHENBURG
GOTHENBURG
GOTHENBURG
GOTHENBURG
GOTHENBURG
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND I5LAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND

NE
NE
NE
NE

68333
68731
68731
68731
68632
68632
68832
68022
68836
68836
68836
68937
68937
68937
68937
68937
68937
68025
68025
68025
68025
68025
68025
68025
68025
68025
68025
68025
68025
68025
68025
68638
68361
69138
691338
69138
69138
69138
68801
68801
68801
683801
68801
68803
68801
68803
68801
68801
68803
63803
68803
68803

CcL
CcL

ogso0

CL
CL
CL
CL
CL
CL
CL
cL
CcL
CcL
CcL
CcL
CL
CcL
CcL
CL
CcL
CL
CL
CL
CL
CL
CL
CL
CL
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CcL
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CL
CL
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CL
CcL
CcL
CcL
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CL
CcL
CL
CL
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312
4900
215
724
2124
2900
231
1137
2710
2900
3431
3305
3835
3301
116
121
207
208
3855
204
202
211
3180
211
115
2418
2512 1/2
8585
15525
21502
21506
15602
16801
19202
105
840
000002
006698
006700
000111
000300
000317
001030
002727
004200
002015
000500
000517
006150
000110
000225
1308

ELM
ENGLEMAN
KAUFMAN
KOENIG
LAFAYETTE
LINCOLN
LOCUST
LOCUST
NOGRTH

OLD LINCOLN
OLD LINCOLN
OLD POTASH
OLD POTASH
ONER

PINE

PINE

PINE

PINE

SKY PARK
SOUTH FRONT
STOLLEY PARK
TILDEN

US HIGHWAY 34
WASHINGTON
WEBE

WEBB

WEBB

204TH

234TH
HIGHWAY 31
HIGHWAY 31

| 80

| 80

| 80
MEADOW
HIGHWAY 20
200BA

El

EJ

HWY &

N ST JOSEPH AVE
S BURLINGTON AVE
SOUTHERN HILLS
W 2ND

W 2ND

W 3RD

W ATH

W 4TH

HWY 136

N 13TH

N 4TH

2ND

ST
RD
AVE
ST
AVE
HWY
ST
ST
RD
HWY
HWY
HWY
HWY
RD
ST
ST
ST
5T
RD
ST
RD
ST

ST
RD
RD
RD
ST
ST

LN

ST
ST

DR
)
ST
5T
5T
5T

ST
ST
ST

GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND |SLAND
GRAND {SLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRAND ISLAND
GRETNA
GRETNA
GRETNA
GRETNA
GRETNA
GRETNA
GRETNA
GRETNA
HARRISON
HASTINGS
HASTINGS
HASTINGS
HASTINGS
HASTINGS
HASTINGS
HASTINGS
HASTINGS
HASTINGS
HASTINGS
HASTINGS
HASTINGS
HEBRON
HEBRON
HEBRON
HOLDREGE

NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE

68801
68803
68803
68801
68803
63803
63801
68801
68803
68803
68803
68803
68803
68803
68801
68801
68801
68801
68801
68801
68801
68803
68801
68801
68803
68803
68803
68028
68028
68028
68028
68028
68028
68028
68028
69346
68902
68901
63901
68901
68901
68901

68901
68901
68901
68901
68901
68370
68370
68370
68949
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176

2414

29
122

18

701
1013
176
701
715
511
72821
4244
47576
6949
3044
214
407
200
931
003977
003019
001233
003431
001704
001401
001500
001600
000301
00s001
005800
003729
001327
001425
001627
000733
005819
005845
005735
001445
001526
001546
001401
005800
004600
001010
001320
006220
001343
001345
001410
001440
001501
001111
001234
001300
001010

4TH

4TH

5TH

5TH

5TH
HANCOCK
J
HUMPHREY
US HIGHWAY 81
110TH
84TH
HIGHWAY 20
6TH

7TH

7TH

AIR PARK
APPLE
ARAPAHOE
AVIATION

B
BURNHAM
BURNHAM
BURNHAM

CENTENNIAL MALL S

CENTRAL PARK
CORNHUSKER HWY
DIABLO

H

H

H

HILL
HUNTINGTON AVE
HUNTINGTON AVE
JOHANNA,

K

K

K

L

LEIGHTON AVE
LEWIS AVE
LINCOLN MALL
LINCOLN MALL
LOGAN AVE

22 EE

MILITARY
MILITARY
MILITARY
N

AVE
AVE
AVE
AVE
AVE
ST

RD

ST
ST

DR
ST
ST
ST
ST

RO
ST
ST
ST
ST

ST
ST
ST
ST
ST
RD
RD
RD
ST

HOLDREGE
HOLDREGE
HOLDREGE
HOLDREGE
HOLDREGE
HOLDREGE
HOLDREGE
HUMPHREY
HUMPHREY
LA VISTA
LA VISTA
LAUREL
LEXINGTON
LEXINGTON
LEXINGTON
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN
LINCOLN

NE

NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
NE
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Attachment D
588571
NPA-NXX

NPA-NXX of the telephone numbers to port.

308221 402263 402425 402595 402891
308254 402267 402433 402624 402892
308284 402268 402434 402625 402923
308324 402274 402435 402636 402925
308337 402287 402436 402643 402935
308382 402289 402437 402646 402944
308384 402291 402438 402673 402946
308385 402292 402439 402685 402987
308432 402296 402441 402687
308522 402298 402443 402727
308532 402309 402444 402729
308534 402323 402445 402742
308535 402328 402449 402747
308536 402331 402451 402749
308537 402332 402453 402751
308611 402334 402458 402753
308617 402335 402460 402759
308627 402336 402462 402761
308629 402345 402463 402762
308631 402346 402464 402764
308633 402352 402465 402768
308665 402359 402470 402771
308668 402362 402471 402772
308687 402363 402473 402780
308745 402364 402474 402782
308754 402367 402475 402783
308785 402370 402476 402786
308824 402371 402477 402789
308832 402372 402479 402791
308856 402374 402484 402796
308889 402375 402494 402798
308946 402376 402522 402826
308995 402379 402543 402833
402223 402385 402562 402852
402225 402387 402572 402865
402228 402391 402573 402872
402234 402397 402579 402873
402241 402420 402591 402874
402256 402423 402592 402879









MINDEN 4
NEBRASKA CITY 46
NORFOLK 477
NORTH PLATTE 24
OAKLAND 2
OFFUTT AFB 6
OGALLALA 2
OMAHA 1353
ONEILL 18
OXFORD 2
PAPILLION 6
PENDER 6
PERU 194
PLATTSMOUTH 6
SCHUYLER 2
SEWARD 18
SIDNEY 7
SOUTH SICUX CITY 7
ST LIBORY 2
ST PAUL 46
TECUMSEH 3
TEKAMAH

VALENTINE 22
WAHQO 12
WAKEFIELD 2
WATERLOO 6
WAYNE 22
WEST POINT 13
YORK 23
YUTAN 1
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ALLO OGALLALA
ACCOUNT NO: 5775
) BILL DATE; 07/24/2018
Page: 2 of 25

gLt .

Visit us an the web  www.ALLOcommunications.com

Say “ALLO” to Easier Payments.

Register for Online Bill Pay and Auto-Pay:

1. Visit AlloCommunications.com/PayMyBlll
2. Select “Login/Register” - you'll be directed to our SmartHub Application,
3. You'll need your account number, city of birth, zip code, and email address,

You'll Then be Able to Sign Up for Auto-Payments:

1. Visit AloCommunications.com/PayMyBill

2. Select "Setup Auto-Payments.”

Z. You'll need your account number and hank information.
4, Fill out the form and click, "Submit."”

Questions?

Call your local residential support team or visit AlloFlber.com to chat.
Lincoln: 402.480.6650 | Central and Western NE: 866.481.2556
Business Support - Lincoln: 402,.480.6570 | Central and Western NE: 855.632.3154

AllO

a [@elnet comeany

This Bili is Due Upon Receipt.

guent S days after the due date. Payiments not made within

5.days of the due date are su

te your biil. A 325 charge will apply for insufficiont funds.

PLEASE INDICATE CHANGE OF ADDRESS

NAmE Contact Number

Address

Delivery Addrass

Cily Stale Zip

Signature Effective Date





































ALLO OGALLALA
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et Pege: 25 of 25

Vinill us on e web www ALL Donmmimicstions com

MONTHLY USAGE FOR TV: 122-264-0065

Descriptian ] Quantify Amount

DETAIL FOR: ALLO DGALLALA

TV SERVICES O7f24-08/23

FIBER TV ONLY WORKS 1@ .00

TV SERVICES SUBTQTAL .00
SUB-TOTAL 00

CURRENT BILLING AMOUNT oo



